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Rail Vikas Nigam Limited

ﬂ @ fawma o fafes

oo uig auf & IRE TBidg
R RIS # ) (00Rt B Breaw)

<RT 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15
CRECIEN 1444.65 1597.92 2116.85 2492.37 3141.97
IR 84.51 177.19 255.92 287.24 347.21
T&d AR Goll 2085.02 2085.02 2085.02 2085.02 2085.02
SINGERCISIENLS 151.50 222.79 329.32 451.05 593.84
g I 2236.52 2307.81 2414.34 2536.07 2678.86
IF I IRARRET 3.84 4.83 7.75 8.99 8.87
PR Yd AT 75.45 119.33 167.46 195.17 236.35
PR B foIg Uraem 14.36 20.94 31.91 37.75 50.63
BR G A 61.09 98.39 135.55 157.42 185.72
RIKINI 12.5 20.00 27.00 31.50 37.20
gfd 2RR 3o+ (SUw) 0.29 0.47 0.65 0.76 0.89
Performance During Last Five Years & In Crore) (Except EFS)
Particulars 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15
Turnover 1444.65 1597.92 2116.85 2492.37 3141.97
Total Income 84.51 177.19 255.92 287.24 347.21
Paid up Capital 2085.02 2085.02 2085.02 2085.02 2085.02
Reserves and Surplus 151.50 222.79 329.32 451.05 593.84
NetWorth 2236.52 2307.81 2414.34 2536.07 2678.86
Net Fixed Assets 3.84 4.83 7.75 8.99 8.87
Profit before Tax 75.45 119.33 167.46 195.17 236.35
Provision for Tax 14.36 20.94 31.91 37.75 50.63
Profit after Tax 61.09 98.39 135.55 157.42 185.72
Dividend 12.5 20.00 27.00 31.50 37.20
Eraning Per Share(EPS) 0.29 0.47 0.65 0.76 0.89

ﬁl_g_l:[ gl AT B RT IR B fory A

T IIATITd IGANTAT BT [FFi7 HYT

M ISSION To create state of the art Rail transport infrastructure to
meet the growing demand.

U ISR A< IR iR gRaTT= 131l &l
THI R QT N D forg dfas i ggfaar &
3Ifes gl A Y&Tdl & BY 4 SHRAT |

To emerge as the most efficient provider of Rail
infrastructure, with a sound financial base and global
construction practices, for timely completion of projects.
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@ faerm fom fafies
ﬂ Rail Vikas Nigam Limited

Yo faera frem fafies
A TR foredaTs Yold e+
T ST, AR, o=Ts
Yo faera o fafies
24, <1 9TO1 N8 Hel Nrs, Blerdbar (3 YfIe)
Yol faera fomm fafies
174/2, wifdd TR, MIfSTE AABIYRT #9 e
BT, AT (2 )

Yo faera fem fafids
FRIR ATSITRANEARTT YTd BT,
AR 7 IS, DRI U, YoI—411001
Yo faera e fafies
7 dd1, g gefAtgfea fafee,
el Yerd, LU, e, A, g
Yo faera fm fafies
6.9 TR PR, fi—sdid, ¥ B,
YEIWRYR, Ya-IvaR (2 Ff+ic)

Yo faera fem fafies
Ul ddf, Wied 9a+, Wi—13, faiq @vs
T TR, TRITS

Yo fawra e fafies

T—21, 3yfTETE, UIfer dichi=l, YL.UF. e g1, ge-T

¥a faera frem fafies
€138 /U, Yad §e, S e, SRR

Yo faera e fafies
F. 15, UgCll O, ddgT 88N, Ugdl A NS,
6a7 P Tl TR, STAR

ol faera e fafies
FATD ATh—4, TedTd Hed Aam,

T B ), TR

Yo faem™ frm fafies

A I, 5d1 T, SR . 9—1—164 /T,
165 Td 166, TRISMI <dl e FAHEREE
¥d faera frm fafics
5 Ud 6, SN i, M i1,

R e TR, /PR, T (2 JfHe)

Yo fawm frm fafics
fafeeT . 1—34, THTHTH BIcll=l, FIHIYRE,

fremaTT=m, a1y uaw
¥d faem frm fafics

45—1, g% &ilh, fhaas TR, BMYR, SR YT

¥d faera e fafies
ARE. /N /2, XA IMBAR BIAT, PIeT, TSR
Yd faera e fafies
w9 |, 22, SRS AT, feoa

ATpEIfed gad, IR

Yo faera e fafies

™H . 61, 2% O, 48] IHARR Hid, Jufie faeasar
SRR Bies, faATg—TeiR 814,

YGTET, JATARIETG, JolRTd

Yd faera fem fafies

IR®. Y=H, 7Ig faee (1 gfre)

U wfaa
ST e g

aifafsre oer as

IFiaRe d@r Nigs

e Us dRURT IAHifhy

HAR A0Sl U8 TEIICH
12 (T8TS) YA, Pifeial

B D, NI U8 THIRITSH
204, UST. IHR ATSATC,

TH del 3FRA hifd o+
BTSN BT

CIRIRINEU N EINEIICIT el Tl BRI 9T, IRB. JRA 75 faeell — 110066
78 fdeeli—110065 73 fdeell — 110005

Website : www.rvnl.org
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R.K. Puram, New Delhi-110066

Corporation Bank
ICICI Bank

05



ﬂ @ fawma o fafes

Rail Vikas Nigam Limited ]

31ege] hHT IO

FHATII SRIRERPI,
#, Yot faera e fafice & e dsa 1 oI | Sui &1 1241 a1fids TR0 |1 # 3179 T4 BT 8l e &l & | Faera &

Rare, o uigrst &1 Rl sik ¥Rd & F=Ie g AgTerar wiefd & feuforay afed wu-l & fahia a¥ 2014—15 & b Rrd ofd ugel 8
aRUf $R AT U € 31k H STes! Al A 578 Us form AT A1 i § |

H o g o e, oreget vofd ars, &1 A1 &, 1, GG SollaR—huHl & oY AT & YIRS |ied, S IR I HAR, fad
I (Yef), = A T, Fa fA5Tell, 5 UdIU HAR, e DIHD, Al 80 GAR, e IS IR 4 Ha RH-21, eI Jrarnd ao
S I T & FART WIRERGT 1R AT Fooil &l WA PRl 8 | 37U HaE & YRH ¥, § HU Bl AR I AT J4T BT 379
| ASANT 31X YIATE & T MR Udhe BT T8l &, (o7 DU 2 & el SR IR DI ST & U Jof Se¥d Bl T R A
Ahel & |

X faerr e fefics 2014—15 H 91 S10sT WATRY @ gor FARER ST JedT R8T | 2RIRER®] Pl gaTd gY g1 g2l 81 R8I & b Ul = 3o
fwer Wl aredfde 3R faxi Suaferdl A age) &M fbar & | du= 3 o 9§ @) a¥ & YR Yad gRT U 7Y arsdieror ok
frgiaxor & | SR H U RS &1 AFTere 31 € ok |1 &1 o faxfiy fAedres # gurr fham € | Sreiaxor /) g /el
TTEH, AT TR, T8 o185+ iR Yol [AgdaxvT &l IRuRFTd URASTI31 & 3felrdr, Yol faewra s fafiice =1 smm st # fafderdr e
B PIAHIAT iR FaRTETE # Gl ¥al gRATSr1, Taedl uRaTsrall, fearerdt &3 # uddia Yo aRarsTail, Yo srRaErsil, g8 WS X
gRATSTTRM BT Y 319+ MEhIferaT BT R ST 2 |

> ardfas e

X famrd e forfics =1 2014—15 & 37 d& Gl (AeTdR 5580 fHHT T TRATSTAT BT YT AT © | 779 1645 fHHI & IEBRYT, 1590
eI & ST URRacie, 194 {1 ofdl 718 sl 3iR 2151 fHT & Vot fagiianvvT 3fR 3 HRET IRATSTIY A & |

2014—15 & QIR 476 BT T TRATST (259 fHHT BT IIERIBRT 1R 217 fHHT 1 X fIEiadRvT) BT BRI arafdsd w9 A R 631 71
e fUeel ay 466 fHHT BT BRI GRT (BT TAT o7 | $HD STeTTdT, TEIDRUT AR A A5 GRATSTATAT B 9T & WY H 155 fbHT BT Xl
faegeiepvor feba T |

2014—15 H ¥ DI HISI—cU1 JIERIDHROT AYUT URATSTT 3R 141.9 {41, Fdl AT HT—emiawa—[EI X [Agehaxor &1 gRITST BT S
o7 fmar | ¥ & SRE 59 we@gel QeiaRor aRaresi /@l w1 wM g1 fhar R 9 56.9 fadl il erte—fomrsare
QIBRIBRT URYTST, 29 THHT Sfdll SRICT (STAUTi)—STRIYRT STeIbRoT RIS, 69.5 AT e fdeqqyra—SSia @s, 17.0 fH <&
fReaeeR—aTdidIoM el T, 18.0 fhHl ofdl Sfe— et aredia<er aRAST oIfie € | o v v fageiaxer aRkarsmeit
¥ 38 BT oIl QUI—arSI—Tadh et 31R 37 fHH idl s aars—dm o1 uRATSI wfie ¢ |

H RRYRDI BT A AT § (6 ¥t A FerH fetffics uRATSHT arsl T AIG[aT Sead 4§ Sire | Haierd |1 d1R1 fFenfad wxar
2198 @ R, Vot e e farfics =1 217 fad &1 vaet Yot fagdieneor 3R 155 foet & QeI & BRi 3537 | S BT SreavoT,
TR 18, SifeT REHIRT, A1€ & e H uRac iR ST URac TRATSTRIT ¥ SIS ST DT P B 4 I AMER Aheld B1Iel dl & |

X e e fafics & fFraree & el STiersier URATSTTG HAIToi-d a¥id I 31T 98 <& © | 9eveld, JATed Jed arell URATSAIY
1 A1 RS @ AReT H € A1 A SIS, B U el (LWE &l #H), el Nt uRATSTIei # Giaunsil & ReIiaRer dl rgafd el
ST & BROT BD] §S € | 37T 2015—16 B 3 ¥ (TG Y URATSTATAT BT i’ ATSX g 9T 314,237 BRI RS | I DI HISET
T, foTI® T+1 &1 [T 8, BT S §U HIaT ATV HTaT T AR T4 gu1 # YT DR AT ST | U1 ISR 7o AT Bl
T & foTY &aT Haeid IR HATE & AIS(al wxd $I <& 8Y Vel fabr (i fotfics & U+l &1 FRaR e giiead &= @ forg
I S gRATSHY | ST 9 ) S R |

> fa<ia fsares

2014—15 ¥ HU 7 AU ISl SUATRIAT H 1T el BR 2013—14 B 22,493 FRIS Bl oIl 3 59 Y 3142 BRI P SHATR BIA
o, i1 54 26 TfTRIT 1 gf <911 R8T & | HR Yd o™ ¥ gl §s AR T8 2013—14 B 195,21 BRIS U IGHR 2014—15 H 3236.35 BRIS &
TT € 3R PR SURIT o™ fUTel I & 3157.45 BRIS W IGHR 2014—15 H 185.71 PRIS Bl AT &, Wil $HH 18 U ghg Pl A BT % |
Fed XeTd DU GIRT 37U AT Pl FARITSA—ITHTETH JIEIHx0T URATST & foTg /g ol ST & HRoT Tl | ATIeT 311§ AT 31T
2, 39 URITSTT BT [aTaIyor SHS GIRT 30 FATEA! 37 fhar ST a1 2 |
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Chairman's Address

Distinguished Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, | extend a very warm welcome to all of you on the occasion of the 12th Annual General
Meeting of the Company. The audited accounts of the Company for the financial year 2014-15, along with the Directors’ Report and reports of Auditors
and comments of Comptroller and Auditor General of India have already been circulated and with your permission, | take them as read.

| would like to extend a very warm welcome to Shri A K Mital, Chairman, Railway Board, Shri V. K. Gupta, Member Engineering - the Administrative
Secretary of the Ministry for the Company, Smt. R Ravi Kumar, Financial Commissioner (Railways), Sh Naveen Tandon, Member Electrical, Shri Pradeep
Kumar, Member Staff, Shri Hemant Kumar, Member Mechanical, and Shri Kundan Sinha, Member Traffic, and all RVNLs shareholders and invitees. Atthe
outset, I, on behalf of the Company, would like to express our thanks to all of you for all the support and encouragement extended to the Company to
ensure thatthe Company is able to fulfill its primary objective of ramping up rail infrastructure of the country.

In 2014-15, RVNL has continued on the path of its upward trajectory, and | am happy to report to the Shareholders that the Company has exceeded all
previous physical and financial achievements. As in the previous years, the Company continued to contribute to one third of the total doubling and
railway electrification works achieved by Indian Railways and at the same time improved its financial performance. In addition to the traditional
doubling/3rd line/4th line, gauge conversion, new line and Railway Electrification projects, RVNL has diversified its portfolio to include Metro Rail
projects in Kolkata and Hyderabad, hill railway projects in the Himalayas, railway workshops, High Speed Rail projects etc.

> Physical Performance

Cumulatively, upto the end of 2014-15 RVNL has completed a project length of 5580 km. This includes a total of 1645 km of Doubling, 1590 km of Gauge
Conversion, 194 km of New Lines and 2151 km of Railway Electrification and 3 Workshop projects.

During 2014-15, 476 km (259 km of Doubling and 217 km of Railway Electrification) of project length was physically completed, compared to 466 km of
projectinthe previous year. Inaddition, 155 km of Railway Electrification was completed as a part of doubling and 3rd line works.

In 2014-15, the entire project of Bhagat Ki Kothi - Luni Doubling and 141.9 km of RE Project of Yelahanka-Dharmavaram-Gooty was completed. Other
important doubling projects/sections completed during the yearincluded 56.9 km of Hospet-Tinaighat doubling, 29 km of Jaroli

(Banspani)-Jakhapura doubling, 69.5 km of Villupuram-Dindigul section, 17.0 km of Tiruvallur-Arakkonam 4th line, 18.0 km Daund-Gulbarga doubling.
Progress on major RE projects include 38 km of Pune-Wadi-Guntakal and 37 km Amala-Chhindwara-Kalumna.

I would like to confirm to the Shareholders that RVNL carries out all the works related to linking of the project lines with the existing network. During the
year, RVNL completed 217 km of pure railway electrification works and 155 km with Doubling of sections. The Company has also achieved
commendable success in commissioning signalling works associated with doubling, third line, auto signaling, yard remodeling and gauge conversion
projects.

The majority of projects presently under execution by RVNL are progressing satisfactorily. However, a number of high value projects are either at the
planning stage or held up on account of land acquisition, law and order (projects in LWE areas), permissions for shifting of utilities in Metro rail projects
etc. Thus, the balance order book of executable projects as at the end of 2015-16 would be approximately 14,237 crore. With the current pace of
expenditure, which is anticipated to increase, the current shelf of works in progress will be depleted in the next three years. With the current thrust of the
Ministry on augmenting capacity to enhance its revenue earning potential RVNL looks forward to the assignment of new projects to ensure the continued
growth of the Company.

> Financial Performance

In 2014-15, the Company surpassed its previous achievements with a turnover of Rs 3142 crore as compared to 2,493 crore in 2013-14, i.e. an
increase of 26%. While there has been an increase in Profit Before Tax (PBT) from ¥195.21 crore in 2013-14 103 236.35 crore in 2014-15, the Profit after
Tax (PAT) of the Company has increased from3157.45 crore inthe previous yearto<185.71 crore in the currentyeari.e. anincrease of 18%. There was
a decline in the income from dividend from SPVs, due to Kutch Railway Company retaining its profit for the Samakhyali-Gandhidham doubling project
whichis being financed from their own resources.

In view of the improved financial performance, the Directors of your Company have recommended payment of the highest ever dividend of Z37.20 crore
to the Ministry of Railways. Till date RVNL has paid a total of 151.50 crore as Dividend. With the payment of this dividend the effective management
fee/(D&G Charges) payable to RVNL stands reduced by 1.3%.
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Rail Vikas Nigam Limited

ﬂ @ fawma o fafes

forcirg frreames  GuR &1 <@ gY 31TUS! HU & QD] = Nol FATT DI 237.20 BRIS BT AT o1 DI RIBGIRE &1 8, I 319 I BT
AR M AT B | T I a Yo fawr e fafiiee 1 gt 2151.50 BRI BT AT AT B | 3 AT BT A B I XA
famr fm forfics &1 <1 U Udem Yo / (SIgesh TR) H 1.3 UFITd dd af &1 3Ts 2 |

HUT ST, 2013 BT U3 & AR H, e fapra FH fafiics 7 ugell IR av 2014—15 & fof FHfdhd faxiig fdaror TR &iR
TR T 2 | T SiR TasaeRe & fre iR fharderd ud g wufeit # fafafer o Rierd @ SR R o JHfdhd fog g E )

ST AU ATl BY YA 81 RE1 & fob ISl 1 AT & Uaber okl SR |t faxii faaxoll & fory fem 2 oa aRier gamoras St
far e |

> TSI aRATHIg

TEIET 7 500 AT 3RIRST STelR &1 a5l fa<T GIAem UaTH -+ & 7Y J1usil Hedf <1 2 | 59 agirar o=y giaerr & 150 Mfera=
IHRDT TTR DI UH e & folg F0T HRR R eTs, 2012 H, 130 Ml sMR®T STeR @1 gAv v & Ty F0T HIR IR B, 2014
¥ BIIER BU | URATATSTISAT T e fBar ST ReT € 3R 2014—15 & SR USHEI §R13435 BRI, ST 72 AT SFiR®! STeR & avar
&, ®1 IR YT B TS |

> faeiy yare e

X faer fm forfics = oae Huaar iR fEevele Yo uRareRl & forg a9 ifiRed aoichy S S & 319 U3 & d8d
35087 RIS, DI URATSTATSAT DI BRI B @ oI Ui GG SUhH (29 GAIST Arar1 (TEUrdD) 1 Fafor faar 2 | 571 aRarsrmai 4
HATET /XMAMIT BT Bl s IRERT 3620 PRI DI &, Sl ol URATSHT AN BT dacl 20 TR & | AT AR Bl Gl 31
Chelee]l Bl gfage] ARERT iR ORI ARl | FE0T ¢ieh’ & ST W81 & |

FES XAd B fAACS, FOMISTH Yad B fAfCS SR 9a Tee Yefd Ul ffics 7 311 S Y% IR (3T iR 3@ 9 verd &
RToIed # HE<dqUl AT < @ & | g8¥eld, UHUrdl o fxia Reifdy ok et &l g1 &3+ arel Hicrad #¥7el 861 &7l & oIy Xl watera
I WS MY E |

HEMICSTH Xl B & debeTerd 3R JGARIS & 19 aTel W TR G & 101 BT BRI Yy IR & Sidfdh dperderd § HMISTH &
g Ugel ¥ SEIgd WS W AT FRAR 98 8T 2 | Tl IR TR & 919 6590 Yad s @ 270 {5 & Qeiaxvl & S
TIUIET BT SR A AT =1 3701 21y H o7 € 3IR 59 IR P Y6 81 AT &, I1400 PRIS Pl JFATT AT IR ST =T ferargor
TUIET §RT T ST R8T © | ERITR—URIGY 3R —Jlbal Ts aATs URATSIA & Hael 7 9 TSI BT FHRATSAT Bl G PR
foram Tam 7T 8 SiR arafde bl Ui ;R E |

H31 IRIRYRS] BT gl gu G &1 &1 & b fAffer 7 gret €1 7 <1 ¢ vadid) & o7 § 9rfiar) & &1 ugd @ © | fafifer ofiR e
ure fafics 7 feax dieer de w A v &1 AerTsg # A8 Rerd Yo 30 9§ Sires & forg e et Yo fafies (Slememud)
TS T TS faam 2 |

o e e fafics @1 12 g9 o], S Wheless Al €, & A1 Ui aRdes H31ed & el Fa Ffa $feae uré ¥a sraRe
fafice, gadidt # +ff arfier) 2 | Todid) &1 qi Se U Vel BT AT, TSI 3R SMASHIHROT HRAT iR 1T J7 ufard
ETHAT HaeT BT 2 |

> B8 wfie ¥d srafeE

STE, 2012 H 3TYDT HUAT 1 <2 H Ied T arelt Yol GRATSTI3N & b iR Sriaa= & forg rgufcr & srgHra | qof wriied arell
HEIS HUN B w9 H 818 WIS ¥el BuRe it fear fafics (Taussiven) o) R o off |

AR NHA ¥ 2014—15 & MU Vel qoic |07 H YR AETRI IR < & I sl &l S @ forg 818 Wi Ya BiReR & Wit
TGS e T DI HE@IDBIET ATSTHT DT BNV B 2 | 59 [ 3 T BT BrRIATS! PR H AT / TAvAsiRAl ol A5l 911 & forg
golc | 2100 PRI BT YL fhAT TAT & | TIHT BT TIUIIR IRATSTHI & {77 Braf=aaq voikil & w7 # AT / TavasmdT ol
g B & forg XeT HATed 1 3R & |
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In compliance with the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013, RVNL has for the first time prepared and presented the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year 2014-15. The accounts have been consolidated based on the performance and activities of the SPVs and HSRC, and the share of
equity of RVNL in those entities.

| am happy to report that the CAG has issued the Audit Certificate for both the Stand Alone accounts and Consolidated Financial Statements of RVNL
without any qualifications.

> ADB Projects

ADB has agreed to provide a multi-tranche financing facility of US $ 500 million for funding of 5 projects. While the Loan Agreement for the first Tranche
for an amount of US $ 150 was signed in July 2012, the Loan Agreement for the 2nd Tranche of US $ 130 million was signed in February 2014. Execution
ofthe projectsis in progress and during 2014-15 an amount of Rs. 435 crore equivalent to US$ 72 million has been disbursed by the ADB.

> Special Purpose Vehicles

In its efforts to mobilise extra budgetary resources from the market for port connectivity and hinterland rail projects, RVNL has created five joint venture
Special Purpose Vehicles (SPVs) forimplementation of projects worth ¥5087 crore. The total equity participation of the Ministry/RVNL in these projects
is to the tune of 620 crore, which is approximately only 12% of the total project cost. The balance cost is being met by equity participation of other
stakeholders and debt raised from financial institutions.

Kutch Railway Company Ltd., Krishnapatnam Railway Company Ltd. and Bharuch Dahej Railway Company Ltd have commenced operations and are
now contributing substantially to the revenues of the railways. However, certain issues affecting the financial position and operations of the SPVs have
been referred to the Ministry of Railways for resolution.

Execution of works on the section between Venkatachallam and Obulavaripalle of Krishnapatnam Rail Company, involving construction of a tunnel is in
progress while traffic continues to grow on the already doubled section between Venkatachallam to Krishnapatnam. The work of doubling of 270 km of
the Kutch Railway line between Samakhyali and Palanpur, which is being funded completely by the SPV at an estimated cost of 1400 crore, has been
taken up by RVNL on behalf of the SPV and work has commenced. The problems in land acquisition in Haridaspur-Paradip and Angul-Sukinda New Line
projects have been resolved and physical works are now in progress.

I am happy to inform the Shareholders that recently RVNL has taken the initiative of participating in the formation of two new SPVs. RVNL and Dighi Port
Limited have partnered to form Dighi Roha Rail Limited (DRRL) SPV, to link the port of Dighi on the Konkan Coast to the rail head at Roha in Maharashtra.

RVNL is also participating in the newly formed Indian Port Rail Corporation Limited, an SPV under Ministry of Shipping along with 12 Major Ports who are
also stakeholders. The main objectives of the SPV, are to undertake maintenance, upgradation and modernisation of the Port Railways and also to
provide capacity augmentation wherever required.

> High Speed Rail Corporation

In July 2012, your Company, with the approval of President, incorporated a fully owned subsidiary, High Speed Rail Corporation of India Ltd. (HSRC) for
development and implementation of High Speed Rail Projects in the country.

In the Railway Budget speech for 2014-15, Hon’ble Minister for Railways announced an ambitious plan to have a Diamond Quadrilateral Network of High
Speed Rail corridors connecting major Metros and growth centres of the country. A provision of 100 crore was also made in the Budget to enable
RVNL/HSRC to take further steps in this regard. Your Company is thankful to the Ministry of Railways for designating RVNL/HSRC as the implementing
agency for HSR projects.

HSRC has been assigned the task of carrying out a number of pre-feasibility/feasibility studies for High Speed Corridors. A pre-feasibility study for a
Delhi-Chandigarh-Amritsar High Speed Corridor, awarded to M/s SYSTRA S.A of France in a consortium with M/s RITES is in progress. HSRC has also
been awarded the consultancy contracts for feasibility studies of Mumbai-Chennai, Mumbai-Delhi and Delhi-Kolkata HSR Corridors.

I am also happy to report that as a follow up of the MoU signed between the Government of India and the Government of the People’s Republic of China on
enhancing technical cooperation in railway sector, RVNL/HSRC was named as the counterpart agency by Ministry of Railways for implementing two
projects being undertaken with the cooperation of National Railway Administration of China. These include (i) speed raising up to 160 kmph on Chennai-
Bangalore-Mysore Section, and (i) a Project Feasibility Study Report for a high speed rail corridor between Delhi and Chennai for which RVNL/HSRC
have signed the Terms of Agreement and Work Plan with China Railway Eryuan Engineering Group Company Limited (CREEG) and China Railway Siyuan
Survey and Design Group (CRSSDG), respectively. The studies on both these projects are in progress.

HSRC has also been associated as a Project Integrator to facilitate implementation of projects related to upgrading the speed potential on certain existing
tracks upto 160 kmph. Ministry of Railways had assigned 3 lines to HSRC including New Delhi-Agra, New Delhi-Kanpur and New Delhi-Chandigarh.
Work has been completed on the New Delhi-Agra section and is awaiting clearance of Commissioner of Railway Safety (CRS) for train operations at
higher speeds. The projects for the balance two sections are under sanction.

> Human Resource Development

RVNL follows the principle of maintaining a lean and thin organization structure, and all the achievements reported were realized with an on-roll staff
strength of only 415 regular personnel, out of which 126 are absorbed employees and balance are deputationists from Railways. It is with some pride,
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that I can affirm to this gathering, that your Company has one of the finest pools of technical manpower for the development of rail infrastructure in the
country.

Recognizing employees as an important asset and to ensure a high level of motivation for the team, RVNL has framed attractive and employee friendly
policies.

>  Systems Improvement

RVNL continuously reviews its systems and procedures to ensure more effective contract management and the appointment of competent agencies to
facilitate project execution.

The task of implementation of an Integrated IT solution for the Company, which will cover all aspects of project management, finance, HR and allied
functionsis in progress, and will furtherimprove productivity and transparency.

> Corporate Social Responsibility

RVNL is conscious of its Corporate Social Responsibility and does its utmost to ensure that the benefits reach the most marginalized sections of society
in the vicinity of our project areas. The major CSR projects are in the fields of health and education and that includes construction of an operation theater
complex and a 50 bedded post-operative care unit in the 113 year old hospital run by Ram Krishna Mission in Kankhal, Haridwar, providing education
support to 100 differently-abled children, providing free medical support, coaching to children and installation of solar home lights in the backward
areas near Sunderbans. The Company has also recently taken up projects under the “Namami Gange” and “Swachha Bharat Abhiyan”, which are two
main mission areas of the Government of India.

Your Company’s CSRinitiatives have been well appreciated by the target population and lauded by the Tata Institute of Social Science, the CSR hub in its
social audit. RVNL was also the recipient of the prestigious Department of Public Enterprises and Indian Chamber of Commerce PSE Excellence Award
forCSRin December2014.

> MoU Performance

> Itis with great satisfaction that | can inform the Shareholders that based on the overall performance, your Company has been rated as ‘Excellent’ by
Department of Public Enterprises for the financial year 2013-14. It is expected that your Company will also achieve an ‘Excellent’ rating for the financial
year 2014-15, for the fifth consecutive year.

> Corporate Governance

RVNL maintains a robust system of checks and balances to ensure that the authority of decision making is exercised with due care and responsibility to
meet the aspirations of Shareholders and society. Your Company complies meticulously with all legal requirements and Government guidelines regarding
Corporate Governance. A Report on Corporate Governance and Management Discussion and Analysis forms part of the Annual Report.

RVNL received the prestigious PSE Excellence Award conferred by Department of Public Enterprises and Indian Chamber of Commerce for Corporate
Governance in December 2014.

Inthe end, | would like to mention that the successful execution and completion of projects by RVNL, for and on behalf of the Ministry of Railways, would
not be possible without the close coordination and cooperation of the Zonal Railways to ensure availability of blocks, manpower and movement of
materials. Your Company also acknowledges the complete support from the Chairman and Members of the Railway Board and other officers, in ensuring
the continued growth of the Company.

| express my sincere thanks to our esteemed Shareholders, Ministry of Railways, Ministry of Finance, Department of Public Enterprises, Ministry of
Heavy Industries, the State Governments, Zonal Railways, ADB, IRFC, Financial Institutions, C&AG’s office, SPV partners, our bankers and stakeholders
in various railway projects and national and international contractors for their unstinted cooperationto RVNL. 1would also like to place on record my deep
appreciation for the devotion and dedication of all my fellow RVNL employees who have been pillars of strength of the Company and have delivered their
best despite various difficulties and obstacles.

Iam confident that the Company will continue to get the required support and cooperation to achieve the overall objectives of the Company.

Sd/-
New Delhi Satish Agnihotri
Date: 22nd September, 2015 Chairman & Managing Director
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Distinguished Shareholders,

The Directors of your Company are privileged to present the 12th Annual

Report on the performance of your Company, along with the Audited

Statement of Accounts, Auditors’ Report and the Review of Accounts by

the Comptroller & Auditor General of India for the financial year ended 31

March 2015.

Integral Reports

The “Management Discussion and Analysis Report”, “Corporate

Governance Report”, “Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and

Sustainability Report” form an integral part of this Directors’ Report and

have been placed as Annexure “A” “B” and “C” respectively.

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report provides an overview

of the affairs of the Company, its business environment, mission and

objectives, outlook, operational performance, its resources and systems,
strengths, opportunities, constraints, risks and concerns, strategies,
prospects, etc.

The Corporate Governance Report highlights the Company’s philosophy

on Corporate Governance and Key Value(s), composition of Board of

Directors and its Committees, attendance and remuneration of Directors

etc, other relevant disclosures, CEQ/CFQO Certification and general

information for share holders. It is supplemented by the following
compliance certificates.

() A Certificate signed by the Chairman and Managing Director
affirming receipt of compliance with the Code of Conduct from all
Board members and Senior Management personnel during the year
2014-15 (placed at Annexure “B-1”) as per guidelines of
Department of Public Enterprises on Corporate Governance ;

(i) A Certificate from the Chairman and Managing Director and
Director Finance with regard to authenticity of financial statements
(placed at Annexure “B-2”); and

(iiiy A Certificate of compliance of Corporate Governance signed by a
practicing Company Secretary (placed at Annexure “B-3”) as per
guidelines of Department of Public Enterprises on Corporate
Governance.

The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and Sustainability Report
reflects RVNLs plans, policy, budget, expenditure, evaluation process for
projects and CSR & Sustainability activities undertaken during the year.

1.  PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

Your Directors take pride to inform you that 2014-15 has been a year in
which your Company has exceeded all previous performance
parameters. The significant milestones achieved include:

. During 2014-15, 475.95 km (259.05 km of Doubling and 216.9 km
of Railway Electrification) of project length have been physically
completed.

. Highest everturnover of ¥3141.97 crore has been achieved.
. Increase in Profit Before Tax to ¥236.35 crore;

. Profit After Tax (PAT) of the Company is at¥185.71 crore, showing
anincrease of 17.97% overthe previous year;

e The Directors of your Company have recommended a highest ever
Dividend 0f37.20 crore to the Ministry of Railways;

. Your Company has once again surpassed its performance targets
set for Excellent in the Memorandum of Understanding (MoU)
entered into with Ministry of Railways (MoR), Government of India
in consultation with Department of Public Enterprises. Based on
the overall performance, your Company has achieved ‘Excellent’
rating for the financial year 2013-14, as in previous years.

2.  FINANCIAL RESULTS

Important indicators of the financial performance of RVNL of 2014-15 as

compared to 2013-14 are mentioned below (rounded to nearest

Rupees/crore): (% in crores)

Particulars 2014-15 2013-14
Turnover 3142 2492
TotalIncome 3238 2597
Operating Income 251 182
Gross Margin (from operations) 150 102
Reserves & Surplus 594 453
Profit Before Tax 236 195
Profit After Tax 186 157
Networth 2679 2538
Appropriations

Proposed Final Dividend 37.20 31.50
Transferto General Reserves 10 10
Transferto CSR and Sustainability funds 0.00* 4.07
Transferto R&D Fund 0.79 0.68

*From the year 2014-15, no separate appropriation to CSR and Sustainability funds is required to be done, However, expenditure on CSR & Sustainability as per DPE

guidelines would be reflected in the Balance Sheet.
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Turnover

The Company has achieved a Turnover of ¥3141.97 crore at the end of the
financial year 2014-15 as compared to ¥2492.37 crore in 2013-14, i.e.
anincrease of 26%.

Theincrease in Turnoveris due to release of additional funds for execution
of projects in comparison to previous year by Ministry of Railways,
reflecting an increase from %2319 crore in 2013-14 to 2817 crore in
2014-15. Atthe same time, there has also been anincrease in the level of
expenditure on works undertaken for SPVs and other deposit works to
%325 crore during 2014-15 in comparison to 3174 crore in the previous
year. The share of works as reported by Zonal Railways, in RVNLs Turnover
in2014-15is%27.93 crore compared to ¥92.96 crore during 2013-14.
Profit

Profit Before Tax increased from ¥195.17 crore in 2013-14 to ¥ 236.35
crorein 2014-15. The majorincrease is on account of higherincome from
project execution from101.75 crore in previous yearto ¥150.09 crore in
2014-15. There has been decrease in Dividend income by ¥12.50 crore
andthe balance increase is frominterestincome.

Capital Structure

With an authorized share capital of the Company of 3000 crore, there
has been no change in the Capital Structure of the Company, with the
paid-up share capital of the Company remaining at ¥2085.02 crore.
Ministry of Railways, Government of India holds the entire share capital of
the Company.

Net Worth

The Net Worth of your Company has increased over the previous year on
account of transfer of profits amounting to ¥140.90 crore to Reserves and
Surplus. Accordingly, the Net Worth of the Company has increased from
%2537.96 crore at the end of previous yearto ¥2678.86 crore at the end of
the currentyear.

Dividend

As a result of improved financial performance of the Company, the Board
of Directors have recommended a final Dividend of ¥37.20 crore for the
year 2014-15 as compared to ¥ 31.50 crore in 2013-14 for consideration
of the shareholders. The cumulative Dividend paid to Ministry of Railways
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by RVNL will amount to ¥151.20 crore, including the Dividend declared
for2014-15.

Reserves

An amount of 310 crore has been transferred to General Reserves by
appropriation from profits of the Company. After taking into account, the
proposed Dividend of ¥37.20 crore and Dividend Distribution Tax 0f 37.62
crore, the balance under Reserves & Surplus at the end of 2014-15
stands at¥593.84 crore in comparisonto ¥452.94 crore in 2013-14.
Fixed Deposits

No deposits from the public have been accepted by the Company during
the year under review.

Project Advance/Loans

RVNL received an amount of 2777.01 crore, as project advance, from
Ministry of Railways (MoR) during the yearfor execution of various works.

Loans from IRFC: During the year, an additional amount of %273 crore
was received as borrowings from IRFC. With this, the total amount
received from IRFC is ¥2895.90 crore. The principal and interest on the
borrowings from IRFC are repaid by Ministry of Railways (MoR) as a pass
through entry in the books of RVNL. During the year an amount of
%164.25 crore was paid to IRFC on this account, leaving an outstanding
loan balance 0f¥2226.15 crore.

3.  PROJECTEXECUTION:
3.1 Physical Size of the Projects :

Ministry of Railways has transferred 125 projects to RVNL for execution,
which may be broadly classified under the following heads:

. Doubling 56
. Gauge Conversion 11
. New Lines 14
. Kolkata Metro Rail 4
. Railway Electrification 18
. Workshops 12
. Others 10

The distribution of project length under various plan heads indicating the
length completed and in hand is shown below:

Details of Projects

New Line

Gauge
Conversion

Doubling

In addition, there are 12 workshop projects, of which 3 have been completed.

[ Projects in Hand
W Completed upto March 2015

Metro
Kolkata

Railway Others

Electrification
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Upto 2012, the RE works transferred to RVNL were only those where
electrification was a part of some other work, such as doubling, gauge
conversion, etc. being executed by RVNL. However, in the last 3 years,
pure RE projects have also been transferred for execution such as
Manheru - Hissar RE, Amla - Chhindwara - Kalumna RE, Jakhal - Hisar
RE, Jakhal - Dhuri- Ludhiana RE, Rajpura - Dhuri - Lehra Mohabat RE,
Chhapra - Ballia - Ghazipur - Varanasi - Allahabad RE, New Bongigaon
(Incl) - Guwahati (Incl) RE {Part of Barauni - Katihar - Guwahati Incl.
Katihar - Barsoi (836 km) RE} etc.

With the transfer of projects involving construction of workshops, Metro
projects, construction of cable stayed bridge etc. RVNL has diversified
the nature of projects being executed by it.

These projects are spread all over the country and for efficient
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implementation of projects, Project Implementation Units (PIUs) have
been established at 19 locations i.e. New Delhi, Mumbai, Kolkata (3
Units), Chennai, Secunderabad, Bhubaneshwar (2 Units), Bhopal (2
Units), Kota, Jodhpur, Waltair, Bengaluru, Pune, Raipur (2 Units),
Lucknow, Rishikesh, Patna, Ahmedabad, Kanpur & Varanasi to execute
projects intheir geographical hinterland.

3.2 Status of physical progress of projects

The status of the 125 projects assigned to RVNL for execution is as
under:-

Projects completed upto March 2015 : 46
Projects underimplementation : 76
Projects yetto be sanctioned ¢ 3

The listof 46 projects fully completed upto March, 2015 is as under:

S. No. Railway Project Name Type of Project Length (km)
1 Central Railway (CR) Diva — Kalyan 5th & 6th Line Doubling 11
2 Central Railway (CR) Pakni - Solapur Doubling 16.28
3 Central Railway (CR) Pakni - Mohol Doubling 17
4 Central Railway (CR) Panvel - Jasai JNPT Doubling 28.5
5 East Coast Railway (ECoR) Jakhapura- Haridaspur 3rd Line Doubling 23.3
6 East Coast Railway (ECoR) Talcher-Cuttack-Paradeep Doubling with Doubling 3
2nd Bridge on Rivers Birupa & Mahanadi
7 East Coast Railway (ECoR) Cuttack - Barang Doubling 14.3
8 East Central Railway (ECR) Barauni - Tilrath Bypass Doubling 8.3
9 Eastern Railway (ER) Gurup - Saktigarh Extn of 3rd Line Doubling 26
10 North Central Railway (NCR) Palwal - Bhuteswar 3rd Line Doubling 81
11 North Central Railway (NCR) Aligarh - Ghaziabad 3rd Line Doubling 106.1
12 South Central Railway(SCR) Pullampet - Balapalle Ph I of Gooty - Doubling 41
Renigunta Doubling
13 South Central Railway(SCR) Krishnapatnam - Venkatachalam Doubling With RE Doubling 16.5
14 South Central Railway(SCR) Gooty - Renigunta Patch Doubling Doubling 151
15 South East Central Railway Bilaspur - Urkura 3rd Line Doubling 105
(SECR)
16 South Eastern Railway (SER) Panskura - Kharagpur 3rd Line Doubling 45
17 South Eastern Railway (SER) Panskura - Haldia Ph 1 Doubling Doubling 14
18 South Eastern Railway (SER) Rajgoda - Tamluk (Jn. Cabin) Doubling 13.5
19 South Eastern Railway (SER) Tamluk Jn. Cabin - Basulya Sutahata Doubling 24.23
20 South Eastern Railway (SER) Tikiapara - Santragachi Doubling 5.6
21 Southern Railway (SR) Attipattu - Korukkupet 3rd Line Doubling 18
22 Southern Railway (SR) Pattabiram - Tiruvallur 4th Line & Tiruvallur - Doubling 41.89
Arakkonam 3rd Line
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S. No. Railway Project Name Type of Project Length (km)
23 Southern Railway (SR) Tiruvallur - Arakkonam 4th Line Doubling 28
24 South Western Railway (SWR) Hospet - Guntakal Doubling 115
25 North Western Railway (NWR) Bhagat Ki Kothi - Luni Doubling 30.3
26 North Western Railway (NWR) Delhi - Rewari GC 94.2
27 North Western Railway (NWR) Ajmer - Phulera - Ringus - Rewari GC 295
28 North Western Railway (NWR) Bhildi - Samdari GC 223
29 Southern Railway (SR) Thanjavur - Villupuram GC 192
30 Southern Railway (SR) Cuddalore - Salem GC 193
31 South Western Railway (SWR) Arasikere-Hassan-Mangalore GC 230
32 Western Railway (WR) Bharuch - Samni - Dahej GC 62
33 Western Railway (WR) Gandhidham - Palanpur GC 301
34 East Coast Railway (ECoR) Daitari - Banspani NL 155
35 Southern Railway (SR) Vallarpadam - Idapally NL 9
36 East Coast Railway (ECoR) Tomka -Banspani RE 144
37 Railway Electrification (RE) Kharagpur (Nimpura) - Bhubaneswar Including RE 581
branch line of Talcher - Cuttack - Paradeep
38 Railway Electrification (RE) Bhubaneswar - Kottavalasa RE 417
39 South Central Railway (SCR) Reningunta - Guntakal RE 308
40 South Central Railway (SCR) Yelahanka - Dharmavaram - Gooty RE 306
41 Western Railway (WR) Bharuch - Samni - Dahej RE 64
42 Central Railway (CR) Daund-Manmad Incl. Puntamba- Shirdi RE 255
43 Eastern Railway (ER) Civil Engineering Works In Connection With WKSP -
Diesel Loco Component Factory, Dankuni
44 Eastern Railway (ER) Dankuni - Setting Up of Electric Loco WKSP -
Assembly And Ancillary Unit of CLW
45 South Eastern Railway (SER) Setting Up of Diesel Multiple Unit (DMU) WKSP -
Manufacturing Factory at Sankrail / Haldia
46 NWR I0C Siding at Salawas (Deposit Work) Others 2.82

Cumulatively, RVNL has till now completed a total of 1645 km of doubling, 1590 km of gauge conversion, 194 km of new lines and 2151 km of Railway Electrification. Thus,
ason 31.3.15,5580 km out of a total length of 11871 km of 122 sanctioned projects (3 are yetto be sanctioned) assigned to RVNL, have been completed.

3.3

Works.

Project length completed during 2014-15

During 2014-15, 475.95 km (259.05 km of Doubling and 216.9 km of
Railway Electrification) of project length has been physically completed
including sections of important projects as detailed in para 3.6 below.

3.4 In addition, Railway Electrification of 154.8 km was also carried out in
other than specific Railway Electrification projects as part of Doubling .

3.5 RVNLs efforts towards capacity building in execution of Signaling

and Telecommunication works have paid dividends and during the year
important doubling, 3" line projects have been commissioned involving
large scale Solid State Interlocking and NIs of major yards on busy routes.

3.6 The details of sections completed during the year include:
Cuttack - Barang Doubling: The entire section (14.3 km) was

completedin October, 2014.
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Bhopal- Bina 3" Line: Sanchi-Vidisha (9.1 km) section was
completedinJuly, 2014.

Hospet-Tinaighat Doubling: 56.92 km of project length
comprising of Bannikoppa-Bhanapur (10.52 km) in August, 2014,
Hulkoti-Annigeri (9.1 km) in October, 2014, Harlapur-Sompur (8.8
km) & Sompur-Bannikoppa (7.7 km) in November, 2014, Hebsur-
Navalgund (12.4 km) in December, 2014 and Annigeri-Navalgund
(8.4 km) inJanuary, 2015 was completed.

Jaroli (Banspani) - Jakhapura Doubling: 29.0 km of project length
comprising of Harichandanpur-Nilakantheswar (11.2 km) in May,
2014, Porjanpur-Goaldhi (7.4 km) in December, 2014 and Sitabinji
- Nilakantheswar (10.4 km) in Feburary, 2015 was completed.

Villupuram - Dindigul Doubling: 69.5 km of project length
comprising of Tamaraipadi-Vadamadura in April, 2014, Kolatur-
Pungudi (10.0 km) in May, 2014, Vadamadura-Ayyalur (8.0 km) in
June, 2014, Ariyalur-Ottakovil (8.5 km) in July, 2014, Parikal-
Tiruvennainallur (10.5 km) and Manaparai-Chettiyapatti (7.0 km)
in September, 2014, Punggudi-Tiruchirapalli (9.0 km) & Ottakovil-
Sendurai (8.5 km) in December, 2014 and Manaparai-Chettiyapatti
(7.0km) in January, 2015 was completed.

Salka Road - Annuppur (with Flyover) Doubling: This lies on the
busy coal carrying route of Indian Railways. Venkatnagar- Nigaura
(7.0 km) section was completed in May, 2014.

Bhagat Ki Kothi - Luni Doubling: Luni Bypass (1.2 km) was
completed in September, 2014 thus completing the entire project.

Rani-Keshavganj Doubling: Moribera-Kothar (6.32 km) was
completed in September, 2014.

Abu Road - Sarotra Road Patch Doubling: Maval-Sri Amirgarh
(8.2 km) was completed in January, 2015.

Sarotra Road - Karjoda Patch Doubling: Chitrasni-Karjoda (5.61
km) was completed in January, 2015.

Rewari-Manheru Doubling: Rewari-Kisangarh Balawas (8.9 km)
was completed in January, 2015.

Daund - Gulbarga Doubling: 18.0 km project length comprising of
Mohol-Malikpeth (9.0 km) in February, 2015 and Hotgi-Tilati (9.0
km) in March, 2015 was completed.

Tiruvallur-Arakkonam 4th Line: 17.0 km project length
comprising of Tiruvallur-Kadambattur (6.0 km) in February, 2015
and Kadambattur-Tiruvalangadu (11.0 km) in March, 2015 was
completed thus completing the entire project.

Raipur - Titlagarh Doubling: Mahasamund-Arand section (8.0
km) was completed in March, 2015.

Yelahanka-Dharmavaram-Gooty RE: 141.9 km project length
comprising of Nagasamudram - Makkajipalli (15 km) and Malugur-
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Hindupur & Devarapalle-Vidhuraswatha (15 km) in April, 2014,
Devarapalle-Hindupur (11.0 km), Malugur-Chakariapalli-
Rangepalli (14.0 km) and Dharmavaram-Basempalli-Makkajipalli
(27.0 km) in May, 2014, Rangepalli-Penukonda (11 km),
Naryanapur-Sri Satyasainilayam (11.9 km) and Narayanpur-
Penukonda-Makkkajipalli (26 km) in June, 2014 and
Dharamavaram-Nagasundaram (11.0 km) in July, 2014 was
completed, thus completing the entire project.

. Amala-Chhindwara-Kalumna RE: 37 km of project length
comprising of Amla-Jambara (10 km) in September, 2014 and
Jambara-Bordhai-Barelipar-Navegaon (27.0 km) in December,
2014 was completed.

J Pune - Wadi-Guntakal RE: 38 km of project length comprising of
Uruli - Yevat (12 km) and Hadapsar-Loni-Uruli (26 km) was
completedin July, 2014.

. Setting up of Electric Loco Assembly and Ancillary Unit of CLW:
Construction of a workshop project of setting up of Electric Loco
Assembly and Ancillary Unit of CLW at Dankuni was completed in
allrespectin March, 2015 and handed overto CLW.

3.7 Signaling and Telecommunication

The Company has achieved commendable success in commissioning
signaling works associated with doubling, third line, Intermediate Block
Signaling and yard remodeling. During the year 2014-15, RVNL
commissioned 17 stations including 5 stations on 3rd line projects, 4
major yards, 12 Mid- section LCs & 4 IBS. The Company has also been
able to successfully commission telecom works involving laying of optic
fibre cables and 6 Quad cables of a total of 205 km.

3.8 Kolkata Metro Projects

Four major projects for the extension of Kolkata Metro were transferred to
RVNL in March 2010 viz.

e Joka- Binoy Badal Dinesh Bagh Via Majerhat (16.72 Km);
. Naopara (Ex.) - Baranagar (2.6 Km).

. Dum Dum Airport - New Garia Via Rajerhat (32 Km);

. Baranagar - Barrackpore & Dakshineswar (14.5 Km);

The foundation stone for Joka - Binoy Badal Dinesh Bagh project, was laid
by Her Excellency, President of India on 22.09.2010. The contract for
execution of works was awarded in December 2010. 1191 piles, 285 pile
caps, 273 piers, 273 pier caps and 267 segment erection has been
completed on the Joka - Mominpur section of the project. Work for
construction of stations at Joka, Thakurpukur, Sakherbazar, Behala Bazar
and Tartala has been awarded in April 2012. 1210 piles, 202 pile caps,
183 piers and 3 Pier Caps have also been completed for stations.
Structures for stations at Joka, Sakherbazar and Thakurpukur are in
advanced stage of completion. However, progress on the project is held
up due to lack of physical possession of land of KoPT, non-resolution of
issues pertaining to Mint, Rehabilitation India, Charial Khal, removal of
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encroachments, shifting of utilities, handing over of land for Joka depot,
cutting of 232 trees and land transfer by Ministry of Defence

Initially, RVNL processed these projects at a quick pace for their early
execution, despite the fact that no Detailed Project Report (DPR) was
prepared at the time of sanctioning of these projects by the Government.
The contract for Naopara - Baranagar (2.6 km) & Baranagar -
Dakshineswar (2 km) including 2 station buildings was awarded in
September 2010 which had to be terminated in November 2010 as the
contractor did not start work. The tender was reinvited and fresh contract
was awarded in February 2011. After detailed designing of the corridor,
399 piles, 43 pile caps, 29 piers, 25 pier caps and 103 | girders have been
cast. Construction of station at Dakshineswar has again started despite
severe problems of encroachments. A 225 m diversion of express way to
facilitate construction of via duct has also been completed. There are
about 500 encroachments which have to be relocated/ removed. The
second contract has also been terminated due to poor performance of the
contractor. Tender for balance work has been awarded on 27.10.2014
and workis now progressing satisfactorily.
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The contracts for viaduct portion between New Garia to Rabindra Tirtha
section of Dum Dum Airport - New Garia project in 4 packages have also
been awarded on 21.10.2011. Survey and Geotechnical work have been
completed. 4698 working piles, 500 pile caps, 461 piers, 367 pier caps
and 2187 segments have been cast and 1833 segments have been
launched. The contracts for 21 stations (3 Packages) have also been
awarded on 05.03.2014. The Survey, Geotechnical work and Utility
diversion are completed for all the stations. For stations, 636 piles, 24 pile
capsand 2 piers have been cast.

In Baranagar- Barrackpore project, tender for road widening has been
awarded, 100% of the utility identification work has been completed and
100% geotechnical investigation work has been completed. The tenders
for viaduct and stations will be invited only after the water pipe lines are
closed by the State Government. This decision is pending with the State
Government of West Bengal.

3.9 Projects underimplementation:-

The list of 76 projects under various stages of implementationis as under:

S. No. | Railway Name of Project Type of Project
1 CR Daund - Gulbarga Doubling
2 CR & SCR Pune - Guntakal RE
3 ECoR Khurda Road - Barang 3rd Line Doubling
4 ECoR Rajatgarh - Barang Doubling
5. ECoR Haridaspur - Paradeep New Line
6 ECoR Angul - Sukinda New Line
7 ECoR Sambalpur - Titlagarh Doubling
8 ECoR Raipur - Titlagarh Doubling
9. ECoR Banspani - Jakhapura Doubling
10. ECoR Titlagarh ( Excl) - Raipur RE
11 ECR Fatuah-Islampur incl. material modification for extension of new line New Line
from Neora to Daniawan; Daniawan to Biharsharif; Biharsharif to
Barbigha; Barbigha to Sheikhpura
12. ER Dankuni - Furfura New Line
13. ER Nabadwipghat - Nabadwipdham Doubling
14. NR New Delhi - Tilak Bridge 5th & 6th Line New Line
15. NR Utretia- Rae Bareli Doubling
16. NR Rishikesh - Karnaprayag New Line
17. NR Rae Bareli - Amethi Doubling
18. NR Bhanupalli - Bilaspur - Beri New Line
19. NR Jakhal - Hisar RE
20. NR Jakhal - Dhuri- Ludhiana RE
21. NR Rajpura - Dhuri - Lehra Mohabat RE
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S. No. | Railway Name of Project Type of Project
22. NCR Bhimsen - Jhansi Doubling with Electrification Doubling
23. NER Lucknow- Pilibhit via Sitapur, Lakhimpur Gauge Conversion
24, NER Chhapra - Ballia - Ghazipur - Varansi - Allahabad RE
25. NFR New Bongigaon (incl) - Guwabhati (incl) {Part of Barauni - Katihar - RE
Guwahati incl. Katihar - Barsoi (836 km)}
26. NWR Abu Road - Sarotra Road Doubling
27. NWR Sarotra Road - Karjoda Doubling
28. NWR Abu Roard - Swaroopgan; Doubling
29. NWR Rani - Keshav Ganj Doubling
30. NWR Karjoda - Palanpur Doubling
31. NWR Rewari-Manheru Doubling with RE Doubling
32. NWR Manheru - Hissar RE
33. NWR Rani - Palanpur RE
34. SCR Balance Section of Obulavaripalle - Krishnapattnam New Line
35. SCR Balance Section of Raichur - Guntakal Doubling
36. SCR Guntur - Tenali Doubling with Electrification Doubling
37. SCR Vijaywada-Gudivada- Bhimavaram-Narasapur, Gudivada- Machlipatnam Doubling
and Bhimavaram-Nidadavolu Doubling with Electrification
38. SCR Hospet - Guntakal and Tomagallu — Ranjitpura RE
39. SCR Multi-Modal Transport System (MMTS) - Phase-II in Hyderabad MTP
40. SER Goelkera - Manoharpur 3rd Line Doubling
41, SECR Amla - Chhindwara - Kalumna RE
42. SECR Salka Road - Annuppur (with Flyover) Doubling
43. SECR Dallirajhara - Raoghat New Line
44, SR Villupuram - Dindigul Doubling
45. SR Thanjavur - Ponmalai Doubling with Bypass Line before Ponmalai Doubling
46. SWR Hospet-Hubli-Londa-Tinaighat-Vasco da Gama Doubling
47. WCR Bhopal - Bina 3rd Line Doubling
48. WCR Bina - Kota Doubling
49, WCR Habibganj - Barkhera 3rd Line Doubling
50. WCR Barkhera- Budni 3rd Line Doubling
51. WCR Budni - Itarsi 3rd Line Doubling
52. WR Ahmedabad - Botad Gauge Conversion
53. WR Dhasa - Jetalsar Gauge Conversion
54, WR Palanpur - Samakhiali Doubling
55. MET Baranagar - Barrackpore & Dakshineswar METRO/KOL
56. MET Dum Dum Airport - New Garia Via Rajerhat METRO/KOL
57. MET Joka - Binoy Badal Dinesh Bagh Via Majerhat METRO/KOL
58. MET Naupara (Ex.) - Baranagar (Extension of Dum Dum — Naupara Metro Line) METRO/KOL
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S. No. | Railway Name of Project Type of Project
59. WKSP Barauni - 250 High Horse Power Loco Shed WKSP
60. WKSP Barauni - New Loco Shed to Home 100 Electric Locos WKSP
61. WKSP Kharagpur Workshop - Setting up of centre of Excellence for WKSP
Wagon Prototyping
62. WKSP Anara (Adra) Setting up of Mid-Life Rehabilitation Workshop for Coaches WKSP
63. WKSP Vadodara - Setting up of New PoH Shop for Electrical Locos WKSP
64. WKSP Varanasi - Augmentation of Production Capacity from 200 To 250 High WKSP
HP Locos Per Year
65. WKSP Workshop for Manufacture of Flat Bogies for LHB Design Coaches, Yadgir WKSP
66. WKSP Misrod-Setting up of Workshop for Repair /Rehabilitation of WKSP
Motorized Bogies of Electric Rolling Stock
67. WKSP Phulera- Broad Gauge Diesel Locomotive Shed WKSP
68. CR Augmentation of Administrative / Office Infrastructure, Solapur osw
Division, Gulbarga
69. ER Barddhaman Yard - 4-lane road over bridge in lieu of 2-lane road ROB
over bridge No. 213
70. ER Samudragarh- Nabadwipdham- ROB in lieu of LC No. 14 ROB
71. SR Srirangam - Tiruchchirapalli Town - 4 Lane ROB in lieu of 2 - ROB
Lane Bridge No. 380-A
72. SCR Secunderabad- Upgradation of Facilites at Centralised Training oSw
Acedemy for Railway Accounts
73. SCR Moula Ali - Setting up of Indian Railway Institute of Finance Management oSwW
74. SECR Direct Power Supply from Central Generating Agencies OEW
75. WCR Provision of Addl. Traction Substation at Budhni TRD
76. CR Dighi Port New Line New Line
3.10 Projects under Sanction and Development 3.11 Projects handed over to Railways
1. Connectivity to Rewas Port The following sections of projects comprising of 128.10 km of Doubling
2. Surat-HajiraNew Line and 81.0 km of Railway Electrification have been handed over to Zonal

3. Rail Connectivity to Vizhinjam International SeaportLimited (visL) ~ Railways for operations during 2014-15:

1. Ariyalur-Kallakkudi Palanganatham (25 km) section of Villupuram-Dindigul Doubling SR
2. Shyamchak-Kharagpur (19.5 km) of Panskura-Kharagpur 3rd Line SER
3. Pabai-Gulabganj (9.5 km), Sukhi Sewaniyan-Bhadbhadaghat (7 km) and Bhadbhadaghat-
Diwanganj (10 km) sections of Bhopal-Bina 3rd line WCR
4. Bhagat Ki Kothi-Luni (29.6 km) Doubling (entire project) NWR
5. Kosgi-Mantralayam (14 km) Section of Raichur- Guntakal Doubling SCR
6. Chhulaha- Jaitahari (8.5 km) and Chhulaha-Anuppur (5km) section of Salka Road-Anuppur Doubling SCR
7. Daund- Puntamba- Shirdi RE section of Daund — Manmad RE (81 km) CR
8. Setting up of Electric Loco Assembly and Ancillary Unit of CLW at Dankuni CLW
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(3MSTAEI—1981) 31.12.2011 BT a5 Hx foar 1 & | F=feRad
5 TRATSTRIT & fRdvoT & fofg v TSIl o1 &1 1 wWiga
foram T 2

*  IYPR—IETANTE TIeIhRUT

¢ AgaR-feeanTg qredieRu

+  Efayc—fafarere SR

o SIS QIBUBRIT

*  YU-—Tdda N [T

TS gRT faaaifya aRarsrmeit # uRarer gaifad aafadat &1
g Tl g, SieRieie aftwgsiere diell g @
JUTAT BRD AV Td WER UK PRAT AT AAIGID Ud
GITIROM YTEl BT HH B B [olq ATSTI81 BT BTG oi¥i!
faf=r o1 ot @1 orguTe nuferd =ar 21 TSl g7 500
fafors s STer & agemam fa e w weafa & 7€ ¢ |
%7 9gamaMl fa<T gfdem & 150 fAferae spRa! SrelR o1 yord
P (F0T 9. 2793—MMETALN) & ol F0T IRR W JelTs, 2012 H
TR U | 2012—13 & SR 12 Yl & forg 3@ Ry 10| 9w
IR Yot @ forg Ffaerd ufear & ffr w=ot # ¥ 3@
TR = e & 130 Fforas srRa! STer @1 gav fhe
(FETT AT 3108—2MSTTS!) B foTT VT HRR TR BN, 2014 #
BIER U | A9, 2014 H 60 3T Ua 52 fbam &1 ¥al qeRAl &
amgfel @ fow 3@ < fay Y 2 | e 99 Ra= 31 syfef @1 3@t
fadar, 2014 & < &g 721 € | OSIET 1 grat vd geReria ifoat
S PRI B YAensl @l I ®T ST faam T o iR SR
TS 3R & B SHfH aROTH 2 |

9y 2014—15 & QR QSId! §RT 434.87 BRrs, Sil 71.99 FAfera=
IFHRBT STER & IRT&R 8, B AR UG B TS |

3.14 S T

4 AT g1 Fefed @7 S arell IRASTARIT BT JATHR
TE0 g1 BIAT &, 37T WY HAQTY UG SR a1 29 Hrf e
e a1 & forg Yfaffer Mfaeg o8 dasll H T sl
21y fder § A9 d@ Sa1 Uao e 8 Aear 21 59
UfhdT & b3 T B, N

P) TH & AT 9 B8 b e fhy o dad €, o fAfasmd
MR B IR I 3ifoM w4 a1 § o dTel |8 def
gRsrd, I &1 gad 811 & |

@) BIC! AT g1 TR, <M1 81 fAfaer Yast & fory ufoRaericrs
Jrel T el & Ry uforeert gt 2 |

M) 991 woiftEn, i 991 ffae]d frenfed e A deM ©, 9
fAaeraar oM & forg oM Yasll @ forg el o et & derm
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AT I= T ¥ M AT Y& FR & IRl & Al d g & w0 H

AT 1 ot agar wad 2 |

7) B woifia, S uRasr T & forg vaee o fAfaer g9 &

PR (AfaRT § 91T o & oy uT 7TEl 8ot el off, ord 9 fhdt o

fAfdar s o 9T o |wadl § aife @ 9 BN ) U B

STEHAT STUETTAT BT T Bl 8, ST JoIATeid w7 4 BIST BT &

BT |

2014—15 @ SRTH, T 32972 FRIS & S U fhy 1 |

Y & IR U gRT Fr=iferRad vg@ 3@ fag 76

*  IgdRucel | ddhcac ddb S 3MHIA dTell g Yol o1 —
SRYOT He Netd, 3T e, WRd & dheuT 3R featx foralf #
wRE # gl el PR, 99 iR B gell § frgl *fed
XU B A1 SRId G4 18660 W 19600 T IR TRIG G
23370 ¥ 29990 T& &I G & fHior wfd 17 /0 f& 0 |
35 /0 fo) T JTss &7 AT (3470.29 TRIS)

o OReH 4T, IRT H Bletbrar AT Yo & AT (BISHR)
IRITR—SRURER @s & folg SRIg R 2591 Hex | oNig
R 6373 AR & 914 9T VA 8 @ AR dee wrd
gfed Nuad) dgrarsde, dedy SR WyHEl b fAmior
(%319.20 FRI)

o I Ao HREMI, IR, IR U< H TG &Hal
M & HeY H TS, ADRI, STyl FaReq, AT,
FEHI, o, faorell oMyfd egawen, W™= fagd dril &1
frmtor iR wefe wd a3 & amyfd, ffor oiR =reg wee
21321 TRI)

*  ITIR-JHATS (46.96 fHHI) B dIa VAU & QISRIBRT B
LT HRAT —SRT0T Y&, TG B (TweRIIeel Hedl #
frmtor, Yermer fem (eRal 3R ¢& Wil &) amyft &1
Bredr), fIgd (@ fagdiaxon), sigas # amemm,
R 3iR REAR &1 (319322 TRI)

o Uadl — 1— "3NgtaRucel IR dherde™ & dra TRATad a9
ST dTell 5 Yol ATg-—QeToT 7 Neld, ST U 2T, Wk H
Jociidleg] (Af2d) IR STE=Tucell (BIS®R) & dr9 35.000
f il & 64.000 fHHI. T& UreR T8 HIRAT AT A
g ®rd, FeaeT H B Gadl s, gell, Feretl dsa gel,
WY ARG, HHANT AR Heel HrRIf Hr e
(3185.46 HRIS)

o a2 — “3NgedRucel IR ddcraed & 4 gwdIfad a9
ST dTell 5 ol IS+ —GfaTuT HE NeTd, 3T+l U eT, IR §
3R sTEFedl! (Wf2d) IR daweraed IS aRM (BISan) &
1 64.000 fHHT 3 93.000 fHH. TP TR TS HIRAT Al
Aed Yo, W SARGI, HHAN! ATATdl HeE wrf w1
foreare” 183.6 RIS)

o IS 3R BRI, WRA H Yd ¢ Y1 & HIAYR HSA H

AR—{CCANTE & 9RT @ (Blsdh?)—3Rs (Afea) TS




3.12 Accidents

During the year 2014-15, no accident was reported from any of the
project sites on RVNL account.

3.13 ADB funded projects:

The first ADB loan (IND-1981) sanctioned for “Railway Sector
Improvement” has been closed on 31.12.2011. A 2nd ADB Loan has also
been sanctioned for funding of 5 projects, namely:

. Raipur-Titlagarh doubling

. Sambalpur-Titlagarh doubling

. Hospet-Tinaighat doubling

. Daund-Gulbarga doubling

. Pune-Guntakal Railway Electrification

The funding by ADB requires compliance of various loan covenants on
resettlement and rehabilitation of project affected persons, procurement
of works and stores following international competitive bidding and
implementation of plans for mitigation of social and environmental impact
norms. A Multi Tranche Financing Facility of $ 500 million has been
agreed to by ADB. The loan agreement for first Tranche (Loan No. 2793-
IND) of this MFF for an amount of $ 150 million was signed in July 2012.
Contracts for 14 packages have been awarded. The tenders for the
balance four packages are under various stages of process. The contract
for General Consultants for these 5 projects had also been awarded in
May 2013. The loan agreement for second Tranche (Loan No. 3108-IND)
of this MFF for an amount of $ 130 million was signed in February 2014.
The contracts for supply of 60 kg Rails & 52 kg Rails were awarded in
March, 2014. The contract for supply of Thick Web Switches has been
awarded in December, 2014. Contract for appointment of NGOs to
implement the rehabilitation and resettlement policies of the ADB was
awarded and the work of R&R is in an advanced stage.

During the year 2014-15, an amount of ¥434.87 crore equivalent to $
71.99 million has been disbursed by ADB.

3.14 Contracting

As the size of projects being executed by RVNL is quite large, to ensure
fast award and execution of projects, RVNL invites tenders consisting of
multiple packages. Each tender may consist of upto three contract
packages. This approach has a number of advantages such as:

a)  Multiple contracts can be awarded through one tender which saves
time and effortin invitation and finalization of tenders.

b)  Both small and large agencies can compete for any contract
package which increases competition.

c) Large agencies who are capable of executing big contracts can
quote for multiple packages to achieve economies of scale and
pass on the benefit to RVNL by quoting discounts in case of award
of more than one package.

d)  Smaller agencies, which would not be eligible to quote if the tender
for the project was floated in a single package, are now able to
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compete in any of the contract packages individually as they may
meet the qualification requirements of individual packages which
are of comparatively smaller value.

During 2014-15, contracts worth approximately 32972 crore were
awarded.

The following major contracts were awarded by the Company during the
year:

. New Broad Gauge Railway Line from Obulavaripalle to
Venkatachalam - Construction of Roadbed from km 17/0 to 35/0
including construction of two tunnels from chainage 18660 to
19600 and chainage 23370 to 29990 with Ballastless track and
earthwork in Formation, Major and Minor Bridges covering Kadapa
and Nellore Districts of Andhra Pradesh in South Central Railway,
India (X470.29 crore)

. Construction of PSC viaduct, embankment and stations including
works in connection with extension of Metro Railway Line between
Ch: 2591m to Ch: 6373m for Noapara (Excluding) Baranagar-
Dakshineshwar Section of Kolkata Meto Railway in the State of
WestBengal, India (3319.20 crore)

. Construction of Sheds, Structures, water supply arrangement,
drainage, Road, track, power supply arrangement, general
electrical works and supply, erection & commissionsing  of
machinery & plants in connection with augmentation of production
capacity at Diesel Locomotive Works, Varanasi, Uttar Pradesh
(INDIA) (R213.21 crore)

. Provision of Doubling of track between Thanjavur - Ponmalai
(46.96 km) - Construction of roadbed, bridges, supply of ballast,
Platforms, Buildings, Installation of track (excluding supply of
rails and Track Sleepers), Electrical (General Electrification),
Modification of OHE, Signaling and Telecommunication works in
Tiruchchirapalli Division of Southern Railway, Tamil Nadu - India
(3193.22 crore)

. Package- 1 - “Proposed new BG line between Obulavaripalle and
Venkatachalam — Execution of earthwork in formation, bridges,
road under bridges, station buildings, staff quarters, general
electrical works including power line crossings from km 35.000 to
km 64.000 between Vallikallu (including) and Brahmanapalli
(excluding) in South Central Railway, Andhra Pradesh, India”
(%185.46 crore)

. Package- 2 - “Proposed new BG line between Obulavaripalle and
Venkatachalam — Execution of earthwork in formation, bridges,
road under bridges, station buildings, staff quarters, general
electrical works including power line crossings from km 64.000 to
km 93.000 between Brahmanapalli (including) and Venkatachalam
Road Junction (excluding) in South Central Railway, Andhra
Pradesh, India (X183.6 crore)

. Exection of Balance work for Construction of Roadbed, Major and
Minor bridges, Track Linking (excluding supply of rails, ordinary
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(68.936 TaHT) & TEIHROT & HaeT H SIS, IS Ud BIC Jd,
DI TR BT BISHR), MSceR RIer vd R (A=)
S&el STt @ 9 Ao St w1 e (R183.17 HRIS)
BTG iR A& U<el, 9IRd # SR g4 W YA &
R dsa odhl Je—TWIART (258 fH) 3iR
Wedl—oleR (47.8 ) & 1 Sediaxvl @ dd H Isds,
IS T B Yo, YUy o, ([TeRal, wmmer 2% sk
TARI o 99 Ra=i 9 faiy TRl @ 3myfd 1 sreaw)
IR Sig=E vd wrr faga wdedt oW st @ e
(3165.96 IRIS)

T AROT dlell &l Udbe Foell Yol 1 — ORI, WRd
Uf¥EH Nold & JAEAREIG Al WR Tl 3R fhfearr
% 19 XA B IEBR D Fa H Aees, Gall BT FHI,
frfeat @ amyfcl, Yeruer M (FeRal ok drowsd! iR}
B MY B Bledy), REE Ud REIR el dri
(157.61 IRIS)

BATE, MRA H SR 4 989 Xed & AR Hedl H
CeARISTERI—ITENe I3 AT dTell 8 el A8 aRATSIT
% e H IIS—HAST T (31T 17.6 f il & 426 el
TP — ol @arg 25 fH) @ forg sds, I3 iR BIC d,
|l &1 uRagd, aM [{gd onfe $raf &1 e
(3146.55 IRIS)

U8R, wRA H yd w9 Veld b SR Hed H geard o
AEYRT (16.8 HHI) TP 715 oS & Hag H Usds, T3 AR
BIC g, 3R, AR, veuer feafdwr, Rireet vd greaR
BT iR Fr fagla et Sl o1 fwre (1290.67 HRIS)
AT YW, WRA H TR W XAd P R Hed W
[ER—TATl WS & Nl [AERdR0T & Fae H Usds, I3 3R
BIC g, Vool fifee (qefRar ok qroasdl ars wiiwi &
MYt @I BrEHR), AW fAgd, H¥0 iR REHa vd
AR Heaeft w1t o frere (R114.15 aRTS)

ot 2— TORTT WRA ¥ UfRFH Yold & SfEveEe ded o
el 3k fAAer (2048 ) @& 94 qrEIaRTT @ forg
(eRal &R doadl os wiwRl @ Mgt & Breax),
faera (@ faediaron), Ree vd ReaR dedl o
(%95.96 BRTS)

IO, IR H SR UREH Ydd & AR dsd H
TIEIISI—3MY IS (26.00 ) & 1oy BB & Hajer 3
Rl Td SRR ®R 3R 9 fagd Heel dri”
(%94.23 IRIS)

A YT, IR ¥ e Hed Y1 & HITel el H g8+11 3R
BRATEE WAl & 91 O dRA & Gdg H A,
SUREAT, AR AR GRET Bl Aied THaAT YA BT

fHfor (360.68 HRIE)

BRI, ARG H SR Uf¥H Xedd b dBTR Hed H
ATeH— 2R WSl & 44 25 Hdl, 50 B, AT B, HYT
RRIUR SRy, RIRAT WMl HYIT IU— 9T TAATEIT,
fafae gonferalRT ord srerfa afds sard, smarg sik s
3MYff, Ie@ITas iR ATe] AT [ 60.59 HRIS)

Mafafer & forg gifes Y Aiegem @ fow Ren
SR BT AT (53.02 PRIS)

HRA & fafa= et # faf= Yo gea uRarsHmi & forw
ARG Yol ARifear sngemmua—<i—10— 2000 (Fd=aH
ANl & W1 ufdd) & gy Sleg—1—60 P 99 ST
el 3R F3mEwl 60 f3m /v (IS 880, 210N V) wWIH
geRal & w1 gArer Redl & 710 e &1 fafmior sk
JMYfT (352,67 BRIS)

3NgeaRucet | docded IS SIARM & 49 JRarad I
3ITATT aTell T Yol ATg — SIET e ¥erd H TR ¥ TeaiR
Td 154/148 THHI R HER A ddHcded e SR HIRGT
TIUE 5 @ 41 93 ¥ 95 fhHI W SR HERIYE 3R
dawerac & d19 Nold 155/22—24 fH TR e &faR TS I
3R YT 3R N 3T (3X36 #1 3fR 6X26.17H1) &7 wRaATfad
foHoT (333.60 HRIS)

BRIRITG, WRA H SR qd Hed X & AR dSd d
SeRRISTE]T iR I@ee & d19 8 Yol olgd & e #
TedRIoIe—arel @ (17 ) & fou faey el @
Re=i @1 amgfd, A BT (TeRal, iRl o smyfd
P BISHR) B BRI (324.42 PRIS)

MRA & A= &=t # =1 Yo ds& aRaeEmsil & forg
ARG Vol ARl SgeiRue—EI—10— 2000 & ATHT
Seg—1—60 fr@H d9 < UeRAT iR JarEH 60 fHuT/TH
(s 880, &I Q) Wi qeRAl & w1l gHasR Ra=i & 215
e &1 fafmior 3R myfet R17.31 wRre)

BRTUe—fMTS e SIBIdRIT — Bhelcd od, IR & URATS
7ot 3 féror uf¥em verd & gaell Hedl UR gaell 3R Shdl
Tl & 919 fHHT 469.594 TR UEE AN & HTA BT BISHY
AISIET MRBITET 1x7.89 ¥ SRR T AT 3R 1 x 24 1
el o] § BUISIC TR I GATATT HRAT (%6.68 PRIS)
2014—15 & SR, §7 BT & 3Dl P Acldl, THUITH,
IEIE 3R NumD & v 311635 IS & 3B W Ua™
fu Ty |

3.15 3ffer v feriRor ad&or (FLS)

2014—15 & SR 445 o aren fA=faRad aRarsrat & sifgw
zer ot gderor fy 1w

UTATYR—FHRATI T QIEIDHROT  (274.73 Tl

JTEACTETG—dICTE T URac  (170.48 )



track sleepers and thick web switches), Outdoor Signaling and
electrical (General) works in connection with Doubling of Lakhana
(Ex.) - Arand (In) section (68.936 km) part of Raipur-Titlagarh
Doubling in Sambalpur Division of East Coast Railway in the States of
Odisha & Chattisgarh, India (183.17 crore)

Construction of Balance work of Roadbed, Major and Minor
Bridges and Track linking (Excluding supply of Rails and Sleepers,
Thick Web Switches and Special Sleepers) and OHE & General
Electrical works in connection with doubling between Salka Road-
Khongsara (25.8 km) and Khodri-Jaithari (47.8 km) on Bilaspur
Division of South East Central Railway in Chhattisgarh and Madhya
Pradesh States, India (X 165.96 crore)

Single stage two packet system Package 1 - Construction of
Roadbed, bridges, supply of ballast, installation of track (excluding
supply of rails & PSC sleepers), Electrical (General Electrification),
Signaling and Telecommunication works for Doubling of Track
between Samakhiyali and Kidiyanagar (34.66 km) in Ahmedabad
Division of Western Railway, Gujarat, India (3157.61 crore)

Exection of works of Roadbed, Major & Minor brdges, supply of
ballast, residential and swervice buildings, platform, transportation
of materials, general electrical etc. for Dondi-Keoti Section (i.e.
from 17.6 km to 42.6 km - total length 25 km) in connection with
Dallirajhara - Rowghat new BG rail line project in Raipur Division of
South East Central Railway in the State of Chhattisgarh, India
(%146.55 crore)

Construction of Roadbed, Major and Minor Bridges, RUBs, ROBs,
Track Linking, S&T Works and General Electrical Works in
connection with new line from Barbighato Sheikhpura (16.8km) on
Danapur Division of East Central Railway in Bihar, India
(%129.67 crore)

Construction of Roadbed, Major and Minor Bridges, Track Linking
(Excluding supply of Rails and PSC Line sleepers), General
Electrical, Traction and Signal & Telecommunication works in
connection with Doubling with Railway Electrification of Guntur —
Tenali section on Guntur Division of South Central Railway in
Andhra Pradesh (3114.15 crore)

Package 2 - Construction of Roadbed, bridges, supply of ballast,
installation of track (excluding supply of rails & PSC line sleepers),
Electrical (General Electrification), Signaling and
Telecommunication works for Doubling of Track between Bhildi
and Diyodar (29.48 km) in Ahmedabad Division of Western
Railway, Gujarat, India (395.96 crore)

“Construction of Roadbed, Major and Minor Bridges, RUBs, ROBs,
Track Linking, S&T Works and General Electrical Works in
connection with Doubling between Swaroopganj - Abu Road
(26.00 km) on Ajmer Division of North Western Railway in
Rajasthan, India (Y94.23 crore)

Construction of Narmada Bridge along with foundation,
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substructure, superstructure and protection works in connection
with third line between Budni and Hoshangabad stations on
Bhopal-Itarsi Section of Bhopal Division of West Central Railway in
the State of Madhya Pradesh, India (360.68 crore)

J Design, Supply, Erection, Testing & commissioning of 25KV, 50HZ,
Single Phase, Traction Over-head Equipment, Switching Stations,
Traction sub-stations SCADA, General Electrical Services works
along with Civil Engineering Works i.e. Service Buildings, Quarters
and other associated works between Section Manheru - Hisar in
Bikaner Division of North Western Rallway in the State of Haryana,
India (360.59 crore)

. Selection of System Integrator for an integrated IT Solution for
RVNL (%53.02 crore)

. Manufacture and supply of 710 sets of curved switches with ZU-1-
60 thick web tongue rails and UIC 60 kg/m (Grade 880, class ‘A)
stock rails conforming to Indian Railway Specifications IRS-T-10-
2000 (read along with the latest amendments) for various rail road
improvement works in different regions of India (352.67 crore)

. Proposed New BG line between Obulavaripalle and Venkatachalam
Road Junction - proposed construction of Rail Over Road Bridge
and Rail Over Rail Bridge (3X36 m & 6X26.17m) at km 93 to 95
between Kasmur to Venkatachalam Road Junction crossing NH-5
at km 154/148 from Gudur to Nellore and Railway km 155/22-24
between Komarapudi and Venkatachalam in South Central Railway
(%33.60crore)

. The work of Railway Track linking, supply of switches, CMS
crossings (excluding supply of Rails, Sleepers) including supply of
special sleepers, SEJs and supply of ballast etc. for Dallirajhara-
Dondi Section (17 km) in connection with a new Rail link between
Dallirajhra & Rowghat in Raipur Division of South East Central
Railway in the Staste of Chhattisgarh, India (324.42 crore)

. Manufacture and supply of 215 sets of curved switches with ZU-1-
60 thick web tongue rails and UIC 60 kg/m (Grade 880, class ‘A)
stock rails conforming to Indian Railway Specifications IRS-T-10-
2000 for various rail road projects in different regions of India
(%17.31 crore)

. Hospet - Tinaighat doubling - Dismantling of existing ROB 1x7.89
m RCC and Reconstruction as 1 x 24 m steel through truss
composite girder excluding approach works at km 469.594
between Hubli and Unkal Stations on Hubli Division of South
Western Railway in Dharwad District, Karnataka State, India (36.68
crore)

. Beside these works contracts, Rs 116.35 crore value of FLS, DDE
& PMC contracts have also been awarded during 2014-15.

3.15 Final Location Survey (FLS)

During 2014-15, 445 km of Final Location Survey (FLS) was carried outin
the following projects:
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gRAieET e e faera: gdsfte el arfier
(dreiedy)

Mafafa & Gyaa sem gadid

Yo e frm fafies Rfafafer) @ emoer aRareml &
faepra, i | Ser SR Wi =gyl iR UIe |udhdr &l
AT B3 A G RIS DI Brffad d3 & Ieed | DI
T$ o e 7 wgFa Seml & w9 # ula R e
Arorrel (gEdrdn) o1 e fear § ok faffer & dad 620
PRI Sl G (2T BT 12 URIRIT &, B RS S A1 5087 IS
(FRR & U H T1795 TRIS 3R 0T B ©Y H T3292 BRIS) & faer

BT BT B # Tt & (@RT A uwa) 21 Ml gw
R i Tadid) # 9, 28 Yo Bue fafiice 2006 ¥ IR @RE
A BRI B Y B, HUICTH YeTd Bl fAfASS 2008 ¥ 31ifRId wT
A BRI B T B SR AT IR YeAd B fAACS BT 2012
I TRE uReETe Y% 81 AT © | {7 ARTB0 & qAA! DI FH
B/ FHATEN BT & 918 BRAMYR RGN Xl BUAl ferfics
3R gfher Yo fotfics & o+ @l uftvan 9o <& 21 uad &l
TG dled ¥ Sied & U Ud R Taddl & oA gg
et oic fafics @ w e gasian s R EdeR oy
TYE |

B

i) &1 9™ g?t? Mafafa & = WEIERI & IR 0T Sirs

goft

TIPS [TIRIS gfeerd | ITaRIS gfrerd [T aRe | TIRS
e YAd . o1, (301 fa) 250 125 50.0% 125 50.0% 300 550
Hed ol Xaid &, for. (63 fohen)* 165 55 33.33% 100 60.7% 230 395
PUICHH voId &, fol. (113 ) 270 81 30.0% 189 70.0% 933 1203
BRETAYR URTET Yerd &. for. (82 fopetn)** 510 170 33.33% 312 61.3% | 1092 1602
I gfbar Yera fot. (102 faedh) 600 189 31.5% 411 68.5% 737 1337
Sirs 1795 620 34.54% 1137 | 63.34% | 3292 | 5087
*29.89 IRIe BT sfdact iR
**327.50 IS DI SIS AR
Hat e — 35087 RIS
Jfafafer &1 sfere™ — 2620 HRIS 3rrET 12%

®. BB Yad Ul fafics (@3m=)

UfR¥ed Ydd W ORI H TEIH-UTTYR (301 fHHT S
URac) BT S arell YfAffer &1 ugell vadidl 7 2006 # &1
BT URY fBaT | 2014—15 | 39 B BT AR ool 99 &
3483 RIS BUY 3 9GDHN 3689 RIS BUY (frH) BIF HY MM 2 |

PHUAT G&T IR BlSel U I AR BT YR gl BT AHITT
% foy AT —TaYR W (248 M) & SEdianxor @l e
1 X&) B | 39 URASHT BT el AT §RT 2012—13 H 31266
PRIS DY B AN U HGR! &l g off, FRIehT faqaor SHamRdr
T MRS U= & SIRY fhar ST qor YR X 3 BIg
N Aeg & ol ST | $9a SifaRed, TeTelt 3 Ml (53
fai) & g e o1g & fory Ueh raRTIaT Sfear T I AT & |

W UTed e Yadd $uHl fafies (@iamdve)

Uf¥EH XA TR ORI H WRed H IeSl U Bl Sl Bl
TRad= TRITSTT Braifad dx & 1w SSiemfiver &1 =T
BT TS o1 | W H Ugel AT fosiaR, 2011 | =il | 39 Uq9IdT =
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AT, 2012 H ITe gRETe Yo f6aT| 03.02.2014 H 349 T
TR I MSAT YH B T8 | 2014—15 & ol TEUIAT &7 TR
fUod a¥ & 370 HRIe 39 DI ol 4 124 (3FfH) TR TH
IET BT AT |

e Yerd F TR BT Aol Yeraer & SrReror &1 fder faar 7,
FORT AheTaTg@de fdar ST Y81 & | $9% el KT e STRaTor
ST Y JeiTT & BT g &1 & 2 |

. OGS ¥ad Ul fafics (@amfiva)

Sferor #ed Verd R Ay U H Agerarivee W pOICTH Ui
(113 {3 ) T SIS aTell 7 o1 RIS & BRI B B
foTT 11.10.2006 BT BIRIANTA BT ATYAT BT T Y | TRITSHT BT
UBAT TRUI—  daR, 2008 H dbcTaTH Neld W Pl WIS
T ST arelt 20 Y TS @Y are] R fRar T R | U
AT A & 14 | 18 BT &I YfAfed & IR & 2|
2014—15 H THUIAT BT R fUsel a¥ & 18. 35 THRIe TUY Bl
I H 27.61 TS BUY (SfH) & BT MM ¥ |

3NgerTadiTedt ¥ ddhcaa™ (93 fM) & 9= =Rl (17—35 )




. Palanpur - Samakhiali Doubling (274.73 km)

e Ahmedabad - Botad Gauge Conversion (170.48 km)

PROJECT PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT- PUBLIC PRIVATE
PARTNERSHIP (PPP)

Joint Venture SPVs of RVNL

Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (RVNL), was created to undertake project
development, mobilization of financial resources and implement projects
pertaining to strengthening of Golden Quadrilateral and Port Connectivity.
RVNL has created five Special Purpose Vehicle as Joint Ventures and has
succeeded in attracting investment of ¥5087 crore (31795 crore as
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equity and 3292 crore as debt), with a contribution of only 620 crore by
RVNL, which is approximately 12% of the total investment (details given
below). Of the five SPVs promoted by RVNL, Kutch Railway Company
Limited has been fully operational since 2006, Krishnapatnam Railway
Company Limited is partially operational since 2008 and Bharuch Dahej
Railway Company Limited in 2012 commenced operations in full earnest.
Construction of Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company Limited and Angul
Sukinda Railway Limited is in progress after completion/resolving land
acquisition issues. A Memorandum of Understanding has also been
signed with Dighi Port Limited for forming another SPV to link the port
with the main line.

Total
Authorized
Name of SPV Equity RVNLs Equity Partners’ Equity Debt Total
Capital

ZCr T Cr %age ZCr %age ZCr ZCr
Kutch Railway Co Ltd. (301 km) 250 125 50.0% 125 50.0% 300 550
Bharuch Dahej Railway Co. Ltd. (63 km)* 165 55 33.33% 100 60.7% 230 395
Krishnapatnam Railway Co. Ltd. (113 km) 270 81 30.0% 189 70.0% 933 1203
Haridaspur Paradip Railway Co.Ltd. (82 km)** 510 170 33.33% 312 61.3% 1092 1602
Angul Sukinda Railway Ltd.(102 km) 600 189 31.5% 411 68.5% 737 1337
Total 1795 620 34.54% 1137 63.34% | 3292 5087
*Equity gap of ¥9.89 Cr
**Equity gap of ¥27.50 Cr
Total Investment = Z5087 Cr
RVNL contribution = 3620 Cr or 12%

a.  KutchRailway Company Limited (KRC)

The first SPV promoted by RVNL, connecting Gandhidham-Palanpur (301
km gauge conversion) in Gujarat on Western Railway, commenced
operations in 2006. The turnover of the SPV for 2014-15 is expected to
increase to I689 crore (provisional) as compared to 483 crore in the
previous year.

The company is planning the doubling of Samakhyali - Palanpur section
(248 km) to cater to the anticipated increase in traffic flows from Mundra
and Kandla ports. The project has been sanctioned by the Ministry of
Railways in 2012-13 at a cost 0f ¥1266 crore, which would be funded by
KRC through internal accruals without any contribution of funds by Indian
Railways. Further, the feasibility study for a 3rd line between Samakhyali
and Gandhidham (53 km) has been completed.

b.  Bharuch DahejRailway Company Limited (BDRCL)
BDRCL was incorporated to implement the gauge conversion project

connecting Bharuch to Dahej Port (62 km) in Gujarat on Western Railway.
The first goods train ran on the section in December, 2011. The SPV

started commercial operations in March, 2012. Passenger services
started on the section w.e.f. 3-2-2014. The SPV is expecting turnover of
%124 crore (provisional) for 2014-15 as compared to 70 crore in the
previous year.

Western Railway has temporarily directed the SPV to maintain the entire
track, which Company is being done successfully. This is also affecting
substantial savings compared to the cost of maintenance indicated by the
railways.

c.  Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited (KRCL)

KRCL was incorporated on 11.10.2006 to implement the new line project
connecting Obulavaripalle to Krishnapatnam Port (113 km) in Andhra
Pradesh on South Central Railway. Phase | of the project- 20 km line
connecting Venkatachalam Station with Krishnapatnam Port was
commissioned in November, 2008. Port is loading 14 to 18 rakes of
imported cargo every day. The SPV is expecting turnover of ¥27.61crore
(provisional) for 2014-15 as compared to 18.35 crore in the previous
year.
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Construction of phase-ll of the work between Obulavaripalle to
Venkatachalam (93 km), which includes two tunnels with a total length of
about 7.8 km, isin progress.

d.  Haridaspur Paradip Railway company Limited (HPRCL)

HPRCL was incorporated in 2006 to implement the new line project
connecting Haridaspur to Paradip Port (82 km) in Odisha on East Coast
Railway. Land has been acquired for 68 kms out of the total project length
of 82 kms. Company has faced problems from land losers as they had
impeded the progress of construction at some locations demanding
additional compensation. Government of Odisha had proposed for
payment of ex-gratia additional compensation in 2009. An amount of
%42.05 crore has been released till end of July 2013 out of which an
amount of ¥41.093 crore has been disbursed towards payment of ex-
gratia for land losers till end of March 2015. Due to return of application
money 0fZ27.50 crore to Posco Ltd. an equity gap has occurred.

Contract forimportant bridge on Luna River is under execution and Bridge
on Mahanadi River has been completed and handed over to RVNL. Three
new contracts have been awarded for constructing road beds and major
bridges. Approval for forest land has been received. HPRCL has now
achieved financial closure to meet its project funding requirements.

e.  Angul Sukinda Railway Limited (ASRL)

ASRL was formed in February, 2009 to implement the new line project
connecting Angul to Sukinda Road (102 km) in Odisha on East Cost
Railway. The process of land acquisition is in progress through East Cost
Railway. The Project requires 1200 acres of private land, 221 acres of
Government land 351 acres of forest land i.e. total 1772 acres.
Acquisition of both government and private land is an advanced stage.
Confirmatory final location survey (FLS) has been completed. Work is in
progress for earthwork formation, minor bridges and road over bridges.
CONCOR has joined as a new equity partner in the project contributing
Rs.156 crore (26%) equity.

Newly formed Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV)
a.  DighiRohaRail Limited(DRRL)

A Memorandum of Understanding was signed between RVNL and Dighi
Port Limited on 18.4.2015 in the presence of Hon’ble Minister of
Railways and the Chief Minister of Maharashtra for formation of a SPV for
linking the portto the railhead at Roha . The name of the SPV as approved
by the Ministry of Corportae Affairs is Dighi Roha Rail Limited. The
incorporation of this SPV is under process.

b.  Formation of a SPV named Indian Port Rail Corportaion Limited
between RVNL and Major Ports of India under Ministry of
Shipping

A new SPV named Indian Port Rail Corporation Limited has been

registered as a Company on 10.7.2015 under the Companies Act, 2013

by Ministry of Shipping with an initial Authorised Capital of ¥500

Crores.The stakeholders are 12 Major Ports and RVNL. RVNLs equity

participation is limited to Rs. 10 crore only i.e. 10% of the initial

subscribed share capital. This SPV has been formed to undertake
maintenance, upgradation and modernisation of the Port Railways and
also provide capacity augmentation wherever required.
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Bankability studies

During the year,

. Bankability reports for the following projects, which were
assigned to RVNL, have been completed and sent to Ministry of
Railways for taking further action:

(@ Rail connectivity to Rewas Port (in Maharashtra);

. Bankability study approved by BOD/RVNL.:

(@  Bhimsen - Jhansi Doubling with RE

(b)  Rewari- Manheru Doubling

(c)  Habibganj- Itarsi3rdline

. Bankability studies under approval of BOD/RVNL
(@)  Bina—Kota Doubling

)

) Rani-Keshavganj Doubling
(c)  Tamluk-Basulaya Doubling

) Tiruvallur-Arrakonam 4th line

) Guntur-Tenali Doubling
Goelkera—Manoharpur 3rdline
e SPVsunder formation:

(@)  Rail Connectivity to Dighi Port ( MOU signed between RVNL and
Dighi Port Ltd)

(b)  SPV under Ministry of Shipping where RVNL is also an Equity
Partner

. Bankability studies in Progress:
(@)  Preparation of Business Plan for Kutch Railway Company

L
=
=

(b)  Rail connectivity to Cement plants From Sanjamala station on
South Central Railway

SUBSIDIARY:
High Speed Rail Corporation of India Limited (HSRC)

High Speed Rail Corporation of India Ltd. (HSRC) has been formed as a
wholly owned subsidiary of Rail Vikas Nigam Ltd. (RVNL), with the
approval of President of India, to develop High Speed Rail (HSRC)
Corridors in India to run passenger trains at speed of upto 350 km per
hour.The details of Corporation and Projects being undertaken by HSRC
may be seeninthe Directors Reportincluded as Part ‘I’ of the Report.

PERSONNEL DEVELOPMENT

The HR policies in RYNL have been aligned with the short-term and long-
term requirements of experienced and skilled personnel in the Company.
Being a project based Organisation,the requirement is largely met by
drafting Railway employees on deputation who bring with them rich
experience of working on the Indian Railways. RVNL has also a cadre of
its own, created by absorbing willing employees from Railways and
PSUs. Ason 31.3.2015, the strength of the company stood at 415, out of
which 126 are regular employees. As per requirement RVNL possesses
one of the finest pools of technical manpower to the development of rail
infrastructure inthe country.
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Employees are considered as a valuable asset of the organisation and
RVNL has attractive and employee-friendly policies to boost the morale
and motivate employees to perform to the best of their abilities. To offset
the rising rental cost of residential accommodation, suitable increase in
the ceiling limits for private lease accommodation have been made.
RVNL management appreciates that development of talent is most
essential to achieve and maintain a competitive advantage. To enhance
the efficiency and skills and to keep them abreast with the latest
technological changes in rail construction, employees have been
nominated to various managerial and technical training programmes
and seminars relevantto functional requirements. During 2014-15, 594
mandays of training were imparted to the employees through various
training programmes.

RVNL recognizes the services of meritorious employees through
individual/ group awards by presenting shields and cash awards on the
occasion of Annual Foundation Day celebrations held on 12th April 2014.
Besides individually awarding 17 meritorious employees, shields were
presented by Chairman, Railway Board and Member Engineering,
Railway Board to the following Project Implementation Units for their
excellent performance:-

1. | Best PIU (Winner) Chennai

2. | Best PIU (Runner up) Bhopal

3. | Best Doubling Project Gooty-Pullampet patch

(PIU Secunderabad)

4. | Maximum Expenditure PIU, Chennai

5. | Best PIU in Metro Project New Garia-Airport Project

(PIU, Kolkata)

6. | Best Workshop Project CLW - Dankuni Workshop

(PIU Majerhat, Kolkata)

7. | BestPIU in RE Project PIU, Secunderabad

8. | Best PIU in Signalling Work PIU Line, Kolkata

GROUP AWARDS:

i) Chief Project Managers-Il & Ill/Bhubaneshwar and their team
ii) Chief Project Manager/Hubliand his Team

iii) Group General Manager/Elect./Bhopal & his Team

iv) Chief Project Manager/Majerhat (Kolkata) & his Team

As a welfare measure to employees, the services of a Allopathic and
Homeo physician have been engaged in the Corporate office. The
Company provides best facilities for medical treatment. The ceiling limits
to room rents for indoor treatment of the employees have also been
revised inline withthe room rents charged by major hospitals.

The Company observed ‘Swacch Bharat Abhiyan’ and undertook
cleanliness drives in the Corporate Office premises and at Project
Implementation Units of RVNL.
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Industrial relations
Cordial industrial relations have been maintained throughout the year.

Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harrassment policy in line with
the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace
(Prevention , Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. An Internal Complaints
Committee called “Vishaka Committee” has been set up in RVNL to
redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees
are covered underthis policy.

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received
and disposed off during the calendar year.

Number of Complaints received: NIL
Number of Compaints disposed off: NIL
Right to Information Act

The Right to Information Act has been implemented in RVNL in letter and
spirit and timely responses are given to the queries. The Company has
nominated an Appellate Authority/Central Public Information Officer for
the Corporate Office and an Asstt. Public Information Officer for each PIU.
During 2014-15, 42 applications were received and disposed off in time.

Rajbhasha (Official Language)

RVNL makes continuous efforts to implement the directives of the
Government of India on use of Rajbhasha (Official Language) in RVNL.
The Rajbhasha Wing in RVNL is under HR Department with a part-time
Mukhya Rajbhasha Adhikari, Upmukhya Rajbhasha Adhikari and a regular
Assistant Manager (Rajbhasha). The Mukhya Rajbhasha Adhikari and
Upmukhya Rajbhasha Adhikari maintain constant co-ordination with
Rajbhasha Directorate of the Railway Board. During 2014-15, four
meetings of Rajbhasha Implementation Committee of RVNL have been
held with the representatives of Railway Board’s Rajbhasha Directorate. ,
Hindi Essay Writing competition, Hindi Noting & Drafting competition &
Hindi Shabd Gyan competitions were also held on the occasion of Hindi
Divas on 14th September, 2014 and ¥21,200/- was awarded amongst
successful participants in the form of cash prizes. Inaddition to this, Late
Shri Sankar Dayal Singh Smriti Nagad Puraskar were also given to those
RVNL officials who have done their maximum official works in Hindi.

The company has set up a reading room-cum-library in the Corporate
Office with a good collection of Hindi books, news papers and periodicals.
The RVNL website has Hindi version pages also and is quite popular
among the users.

Presidential Directives

The Company did not receive any Presidential Directive from Ministry of
Railways during 2014-15.

4. VIGILANCE

The Vigilance department in RVNL is manned by a Chief Vigilance Officer,
one GM/Vigilance (Part time), two DGMs/Vigilance and one
Manager/Vigilance.
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As part of its remit, RVNL vigilance efforts were chiefly directed towards a
series of preventive checks for addressing system deficiencies as well as
corrective action for lapses wherever noted. In particular, these checks
evaluated quality compliance with work procedures/ practices including
quality control and assurance during projectimplementation.

Preventive measures:

During 2014-15, six preventive checks on establishment issues, as well
as selected works items, were conducted and recommendations made
for improved compliance in regard to maintenance of service & leave
records of RVNL personnel. These checks also addressed issues of
compliance with contractual provisions on project management
consultancy.

Apart from these checks, inspections of five projects were carried out to
evaluate contract management with a focus on tendering procedures and
compliance with quality control and specification standards prescribed
by the Company.

RVNL Vigilance actively pursued with the Management and CTEO (Chief
Technical Examiner Organization) for resolution of various issues raised
by CTE during their intensive examination of project execution. Duringthe
year 2014-15, replies to 78 pending paras of all intensive examinations in
the previous years were submitted and 52 paras were closed on
satisfactory compliance and system improvement.  Additionally,
recovery of ¥4,81,53,578/- was made from contractors towards
penalties and liquidated damages.

Some major system improvements made during 2014-15 covered the
following areas:-

. Certainty in calculation of discounts on the prices quoted in a bid.

o Provision of separate rates for pre-cast and cast-in-situ girders.

. Provision for publication of the International Competitive Bidding
(ICB) tenders of RVNL in ‘India Trade Journal’.

o Compliance with penal provisions in case of failure to deploy key
personnel as per contractual commitments.

o Guidance on preparation of Estimates with regard to rates of items
banned by Tender Committees.

. Enhancing transparency in passing of bills.

Recovery:

As a result of inspections and preventive checks conducted by the
Vigilance department, a penalty of 349,35,599/- was levied on the
contractors for deficiencies in performance and recovery of the same
was ensured.

Investigation:

The complaints received by Vigilance from time to time were dealt with as
per prescribed procedure. The verifiable facts, if any, raised in the
complaints were investigated and surprise checks done, as deemed fit.
During the year 2014-15, one compliant was investigated that led to a
recommendation for administrative action against one RVNL employee.

A detailed investigation report on certain issues raised by CTE
organization of GVC during prior year was submitted to Railway Board
Vigilance for necessary action.
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Disciplinary Action:

During the year 2014-15, two major penalty cases and three
Administrative Action cases were concluded with the imposition of
penalties/administrative actions, as advised by CVC.

Periodic reports to CVC/Railway Board:

The status of pendency of various matters namely inspections,
complaints, disciplinary cases and miscellaneous matters was regularly
apprised to CVG/Railway Board through periodic monthly, quarterly and
annual reports.

Vigilance Awareness Week:

The Vigilance Awareness Week was celebrated in RVNL from 27th
October to 1st November 2014 commencing with the administration of
pledge by all officers and staff. Aninteractive session of RVNL officers on
the theme - “Combating Corruption - Technology as an enabler” - was
organized on 27th October 2014 in the Corporate Office of RVNL. RVNLs
9th Vigilance Bulletin was also released on the occasion.

5. MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

The Company secured “Excellent” rating by Department of Public
Enterprises for the year 2013-14 on the basis of achievement of the
committed targets as agreed to in the Memorandum of Understanding
signed between RVNL and Ministry of Railways . This is the fourth
consecutive year for whichthe Company has been rated as “Excellent”.

In 2014-15, the Company has been able to achieve the targets set in the
MoU and even surpassed them. RVNL completed Doubling of 205.68 km
against an “Excellent” target of 200 km under project implementation and
49.0 km against a target of 48.3 km under completion of projects section
of projects with specific timelines. Completion of 184.9 km Railway
Electrification was achieved against an excellent target of 180 km and 32
km of Railway Electrification against a target of 30.0 km under completion
of projects section of projects with specific timelines. The Company was
also able to meet the targets set for all financial, enterprise specific,
sectors specific, Corporate Social Responsibility in the MoU for 2014-15.
Accordingly, the Company is expecting to achieve an “Excellent” rating for
2014-15as well.

During the year, the Company signed a Memorandum of Understanding
(MoU) with Ministry of Railways fixing its physical, financial targets and
other sector specific targets for 2015-16.

6. PARTICULARS RELATING TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY,

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO ETC.

Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption

RVNL is conscious of the limited nature of conventional sources and the
importance of using our energy resources wisely. Initiatives taken to
create awareness about conservation of energy among employees has
resulted in a steady reduction in energy consumption at Corporate Office.
In addition, various state of the art systems have been installed and
environment friendly technology has been adopted inthe Corporate Office
building.
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Environment friendly equipments like solar heaters, solar lights etc are
beinginstalled in projects/ offices of the Company.

Implementation of an Integrated IT Solution for RVNL

RVNL is undertaking implementation of an Integrated IT Solution for
Corporate office as well as all the Project Implementing Units. The
proposed solution will cover computerization of all the core business
processes including project planning, e- tendering, monitoring of project
execution, associated finance functions and personnel management etc.
In this regard, M/s Accenture have been appointed as Consultants for the
system, and the main solution is being developed and implemented by
M/s L&T Infotech Ltd. The pay-roll module is expected to go live by end of
December 2015. Finance Module, email solution and Portal along with
employee self-service are expected to be functional at the beginning of
the next financial year. The other modules will be progressively taken up
forimplementation.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

During the financial year 2014-15, the Company spent ¥29.87 lakh in
foreign exchange on foreign travel of Company’s officials etc. & 37.31
crore on Project Management Consultancy. The Company, however, did
not earn any Foreign Exchange.

7.  RISKMANAGEMENT

RVNL has a formal Risk Management Policy duly approved by the Board
of Directors. The Policy aims to review the exposure of RVNL to various
risks and the mitigation measures to be taken periodically. It also strives
to increase awareness among its employees and other stakeholders
about possible risks and measures to control the same.

Your Company has a Risk Management Committee under the
chairmanship of Mr. Mukul Jain, Director (Operations) with Mr. S.K.
Dhiman, ED (Projects), Dr. Monica Agnihotri, GM (Marketing), Mr. Ajay
Kumar, GGM (HR) and Mr. Mukesh Kumar Singh, GM (F) as members.
The Committee met four times during the year on 27.6.2014, 26.9.2014,
18.12.2014 and 18.3.2015. Significant risks identified by the Committee
include risks arising from time and cost overrun in implementation of
projects, risks associated with delay in land acquisition, risk of
dependency on Indian Railways for financing RVNL projects etc. During
the year Committee identified a major risk arising from New Land
Acquisition Act 2013 coming into force from 1.1.2014 which may result
in delays in project execution. A number of measures to minimize the
claims of the contractors, recommended by the Committee, have been
accepted by RVNL management and circulated to units for compliance.

The Committee has engaged a professional firm for preparing a detailed
document on Enterprise Risk Assessment and Management in RVNL.
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This firm after completing interactions with various stakeholders and site
visits to the Project Implementation Units have submitted an interim
report which is under review before circulation. The Committee has also
proposed to document the risks faced during project execution, and
prepare acompendium of case studies for guidance of project managers.

8.  CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises of Mr. K. K.
Aggarwal, Part Time Official Director, Mrs. Gita Mishra, Director
(Personnel), Mr. Vijay Anand, Director (Projects), Mr. Ashok K. Ganju,
Director (Finance).The Committee has formulated and recommended a
Corporate Social Responsibility policy (CSR policy) to the board for
approval indicating the nature of activities to be undertaken by the
Company and process forimplementation of the same..

The key philosophy of CSR and Sustainability, as enshrined in the policy,
activities is to meet the following broad objectives:

1. Implementation in project/programme mode
2 Focus on periphery of project areas of RVNL
3. Thrustareas of education and healthcare
4

Inclusive growth of society with emphasis on development of
weaker sections of society and in the backward districts of the
country.

During the year, the Company has spent34.54 crore (around 2.82% of the
average net profit of last three financial years) on CSR initiatives.

The CSR policy may be accessed on the Company’s website at the link
http://www.rvnl.org/admin/ uploadedi/ leftdocument/
20141117161351_CSR%20Policy%200ct%202014.pdf.

Thereport on CSR activities is annexed as Annexure - “C”.
9.  RESEARCHAND DEVELOPMENT

In accordance with the guidelines issued by Department of Public
Enterprises, a Board level Committee headed by an independent Director
has been constituted. During the year, the Board level Committee
reviewed the status/progress of implementation of items identified in the
five year plan for R&D (2011-16) and decided to seek fresh suggestions
from all employees for taking up new projects in addition to the project for
Development of an Integrated IT solution for RVNL including Project
Management, which is already in progress. After scrutiny of the
suggestions received, the following two ideas were found to be original
and implementable and the same have been ordered for implementation
on a trial basis by the Project Implementation Units from where the
suggestions were received :-

S.No. Projects Chosen PIU identified for implementation
1. Replacement of existing bridges upto 1.2m span of running railway Chennai

line with 1.2m RCC pipe by auguring cum pushing method
2. Introduction for use of reinforced earth structures to save precious Kolkata/Majerhat

land in city areas.
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The employees from whom implementable suggestions were received
have been given cash award by RVNL management as recommended by
the Committee.

10. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In compliance with the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 the
consolidated Financial Statements of RVNL have been prepared for the
first time for the Financial Year 2014-15 which are presented in the
Report. The accounts have been consolidated based on the performance
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and activities of the SPVs and the share of RVNL in those entities as an
equity partner and its wholly owned subsidiary HSRC. The related entries
appearing in the Stand Alone Accounts of RVNL have been adjusted
accordingly in consonance with the relevant accounting standards (AS 21
& 27). The salient features of differences in the significant entries
between the Stand Alone Accounts of RVNL and the Consolidated
Accounts are as under:

(% in crores)

ltem Figures as at 31.3.2015 Figures as at 31.3.2015
Stand Alone Consolidated

Turn Over 3141.97 3447.73
Other Income 96.05 120.40
Direct Expenses 2890.81 3025.61
Indirect Expenses 110.86 150.57
PBT 236.34 391.94
PAT 185.71 322.69
Reserve & Surplus 593.84 931.98
Net Worth 2678.86 3017.00

11. SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

A report on the performance and financial position of subsidiary,

associates and joint venture Company as per Companies Act 2013 is

provided as Annexure- “F” to the Consolidated financial statement.

12. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, Directors

confirmthat-

a) in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable
accounting standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

b)  the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied
them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit of the Company for that period;

c) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

d)  theDirectors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern
basis.

e)  the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance
with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems
were adequate and operating effectively.

13. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNELS

At the beginning of the year (1.4.2014), there was only one Independent
Director on the board. The Company has been requesting Ministry of
Railways for nomination of the same.

Mr. R.S. Sharma completed his tenure of 3 years as Independent Director
on the Board of RVNL on 10.6.2015. Mr. Anjum Pervez, ED (Project
Monitoring)/ Railway Board was appointed as Part-Time Official Director
vice Mr. V P Dudeja, ED (Works)/Railway Board by the Ministry of
Railways on 28.8.2015.

The Directors would like to express their gratitude to all their predecessors
fortheirinvaluable contribution.

The Company had received declaration from the Independent Directors
confirming that they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under
the Companies Act, 2013.

On the date of report, the strength of the Board of Directors of the
Company is seven Directors comprising of five functional Directors
including Chairman and Managing Director and two part-time official
Directors.
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The following Directors are holding office as on the date of the report:-
1. Mr. S.C. Agnihotri --
Chairman and Managing Director

2. Ms. Gita Mishra -
Director (Personnel)

3. Mr. Mukul Jain -
Director (Operations)

4, Mr. Vijay Anand --
Director (Projects)

5. Mr. Ashok K. Ganiju, -
Director (Finance)

6. Mr. Anjum Parvez, --
ED (Project Monitoring)/Railway Board,
Part- time (official)
Director

7. Mr. K. K. Aggarwal,
ED (W&P)/Railway Board, --
Part-time (official)
Director

Woman Director

Interms of the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014, a Company shall have at least one Woman Director on the Board of
the Company. Your Company has Mrs. Gita Mishra as Director Personnel
onthe Board of the Company since October 2008.
Appointment/Resignations of Key Managerial Personnels

Mr. S C Agnihotri, Chairman & Managing Director, Mr. Ashok K Ganju ,
Director (Finance) & CFO and Mrs. Kalpana Dubey, Company Secretary
are Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) as per the provisons of the
Companies Act,2013.

None of the KMP has resigned or appointed during the year under review.

Annual evaluation by the Board of its own performance and that of its
Committees and Individual Directors

RVNL being a Government Company is exempted vide notification No.
FNo.1/2/2014-CL.V dated 5.6.2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, to comply with the provisions of Sec 134(3)(p) with respect to
Annual evaluation by the Board of its own performance and that of its
Committees and Individual Directors. In case of RVNL, the performance
evaluation of Directors is done by the Ministry of Railways.

Number of Meetings of the Board

During 1st April, 2014 to 31st March, 2015, the Company held five Board
meetings to transact business i.e, on 12th May, 2014, 15th July, 2014,
14th October, 2014, 13th January, 2015 and 26th March, 2015.

O
EUEENTEIC

BB ~AnnuvAL REPORT
B 2014-2015

from 27.1.2010 as Managing Director and
from 5.3.2013 onwards as CMD
[Extended upto 31.8.2018]

from 13.10.2008 onwards

from 16.6.2010 onwards
[Extended upto 31.12.2016]

from 9.4.2011 onwards

from 12.9.2011 onwards

from 28.8.2015 onwards

from 22.1.2014 onwards

14. AUDITORS

a)  StatutoryAuditor

The Comptroller & Auditor General of India has appointed M/s Kumar
Chopra & Associates Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors of the
Company for the year ended 31st March, 2015. The Board would like to
thank them for their valuable support and guidance during the audit of
accounts under review.

b)  Secretarial Auditor

The Board of Directors has appointed M/s S.C. Baluja (practicing
Company Secretary) to conduct Secretarial Audit for financial year
2014-15.

The Secretarial Audit report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2015
is annexed herewith marked as Annexure “D” to this report.

15. DISCLOSURES

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of Mr. Mukul Jain, Director (Operations),
Mr. K K Aggarwal, Part time Official Director and Mr. Anjum Pervez, Part
time Official Director. All recommendations made by the Audit Committee
were accepted by the Board.

Extract of Annual Return

Extract of the Annual Return of the Company is annexed herewith as
Annexure “E” to this report.
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16. COMMENTS OF COMPTROLLER & AUDITOR GENERAL (C&AG)
OF INDIA

The Comptroller & Auditor General of India has undertaken
supplementary audit on the accounts of the Company for the year ended
31*'March, 2015 under Section 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013. The
comments of the C & AG on the Annual Accounts of the Company for the
year ended 31* March, 2015 shall also form part of this report.

17. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

We take this opportunity to gratefully acknowledge the cooperation,
guidance and support received from Ministry of Railways (MoR),
Ministry of Finance, Department of Public Enterprises, various banks,
Asian Development Bank, the Zonal Railways, IRFC, RITES, IRCON, RLDA

New Delhi
Dt: 31.8.2015
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and our equity partners in Joint Venture SPVs for their continued interest
and support to the Company. The Directors would like to express their
thanks for the devotion, commitment and dedication of each and every
employee of the Company due to which your Company could face the
new challenges and opportunities and create a niche for itself as a major
provider of rail infrastructure in the country. The Directors also place on
record their appreciation to the officials of Comptroller & Auditor General
of India for their guidance during the year under review. Last but not the
least, the Directors would like to express their deep appreciation and
gratitude towards all their predecessors who have been associated
with RVNL, for their invaluable contribution to the growth and
development of the Company in attainment of the Company’s aims and
goalsinall spheres.

For and on behalf of Board of Director
Sd/-
(S. C. Agnihotri)
Chairman and Managing Director
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Annexure “A”

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Industry Structure and Development:

Over the years Indian Railways has emerged as the world’s fourth largest
Rail freight carrier and largest passenger carrier. It runs 12,617 trains
carrying over 23 million passengers and 3 million tonnes of freight per
day. It is the backbone of India’s transport infrastructure and the quality,
capacity and the performance of Railways’ infrastructure is of crucial
importance for the nation.  Experts have noted that the contribution of
Indian Railways is around 1.2% of the GDP and that by 2020 it should
reach about 3% to ensure sustainable economic development of the
country.

However, Indian Railways is presently faced with a critical infrastructure
deficit as the main traffic carrying routes are saturated. It has been
highlighted that there are 1219 sections on the high density network, out
of which 492 are running at a capacity of more than 100% and 228
sections are running at a capacity of between 80% to 100%At the same
time the road sector has developed significantly resulting in a steady
increase in the share of traffic being moved by roads at the cost of the
Railways whose share has reduced to less than 30%. Alarmingly, this is
also true for the traditional bulk cargo of Railways such as coal, cement,
steel etc. On a wider perspective, reduction in traffic share is not in the
national interest as the Railways are the most energy efficient and
environment friendly mode of transport on land.

While presenting the Railway Budget 2015-16, Shri Suresh Prabhu,
Hon’ble Minister for Railways has stated that one of the priorities identified
is to significantly improve capacity on the existing high density network
and the emphasise will be on gauge conversion, doubling, tripling and
electrification projects. Over the next 5 years, the Ministry envisages an
investment of Rs. 8.5 lakh crore in railway infrastructure. For this, multiple
sources of funding will have to be identified. As a preliminary initiative the
Ministry of Railways has entered in an MoU with Life Insurance
Corporation (LIC) for leveraging Rs. 1.5 lakh crore of investment during
the next5 years. Other sources of investmentare also being explored.

In fact, RVNL was created in 2002 as a result of a non-budgetary
investment initiative for the creation and augmentation of rail
infrastructure called National Rail Vikas Yojana (NRVY) which was
launched by the then Hon’ble Prime Minister of India, Shri Atal Behari
Vajpayee. Accordingly, it has played a significant role in the raising of
funds for project implementation through the SPV route. RVNL has
established five SPVs, which have generated substantial revenues with
only a limited contribution of equity by Indian Railways. However, the
company’s role in raising EBR from market borrowings has been limited
to projects financed by IRFC (as decided by Railway Board). With the
policy thrust of the Ministry for a major investment in rail infrastructure

and fast track implementation of projects, RVNL anticipates that it will
have a major role to play as per its original mandate in the leveraging of
Extra Budgetary Resources for development of the rail network of the
country.

Over the years, RVNL has successfully established its credentials for fast
track delivery of Railway infrastructure projects. Initially RVNL had started
with the execution of doubling, gauge conversion, new lines and Railway
electrification projects. Having established itself in the area of project
execution, the Company has now diversified and is executing projects of
varied types including construction of Metro lines and workshops. RVNL
has also been assigned the technically challenging Rishikesh
Karanprayag new line in Himalayas for execution. The alignment has now
been finalised after detailed geo-technical and other studies. Recently
another challenging project in Himachal Pradesh, namely Bhanupalli-
Bilaspur new line, has also been assigned to RVNL for execution. RVNL is
also emerging as a major provider inincreasing the Railway Electrification
network.

RVNL has also recognised the vast potential for building a High Speed Rail
Network in the country and with the approval of President of India has
formed High Speed Rail Corporation of India Ltd., as its subsidiary. This
initiative will ensure that RVNL will have a significant role to play in the
delivery of high speed rail infrastructure in the country while HSRC will
plan for operating the system in partnership with global service providers
on PPP basis. A suitable financial model for implementing HSR projects
will have to be formulated accordingly.

Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (RVNL) — A Synopsis

Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, a Public Sector Undertaking of Ministry of
Railways, was created in 2003 under the National Rail Vikas Yojana
(NRVY) to implement railway projects for capacity augmentation viz.
gauge conversion, new line, doubling or third line through budgetary and
non-budgetary resources to remove bottlenecks on the Indian Railways
network, and to facilitate execution of port connectivity and multimodal
corridors to the hinterland on a fast track basis. With the assignment of
independent Railway Electrification works, metro works in Kolkata and
construction of workshop projects, technically challenging projects in
hilly regions (such as Rishikesh-Karanprayag, Bhanupalle-Bilaspur in
Himachal Pradesh) RVNL has emerged as a major provider of rail
infrastructure projects in fasttrack mode.

RVNL works on a turnkey basis and undertakes the full cycle of project
development from concept to commissioning. It has been mandated to
undertake resource mobilization directly, or by creation of project specific
SPVs or any other financing structure, appropriate for various kind of
projects.
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Strengths/Weaknesses / Opportunities/Threats
Strengths

. RVNL has successfully mobilized funds for the construction of new
lines by creating project specific SPVs with strategic stakeholders.
Its large capital base can be leveraged to raise funds as per its
original mandate.

. MoR has delegated the authority to RVNL for sanctioning of
estimates within prescribed limits and for awarding contracts of
any value enabling RVNL to implement projects faster.

. As RVNL can award large value contracts, it has been able to attract
the bestinfrastructure companies in India.

. It has developed expertise in undertaking all stages of project
development - from concept to commissioning.

. RVNL has developed the requisite skills and experience to follow
ADB procedures and ensure Resettlement and Rehabilitation of
Project Affected Persons to implement socio-economic
safeguards.

. It has refined its tendering processes and introduced innovative
concepts like multi-package tenders resulting in faster decision
making and savings in overall costs

o It has a sound and robust financial management system, allowing
for effective monitoring and control of expenditure

o It is a lean organisation with a qualified, expert, technical
manpower base.

Weaknesses

. RVNL is largely dependent on the Ministry of Railways for funding
of projects which may prove detrimental for the future growth of the
Company and for timely implementation of projects.

o RVNL has not been notified as a Zonal Railway and accordingly
does not have the authority to approve drawings, designs etc.

o The progress of projects often gets impaired on account of delays
in securing the necessary approvals for plans, granting of traffic
blocks, etc. from Zonal Railways.

o Changes in approved plans by the Railways, during execution of
projects, results in delays.

. RVNL does not have the freedom to plan execution of projects and
has to follow priorities set by Railways.

o RVNL is dependent on MoR for approval of projects to be taken up
through SPV route and terms of the Concession Agreement.

Opportunities

. RVNL can play a significant role in raising extra-budgetary
resources for project execution as this is a specific mandate of the
company and has experience of implementation of projects in PPP
mode.

o With the work of implementation of Kolkata Metro projects, RVNL
has developed expertise for implementation of metro projects in
other cities across the country.
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. RVNL has successfully constructed major workshops for Indian
Railways in fast track mode. RVNL can thus undertake
implementation of large buildings, factories, townships etc. for
otheragencies as well.

. With RVNLs growth as a major provider of a variety of rail
infrastructure, there is an opportunity of securing rail infrastructure
projects overseas.

. RVNL is implementing Rishikesh — Karnaprayag project in the
Himalayan region and can also take up more such projects in hilly
terrain.

. RVNL has formed a subsidiary company for the development and
implementation of High Speed Rail projects - High Speed Rail
Corporation of India Ltd. which can provide opportunities for:

- Implementation of High Speed Corridors inthe country

- upgradation of some routes for semi high speed operation as
planned by MoR, e.g. Chennai-Bangaluru-Mysore (130 km) etc.

Threats

. The shortage of technical manpower, with requisite experience in
the rail sector, is a major constraint in the delivery of projects.

e Alarge percentage of RVNLs skilled manpower is on deputation
from Indian Railways. In case of adverse terms of deputation, e.qg.
with regard to provision for retaining railway accommodation by
deputationists, it will be difficult to attract/retain them in the long
run.

. Land acquisition issues hamper the progress of projects.

. Delays in clearances for project execution such as tree-cutting,
removal of utilities from the construction of viaducts for metro rail
projects etc.

. A number of projects are being executed along existing running
lines, which makes safety a serious challenge.

. Projects are adversely affected due to poor law and order
conditions such as those in Left Wing Extremist affected districts.

Industrial Relations
Industrial Relations remained harmonious and cordial.
Strategies

The Company is taking measures for ensuring cost control and timely
delivery of projects, without any compromise on quality for the execution
and delivery of rail infrastructure projects on a fast track basis. RVNL can
play a significant role in Ministry of Railways efforts of raising extra-
budgetary resources for project implementation, especially through the
SPV route. Innovative models for project financing will also have to be
explored. RVNL has also requested Ministry of Railways that it may be
permitted to leverage its equity base to raise funds from the market as per
its mandate.

RVNL has created a permanent cadre through absorption to provide
institutional continuity and to reduce the dependence on seeking officers
and staff on deputation from Railways. Most of the workforce consists of
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qualified technical ataff with experience in Railways and/or its PSUs.

Wherever required, RVNL has also recruited specialists to provide expert

guidance in its projectimplementation.

A comprehensive and appropriate training programme is being

implemented to develop competent, suitably skilled and qualified

manpower. Efforts are also being made to transfer skills and best
practices from other infrastructure sectors and acquiring skills related to
execution of Railway projects.

The Mission, Vision and Objectives of the Company as per the MoU are

mentioned below:

Mission

To create state of the art Rail transport infrastructure to meet the growing

demand.

Vision

To emerge as the most efficient provider of Rail infrastructure, with a

sound financial base and global construction practices, for timely

completion of projects.

Objectives

. To undertake and execute successfully project development,
financing and implementation of projects relating to infrastructure,
especially Railinfrastructure

. To mobilize financial and human resources for project
implementation;

o Timely execution of projects with least cost escalation;

o To maintain a cost effective organizational set up;

o To encourage public private participation in Rail related projects
managed by RVNL;

o To be an infrastructure Project Execution Company committed to
sustainable development and environment friendly construction
practices of Rail related projects in the country;

o To acquire, purchase, license, concession or assign Rail
infrastructure assets including contractual rights and obligation
with the approval of MoR whenever required.

Outlook

As per the MoU between RVNL and Ministry of Railways for the year

2015-16, RVNL has been assigned a target to achieve 261 km of

Doubling/third line and 210 km of Railway Electrification during the year.

Concerns

Over the past few years RVNL has been augmenting its organisational

capacity for project implementation and achieved a turnover of Rs. 3141

crore in 2014-15. The Company is in a position to further increase the

turnover, which however, will be dependent on the continued availability of
assured funding from the Ministry or directions with regard to raising of
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Extra Budgetary Resources. In the long term, as project development
requires a lead time of approximately 18 months, the Ministry will have to
consider the regular assigning of additional projects to RVNL for
execution so thatthe momentum of growth can be sustained.

Delays in land acquisition, finalization of plans by users, timely clearance
of permissions from other government departments (mainly Ministry of
Environment and Forests), law and order problems, and the continued
support from Ministry of Railways are main concern areas in project
execution.

Internal Control Systems

Effective internal control systems have been put in place for monitoring
the implementation of projects including periodic reviews of the physical
and financial progress, evaluation of efficiency of cost control measures
based oninputs of both the Technical and Finance Departments.

Reviews of the progress and nature of expenditure is regularly conducted
by the Finance and Accounts Department and reports thereon are
submitted to Management. Budgetary reviews are also conducted. A
system of internal audit by an external firm ensures the efficacy of control
systems and also submission of comments on the appropriateness of
incurrence of expenditure, and their accountal, by the Company. The
reports of the internal auditor are periodically reviewed by Audit
Committee of the Board of Directors and implementation of
recommendations are monitored. The Annual Accounts of the Company
are also subjectto scrutiny by the Statutory Auditor appointed by CAG and
Auditby CAG.

Human Resource Development and Industrial Relations

Rail Vikas Nigam Limited endeavors at enhancing the capabilities of the
organization in acquiring, developing, motivating and retaining its human
resources in an environment in which team work and cooperation among
employees contributes to the growth and well being of individual
employees as well as the organization as a whole. Emphasis is laid on
employees maintaining work life balance.

To strengthen its position, the Company has formed a nucleus of its own
permanent cadre through an Absorption Policy along with a Recruitment
& Promotion Policy as approved by the Board of Directors of RVNL.
Cautionary Statement

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report
describing the Company’s strengths, strategies, projection and estimates
are forward looking statements and progressive within the meaning of
applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may vary from those
expressed or implied, depending upon economic conditions, government
policies and other incidental factors. Readers are cautioned and not to
place undue reliance on the forward

looking statements.
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Annexure “B”

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1. The Company’s Corporate Governance Philosophy

At RVNL, Corporate Governance is not solely restricted to regulatory or
structural remedies. At your Company, it is a culture, which is based on
trusteeship, transparency, empowerment, accountability and corporate
ethics.

Your Company has always shown commitment towards its Code of
Corporate Governance, which is, “To act in accordance with the highest
standards of professional integrity, honesty, ethical conduct and to be
proficient, professional and profitable by upholding and promoting
transparency and accountability.”

RVNL has taken initiatives to strengthen the Corporate Governance
framework internally by implementing policies viz., Code of Conduct for
Board members and Senior Management and Whistle Blower Policy. To
attain the set goals and targets, your Company has been guided by the
following key values:

. Zealto attain excellence in performance;

. Toactasateam;

. Honesty and justice in dealings;

. Firm obedience to commitments undertaken;

. Timely completion of work;

. Respect for dignity and potential of individuals;

. Devotion and pride towards RVNL.

2. Board of Directors

The Board lays down the Company’s policies and procedures and
oversees their implementation to ensure attainment of the objectives of
the Company. The Board of Directors consists of experienced
professionals who constantly endeavour to set goals to align with the
Company’s Mission,

(i.e. “To create state of the art Rail transport infrastructure to meet the
growing demand”) and Vision, (i.e. “To emerge as the most efficient
provider of Rail infrastructure, with a sound financial base and global
construction practices, for timely completion of projects.)”

Your Company, being a Government Company, as defined under the
Companies Act, 2013, appointment/nomination of all the Directors is
done by President of India through Ministry of Railways. The Articles of
Association of your Gompany provides that the strength of the Board shall
not be less than three (3) Directors and not more than twelve (12). These
Directors may be either whole-time Directors or part-time Directors.

Composition of the Board:

The present strength of the Board of RVNL comprises of seven (7)
Directors. The composition of the Board includes five (5) whole-time
Directors including Chairman and Managing Director,and two (2)
Government Nominees (on behalf of Ministry of Railways) as (part-time)
(official) Director.

The age limit of Chairman and Managing Director and other whole-time
Directorsis 60 years.

The Chairman and Managing Director and other whole-time Directors are
appointed for a period of five years from the date of taking over of charge
or till the date of superannuation of the incumbent or till further orders
fromthe Government of India, whichever event occurs earlier.
Government Nominee Directors representing the Ministry of Railways,
Government of India, retire from the Board at the discretion of the
nominating authority or on their ceasing to be officials of the Ministry of
Railways.

Independent Directors are appointed by the Government of India, usually
foratenure of 3 years.
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The composition of the Board of RVNL during the year, along with Directorships and memberships/chairmanships in the Committees held by them is

reproducedinthe table below:

Directors on the Board of RVNL

S.No. | Category of Directors Name of Directors Number of Directorships/ Total No. of Committee
Chairmanships in public Memberships/
limited companies Chairmanships in public
excluding RVNL * limited companies
including RVNL#
As Chairman | As Member
(a) Whole-time Directors
1. Chairman and Mr. S.C. Agnihotri 1 Nil Nil
Managing Director {Chairman - HSRCIL}
2. Director (Finance) Mr. Ashok K. Ganju 1 Nil 3
{Director - HSCRIL}
3. Director (Operations) Mr. Mukul Jain 1 1 2
{Director - HSCRIL}
4. Director (Personnel) Ms. Gita Mishra Nil Nil 2
5. Director (Projects) Mr. Vijay Anand 1 Nil 2
{Director - HSCRIL}
(ii) Part-time (official ) Directors
6. Executive Director (Works) Mr. V. P Dudeja 3 Nil 2
Railway Board {Director-Pipavav Rly. Co. Ltd.}
(From 28.06.2013) {Director-Rail Infra. Structure}
{Director-Kutch Railway Co. Ltd.}
7. Executive Director (W&P) Mr. K. K. Aggarwal 3 Nil 4
Railway Board {Director-BMRCL}
(From 22.01.2014) {Director-KMRCL}
{Director-CMRL}
{Director-NCRTC)
8. Prof. (Dr.) S. S. Chatterji 1 Nil 3
(upto 12.5.2014) { Director — IRCON}
(Part-time) (non-official)
9. (Independent) Mr. R.S. Sharma 4 Nil 4
Directors (upto..10.06.2015.) {Director — CCPL}
{Director-ACPL}
{Director-Hinduja Leyland Fin. Ltd.}
{Director-Jubilant Energy}

* Does notinclude Directorships of Foreign Companies, Section 8 Companies and Private Limited Companies.

#  Membership/Chairmanship in the Audit Committee and Shareholders’ Grievance Committee have been considered for counting the number, as
prescribed under DPE’s Guidelines on Corporate Governance, 2010.

Notes:

1 Theterm “’whole time” indicates functional/ executive Directors (inthe whole time employment of the Company)
2 The term “part-time official” indicates the Directors nominated by Government (Ministry of Railways) on the Board of RVNL who are officials of the

Ministry of Railways.

3 The term “part-time non-official” indicates the Directors who are Independent and do not hold any office in the Government, and are appointed by

the Ministry of Railways.

4 The number of directorships held by Directors of the Company is within the limit stipulated under Companies Act, 2013.
5 The Directorships and Memberships/Chairmanships are based on the latest disclosure received.
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6 Directors are not per se related to each other and do not have any pecuniary relationship or transaction with the Company.
7 None of the Directors are member of more than 10 committees or Chairman of more than 5 committees as laid down in DPE’s guidelines on

Corporate Governance of May, 2010.
8 Fullnames of the referred companies:

i. HSRC —  High Speed Rail Corporation of India Limited;
i. BMRC —  Bangalore Metro Rail Corporation Limited,

ii. KMRCL -  Kolkata Metro Rail Corporation Limited

iv... NCRTC -  National Capital Region Transport Corporation
v. ~ CMRL —  Chennai Metro Rail Limited;

vi.  CCPL —  Corevalues Consulting (P) Lmited

vii.  ACPL —  Avendus Capital (P) Limited

3.  Board Meetings, Committee meetings and Procedures

a.  Scheduling and selection of agenda for Board/Committee meetings

. The meetings are convened by giving appropriate advance notice
after obtaining the approval of the Chairman of the Board/
Committee. Detailed agenda notes, along with other explanatory
statements, are circulated in advance among the members for
focused discussion and effective decision- making during the
meeting. When urgent issues need to be addressed, meetings are
called at shorter notice or resolutions are passed by circulation,
which are put up in the next meeting of the Board of Directors for
ratification.

. Wherever it is not practical to attach a document to the agenda
item, being confidential in nature, the same is tabled at the meeting
with approval of Chairman of the Board/Committee

. In special and exceptional circumstances, additional or
supplementary items are placed on table during the meeting

o The agenda papers are prepared by the concerned officials,
sponsored by the concerned Functional Director and approved by
the Chairman and Managing Director.

o Duly approved Agenda papers are circulated amongst the
members of the Board/Committee by the Company Secretary or
the convener of the Committee.

o The meetings are usually held at the Company’s registered office.

o The members of the Board have complete access to all information
of the Company. The Board is also, free to recommend any issue
thatitmay considerimportantforinclusion in the agenda.

o Presentations are made to the Board/Committee covering Finance,
Operations, Human Resources, Joint Venture operations,
wheneverrequired.

b.  Recording of minutes of the Board/Committee meeting

Minutes of the proceedings of each Board/Committee meetings are duly
recorded. Draft minutes are circulated amongst all members of the
Board/Committee for their suggestions and comments. The comments
received by the members are incorporated in the minutes, which are
finally approved by the Chairman of the Board/Committee. The finalized
minutes are entered in the Minutes Book. The minutes of the Board
meeting are confirmed in the next meeting. Minutes of the meetings of the
committees are included in the agenda of the Board meeting for
information of the Directors.

c. Compliance of laws

RVNL endeavours that all provisions of laws, rules and guidelines
applicable to it are complied with. To ensure the same, a duly signed
Statutory Compliance Certificate is obtained from all the Departments at
Corporate Office level and all the Project Implementing Units which is
consolidated by Company Secretary and put up to Board of Directors with
the signature of Chairman and Managing Director on an annual basis.

d.  Numberof Board meetings

As per the guidelines on Corporate Governance released by Department
of Public Enterprises in 2010, the Board meetings of RVNL are held within
aninterval of not more than 3 months.

During 1st April, 2014 to 31st March, 2015, the Company held five Board
meetings to transact business with one meeting in the quarter ending
June 2014, one meeting in quarter ending September 2014, one meeting
in quarter ending December 2014 and two meetings in quarter ending
March2015.

In all cases of absence of a Director, Leave of Absence was granted under
clause (b) of sub-section (1) of section 167 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Details of the dates of the meetings of Board of Directors of RVNL for the year under review are mentioned below:

66th meeting of Board of Directors

12th May, 2014

67th meeting of Board of Directors 15th July, 2014
68th meeting of Board of Directors 14th October, 2014
69th meeting of Board of Directors 13th January, 2015

70th meeting of Board of Directors

26th March, 2015
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The details of attendance of each Director in the Board meetings held during 2014-15 and in the last AGM are

mentioned below:
S.No Name & Status of Directors No. of Board meetings held Last
Held (during their Attended AGM
respective tenure) attended

1. Mr. S.C. Agnihotri 5 5 Yes
Chairman and Managing Director

2. Mr. Ved Prakash Dudeja, 5 3 Yes
ED (Works), Railway Board/ Director (official)
(from 28.06.2013 onwards)

3. Mr. K.K. Aggarwal, 5 5 Yes
ED (W&P), Railway Board/Director (official)
(from 22.01.2014 onwards )

4. Ms. Gita Mishra, 5 4 Yes
Director (Personnel)

5. Mr.Ashok K. Ganju, Director (Finance) 5 5 Yes

6. Mr. Mukul Jain, Director (Operations) 5 5 Yes

5. Mr. Vijay Anand, Director (Projects) 5 5 Yes

6. Prof. (Dr.) S. S. Chatterji, 1 1 No
Part-time (non-official) Director (upto 12.05.2014)

7. Mr .R. S. Sharma (upto 10.06.2015) 5 3 No
Part-time (non-official) Director

f. Disclosures by Directors

As per the disclosures made by Directors under section 184 of
Companies Act, 2013, no relationship exists between the directors inter-
se. The Government Nominee Directors are officials of Ministry of
Railways and thus related to the promoter.

Since, the entire paid-up share capital of RVNL is being held by Central
Government (Ministry of Railways), section 152 (6) and 160 of the
Companies Act, 2013, which requires not less than 2/3rd of the Directors
as persons whose office is liable to determination by retirement of
directors by rotation at a general meeting, are exempted to the Company
vide Notification no. [ENo.1/2/2014-CL.V]dated 5-6-2015 issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

The Company has notissued any prospectus or Letter of Offer.

4.  Committees of Board:

The Company has formed the following committees of Board of Directors
of RVNL:

. Audit Committee;

. Nomination & Remuneration Committee;

. Investment Committee;

. CSR Committee;

Research & Development Committee;

Audit Committee

Scope of the Committee :

The Committee acts in accordance with the Terms of Reference as
per Section 177 of Companies Act, 2013 and Guidelines of
Corporate Governance laid down by Department of Public
Enterprises in May, 2010. The scope of the Committeg is:

Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the
disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the financial
statementis correct, sufficient and credible.

Recommending to the Board the fixation of audit fees.

Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services
rendered by the statutory auditors.

Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements
before submission to the Board for approval, with particular
reference to:

Matters required to be included in the Directors "Responsibility
Statement” to be included in the Board’s report under section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013;
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Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons
forthe same;

Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the
exercise of judgment by management;

Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising
out of audit findings;

Compliance with legal requirements relating to financial
statements;

Disclosure of any related party transactions; and
Qualifications inthe draft audit report.

Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial
statements before submission to the Board for approval.

Reviewing, with the management, performance of internal auditors
and adequacy of the internal control systems.

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including
the structure of the internal audit department, staffing and seniority
of the official heading the department, reporting structure,
coverage and frequency of internal audit.

Discussion with internal auditors and/or auditors any significant
findings and follow up there on.

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal
auditors/auditors/agencies into matters where there is suspected
fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a
material nature and reporting the matterto the Board.

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences,
about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit
discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to
the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-
payment of declared dividends) and creditors.
Toreview the functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism.

To review the follow up action on the audit observations of the
C&AG audit.

To review the follow up action taken on the recommendations of
Committee on Public Undertaking (COPU) of the Parliament.

Provide an open avenue of communication between the statutory
auditor, internal auditor and the Board of Directors.

Review all related party transactions in the company. For this
purpose, the Audit Committee may designate a member who shall
be responsible for reviewing related party transactions.

Review with the statutory auditor the co-ordination of audit efforts
to assure completeness of coverage, reduction of redundant
efforts, and the effective use of all audit resources.

Consider and review the following with the Statutory auditor and the
management:

The adequacy of internal controls including computerized
information system controls and security, and
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. Related findings and recommendations of the Statutory Auditor
and Internal Auditor, together with the management response.

. Consider and review the following with the management, internal
auditors and the Statutory auditor:

. Significant findings during the year, including the status of previous
auditrecommendations

J Any difficulties encountered during audit work including any
restrictions onthe activities oraccess to required information.

. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is

necessary;

J Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management
systems;

U Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and
related matters.

»  Composition of the Committee

The Company has in place an Audit Committee of the Board of Directors
pursuant to Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Guidelines
on Corporate Governance issued by the Department of Public Enterprises
in May, 2010. The Committee is reconstituted as and when there has been
change in the Independent or part time Directors of the Company. In
absence of nomination of Independent Directors from the Administrative
Ministry, the composition of the Committee as on the date of report is as
under:

Name of the Director Status
Mr. Mukul Jain, Chairman
Director (Operations)

Mr. K K Aggarwal, Member
Part-time official Director

Mr. Anjum Pervez, Part-time official Director Member

Director (Finance) is a permanent invitee for the meetings of the Audit
Committee.

The meetings are also attended by senior officials of F&A Department,
head/representative of the Internal Auditor and Statutory Auditors as
Special Invitees. Company Secretary is the Secretary to the Committee.

»  Meetings and Attendance of the Committee:

Inaccordance with the guidelines released by Department of Public
Enterprises on Corporate Governance, the meetings of Audit
Committee were held in an interval of less than four months. The
Committee met four times during the financial year 2014-15,i.e. on
12th May 2014, 15th July 2014, 11th November, 2014, 13th
January, 2015 and 26th March, 2015. The details of the attendance
of each member are mentioned below:
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Name of the Member with Status Meetings held during their Attendance
respective tenure
Dr. S. S. Chatterji, Chairman (since retired) 1 1
Mr. Mukul Jain, Member 5 5
Mr. R. S. Sharma, Member (since retired) 5 4
Mr. V.P. Dudeja, Member 5 1

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Scope of the Committee:

The Remuneration Committee has been constituted pursuant to clause
5.1 of the guidelines on Corporate Governance issued by Department of
Public Enterprises, to decide the annual bonus/PRP pay pool and policy
for its distribution as per the recommendations of 2nd IDA Pay Revision
Committee. The nomenclature of the Committee was changed to
“Nomination and Remuneration Committee” pursuant to section 178 (1)
of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company being a Government
Company is exempted from compliance of the provisions of section
178(2)/(3)/(4) vide Notification no. F.No.1/2/2014-CL.V dated 5-6-2015
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

Composition of the Committee:

In accordance with the DPE’s guidelines on Corporate Governance
released in May 2010, the Committee was constituted with an
Independent Director as Chairman. As per Section 178(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall
constitute of three or more non-executive Directors out of which not less
tnan one half shall be independent directors. In absence of nomination of
Independent directors by the Administrative Ministry ,after the retirement
of Mr. R.S. Sharma as independent Director, the composition of the
Committee as on the date of the reportis as under:

Mr. S. C. Agnihotri, Chairman and Managing Director and Ms Gita Mishra,
Director Personnel are permanent invitees for the meetings of the
Committee.

Mr. Ajay Kumar, GGM (HR) is Secretary to the Committee.
Meetings and Attendance during the year:

One meeting of the Committee was held during the financial year 2014-15
and it was attended by all the members.

Details of remuneration paid to Directors of RUNL during 2014-15
. Part-time official (Government nominee) Directors

The part-time official (Government nominee) Directors on the
Board of the Company do not draw any remuneration.
They only draw regular remuneration from the Government of India
(Ministry of Railways) as Government officials.

. Sitting fee to Part-time non- official independent Directors

The part-time non-official (Independent) Directors on the Board of
the Company are paid a sitting fee of 12,000/- for attending
Board/Committee meetings.

(Figures in %)

Name of the Director Status Sitting Fees _

Mr. K K Aggarwal , Member S. | Name of the Board Committee

Part Time Official Director No. | Director Meeting Meeting Total

Mr. Anjum Pervez Member 1. | Dr.S.S. Chatterji 12000 24000 36000

Part Time Official Director

Mr. A K Ganju, Member 2. | Mr.R.S. Sharma 36000 84000 120000

Director Finance(without voting rights) Total 48000 108000 156000
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Remuneration of whole-time Directors for financial year 2014-15
S. | Name of Directors Salary Lease/ Per- Performance Retirement Bonus/ Stock Total
No. Licence | quisites | Related Pay/ Benefit Ex-gratia options
Fees) Ex-Gratia (EPF or FSC)
Payment
1. | Sh. S.C.Agnihotri 2757581 | 750000 | 136018 2198100 264313 -- -- 6106012
Chairman and
Managing Director
2. | Sh. Ashok K.Ganju 2482187 | 600000 | 105251 1461240 238070 - - 4886748
Director(Finance)
3. | Smt. Gita Mishra 2590692 -- 130295 1542420 247332 -- -- 4510739
Director (Personnel)
4. | Sh. Mukul Jain 2465405 | 600000 | 144401 1468110 235360 -- -- 4913276
Director (Operations)
5. | Sh. Vijay Anand 2395118 - 108505 1432260 229587 -- - 4165470
Director (Projects)
Total 12690983 | 1950000 | 624470 8102130 1214662 - - 24582245

Investment Commitiee
Scope of the Committee

In accordance with DPE guidelines, the Investment Committee of RVNL
has been constituted to take investment decisions for short-term
deployment of surplus funds as per financial delegation(s) of power for
this purpose. The decision taken by the Committee is put up to the Board
of Directors of RVNL regularly for information.

Composition of Committee

The Committee consists of Chairman & Managing Director, Director
Finance and Director (Operations). Ms. Meenu Dang, GM (F) is Member
Secretary to the Committee.

Meetings and attendance of the Committee

The meetings of the committee are held generally on weekly basis or as
and whenrequired, and are attended by all the members.

Research & Development Committee

Scope of the Committee

The Committee has been constituted by the Board of Directors of RVNL in
accordance with the guidelines of Department of Public Enterprises
(DPE) on 24.10.2011. The Committee has been constituted to monitor
the progress of implementation of Research & Development, and system
improvement initiatives in RVNL.

Composition of Committee: The composition of the Committee on the date of the report is as under:

Name of the Director Status
Mr. K. K. Aggarwal, Part-time official Director Member
Mr. Vijay Anand, Director (Projects) Member
Mrs Gita Mishra, Director (Personnel) Member
Mr. Ashok K. Ganju, Director (Finance) Member
Mr. Mukul Jain, Director (Operations) Member
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Mr. S.K. Dhiman, ED/Projects is Secretary to the Committee.
Meetings and attendance of the Committee
During the financial year 2014-15, the Committee had one meeting on 15.07.2014. The details of attendance are mentioned below:

Name of the Member with Status Meetings held during their Attendance
respective tenure
Mr. R. S. Sharma, Chairman 1 1

Mr. Vijay Anand, Director (Projects)

Mrs Gita Mishra, Director (Personnel)

Mr. Ashok K Ganiju, Director (Finance)

Mr. Mukul Jain, Director (Operations)

Corporate Social Responsibilty Committee

The Committee on CSR and Sustainability was reconstituted pursuant to provisions of Section 135 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies Social Responsibility Rules, 2014 and the DPE Guidelines on CSR and Sustainability issued on 01.04.2014.

The scope of the CSR Committee is as under:

(@) formulate and recommend to the Board , a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by the
company specified in Schedule VII;

(b)  recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred onthe activities referred to in clause(a); and
(c)  monitorthe Corporate Social Responsibility Policy and programmes of the company from time to time.

As nomination of Independent Directors by the Administrative Ministry on the Board of the company is pending, the existing composition of the
Committee as on the date of the reportis as under:

Name of the Director Status

Mrs. Gita Mishra, Director (Personnel) Member & Convenor
Mr. Ashok K. Ganju, Director (Finance) Member

Mr. Vijay Anand, Director (Projects) Member

Mr. K. K. Aggarwal, Part-Time Official Director Member

Meetings and attendance of the Committee

During the financial year 2014-15, the Committee had three meetings on 22.08.2014, 20.11.2014 and 26.03.2015. The details of attendance are
mentioned below:

Name of the Member with Status Meetings held during their Attendance
respective tenure

Mr. R. S. Sharma, Chairman 3 1

Mr. Vijay Anand, Director (Projects) 3 3

Mrs Gita Mishra, Director (Personnel) 3 3

Mr. Ashok K Ganiju, Director (Finance) 3 3

75



@ faerm fom fafies
Rail Vikas Nigam Limited

/q

NIRYURP Rreraa afifa

B 7 IRYRS AR BT 167 72N faa @ aifs Q) uew 2R goi vt HaTerd iR g9a i & a2

TEMROT 96

feell 9 a1 ATRIRTT 37 U JATATIRYT 431 1 TRIE, FHY, WA 3R g4 IR fhY 7Y {2 Hehed! 3T @RT FFER &

qy Tolilgd /gofigs| aig Ty TR gRd faviy Gheu
2014—15 TR SOIUH | 29.04.2014 1100 991 | AT PeT, Yo WaT | S B, SIRAUAUSA Bl Bl YT heiN—1
Rerfy e R areger o1 wifdaar o
gRaae guie @ fory enfddmer 3ifh
TaIRIeeE & Gened & forg wue
SR, 2013 BT &RT 14 & AT Ub
eIy ey T fohar T o |
2013—14 ERIIRE) 10.09.2014 1200 991 | AT ®eT, YT wad | et
2012—13 Tqdl 18.09.2013 1200 99 | AT ®eT, NoT W | e
2011—12 it 21.09.2012 1600 g9 | Ay ®er, Yo wad | e}
a1 a9 @Y arffe AR d8d B 7 Al Th IUHH [T §RT HRUNS AT TR g,
SINEC] 22 Ry, 2015 2010 # SRy feenfrdert or sruTer fasam & | HU=T 200708
R 1230 T 3 319+ A eraT & RUE § PRURE IRI 3R YaerH a%n_‘q’\’
EJIE] AT ®er (HFRT . 237), fgd de, Xl 9ad, RATE oiIR fargetsor RAte 2 EAW@?'F{ 2 i
= Freei_110001 ST 10.09.2014 ) ST oA P affer AR
) Jod ¥ sreger & oy U 9y § f gelRfq gar e |
ETI® BT

BS Wie Y HRURYHE 3% sfear fafies, Yo faer s
fafics @1 100 wfterd qof w@ifdca drell Werid U T |
ATSTG SUYPHH fA9TT §RT BRURE A TR A, 2010 H SR
feenfden & 3ream 6 ® dad 9 ERIE Huial B e faar
7 B T <8R/ faer wufy sifesT wusl & 20 ufderd &
FH 2| g T wie Y HRURYE offe gfear fafice @t
TR / gt a9 2014—15 & R Y fawr o
forfice (Bifee™ ®wu) & c+aivR a1 faet ufky @ 20 wfererd |
ITferp 21 o sHfery B8 wits Yo dRURTH i 3f$ar feorfics
AdSife SUHH faurT & SWRied feenfadet & dgd \RRe
UL TEl ofl | ST HEG HUHl A e UTae Yo fadrd
o forfiee o= @) =18t 2 | 9exere, Yo e e fafies &
HERIE U, BTE WS Yol HRARYE 3% gfear fafacs @ 91
% BT HRIGT g XA fderd i fafics & e dsa &
A TR AT R |
Ubed
HU-T A Tl a1 Bu H w9fad R W arel $HB
HafeRl (@Ul SIfSfM, 2013 @1 GRT 188 & ATl H
el 7 AfdaTd w9 W Udbed fbar ®) & T BIg
HeqUl Wafed Ut oii—ad T8l fhar g |
o R fosd) wifafdre uiRier) 7 Ao &= asf & SkE
fPRIT BT BT SUTAT &l DR D BROT DIy AT T8
SRR |

76

HUT BT O a9 2013—14 & SR DI ey e ure
TE g R |
e faera far fifies @ o ekl § Sfde fy v e
Jfafafer o G 1 aRarsTRi ® freres & oy ey v
3R 3 IRITSTHT 2 & e & |
eI Hed IR IS AfdTd g Fa81 fhaT a1 Bdel SHh!
BlsHR il dfdared i@l & w9 Fygfad @1 odl &
IR E |
=i =3l @ o | el g & Uierd & w9 H YRS
3R BT AT BT @RI — 9§ & SR, ol HATAT 7 Vel
faera o fafics & o S ®I JAaaTd 9911 © |
Y faen fm fafies & weafee @t & aided &
Rigidl @1 afderor AMfd gRT srgalad fear e g1
2014—15 ¥ @1 2 YRITHIP @ BT 3.53 UFIRI o |
JMUPHT BUAI 1 N HATAT IR ATASIh SUHH faMET D1
iR 1 & HidR HRURE 2 IR RUTE TRgd aR ST & |
HUH F BRI FH B AULTT | b SIIRGH Teer
afdfy &1 7o fhar 8 | Affy & a9 789 § fAad ? &k
[T BT RBIRET R SiaRTe R Feers Hsa a1 udd
CaRSISIE

MNEa /Auwan  gRT y=HOTIH

Fere Asel B uRgd far 1 o1 v, 1. e, oreuet aiiR

gdy e e £ arie 6. vy, Fevrs (<) grr fafdad w5




Shareholders’ Grievance Committee

O
EUEENTEIC

BB ~AnnuvAL REPORT
B 2014-2015

The Company has not constituted a Shareholders Grievance Committee as the entire-paid up share capital is held by Ministry of Railways and its

nominees.
General Body Meetings

The details relating to date, time, venue and the Special Resolutions passed at the last three Annual General Meetings and Exira Ordinary General meeting

of the Company are placed below:

Year AGM/EGM Date Time Venue Special Resolution passed
2014-15 3rd EGM 29.04.2014 1100 hrs. Committee Room, Yes, a special resolution was passed
Rail Bhawan u/s 14 of the Companies Act, 2013 for
alteration of Articles of Associations to
reflect change in Powers of Chairman
on grant of Miniratna Category-I status
to RVNL.
2013-14 11th 10.09.2014 1200 hrs Committee Room, No
Rail Bhawan
2012-13 10th 18.09.2013 1200 hrs Committee Room, No
Rail Bhawan
2011-12 9th 21.09.2012 1600 hrs Committee Room, No
Rail Bhawan

Annual General Meeting of current year

Date  : 22" September, 2015
Time : 1230hrs
Venue Committee Room (Room No. 237), 2nd Floor, Rail Bhawan,

New Delhi-110001

Subsidiary Company

High Speed Rail Corporation of India Limited is a 100% wholly owned

subsidiary company of RVNL. Chapter 6 of the guidelines issued by

Department of Public Enterprises in May 2010 on Corporate Governance

covers only those subsidiaries, whose turnover or net worth is not less

than 20% of the turnover/networth of the Holding Company. Since, the
turnover / networth of HSRCIL did not exceed 20% of the turnover or net

worth of RVNL (Holding company) during 2014-15, HSRCIL is not a

‘subsidiary’ under the above-mentioned DPE‘s guidelines. Therefore,

provisions relating to subsidiary companies are not applicable to RVNL.

However, the minutes of the Board meetings of HSRCIL, subsidiary of

RVNL are invariably placed before the Board of Directors of RVNL.

Disclosures

- The Company has not entered into any significant related party
transactions with the Directors or their relatives (Disclosure made
by Directors individually pursuant to section 188 of Companies
Act, 2013) having potential interest with the Company at large.

- The Company has not been imposed a penalty by any statutory
authority owing to non-compliance under any law, during the last
three years.

- The Company has complied with the guidelines on Corporate
Governance issued by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE)

released in May 2010. RVNL has been including a Report on
Corporate Governance and Management Discussion and Analysis
Report in its Directors Report since 2007-08. The compliance to
these Guidelines was also reflected in the Chairman’s speech
delivered at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company held
on10.9.2014.

- The Company has not received any Presidential directive during the
financial year 2014-15.

- All items of expenditure debited in the Books of Accounts of RVNL
are for the purpose of project execution entrusted to RVNL and are
related to project expenditure.

- There are no personal expenses incurred for the Board of Directors
except which are as per terms of appointment as contractual
obligations.

- Details of Administrative and office expenses as a percentage of
total expenses vis-a-vis financial expenses — During the year,
Ministry of Railways has rationalised the revenue stream of RVNL.
The principles of allocation of administrative expenses in RVNL are
approved by the Audit Committee.  The percentage of
administrative expenses to total turnover was 3.53in 2014-15.

- Your Company has filed the report on Corporate Governance with
the Ministry of Railways and Department of Public Enterprises in
the stipulated time.

- The Company has set up a Risk Management Committee under the
chairmanship of a Functional Director. The Committee meets on a
quarterly basis and the recommendations of the Committee are put
up to Board of Directors at regular intervals.
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CEOQ/CFO Certification

The certificate duly signed by Mr. S.C. Agnihotri, Chairman and Managing

Director {CEO} and Mr. Ashok K. Ganiju, Director (Finance) {CFQ}, as

presented to Board of Directors, is annexed as Annexure "B-1" to the

report.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics as prepared in accordance with

the guidelines on Corporate Governance released by Department of

Public Enterprises is posted on the website of the Company,

www.rvnl.org.

The Compliance of the Code of Conduct has been affirmed on the basis of

confirmation received from all the Board members and senior

management personnel for the financial year 2014-15. A declaration to

this effect, duly signed by the Chairman and Managing Director is placed

atAnnexure "B-2” and forms part of this report.

Rating on Corporate Governance by Department of Public Enterprises

Department of Public Enterprises has rated RVNL as “Excellent” under the

category of Corporate Governance during 2013-14. On the basis of self

evaluation of achievement of sector specific targets in the MoU, it is

expectedthat RVNL will achieve an “Excellent” rating for 2014-15 also.

Means of Communication

The audited annual financial results and Annual Report are displayed on

RVNLs website, www.rvnl.org. Tenders of various departments, details

of tenders/contracts awarded, physical and financial Plan of RVNL along

with other official news releases are also uploaded on the website of RVNL

andthe Gentral Public Procurement Portal of Government of India ..

The policies and plans framed under Corporate Governance, viz., Code of

Business Conduct and Whistle Blower Policy are placed on the

Company’s website. The information uploaded on the website of RVNL is

updated from time to time according to the information provided. A Hindi

Version of the website is also available.

Shareholders’ Information

1. The Company’s Financial Yearis from 1st April to 31st March.

2. Payment of Dividend: Dividend when declared is paid within 5 days
of declaration.

3. Distribution of shareholding

Category No. of % of share
shares held holding

Central Government 2085020100 100

(Ministry of Railways) in

the name of President of

India and its nominees

Total 2085020100 100

Transfer of shares is normally technical in nature from one Government
nominee shareholder to another upon change inincumbency, as the entire
paid-up share capital of the Company is held by Government of India
(Ministry of Railways). To effect the transfer, Company Secretary has
been authorized and no transfer is pending.
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4.  Plantlocations/Operating units

RVNL does not have plant locations or operating units but has its Project
Implementing Units in more than fifteen states across the Country. Alist of
the units has been mentioned in the Report.

5.  Informationto Shareholders

Apart from the Annual Reports which are sent to shareholders before the
Annual General Meeting, the periodical information(s) on the physical and
financial progress of the Company are regularly submitted to Ministry of
Railways, the sole shareholder of RVNL.

6. AuditQualifications

The Company has been putting all efforts towards ensuring a regime of
unqualified financial statements and there have been no significant
qualifications.

7.  Training of Board Members

In this regard, pursuant to clause 3.7 of the guidelines released by
Department of Public Enterprises on Corporate Governance, the
Company has framed a Training Policy for Board of Directors of RVNL,
duly approved by the Board of Directors. The Policy is also posted on the
Company’s website, www.rvnl.org.

RVNL also takes initiatives to train its Board members about RVNL's

profile, business parameters, etc. All the relevant issues and significant
developments related to the working of RVNL are imparted to part-time
Directors {(official) and (non-official), as the case may be} by the
management of RVNL from time to time. The documents related to the
Company including Annual Reports, Memorandum and Articles of
Association, MoU between RVNL and Ministry of Railways etc are
provided to them as per requirement.

Director(s) are nominated on training programmes organized by DPE &
SCOPE fromtime to time.

8.  Whistle Blower Policy

RVNL, being a Government Company under Ministry of Railways, is
covered by the Chief Vigilance Commission (CVC) and as per CVC
guidelines, amechanism is established for all its employees and clients to
report on any unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud to the CVO or
the Chairman and Managing Director directly. However, to encourage
best Corporate Governance practices within the Company, a Whistle-
blower Policy of RVNL has been prepared and after approval of the Board
of Directors, is placed on the Company’s website, www.rvnl.org.

No employee has been denied access to the Audit Committee of the Board
of Directors.

Compliance Certificate

A Certificate obtained from a Practicing Company Secretary regarding
compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance in accordance
with the guidelines issued by Department of Public Enterprises has been
included as Annexure "B-3"to the Report.
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Annexure “B-1”

Declaration by Chairman and Managing Director regarding compliance with the Code of Conduct by Board Members and Senior Management for
the Financial Year 2014-15

I, S.C. Agnihotri, Chairman and Managing Director, Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, do hereby declare that all the members of the Board of Directors and the
Senior Management team of the Company have affirmed their compliance with the Code of Conduct and key values of the Company during 2014-15.

Sd.-
Place: New Delhi (S.C. Agnihotri)
Date: 22.5.2015 Chairman and Managing Director
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Annexure “B-2”
Chairman and Managing Director and Finance Head Certification

We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the financial year 2014-15 and to the best of our knowledge and belief:

= — —~ <
= O S —

These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards,
applicable laws and regulations.
There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are illegal or violative of the
Company’s code of conduct.
We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of
the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting. We have disclosed, to the auditors and the Audit Committee,
deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take or rectify
these deficiencies.
We have discussed with the auditors and the Audit Committee
Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year.
Significant changes in accounting policies during the year, and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and
There was no instance of significant fraud of which we are not aware nor there has been involvement of management or an employee having
significant role in the Company’s under internal control system over financial reporting.
Sd/- Sd/-
S.C. Agnihotri Ashok K. Ganju
Chairman and Managing Director Director Finance/CFO

Place: New Delhi
Date: 3.8.2015

83



@ faerm fom fafies
ﬂ Rail Vikas Nigam Limited

) ) el -3
faIT HAR Us HU
HU-l gfaq
A Ty faT |aR
UHq. BIY. UHhHITH, Tel.Uel dl
343, 35T U, el ek 10—11, AT IIOIR, AoThiG, s faoeil—110043
AIETge Ha%: 09212477250, 8800497844

vkaneja2001@gmail.com,fcsvinod@gmail. com
WA WTaT GRAT:0120002100742799, JTSUBUH HIS PUNB0O152200

YT YHTOTaH
DiUfke oo & d4g 9 grdee Sed e grr o) fRen—fadet @) waf @ sgar

Har ¥,

HEET,

et faem foma fafacs,

I T, SR Shifel A, HIehToll BT i,
3R, &. Y=, 7Tg faeeil—110066

T8 YATOTIH HIUIRE AR IR BT bl HaT H JeAT Sfeelad, 31 A1, 2015 DI A g9 & g U fA=H, 2013 & T8 el [dPbrd
o fafiics, U IREN SU= gRT Aol e fIuTT §RT 14 78, 2010 BT SIRT HURT AR & 2! & JUTer & AT H 2 |

FUA & IS Heel gRT AFANT HIURT IR &1 RS BT &A1 337 IR (o7 2 | $0 HaeT H Tl 2 URdd DUl §RT 7 TQ
e RepTS IR TSI B 1 89 19 R ol &

PIUNE ATAT DI ! BT TS HRAT Tae BT STRATIE © | SANI Sd bael DIUNS AT DI 2Tl BT ST GIed PR & o1y
BT GIRT JAUATE TTg UTHATRIT 3R ST BRATIT BT AHIE T &1 I 2T | PUA o [a<i f4aR0T OR 7 A7 I8 DIy ol Wer 8 3R 7
Bl fa=ri &1 srfireafa |

&9 I8 fewfl &=al & o Ut SguTere 7 A1 Sl & WTdl AR & Uil Pl ST & 3R 7 &1 Ul B P12 HATT T YT BT SrdT
BT 2, FoTAd |12l yder = Ui @ by fhu g |

TR IR # &R g9 Qof TR & STER, T TR §RT &1 7T FHE & MR W AR & U &) T8 I iR WA} &
AR, B THIOTT B & o U 1 8 UHR A HIURET A IR U o Hidr H Fo SfearlRad Hiuive emas ot saRert smensii &1
T fra 7 |

a1 HAR TS HU)

ERRIRSIEE]
;8 faeeh B/ —
fe&i®: 02.05.2015 Ay faie |aR

(A1, 5740 UBHITH 5740)

84



O
EUECIRIEIC

BB ~AnnuvAL REPORT
B 2014-2015

Annexure “B-3”
VINOD KUMAR & CO.
Company Secretaries
CS Vinod Kumar
M.Com, FCS, LL.B.
#343, Ajay Park, STREET NO. 10-11, NAYA BAZAR, NAJAFGARH NEW DELHI-110043
CELL NO. 9212477250. 8800497844
vkaneja2001@gmail.com,fcsvinod@gmail. com
PNB ACCOUNT NUMBER 0120002100742799, IFS CODE : PUNB0152200
PAN :- AGEPA2325G

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE

WITH THE CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH GUIDELINES ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ISSUED BY
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC ENTERPRISES

To

The Members of

RAIL VIKAS NIGAM LIMIT ED

1* Floor, August Krant i Bhawan, Bhikaji Cama Place,
R.K. Puram, New Delhi-I 10066

The Certificate is in respect of the Compliance of the conditions of corporate governance as issued by the Department of Public Enterprises on 14" May
2010, RAIL VIKAS NIGAM LIMITED, a Government Company under the Companies Act, 2013, for the year ended 31* March, 2015, as stipulated in the
Company's code on corporate governance.

We have studied the Report on Corporate Governance of the said Company as approved by its Board of Directors. We have also examined the relevant
records and documents maintained by the Company and furnished to us for our review in this regard.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to a review of procedures
and implementation thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an
expression of opinion on the financial statement of the Company.

We comment that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effect iveness with which the
Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and on the basis of our review and according to the information and explanations given to us, we certify
that the Company has complied with the mandatory requirements of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Company' s code of corporate governance in
all material respects.

FOR VINOD KUMAR & CO.
COMPANY SECRETARIES
Places: New Delhi Sd/-
Dated: 02.05.2015 CS VINOD KUMAR
(CP 5740 FCS 5740)
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Annexure “C”

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Report

CSR Policy

In accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
guidelines issued by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), RVNL has
formulated its CSR Policy duly approved by the Board of Directors (BoD)
of RVNL in October 2014. The CSR policy has been uploaded on RVNL's
website:

http://www.rvnl.org/content.php?id=8

Aims & objectives

CSR and Sustainability activities are being implemented to meet the
following broad objectives underlined in the Policy:

. Implementation in project/ program mode
. Focus on periphery of project areas of RVNL
. Thrustareas of education & health care

. nclusive growth of society with emphasis on development of
weaker sections of society and in the backward districts of the
country

Strategic partners

RVNL entered into a MoU on 11.12.2014 with Tata Institute of Social
Sciences, Mumbai (TISS) for a period of three years (FY 2015-18) to
provide necessary support in implementation of CSR activities of RVNL.
The MoU signed earlier with TISS was valid up to FY 2014-15.

RVNL is utilizing the services of NCSR Hub empanelled NGOs, specialized
external agencies: TISS, TERI, Ramakrishna Mission etc for baseline
surveys, needs assessment studies, preparation of project reports,
project implementation, monitoring, evaluation, audit and social impact
assessment studies apart from involvement of the field level Committees
for close monitoring, evaluation and feedback.

Reporting & disclosures

A comprehensive report on CSR & Sustainability activities of RVNL has
been made inthe 11" Annual Report of RVNL for the year 2013-14. Also,
with effect from 15.04.2013, a separate heading of CSR & Sustainability
has been created on RVNLs website hitp://www.rvnl.org and all
information related to CSR & Sustainability is being uploaded on the
website on regular basis.

Organizational structure

As per the approved CSR Policy, RVNL has put in place a two tier
organizational structure to steer the CSR agenda of RVNL:

Tier | Structure

I CSR Committee of the Board
Comprises four Directors including one
Independent Director

I CSR Committee PIU Level
(at the field level)
Headed by Chief Project Manager (CPM) of Project

Implementation Units (PIU)

CSR Committee of the Board

The CSR Committee of the Board comprises the following members as
on the date of the report:

1. Mr KK Aggarwal,Part-Time Official Director Member

2. Mrs. Gita Mishra, Director Personnel, Member

3. Mr Ashok K. Ganiju, Director Finance, Member

4. Mr Vijay Anand, Director Projects, Member

The Committee is assisted by Executive Director (Mech) who is the Nodal
Officer forimplementation of CSR in RVNL.

Committee meetings

During the year 2014-15, the CSR Committee of the Board held three
meetings on22.08.2014,20.11.2014 and 26.03.2015.

Budget & expenditure

During the financial year 2014-15, %4.54 Crore has been spent on CSR &
Sustainability activities, which is 2.83% of average net profit made during
the three immediately preceding financial years.

2011-12| 2012-13 | 2013-14 | 2014-15

Expenditure (Zin crore) 1.65 3.84 5.27 | 4.54

% of average net profit 2.47 4.39 437 | 2.83
(PBT) of three preceding

financial years

Out of the total CSR & Sustainability expenditure of ¥4.54 Crore for the
year 2014-15, 96% expenditure is on CSR projects and balance 4%
expenditure is due to professional charges made to NCSR Hub (TISS).

CSR projects

Status on the various CSR & Sustainability projects being implemented
during the year 2014-15is briefly discussed hereunder.
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(1) CSR project “Education & development of under privileged
differently abled children” is being implemented in the backward District
of South 24 Paraganas in the state of West Bengal.

The CSR project is being implemented by the Institute for the
Handicapped and Backward People (IHBP), Kolkata at a total cost of
%1.04 crore for a period of four years (FY 2012-16). ¥32 lakhs was spent
inthe year2014-15.
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W % of average net profit (PBT) of three
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IHBP, a NCSR Hub empanelled NGO, is dedicated to the cause of
education and development of underprivileged differently abled children.
The CSR project is in the vicinity of Joka-BBD Bagh new metro line
construction project of RVNL being executed by PIU Kolkata.

The project report was prepared by IHBP and approval of NCSR Hub was
received on 29.2.2012. The project was sanctioned by the RVNL CSR
Committee on 6.3.2012 and the project commenced on 1.4.2012.
Project monitoring is being done by Tier-1l Kolkata PIU CSR Committee.
One hundred under privileged differently abled children having three types
of disabilities, namely, 55 hearing impaired children (21 boys & 34 girls),
28 mentally challenged children (17 boys & 11 girls) and 17 children with
cerebral palsy (14 boys & 3 girls) have been covered in the project.
Education and development of these children are being done under the
close supervision of well qualified and trained teachers with student to
teacher ratio of 10:1 for hearing impaired, 6:1 for mentally challenged, 3:1
for cerebral palsy and dedicated support staff.

Children have been provided with school uniforms, books, stationary,
educational kits, medical aid and nutritious meal. From the feedback
obtained from parents, it is seen that parents are satisfied with the
progress of the children and these children have immensely benefited
with overallimprovement in education, awareness and comprehension.
Extract of Mid-Term Social Audit Report of NCSR Hub (TISS) February
2015

‘At present IHBP is providing quality education and training to differently
abled children of underprivileged backward and weaker section of the
society. Under this CSR initiative of RVNL, IHBP is giving quality service
towards the differently abled children and society in general.”
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This type of CSR initiative is special in nature as compared to other types
of programs because RVNL is directly associated in sponsoring the
complete education, training and health support to 100 differently abled
childrenin a special school.

According to the head of IHBP, they are totally dependent on RVNL for the
financial support as they are the only long term investor to the institute
and majority of activities are done with the help of RVNL. The project is for
socially and economically backward section of society which increases
theimportance of the project.

(2) CSR project “Providing educational support to under privileged
children & health support” is being implemented in the backward District
of South 24 Paraganas in the state of West Bengal and covers a population
of about 85,000 people comprising 20% SC, 15% ST and 56% from the
minority community in three Gram Panchayats of Bhangar Block
comprising 52 villages. The CSR project is being implemented by
Ramakrishna Math, Naora for a total project cost of ¥3.85 Crore for a
period of six years (FY 2012-18).3 68.74 lakhs has been spentinthe year
2014-15.

The GSR project is in the vicinity of Joka-BBD Bagh new metro line
construction project of RVNL being executed by PIU Kolkata. Approval of
CSR project was received from NCSR Hub on 19.06.2012. The project
was sanctioned by the RVNL CSR Committee on 22.08.2012 and the
project commenced on 01.10.2012. Project monitoring is being done by
Tier-1l Kolkata PIU CSR Committee.

Four hundred under privileged children (50% boys & 50% girls; 70%
SC/ST, 10% OBC & 20% minority community) are given free coaching
classes, physical training, sports, yoga training etc for 6 days in a week
for overall development of the children at three centers- Naora, Behulabari
& Mulchutki. These children are provided with uniforms, school bags,
books, stationary, nutritious meal etc. From the feedback obtained from
parents, it is seen that parents are extremely satisfied with the overall
development of the children.

Health support is provided by a team of qualified doctors and medical
staff and covers periodic health check up at six centers (Naora,
Behulabari, Malampota, Chandaneswar, Dogerpar & Rajendrapur) along
with free medicine.

Medical treatment facilities for Dental, ENT, Ophthalmology, as well as
pathological tests & homeopathy have been set up at Naora center.
Medical service is also rendered through mobile medical van and health
awareness camps.

During the year 2014-15, an average of 2,160 patients per month were
treated. Needy people from the villages have immensely benefited from
the health support provided to them.

Extract of Mid-Term Social Audit Report of NCSR Hub (TISS) February
2015

‘At present RKM, Naora is imparting quality education for overall
development and growth of 400 children belonging to underprivileged,
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backward, SC & ST communities in the backward District under CSR
initiative of RVNL.”

As recommended in previous report, Mission has started working on new
programs such as computer literacy and English spoken classes. In the
current study both these programs have been found working and
providing benefits to the beneficiaries.

The teachers taking the tuition classes follow the same course pattern as
followed in the school. Aimost all the students have reported that the
coaching classes have been very useful for the children to understand the
subject and perform well. The nutritious food which is provided to the
children is prepared by a group of local women. With this it can be
concluded thatthe community is also involved in the process.

RKM is also providing free medical check-up, free medicines to the
underprivileged people of three gram panchayats of Bhangar-I & Canning-
I blocks in the backward district of South 24 Paraganas, West Bengal by
establishing six health centers in various places.

Qualified Doctors and Para medical assistants/ nurses are looking after all
these health centers. There is a great zeal and enthusiasm amongst the
deprived and underprivileged people towards the CSR project.

It cannot be denied that the services Math provides will go a long way in
contributing to better health conditions in this area. For these long
deprived communities, the health camps are a boon, as the nearest
private hospitals are very far away. It has made these people come out of
their houses and recognize the importance of a doctor’s diagnosis.

When the NCSR Hub Team visited the clinics and interacted with the
people, it was found that the mobile clinics are functioning well and are
providing health services to the people.

The audit team noted that RVNL has been a very co-operating and
supporting partner in this CSR project through close monitoring,
periodical visits, and interactions and follow up. In view of very positive
feedback and impact the program has generated among the stakeholders,
the audit team is of the opinion that RVNL should continue this CSR
project for the betterment of the underprivileged children and people in the
backward district and should continue this project for its sustainability on
thelongrun”.

(3) CSR project “Providing health support facilities to the under
privileged people” from the backward districts in the state of
Uttarakhand is being implemented by Ramakrishna Mission Sevashrama,
Kankhal for a total project cost of ¥5 Crore for a period of three years
(2013-16).% 2.25 Crore has been spentin the year 2014-15.

The GSR project is in the vicinity of Rishikesh Karnaprayag new line
construction project of RVNL being executed by PIU Rishikesh. The CSR
project was sanctioned by the Board Level Committee on 26.11.2013
based on project report prepared by TISS and the project commenced on
25.12.2013. Project monitoring is being done by Tier-Il Rishikesh PIU
CSR Committee.
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Ramakrishna Mission Sevashrama Hospital, Kankhal is a 150 bedded
multi-specialty charitable hospital founded in 1901 to cater to the medical
needs of this region. Due to non-availability of hospital/ medical facilities,
the under privileged people from backward Districts of Pauri Garhwal,
Tehri Garhwal, Chamoli, Champawat and Pithoragarh are availing the
privilege of medical facilities of this hospital in addition to the people of
Haridwar District. The CSR project envisages augmentation of health
support facilities at its hospital, Kankhal in order to meet the increasing
patientload.

The CSR projectinvolves construction of 4th and 5th floors in the existing
OPD Building. The proposed 4th floor will have a fully equipped operation
theatres complex and 5th floor will have fully furnished 50 bedded post
operative care ward which will augment the capacity of hospital from 150
to 200 beds, facilitate in handling additional surgeries and the post
operative care unit will resolve the issue of transferring surgical cases to
adjacent building.

Extract of Mid-Term Social Audit Report by NCSR Hub (TISS)
December 2014

“The RK Mission at Kankhal is working for the betterment of society & is
working on a major issue that is health. Providing health facilities to the
society at minimum cost is a matter of high investments, so for that RVNL
is a supporting element in providing health facilities to the public.

The medical facilities at Haridwar is an major issue as it is an tourist place
and people from all over India visit it every day. RK Mission with the
support of RVNL is addressing the issue in a very effective manner which
is leading to minimizing of health problems among the people”.

(4) Sustainability project of “Providing solar home lighting system” has
been successfully implemented in 350 households in the backward
District of South 24 Paraganas & Mursidabad in the state of West Bengal.
The project has been implemented by TERI at a total cost of ¥34.24 lakhs
in the year 2014-15. Ramakrishna Math, Naora is the monitoring and
sustainability partner for this project. Out of the project cost, an amount of
%6 lakhs has been paid to Ramakrishna Math, Naora as sustainability
fund. Out of total 350 households, solar home lighting system was
provided in 50 households in Bhangar-l and Ganning-Il blocks of South 24
Paraganas District and 300 households in Jalangi block of Mursidabad
District.

During the year 2014-15, 500 households were covered in Bhangar-l and
Canning-Il blocks. Solar home lighting system comprises 2W+2W LED
lamps for households.

Extract of Mid-Term Social Audit Report of NCSR Hub (TISS) February
2015

“Solar home lighting systems has successfully installed by TERI in 350
households belonging to the underprivileged and weaker sections of
society in Bhangar-1 & Canning-ll Blocks in the Backward District of South
24 Paraganas & Jalangi block of backward District of Mursidabad, West
Bengal under CSR & Sustainability project of RVNL.
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This project has proved to be a great boon to school going children who
used to study under kerosene lamps. In view of positive impact and
demand the stakeholders, the audit team is of the opinion that RVNL
should identify more such households and continue the project in the year
2015-16".

(5) Sustainability project “Providing 19 toilet blocks in 15 Government
schools” under “Swachh Bharat- Swachh Vidyalaya” initiative has been
successfully implemented in the backward District of South 24 Paraganas
inthe state of West Bengal.

The project has been implemented by Ramakrishna Math, Naora for a total
projectcostof T30 lakhs inthe year2014-15.

Out of 19 toilet blocks, 15 toilet blocks (9 units for girls & 6 units for boys)
in 12 schools in Bhangar-1 block and 4 toilet blocks (2 units for girls & 2
units for boys) in 3 schools in Canning-Il block with water arrangement,
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hand wash etc have been provided. The project was monitored by Tier-Il
Kolkata PIU CSR Committee.

Extract of Mid-Term Social Audit Report of NCSR Hub (TISS) February
2015

“Under Swachh Vidyalaya- Swachh Bharat Mission, RVNLs CSR initiative
for providing toilet blocks with water facilities in schools in Bhangar-I &
Canning—Il blocks in the backward District of South 24 Paraganas is very
positive and stakeholders are very useful with the implementation of
such hygienic point of view.

The toilet blocks which are constructed in the schools have used good
quality of material and are well furnished. The children responded very
positively for the construction of toilets and, especially girl students
responded that previously there were problems of sanitation, now it is
solved”.

93



@ faerm fom fafies
ﬂ Rail Vikas Nigam Limited

Hrogemr wfafaferr w affe Ruid
(eRURe G™fSe < fifa e,
2014 & 9 8(1) & IIUR)

®. ¥. | °S SECICE]

1. gReTSHIel sterar g% fpu | RAC 7 FavdR & @ T =@l SR Heford dafeid wasd Smvdigger o
ST e BRIHE a) Ter | 999ISE WX SUeel 2 hitp;//www.rvnl.org/content.php?id=8

|fed YA & HivdeR | 1. BUAl, AfAFRM, 2013 P GRT 135 & AR 14.10.2014 Pl

AT &1 dfera g &R SIS 68l d3%b & DRIGT D Ha AT 55 /14 & d8d

Aoy Aifa vd JIRATAVA & 53h Hesdd gRT ITHIad AIUHIR A 3Tdeay,
URATSTAIRT 37qa] BTRIHH 2014
EIEEARCZERIER 2. 11122014 BT SMSTHTA & T THARI

3. TTHIUHRIR 84 gIRT dY 2014—15 & folU SRS H HIUHIR
RIS &I qeATafel ArHoe o dr qRien Rure

4. UTHIVHIR 89 (SI3MSUNTH) RT 99 2014—15 & oIy HIUHRIR
Ud GO &1 HeATdie] AMioTe kgl uRien Rare

2. ATERMR AT & G¥ar | Rue # fadr & & 73 g4t iR Hefod Jafeie ded SRAIUAUS &l
dedTse WX UG & hitp://www.rvnl.org/content.php?id=8:
1) 9$ @ AUFR AT BT T3

3. |fUBar dF awl & fau qs & qd a3 H
We’ za(a,—\;q ; % ;‘q)m s 2011-12 1,19,32,79,364

2012-13 1,67,46,19,735
2013-14 1,95,17,21,555
siad 1,60,65,40,218

4 R TR & (SWRIFT AT #3 @ SR NI &7 2 ufiem) 73,21,30,804

5 oI a¥ 2014—15 & SRF HITHRIR &3 &I RT

(@) foig 99 & o < &) S arell &l T T4,54,47,097

@) | vy, Il o1 g ar FE T

@ | fo<fg af & <RE @ & WD B AR 9 R T R

94




O
EUECIRIEIC

BB ~AnnuvAL REPORT
B 2014-2015

Annual Report on CSR Activities
(as per Rule 8(1) of the Companies Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy Rules, 2014)

S.No. | ltem Compliance

1. A brief outline of the RVNLS | Discussed in detail in the Report and related web-link references are
CSR policy, including | available on RVNL's web-site: http://www.rvnl.org/content.php?id=8

overview of Projects or |4y cop pojicy October 2014 approved by BoD of RVNL vide ltem No
programs - proposed to  be 55/14 of Minutes of 68th Meeting held on 14.10.2014 as per Section
undertaken and a reference to 135 of the Companies Act 2013

the web-link to the CSR policy _
2) Mol with TISS dated 11.12.2014

and projects or programs
3) Mid Term Social Audit Report of CSR Project in Uttarakhand for the year
2014-15 by NCSR Hub (TISS)

4)  Mid Term Social Audit Report of CSR & Sustainability Projects for the
year 2014-15 by NCSR Hub (TISS)

2. The composition of the CSR Discussed in detail in the Report and related web-link references are available

Committee on RVNLs web-site: http://www.rvnl.org/content.php?id=8:
1)  Constitution of CSR Committee of the Board
3. Average net profit (Profit Year Profit Before Tax in ¥
Before Tax) of RVNL for last
three financial years 201112 1.19.32.79.364
2012-13 1,67,46,19,735
2013-14 1,95,17,21,555
Average 1,60,65,40,218
4 Prescribed CSR expenditure (2% of the amount as in item #3 above) $3,21,30,804
5 Details of CSR spent during the financial year 2014-15
(a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year 34,54,47,097
(b) Amount unspent, if any Nil
(c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below
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Details of expenditure on CSR & Sustainability
during the financial year 2014-15
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No.| CSR Project or Activity | Sector in Project or Program | Amount Outlay| Amount Spent | Cumm Amount Spent:
identified which local Area, State, Project or on project or | Expenditure| Director or

project is District where program wise | program - (1) | upto the through
covered project was Direct (2) reporting Implementing
undertaken overheads period agency

M@ 3) &) ) (6) (7 (8)

1 |Education & Development| Education Backward District of | 3,203,920 3,203,920 (1) | 8,171,108 | Institute for the
of under priviledged South 24 paragans Handicapped &
differently abled children (West bengal) Backward People,

Kolkata

2 |Educational Supportto | Education & Backward District of | 6,873,878 6,873,878 (1) | 14,821,166 | Ramkrishna Math,
under proviledged children Health Care South 24 paragans Naora
& Health support (West bengal)

3 | Providing solar home Environmental | Backward District of | 3,141,825 3,141,825 (1) | 3,141,825 | TERI, New Delhi &
lighting system Sustainability | South 24 paragans Ramkrishna Math,

(West bengal) Naora

4 | Providing health Health Care backward District of | 22,500,000 |22,500,000(1) | 27,500,000 | Ramkrishna Mission
support to the under Uttarakhand Serashrama, Kankhal
priviledged people

5 | Providing toilet blocks Swachh Bharat | Backward District of | 3,000,000 3,000,000 (1) | 3,000,000 | Ramkrishna Math,
in school Mission South 24 paragans Naora

(West bengal)

6 |Balance payment for Education Backward district of | 4,564,174 4,564,174 (1) | 42,277,974 | Ramkrishna Mission
completed CSR project narayanpur Ashrama, Narayanpur
"Hostel Facilities for (Chhatisgarh)

Tribal Boys"

7 | Balance payment for Environmental | Backward District of | 333,300 333,300 (1) | 3,933,000 | TERI, New Delhi
completed Sustainability | Sustainability | South 24 paragans
Project "Solar (West bengal)

Home Lighting"

8 | Professional charges to 1830,000 1830,000 (2) Tata Insitute of Social
NCSR Hub (TISS) Science, Mumbai
Total 45,447,097 | 45,447,097

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Responsibility Statement of the Corporate Social Responsibility of the Board of Directors of the Company is reproduced below:

“The implementation and monitoring of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the
Company”.

Sd/-
R.S. Sharma

(Chairman, CSR Committee)
Date: 26.03.2015

Sd/-

S.C. Agnihotri
(Chairman and Managing Director)
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HU afrg (o wfea)
T—105, IR 3MUTCHT,

e 19, 3Ms. W1, TaIee, faeeil—110092,
BIH:22725714, AIETSS: 9811940854
g5e; blaujasc@rediffmail.com

BTH Fa¥ YHIR—3
wfafas d@r e
31 91, 2015 &I 9HT 99 & forg

(@it arferfrm, 2013 @Y gRT (204) (1) SN (gD H1ffHT 1 FYfea vd wRsfe) R, 2014 @
fra dear 9 @ Irgura )

T ¥,

NI,

e famra fm fafacs,
75 e |

BT HAH N fard o fAtfics (94 ST 511 S U=l 8T T 8) §RT AN Aifdfde aemi & SJJuTer 3R d8aR BIUNe Yghdl
S UTe B! AfIfaS TE—uRie o) o © | Wifde de—uie 59 A | §u= 31 78 2, R 89 $raRe srif / [ifafde srgdrer ar
oA B 3R § UR U AT e HR] B oI SUYa MR FaaT HvTy & |

B BT IFRT, BT, BRIGT YADT, BT 3R BT BT T fIaRof MR HUH R I O 32 370 RBTS, S & 2T HRIY TY MR HU,
D APIRAL, Goiel AR Aferdd TTRrHTRAT §IRT Alefdd oI uRiel & SR el PR1S g Gl BT o9 & AR TR 89 feof d=a
2 & SRR I HUT A 31 |19, 2015 BT FAIG TN DI AT B SR i@l W 7 599 1 g 7Y |ifdfSes uraemi &1 rgure fdar
3R I8 N 6 FUN & U 39 119l B S RUITET & el ST a1 UM 3R SguTer Jomed ¢ |

B forRad i rEl & Taem=l & SIAR 3197, 2015 BT FH 99 & o #9991 vl [dar e ferfics (“auil) RT3l T8
IR, BTG, HRIGT GRaD], B Td wTge ol T8 faaxolt ok o Raref & S aw o 2 |

. U arfaferam, 2013 @fAfFH) ok S dgd §=1e Y s
Il ufoeifar <ifaer () sifdfras, 1956 (THRARIRY) 3iR SH& d&d §91Y 1Y a9, a8
. eTamTR ST, 1996 IR IHa dgd a=1g 7Y fA=™ 3iR Iu—Fw; |y 181

IV, fac=l gaT uded Sifaferad, 1999 ofR el ycaer (e, SRS Ucuer fFder U ared AT 0T &1 Wl a6 SHa e a91g
Y 1M iR fafrm; e a8

V. 9RG ufonfa ve fafeme 91 erfdifrm, 1992 (it srfeifeesT”) & dea feiiRa feaforRaa faffrm ofk feenferder, ey
(@) R afenfar iR fafe a1S (IRRT &1 Tt S1feRTgvT 3iiR Sahaias), faf =, 2011;

(@) R aferfar siiR fafe 918 (e o ) fafsem, 1992;

(M R uferyfar siR fafeer a1 (4ol ffa QiR uadianeoT amierd) fafer=m, 2009;

@) R uferfa siik faf 91 (e et fadhe Ao iR FHHan i @i arorn) faenfder, 1999;

(€) Wi ufergfar oiR fafeer 9 (FoT ufengfar et iR gfreg @) fafas, 2008;

@) W aforfa oik R a1 (Frfa siik 2R exaiarer gole @ forg IRRER) faffas, 1993, wush i oiR el @ wrer
TS R B AT H;

98



O
EUEENTEIC

BB ~AnnuvAL REPORT

[ 2014-2015
Annexure “D”
S.C. Baluja rcs. S.C Baluja & Associates
Company Secretary (Company Secretaries)

A-105, Tarang Apartment,

Plot 19, I.P. Extension, Delhi - 110092,
Phone : 22725714, Mobile : 9811940854
E-mail : balujasc@rediffmail.com

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule no. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014j

To

The Members,

M/s Rail Vikas Nigam Limited,
New Delhi

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s Rail
Vikas Nigam Limited (hereinafter called the "Company"). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company as made
available to us and also the information provided by the Company, its officers , agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, we hereby reportthatin our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 20 15 complied with
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in
the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter :

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by M/s Rail Vikas Nigam Limited ("the
Company") for the financial year ended on March 31,2015 according to the provisions of:

() TheCompanies Act, 20 13 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
ii)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘'SCRA') and the rules made thereunder; Not Applicable
i) TheDepositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; Not Applicable

iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas
Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; Not Applicable

(v)  Thefollowing Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act"):- Not Applicable

(@)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b)  The Securities and Exchange Board ofIndia (Prohibition ofInsider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

(c)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

(d)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee StockPurchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

(e)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

()  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act

and dealing with client;
() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and

99



Rail Vikas Nigam Limited

ﬂ @ fawma o fafes

®) W uforfar &fik fafma 9 (sfaadt et @1 feforRe) fafas, 20090 &iR

(@) W ufoRgfer &R fafem 9 (ufengfodl &1 aroi—werie), fafram, 1998 |

VI B9 A & U & ol SiuRe o W e,

VI e wfas (i, Suam yarare sifefers, SRl sy 19T STefrad, [ATH AoteR! SHEIaH, FoTeN] YT ffefraH, a4
AT ST, AT Sfahrer AffraH, SAreifie fdare sifafem, MR eyl sftfm, e s [tk v FRisor
AT MR SURTET AT & Ted 57 fITT §RT FHI—FHT TR SIRI 1 T8 A=Y (SN o1 fafr=1 aRarsrm sarsar
A yAoTYA YT gU @, Fo oo fHar = @ 6 uRAe T sl @ Wdd § 9 sigurer fde g @ s
YATTYAT & MR W fewforr &Y € F) |

& fferRad & AR el & srgurer @ +ff o7id &R ot &

i, RA B A G g1 afafde Ae SN 6y T E (et udter safyr o fov siftrgfua ) feg o 2, safeg |
9T afdy & farg i R g 9 F)

i, B gRT T YaRTS (YaRTeiat) are fonar T g awsiin, afe o] &, @Ry e |

i 9IS 3R o gdEr afifa & GxEan o e @) 9fify 1 aried ik uiRsfie su siftiEm, 2013 & yTgEET @
ITEY TE © AP U & U IUS dIs 4 Wdd (e gaia &= 4 78 € | $9d (P W@d o Fes 84 &
PR WA QD] BT doH &l DI Sl DI |
FRBRY U B & A, HUN & el o1 FIfRR Yot 736 g1 31 9l 2 |

i. PUN A GG GHeu g1 WNTHIAR AT &1 T fHar 2 |

&9 78 ff fewoht e © o

BT B Faed Hed H SRS fFael, IR—BRiTds Faere! ok wdd Mozl &1 Sfd dgad T8l 3@ 731 8, rid BRe1 Hus!

@ a1 # wdd Fewe! o e W T8 2 | e o & SRM feve ded @) wead § 9eara fear war g, a1 e @

UTaITHI & TR febar T3 |

T (<Dl BI 41 @1 d8@ SMATNTT -1 & fo 9aTe AIfed g MY, Tofer @ik goiel R ARy Al &9 | &9 AN a7 Ugel 3ol 3ol

MY Y, 98& A U8 Yorel df 7al TR M FaT IR TRIHROT 71T iR U die a1 o # 7afed wrfiert & forg Ried Aigg 2 |

Jodi & ol FaawIfa I TIRT BT T, o HRIGT & 9T & WU 3 ) AT 31 JRISFRT aTell I Tof 8] B 7T |

IMHR SR gRATEAT & ST T gonferdi iR gfham Aiv[E € |

&4 g Al fewoll oxd € b orar ullel orafdy & SR, BIg fARie ver / Sridre! el g8, e Hux afid S, i, fafm,

feenfAeen, Al anfe & Sgurer™ H HU & HAHell IR Y9Td UST 8l HIR HUHT Bl 311 A1 U= 1™, 2013 & Uae=l & SFER0T H

ST TSI T Yo X &1 ARl © |

Pd .l e Us gEifige
HUT Afaa
B/ —
gL oSl
U Afaa
ARIE: 27.08.2015 THATTH—2721
o A8 faoel) Ad—7475
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(h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;
(vi)  Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises;

(vii) Employee Provident Fund Act, Payment of Gratuity Act, Employee State Insurance Act, Minimum Wages Act, Payment of Wages Act, Payment of
Bonus Act, Weekly Holiday Act, Industrial Disputes Act, Workmen Compensation Act, Contract Labour Regulation & Abolition Act and notifications
issued by labour department from time to time under above acts (The Company has provided the certificates from different project units stating
that all the compliances in respect of project workers are being made. Thus, the observations have been given on the basis of the
certificates)

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

()  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. (Not notified for this audit period, hence, not applicable to the
Company during the audit period)

(i) TheListing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s), if applicable; Not Applicable

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.
mentioned above subject to the following observations under the provisions ofthe Acts as stated above:

(i)  The composition of the Board, Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee ofthe Company is not in accordance with
the provisions ofthe Companies Act, 2013 as the Company does not have adequate number of independent directors on its Board. On
account of having one independent director, a meeting of independent directors has not been convened.

The company being a government company, the directors are appointed by the Ministry of Railways.
(ii)  The Company has formed the CSR committee by circular resolution.
We further reportthat

The Board of Directors of the Company is not duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent
Directors as the Company has does not have adequate number of independent directors on its Board. The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors thattook place during the ' period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent atleast seven days in advance
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

The decisions inthe meetings were passed unanimously hence, no dissenting members' views was required to be recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, there wre no specific events / actions having a major bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the
above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above but still the Company needs to restructure its management to be in
compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

For S.C. Baluja & Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-
S.C. Baluja
Company Secretary
Date: 27.08.2015 FCS - 2721
Place : New Delhi CP- 7475
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Rail Vikas Nigam Limited

aﬂw ..g”

BT .

THSIET 9

qritfe faavoft &1 9R

31.03.2015 Bl 99T 99 & ferQ

U AffRH, 2013 B GRT 92(3) 3R HUA (UdEA vd vImHA) B, 2014 @ FREAW 12 (1) @ sgured d

gofieer 3R 3= faavon:

i RIS IENG] U74999DL2003G0I118633

ii TONROT B TR 24.01.2003

i | ®uHA B AH X fawra e fafics

iv | ®u B o/ Sg—Sof RGN HIHT

v | doNed Srferd @ udr iR 6 faaReT UUH T, 3T il wad, WHToll ST @I,
3R, B. Y=, 718 fdeel—110066

vi | @ ae g @ IRTATEE

vii | IRTRER 3R wR Tole, afe ®1g &1, &1 9, I

TaT 3R Wud faavor

FUN & Y Fau deeft drfwany

PUA & Bl THIATIR H 10 TRTEIT AT 37eH HT LG B dlel T AT Haell BRIGAT

P. | =g STl /qaei & IdTE /|aT BT SN D FA AR

. | A @R faaxor TS Blis &1 gfera

1| o g @ G Bl SIS dTel eI @ TRy 501 100%

AE@yUl Yol THTT IR U HUG AT BT |

N eRar, e su-l X agalfl sufral & faawo

. | U BT A9 AR gaT Wargee / sfigaes gTRAT / T8I SHEGIRIEI RS KIU

kif U /FgarhY | (gs< ol @) ERT
EET BT %)

1 | oo Yo s foifice U45202DL2004PLC124267 | wedrfl wuit 50% | ®RT 2(6)

2 | %9 TR YAd HU for. U45203DL2006PLC155511 Tt U 35.46% | ©IRT 2(6)

3 | FOMUCT Yad Hu ferfics U45200TG2006PLC051378 Tgarft o 30% | oRT 2(6)

4 gﬁmvg? IR Yord dusl fafics U452030R2006PLC008959 RERIRICE] 35.23% ¢RT 2(6)

5 | siel gfbar e fafics U452030R2009PLC010620 | <reanfi ot 34.42% | 1 2(6)

6 | BE WS Y praRyH 8w gfear fafics| U45204DL2012G01239289 NERECRGI] 100% | &I_T 2(87)
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Annexure “E”

FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on financial year ended on 31.03.2015

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & Administration ) Rules, 2014.

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

i CIN U74999DL2003G0I118633
ii Registration Date 24.01.2003

iii Name of the Company RAIL VIKAS NIGAM LIMITED
iv | Category/Sub-category of the Company GOVERNMENT COMPANY

Address of the Registered office &
contact details

1st Floor, August Kranti Bhawan,
Bhikaji Cama Place, R.K. Puram, New Delhi-110066.

Vi

Whether listed company

Unlisted

Vii

Name , Address & contact details
of the Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any.

N.A.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated

SL | Name & Description of NIC Code of the % to total turnover of the
No.| main products/services Product /service company
1 To create vital rail infrastructure and provide vital 501 100%

port linkage including the corridors connecting

the port of Hinterlands
Il PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
S| | Name & Address of the Company HOLDING/ % OF SHARES APPLICABLE
No. SUBSIDIARY/ HELD(OF PAID SECTION

ASSOCIATE UP CAPITAL)
1 Kutch Railway Company Limited U45202DL2004PLC124267 Associate 50% Section 2(6)
2 | Bharuch Dahej Railway Company Ltd. U45203DL2006PLC155511 Associate 35.46% Section 2(6)
3 | Krishnapatnam Railway Company Ltd. U45200TG2006PLC051378 Associate 30% Section 2(6)
4 | Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company Ltd. U452030R2006PLC008959 Associate 35.23% Section 2(6)
5 | Angul Sukinda Railway Limited U452030R2009PLC010620 Associate 34.42% Section 2(6)
6 | High Speed Rail Corporation of India Ltd. U45204DL2012G0I239289 Subsidiary 100% Section 2(87)
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(i) Category-wise Shareholding
IV eReRar ded (o sfdadt @ ufaea & w9 4 sf@Ed dwr gsht a1 =ik

JIREIRDI PI
sofy

o @ URT A gIiRkd IR BT EEAr

af @ IFd A gIlRa AT BT EEAT

a8 & TR dqdd
S ada

e

GIRGIEED

IS

B AT
T %

e

GIRIEED

Sirs

el AN
BT %

&. gHICR

(1) weira

®) Yhel / TIIRH

)b g ANDR T XY AXDR

2085020100

2085020100

100%

2085020100

2085020100

100%

AR T8l

RIVEE]

1) FURE FH

) d% / Tharg

3) B 3=

3) sits: (#) (1)

2085020100

2085020100

100%

2085020100

2085020100

100%

AT T

(2) faceh

%) THSARSATS—Thel

@) 3 Yha Afdd

) HIURe FHrT

|) 4% / TharTS

) BIS ...

s @) @)

0

0

0

0

yHIeY B g
FIREIRET (&)=
(@)(1)+(®)(2)

2085020100

2085020100

100%

2085020100

2085020100

100%

. ardvifre FaRemRar

(1) "=

®) YA BS

@) 9%/ THATE

Sy wits (@)(1):

(2) AR—z~am=

%) BIRe e

i) R

if) fae=f

W) Thel

)1 g T qH B AHAT
BT IR Yol @ drer
THel IRRUREG

i) 1 A . A SIAF B
AT B TRR Yol 3T
qTel Uohel IRRERS

) IR (Iceld )

SY SIS (@)(2):

g grd®
IRREIRAT (@)=
(=) (1)+(=(2)

T. SNSRIR 9 TSR @
fore seeifsas g™
gRfy TR

G AT (F+T+T)

2085020100

2085020100

100%

2085020100

2085020100

100%

N.A.

N.A.
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Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

% change during

the year

Demat

Physical

Total

% of Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

% of Total
Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/HUF

b) Central Govt.or State Govt.

2085020100

2085020100

100%

2085020100

2085020100

100%

N.A.

N.A.

)
)
c) Bodies Corporates
d) Bank/Fl

e) Any other

SUB TOTAL:(A) (1)

2085020100

2085020100

100%

2085020100

2085020100

100%

N.A.

N.A.

(2) Foreign

a) NRI- Individuals

b) Other Individuals

c) Bodies Corp.

d) Banks/Fl

e) Any other...

SUB TOTAL (A) (2)

0

0

0

0

Total Shareholding
of Promoter (A)=
(A)(1)+(A)(2)

2085020100

2085020100

100%

2085020100

2085020100

100%

N.A.

B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

(1) Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks/Fl

C) Cenntral govt

-

d) State Govt.

<L =2

e) Venture Capital Fund

f) Insurance Companies

g) FIIS

h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others (specify)

SUB TOTAL (B)(1):

(2) Non Institutions

a) Bodies corporates

i) Indian

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share
capital upto Rs.1 lakhs

i) Individuals shareholders
holding nominal share capital
in excess of Rs. 1 lakhs

c) Others (specify)

SUB TOTAL (B)(2):

Total Public
Shareholding(B)=
(B)(1)+(B)(2)

C. Shares held by
Custodian for GDRs
& ADRs

Grand Total (A+B+C)

2085020100

2085020100

100%

2085020100

2085020100

100%

N.A.

N.A.
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®. | AWURS BT 4 aff @ yR" § a¥ & fd § ¥ & IR
kil SRR (01.04.2014 1) YARTRAT (31.03.2015 B1) raReTRar &
yfrera 9gdra

IR P DTN S B G WWRT A IR B PUN D Bl

T | WA BT | D FOTHRIE R |G DI BT WRT A 95

gfoera IR BT gferera PINNG FEOTHRIN

IRRT BT Ufrra
1 | 3rewer Nofd 91 & 2085020100 100 0 2085020100 100 0 0

g A R $ e

Easl 2085020100 100 0 2085020100 100 0 0

(iii) g B AWRARAT § 9qAG (PR P dSald T8l 3T 8 dl IdTQ)

¥ & gRY # srExgmRdar

a¥ (2014—15) & IR

h.
. (01.04.2014 @) SafY TrReETRar
IR DY HEAT HUN B IR B G B B
A U BT HA AR
RIGRIG Al IGRIG
9§ & IRy H 2085020100 100 2085020100 100
(01.04.2014 )
gfg HH & BRI (S 3MMacH 0 0 0 0
TRV /99 /g sfaadt
3M1fe) ®I T B gY 99 B
SR WHIeRT & AIRYTRAT #
ff—arR afg /w1
a9 & 3fq H 2085020100 100 2085020100 100
(31.03.2015 )

(iv) = 10 IRERST &1 REIRAT ded (FRea), yaied) iR SR 9 TSR aR$! & 37dran)

¥ & Fd ¥ IARenRdar

a4 (2014—15) & IR G

h.
. (31.03.2015 &) IrRRETRAr
i 10 ARaRST 7 | IR D FE&AT HY D IR B G B B
uAs @ fog HA U BT HA AR
gfaera &1 gfasra
1 9§ & Ry H 0 0 0 0
(01.04.2014)
2 |3fE & & BRI (G emTde 0 0 0 0
ERATORYT / 99 /g gfaacl
3Mfe) o1 W FRd gy 9N &
SR YATCRT &I IRReRar #
ff—ar gig /&
3 |9 & 3 H (@1 yud B Bl 0 0 0 0
TRIE I, 3FR 9§ & SR
9% U E )
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(ii) SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS
S. | Shareholders Name Shareholding at the beggining of Shareholding at the end of % change in share
No. the year(As on 01.04.2014) the year(As on 31.03.2015) holding during
the year
No. of shares % of total | % of shares pledged | No. of shares % of total % of shares
shares of the encumbered to shares of the pledged
company total shares company encumbered
to total shares
1 | President of India through | 2085020100 100 0 | 2085020100 100 0 0
Chairman Railway Board
Total 2085020100 100 0 | 2085020100 100 0 0
(iii) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' SHAREHOLDING ( SPECIFY IF THERE IS NO CHANGE)
S. Share holding at the beginning of the Year Cumulative Share holding during
No. (As on 01.04.2014) the year(2014-15)
No. of Shares % of total No of shares % of total
shares of shares of
the company the company
At the beginning of the year 2085020100 100 2085020100 100
(As on 01.04.2014)
Date wise increase/decrease in 0 0 0 0
Promoters Share holding during
the year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)
At the end of the year 2085020100 100 2085020100 100
(As on 31.03.2015)

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Direcors, Promoters & Holders of GDRs & ADRs)

S. Shareholding at the end of the year Cumulative Share holding during
No. (As on 01.04.2014) the year (2014-15)
For Each of the Top 10 No. of Shares % of total No of shares % of total
Shareholders shares of shares of
the company the company
1 At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0
(As on 01.04.2014)
2 Date wise increase/decrease in 0 0 0 0
Promoters Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)
3 | Atthe end of the year (or on the 0 0 0 0
date of separation, if separated
during the year)
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@ faerm fom fafies
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®. a¥ ® 3ia ¥ SraRenRar a9 (2014—15) & <IN GTA
. (31.03.2015 &I) rRETRar
IAF feea 3R DN ST MO Canifcy
STl & ferg P HE& HA AW BT I "= TA AR BT
gfaea RIGKG
1 9 B URH H 0 0 0 0
(01.04.2014)
2 |9f& N & RN (S arded 0 0 0 0
BTNV / 91 /g gfaadl
3Mf]) & WE Fxd gU a9 &
SR THIeRT &1 A=A #
faf—ar gfg /&
3 q9 P Ifd H 0 0 0 0
(31.03.2015)
V FIHR
IHIET AT /Jufad TR A @ fag g 98 afzd s &1 FomR
SRR wfgd | A—<wedl #&or | SRR I
ST 0T
fa<ha af @& gyRw
(01.04.2014 ®)) &
FOTHR
i) Het fer 0 21,174,000,002.00 21,174,000,002.00
ii) STST, ST <U ® AR 37T e fhar AT ' 0
iii) Sufed &I, AR <9 9§ 0 6,547,141,203.00 6,547,141,203.00
0
ST (i+ii+iii) 0 27,721,141,205.00 27,721,141,205.00
0
fo<hg af & <=
FOMR | gRad=
?ﬂ?&' 0 5,169,524,574.00 5,169,524,574.00
HH 0 -3,882,290,141.00 -3,882,290,141.00
U gRad= 0 1,287,234,433.00 1,287,234,433.00
fa<fra ot @ 3fa
(31.03.2015 ®I) ¥ TR
i) et IR 0 22,261,500,002.00 22,261,500,002.00
ii) STST, I 9 & AR 37T el fHAT T ' 0
jiiySufa =ITo1, TR < A8 8 0 6,746,875,636.00 6,746,875,636.00
SIS (i+ii+iii) 0 29,008,375,638.00 29,008,375,638.00
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(v) Shareholding of Directors & KMP

Sl Shareholding at the Cumulative Share holding during

No. end of the year the year
For Each of the No. of Shares % of total No of shares % of total
Directors & KMP shares of shares of

the company the company

1 At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0
(As on 01.04.2014)

2 Date wise increase/decrease in 0 0 0 0

Promoters Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)

3 At the end of the year 0 0 0 0
(As on 31.03.2015

V INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total Indebtedness
excluding deposits Loans
Indebtness at the beginning of
the financial year
(As on 01.04.2014)
i) Principal Amount 0 21,174,000,002.00 - 21,174,000,002.00
i) Interest due but not paid 0 -
iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 6,547,141,203.00 - 6,547,141,203.00
0
Total (i+ii-+iii) 0 27,721,141,205.00 - 27,721,141,205.00
0
Change in Indebtedness during
the financial year
Additions 0 5,169,524,574.00 - 5,169,524,574.00
Reduction 0 -3,882,290,141.00 - -3,882,290,141.00
Net Change 0 1,287,234,433.00 - 1,287,234,433.00
Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year(As on 31.03.2015)
i) Principal Amount 0 22,261,500,002.00 - 22,261,500,002.00
i) Interest due but not paid 0 - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 6,746,875,636.00 - 6,746,875,636.00
Total (i+ii-+iii) 0 29,008,375,638.00 - 29,008,375,638.00
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V FRemsl SR yqe ysgaia fteiial o1 uilksfies
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(@) MmIaR AT, 1961 BT
aRT 17(1) & It &
STTAR o

5,969,994.00

4,781,497.00

4,380,444.00

4,768,875.00

4,056,965.00

23,957,775.00

(@) 3mI Irferfrad, 1961 HT
eRT 17(2) T 9l & T8 9oy

136,018.00

105,251.00

130,295.00

144,401.00

108,505.00

624,470.00

(1) MR M, 1961 BT
gRT 17(3) & T&d Ia9 B
qqol o™

<P famed
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HHE

AT D % D BT H
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A, PR Jooid TN

Sis ()

6,106,012.00

4,886,748.00

4,510,739.00

4,913,276.00

4,165,470.00

24,582,245.00

9. 3= Rl &1 arRsfie:

D9,

uiRsifie &1 faavor

fRee & am

EEEREENEY

T U9 gt

IR TH T

ESININ

(@) dr AR BT JoD] H MAA B B T BT

36000

120000

156000

(@) e

00

(M) o, PUAT Ieoid PN

0

g (1)

0

I IR—prIITad FHeH

() 91 <IRfY 2 Yot ¥ TG 2N B forg BN

(@) wHrer

() 3T, PUAT Jeolkd B

Sis (2)

s (B)=(1+2)

0

0

ool ysEDBA aRHAAD

36000

120000
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110




Vi

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager:
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Sh:. Particulars of Remuneration Name of the MD/WTD/Manager Total Amount
[}
1 S C Agnihotri Ashok K Ganju Gita Mishra Mukul Jain Vijay Anand
(Chairman and (Director (Director (Director (Director Projects)
Gross salary Managing Director) Finance/CF0) Personnel) |  Operations)
(a) Salary as per provisions 5,969,994.00 4,781,497.00  |4,380,444.00 | 4,768,875.00 4,056,965.00 | 23,957,775.00
contained in section 17(1) of
the Income Tax. 1961.
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 136,018.00 105,251.00 130,295.00 |  144,401.00 108,505.00 624,470.00
of the Income tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under - - - - - -
section 17(3) of the Income
Tax Act, 1961
2 | Stock option - - - - - -
3 | Sweat Equity - - - - - -
4 | Commission - - - - - -
as % of profit - - - - - -
others (specify) - - - - - -
5 |Others, please specify - - - - - -
Total (A) 6,106,012.00 4,886,748.00  [4,510,739.00 | 4,913,276.00 4,165,470.00 |24,582,245.00
B. Remuneration to other directors:
SL.No | Particulars of Remuneration Name of the Directors
1 Independent Directors S S Chatterji R S Sharma Total Amount
(a) Fee for attending board committee meetings 36000 120000 156000
(b) Commission 0 0 0
(c ) Others, please specify 0 0 0
Total (1) 0 00
2 Other Non Executive Directors 0 0 0
(a) Fee for attending board committee meetings" 0 0 0
(b) Commission 0 0 0
(c) Others, please specify. 0 0 0
Total (2) 0 0 0
Total (B)=(1+2) 0 0 0
Total Managerial Remuneration 36000 120000 156000
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T TSl /UTHD / SR[CIS] 9 3R U Y A@GRAl &1 uriRsifie

+. 9. qiRsifie &1 faazer IS Y§ESRI e
1 qhel da Hgant ot wfaa g El
(@) MR AfAFTTH, 1961 B gRT 17(1) & 0 862,795 0 862,795.00
UGt & AR qaq
(@) R AT, 1961 @ GRT 17(2) B 0 0 0 0
¥l & d8d 96y
(M) 3mgax A, 1961 B URT 17(3) B 0 0 0 0
TEd dq9 & 9 a™
2 e e 0 0 0 0
3 wWe gfdad 0 0 0 0
4 ERINE] 0 0 0 0
D % B wTH 0 0 0 0
I (Ieerd o) 0 0 0 0
5 I, PR Ioo TN 0 0 0 0
s 0 862,795 0 862,795.00
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD
SI. No., Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
1 Gross Salary CEO Company Secretary CFO Total
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 0 862,795 0 862,795.00
section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961.
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the 0 0 0 0
Income Tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 0 0 0 0
17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option 0 0 0 0
3 Sweat Equity 0 0 0 0
4 Commission 0 0 0 0
as % of profit 0 0 0 0
others, specify 0 0 0 0
5 Others, please specify 0 0 0 0
Total 0 862,795 0 862,795.00
VIl PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPPOUNDING OF OFFENCES
Type Section of Brief Description Details of Penalty/ Authority Appeal made
the Companies Act Punishment/Compounding (RD/NCLT/Court) if any (give details)
fees imposed
A. COMPANY
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
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e faerd e ferfics 31 A€, 2015 @1 oI UF

faaxor feuofy
I sfeadt sk <rfrang
(1) IRuRST B fAferr
() TR ot 3
(@) RfET Td arferery 4
(2) sreeq @ fog @ifaq
TR AT GRIRT
(3) R—aTqy, <RIy 5
(@) <rd@rferd o
(@) 31 dreda@rferds For
() Sratafer yraer
(4) ey, <TRIATY 6
(F) ITUBIeTd FHOT
(@) @R & fog <3
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(&) TTgbIfeTed YTaer
Sits
Il. uRufrad
(1)iR—are], uRafRrat
(@) e uR<ufrn 7
(i)t aRfrr
(il)3rget TRwFafRmRI
(il o s aRwfR
(iv)faemrari= srgd aReufrat
(@) R—arq faer 8
(M IR—<ratafy Fw&r iR M 9
(@) 31 IR—are] uRHuferat 10
(2) ey, uRwaRRRat
(@) =Te], aRATSHT B 11
(@) IR gy 12
(M) B iR g S Al 13
(&) gBIeld 7o AR A 14
(®) e & & fog fim 15
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SIS
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R (?)

2085,02,01,000
_993,84,26.907

2052,90,83,335
461,06,25,063
5.08,10,375

9571,12,66,477
44,96,65,543
929,04,14,975
75,48,97,616

57,622,668
259,820
14,244,837
16,575,496
595,10,74,110
465,38,74,527
498,46,38,611

11564,75,73,252
190,92,06,553
1290,98,55,316
264,67,25,107
864,15,69,683
752,171,313

31.03.2014 B AY

1 3 38 fewfor faxig faarort & siafifea vmr 8
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IR.B. IJTAT .. ftasi=h
WER areger IR wey e
M. No. 081510 DIN : 01637856
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DIN : 01970462

P (3) I3 (3) <P (%)
2085,02,01,000
2678,86,27,907 452,94,46,169 2537,96,47,169
1953,15,00,002
437,47,77,714
2519,05,18,774 3,55,87.891 2394,18,65,607
7099,28,96,801
52,83,96,938
866,94,66,825
10620,62,44,610 59,70,05,065 8078,77,65,629
15818,53,91,291 13010,92,78,405
6,93,67,843
81,896
1,28,52,369
75,27,894
486,76,73,250
444,64,79,216
1567,82,90,069 478,43,69,903 1418,83,52,371
9276,90,40,121
62,52,44,095
1228,84,93,300
258,04,26,951
709,61,38,411
14250,71,01,223 561,583,156 11592,09,26.034
15818,53,91,291 13010,92,78,405
NS @ fore vd S Ak &
B/ — g/ —
IS P. o] Boul gd
e faa FHo e
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2015

Particulars

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholders’ Funds
(a) Share Capital
(b) Reserves and Surplus
(2)Share Application Money
Pending Allotment
(3)Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long-Term Borrowings
(b) Other Long Term Liabilities
(c) Long-Term Provisions
(4)Current Liabilities
(a) Short Term Borrowings
(b) Trade Payables
(c) Other Current Liabilities
(d) Short-Term Provisions
TOTAL

|. ASSETS

1)Non-Current Assets

a) Fixed Assets

i)Tangible Assets

ii)Intangible Assets

iii)Capital Work in Progress
Intangible Assets under development
Non-Current Investments
Long-Term Loans and Advances
Other Non-Current Assets
Current Assets
Project-Work-in-Progress

Trade Receivables

Cash and Bank Balances
Short-Term Loans and Advances
Advances for Project Work

(f) Other Current Assets

TOTAL

General Information

Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies

=

|
(
(
(
(i
(i
(i
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

iv
b
c
d
2
a
b
c
d
e

—_— o o=

This is the Balance Sheet
referred to in our report of even date
For Kumar Chopra & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number.: 000131N
Sd/-
R.K. Aggarwal
Partner

M. No. 081510
Place: New Delhi
Date: 11.08.2015

Chairman and Managing Director
DIN : 01637856

Director Finance
DIN : 01970462

Notes Balances As at 31.03.2015 Balances As at 31.03.2014
Amount (3) Amount (3) Amount (3) Amount (3)
3 2085,02,01,000 2085,02,01,000
4 593,84,26,907 2678,86,27,907 452,94,46,169 2537,96,47,169
5
2052,90,83,335 1953,15,00,002
461,06,25,063 437,47,77,714
5,08,10,375 2519,05,18,774 3,55,87,891 2394,18,65,607
6
9571,12,66,477 7099,28,96,801
44,96,65,543 52,83,96,938
929,04,14,975 866,94,66,825
75,48,97,616 10620,62,44,610 59,70,05,065 8078,77,65,629
15818.53,91,291 13010,92,78,405
7
57,622,668 6,93,67,843
259,820 81,896
14,244,837 1,28,52,369
16,575,496 75,27,894
8 595,10,74,110 486,76,73,250
9 465,38,74,527 444,64,79,216
10 498,46,38,611 1567,82,90,069 _ 478 43 69,903 1418,83,52,371
11 11564,75,73,252 9276,90,40,121
12 190,92,06,553 62,52,44,095
13 1290,98,55,316 1228,84,93,300
14 264,67,25,107 258,04,26,951
15 864,15,69,683 709,61,38,411
16 752,171,313 14250,71,01,223 561,583,156 11592,09,26,034
15818,53,91,291 13010,92,78,405
1 _— _—
2
The notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of the Financial Statements
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
S.C. Agnihotri Ashok K. Ganju Kalpana Dubey

Company Secretary
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31 AT, 2015 I I B9 dlol 99 & foTU

A IR I &7 f[qaRoT
faavor feuyofy 31.03.2015 &I FATS 98 Bl AY 31.03.2014 & WATW I8 Bl AW
fA (3) fA (3) T3 (3) TP ()
I oReaTe™ & U< ToRg (SH3MTdR) 17 3141,96,94,938 2492,36,61,338
Il. 3= 3mx 18 96,05,10,638 105,10,76,409
. e <rorea (1 + 1) " 3238,02,05,576 2597,47,37,747
V. =3
gREre™ R &9 19 2890,81,14,305 2310,22,61,029
FHARNT AT 20 74,85,88,571 57,40,64,470
I g 21 26,21,15,433 22,98,29,785
HTHR 3R IRTSS T 22 4,66,87,497 5,75,39,436
@l IY 2996,55,05,806 2396,36,94,720
V. Teugrd 3R &) gd o (lll-1V) 241,46,99,770 201,10,43,027
VI, JeugT 3R gy g 7 5,12,07,942 5,93,21,473
VII. &= gd @ (V - VI) 236,34,91,828 195,17,21,554
VIIl. &R =3
(1) MR
(@) =1 W 48,97,51,974 37,56,26,969
(@) froer ast @ 1,65,93,232 18,84,713
(2) s @ - 50,63,45,206 - 37,75,11,682
X o & fag @ (&) (VIE- Vi) 185,71,46,622 157,42,09,873
X Uiy gfdadt IR el
et 0.89 0.76
T TARY TS B anrg & Rare &
e H @ @R =i @1 faaRr 7 1 9 38 fewforr fa<ia faaror & sfafifRa wrr &
BAR AlvsT U4 waifigew & fay 9IS & fav gd S9! AR |
s THISTTH
BH IS I =T 000131TT B
'/ — '/ — gl / — gl / —
ARD. IJyard vl affsi IS . 5 HeUl gd
ArfieR ey 3R w&yr e e foa HUHl Afaa
M. No. 081510 DIN : 01637856 DIN : 01970462
;A3 faeelt
fei® - 11.08.2015
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year
ended 31st March 2015

Figures for the Year Ended 31.03.2015

Particulars Notes

Figures for the Year Ended 31.03.2014

Amount (%) Amount (%) Amount (%) Amount (%)
. Revenue from Operations (Turnover) 17 3141,96,94,938 2492,36,61,338
Il Other Income 18 96,05,10,638 105,10,76,409
lll. Total Revenue (I + II) 3238,02,05,576 2597,47,37,747
IV. Expenses:
Expenses on Operations 19 2890,81,14,305 2310,22,61,029
Employee Benefits Expenses 20 74,85,88,571 57,40,64,470
Other Expenses 21 26,21,15,433 22,98,29,785
CSR and R&D Expenses 22 4,66,87,497 5,75,39,436
Total Expenses 2996,55,05,806 2396,36,94,720
V. Profit Before Depreciation and Tax (1ll-IV) 241,46,99,770 201,10,43,027
VI. Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 7 5,12,07,942 5,93,21,473
VII. Profit Before Tax (V - VI) 236,34,91,828 195,17,21,554
VIII. Tax Expense:
(1) Income Tax
(a) Current Tax 48,97,51,974 37,56,26,969
(b) Earlier Years 1,65,93,232 18,84,713
(2) Deferred Tax - 50,63,45,206 - 37,75,11,682
IX Profit (Loss) for the Year (VII - VIII) 185,71,46,622 157,42,09,873
X Earnings Per Equity Share:
Basic 0.89 0.76
This is the Statement of Profit & Loss
referred to in our report of even date The notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of the Financial Statements
For Kumar Chopra & Associates
Chartered Accountants FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Firm Registration Number.: 000131N
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
R.K. Aggarwal S.C. Agnihotri Ashok K. Ganju Kalpana Dubey
Partner Chairman and Managing Director Director Finance Company Secretary

M. No. 081510

Place: New Delhi
Date: 11.08.2015

DIN : 01637856

DIN : 01970462
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31 91, 2015 BT A B Tl 99 & oI Abs yarg faa=or
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. I3 %)
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(190,161,325)

31.03.2015 &I AY
<R3 (%)

(24,535,895,419)

(190,161,325)

31.03.2014 &I AY

R (3)
195,17,21,554

5,93,21,473
868,645,186)

(175,000,000)

96,73,97,841

1,972,019,028
(1,235,945,748)

84,588,518
(5,335,579,799)

—(4.784,369,903)
(9,299,287,904)

(1,045,219,225)
3,968,482,924
(90,528,318)
(223,477,130)
12,165,813
2,621,424,064
(5,710,465,999)

(250,084,713)
(5,960,550,712)

(72,328,619)

748,000

(725,218,750
86,86,45,186

17,50,00,000
246,845,817

IR R)
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Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31st March 2015

S. Particulars

No.

1 (a) Cash Flow from Operating Activities

(b) Adjustments for Changes in Working Capital:

Net Profit Before Taxation, and Extraordinary ltems

Add: Adjustment for :
Depreciation

Other Income

Dividend Received

Preliminary expenses written off

Figures for the period ended 31.03.2015

Amount (%)
236,34,91,828

5,12,07,942
(893,320,296)
(50,000,000)

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 147,13,79,474

Adjustments for (Increase)/Decrease in Operating Assets:

Trade Receivables

Short-Term Loans and Advances
Long-Term Loans and Advances
Other Current Assets

Other Non- Current Assets

(c) Adjustments for (Increase)/Decrease in

Operating Liabilities:
Trade Payables

Other Current Liabilities
Other Long -Term Liabilities
Short Term Provisions
Long Term Provisions

Cash Generated from Operations
Direct Taxes Paid/Received (Net of TDS)
Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A)
Cash from Investment Activities :-

Capital Expenditure on Fixed Assets,
Including Capital Advances

Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets

Bank Balances not Considered as
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Current Investments not Considered as
Cash and Cash Equivalents:

- Purchased

Purchase of Long Term Investments:
- Joint Venture

Interest Income (Revenue)

- Others

Dividend Received

- Joint Venture

Net Cash Generated from /
(used in) Investing Activities (B)

(1,283,962,458)
(66,298,156)
(207,395,311)
(24,614,552,560)

(200,268,708)
(26,372,477,193)

(78,731,395)
598,316,516
235,847,349
(87,452,655)
15,222,484
683,202,300
(24,217,895,419)

(318,000,000)
(24,535,895,419)

(51,491,634)

1,410,873

(1,083,400,860)
89,33,20,296

5,00,00,000
(190,161,325)

Amount (%)

(24,535,895,419)

(190,161,325)

Figures for the period ended 31.03.2014
Amount (3) Amount (%)

195,17,21,554

5,93,21,473
(868,645,186)
(175,000,000)

96,73,97,841

1,972,019,028
(1,235,945,748)

84,588,518
(5,335,579,799)

(4,784,369,903)
(9,299,287,904)

(1,045,219,225)
3,968,482,924
(90,528,318)
(223,477,130)
12,165,813
2,621,424,064
(5,710,465,999)

(250,084,713)
(5,960,550,712)

(5,960,550,712)
(72,328,619)

748,000

(725,218,750)
86,86,45,186

17,50,00,000

246,845,817 246,845,817
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Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31st March 2015

S. Particulars Figures for the period ended 31.03.2015 Figures for the period ended 31.03.2014
No. Amount (%) Amount (%) Amount (%) Amount (%)

3 Cash Flow from Financing Activities :-
Proceeds from issuance of share capital (including share application money)

Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings 273,00,00,000 440,00,00,000
Repayment of Long -Term Borrowings (1,732,416,667) (1,642,500,000)
Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings 31,195,016,667 24,615,266,668
Repayment of Short -Term Borrowings (6,476,646,991) (15,341,025,913)
Dividend and Tax thereon (368,534,250) (315,886,500)
Utilisation of Reserve - & 0O
Net Cash Generated from / 2534,74,18,759 2534,74,18,759 1171,58,54,255 1171,58,54,255
(used in) Financing Activities (C)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & 621,362,015 6,002,149,360
Cash Equivalent (A+B+C)
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the Year 1228,84,93,300 628,63,43,939
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the March 31, 2015 1290,98,55,316 1228,84,93,300
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cheques in Hand 9,92,932 68,59,17,140
Balance with Scheduled Banks
On Current Account 101,88,62,384 158,25,76,160
On term Deposit Account 1189,00,00,000 1002,00,00,000
Notes :

The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method setoutin AS-3 issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
- Previous year's figures have been regrouped and rearranged, wherever necessary.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date

Kumar Chopra & Associates FORAND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number.:000131N

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
R.K. Aggarwal S.C. Agnihotri Ashok K. Ganju Kalpana Dubey
Partner Chairman and Managing Director Director Finance Company Secretary
M. No. 081510 DIN : 01637856 DIN : 01970462

Place: New Delhi
Date: 11.08.2015
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (RVNL), a fully owned Public Sector
Undertaking under the Ministry of Railways (MoR), Government of India
was incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 on 24th January, 2003
with an authorised share capital of 3000 crore. The objectives of the
Company include: (i) Fast track implementation of rail infrastructure
projects(ii) Raising extra budgetary resources for project execution.

The Company is implementing various types of Rail infrastructure
projects assigned by MoR including doubling (including 3rd/4th lines),
gauge conversion, new lines, railway electrification, major bridges,
workshops, Production Units and extension of the Kolkata Metro Rail
System.

The Company has cumulatively borrowed funds aggregating to
¥2895,90,00,001 from Indian Railway Finance Corporation (IRFC). After
cumulative repayment of Principal of ¥669,74,99,999 the net borrowing
is ¥ 2226,15,00,002. The total cost of projects executed for MoR by the
Company is ¥16026,59,73,745 out of this ¥ 1974,80,62,020 worth of
projects has been executed by Zonal Railways on behalf of the Company.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 Basisof Preparation

The financial statements of Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (RVNL) have been
prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting
Standards notified under the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as
amended) and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. These
financial statements have been drawn up in accordance with the going-
concern principle, on accrual basis and on a historical cost basis.
However, certain escalation and other claims by customers, which are
not ascertainable / acknowledged, are not taken into account. The
significant accounting policies adopted by the Company are given below.

2.2 Use of Estimates

Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the
financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could
differ due to these estimates and the differences between the actual
results and the estimates are recognized in the periods in which the
results are known/ materialize.

2.3. CashFlow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the indirect method set out in
Accounting Standard "3" on "Cash Flow Statements " and presents the
cash flows by operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company. Cash and bank balance that have insignificant risk of change in
value, which have durations up to three months, are included in the
Company's cash and cash equivalents inthe cash flow statement.

2.4 Extraordinary and Exceptional ltems

Income or Expenses that arise from events or transactions, that are clearly
distinct from the ordinary activities of the Company, are classified as
Extraordinary items. Specific disclosure of such events/transactions is
made in the financial statements. Similarly, any external event beyond the
control of the company, significantly impacting income or expense, is
alsotreated as an extraordinary item and disclosed as such.
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On certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or
expense, pertaining to the ordinary activities of the Company, is such that
its disclosure improves an understanding of the performance of the
Company. Such income or expense is classified as an exceptional item
and accordingly disclosed inthe Notes to Accounts.

2.5 Tangible Fixed Assets

Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment in value. Such cost includes acquisition
costinclusive of inward freight, duties and taxes and incidental expenses
related to acquisition. The expenses also include borrowing cost
attributable to acquisition of qualifying fixed assets up to the date the asset
is ready for its intended use.

2.6 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets comprise of license fees, other implementation costs
for system software and other application software acquired for in-house
use. The costs are capitalized in the year in which the relevant software is
implemented for use. The cost of an intangible asset comprises its
purchase price, including any import duties and other taxes, and any
directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended
use.

2.7 Depreciation

Depreciation on individual assets acquired for ¥5000/- or less is
depreciated at the rate of 100% taking in to consideration the commercial
life in the year of purchase itself. Depreciation is provided on pro-rata
basis on straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets
determined as follows:

Furniture and Fixture 4 Years
Computers 3 Years
Office Equipments (Excluding Mobile Phones) 5Years
Mobile Phones 2 Years

Leasehold improvements are amortized ‘over the period of lease’ from the
year in which such improvements are capitalized or ‘over useful life’ as
computed under schedule II, whichever is less. Capitalized software
costs are amortized @ 33.33% on pro-rata basis except where the
estimated useful life is less than three years.

Depreciation on SLM method s in consonance with the useful specified in
Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, except in the case of (i) Furniture
& Fixtures and (ii) Mobiles Phones & Tablets. In both the categories of
these assets, Management has estimated the useful life after taking into
consideration the economic benefits embodied in these assets and other
factors such as technical obsolescence and wear and tear etc.

“In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013, effective
from 1st April, 2014, the Company has reassessed the remaining useful
lives of its fixed assets. As a consequence of such reassessment, the rate
of charge for depreciation for the period is equal to the previously applied
rate of charges and additional impactis NIL.”

2.8 Impairment of Assets

All assets other than inventories, investments other than interest in Jointly
Controlled Entities (JCES) are reviewed for impairment, whenever events
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or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. Assets, whose carrying amount value exceeds their
recoverable amount, are written down to the recoverable amount.

2.9 Investments

Long-term investments, including interests in incorporated Jointly
Controlled Entities (JCES), are carried at cost, after providing for any
diminution, other than temporary, in value of such investments. Short-
term investments are carried at lower of cost or market value. The
determination of carrying amount of such investments is done on the
basis of specific identification.

2.10 Inventories

(@) Project Work-in-Progress is valued at the contract rates and
construction material at site is stated at cost. Payments made to
Zonal Railways for acquiring land included in project Work-in-
Progressis stated at cost.

(b)  Projects completed and handed over to Railways for operations are
being transferred from Project Work in Progress to the Railways.
IRFC funded projects are shown as ""Lease Receivable™ under the
heads Non-current/ Current assets in Compliance with AS 19. (c)
Projects are treated as completed where at least 95% of the latest
anticipated cost has beenincurredfill the end of year."

2.11 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized based on the nature of activity, when consideration

can be reasonably measured and there exists reasonable certainty of its

recovery. Revenue from construction/project related activity is
recognized as follows:

(@)  Projects executed for Ministry of Railways (MOR): Revenue from
project execution is determined by adding aggregate cost plus
margin agreed with MOR and any subsequent clarifications
received in this respect.

(b)  Deposit works (cost plus contract) related to JCEs (Jointly
Controlled Entities) in the form of Special Purpose Vehicles and
others): Contract revenue is determined by adding the aggregate
cost plus proportionate margin (Direction & General Charges)
based on fixed percentage as agreed with the customer.

(c) In case of IRFC funded projects, interest component on
installments received from Ministry of Railway's in netted against
the interest payable on IRFC borrowings.

(d)  Claims are accounted as income in the year of acceptance by client
orevidence of acceptance received.

(e) Interest on investment is accounted on accrual basis, inclusive of
related tax deducted at source.

(fy  Other items of income are accounted as and when the right to
receive arises.

2.12 Employee Benefits
a)  Short Term Employee Benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of
rendering the service are classified as short term employee
benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, and short- term
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compensated absences, etc. are recognized in the period in which
the employee renders the related service.

b) Long Term Employee Benefits

The obligation for long-term employee benefits such as long-term
compensated absences, is recognized in the same manner as in
the case of defined benefit plans as mentionedin (c) (ii) below

c)  PostEmployment Benefits

i. Defined contribution plans: The Company makes defined
contribution to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner in
respect of provident fund scheme, CGIS and employee state
insurance scheme. The contribution paid/payable under the
schemes is recognized during the period in which the employee
renders the related service.

ii.  Defined contribution plans: The Company makes defined
contribution to the RVNL Medical and Welfare Trust in respect of
RVNL Medical and Welfare Scheme. The contribution paid/payable
under the schemes is recognized during the period in which the
employee renders the related service.

ii. Defined benefit plans: Gratuity is a post employment defined
benefit plan. The liability recognized in the balance sheet is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet
date less fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated by an independent actuary using Projected Unit Credit
(PUC) method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised
immediately in the Profit & Loss Account.

d) Retirement benefits of the ‘staff on deputation’ have been
accounted for on the basis of the guidelines of the Ministry of
Railways.

2.13 Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are accounted for at the exchange rate
prevailing on the date of transactions. Gains / Losses arising out of
settlement are charged / credited to the profit and loss account.

2.14 Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of cost of such
asset till such time as the asset is ready for its intended use. A qualifying
asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to
getready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are recognized as
anexpense inthe period in which they are incurred.

2.15 TaxesonlIncome

Tax on income for the current year is determined on the basis of taxable
income and tax credits computed in accordance with the provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961, and based on the expected outcome of the
assessment/appeals.

Minimum Alternative Tax is recognized as an asset in the Balance Sheet
when itis probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow
tothe company.

Deferred tax is recognized annually on timing differences between the
accounting income and the taxable income for the year and quantified
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using the tax rates and laws substantially enacted as on the Balance
Sheet date.

2.16 Lease Rentals

Lease rental in respect of operating lease is charged to project work in
progress under Statement of the Profit and Loss.

2.17 Financial Lease

In case of financial lease substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to legal ownership are transferred and assets given on finance lease are
capitalised at the normal sale price/contracted price and treated as sales.
2.18 Provisions and Contingencies

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a
result of a past event that probably requires an outflow of resources and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. A disclosure of
a contingent liability is made where there is a possible obligation that
probably will not require an outflow of resources or where a reliable
estimate of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent assets are not
recognised. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

2.19 Earnings Per Share

In determining earnings per share, the Company considers the Net Profit
after Tax. The number of shares used in computing basic earnings per

For Kumar Chopra & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number.: 000131N

Sd/- Sd/-
R.K. Aggarwal S.C. Agnihotri
Partner Chairman and Managing Director
M. No. 081510 DIN : 01637856

Place: New Delhi
Date: 11.08.2015
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share is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
year. The dilutive earnings per share is not computed as there is no
dilutioninvolved during the year.

2.20 Liquidated Damages and Penalties

"Credit items arising on account of Liquidated Damages and Penalties
during execution of contract or due to termination of contract etc. are
carried as " Retention Money" under " other Current Liabilities" until the
final Closure of the Project. Thereafter,i.e. on financial closure of the
Project, such leftover balances of liquidity Damages and Penalties are
credited to the total cost of the concerned project.”

2.21 Prior Period Policy
“Income/expenditure relating to prior period and prepaid expenses not

exceeding ¥50,000/- in each case when treated as income/expenditure of
the currentyear”.

2.22 Stale Cheques Policy

Cheques which have not been cleared within the validiy period of 3
months are credited to the stale cheque account.ltems which are more
than 3 yrs old and could not be cleared in stale cheque account are
credited to the head which was earlier debited while making payments
except deductions made from salary of staff which are credited to misc
income.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Sd/-
Ashok K. Ganju
Director Finance
DIN : 01970462

Sd/-
Kalpana Dubey
Company Secretary
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3. 39 gofi:
. faazor 31.03.2015 &I
i < (%)
(®) urlrpa:

U&d 10 BUY Hed & 3,00,00,00,000 ST AR 3000,00,00,000
(=) faefa:

10 $YT eI & YOT U&T 2,08,50,20,100 ST R
() srfre e gof yaa

10 TUY oI & Yof UeT 2,08,50,20,100 AT TR

(100 wfererd ¥R BIfRST YT HATGI & U B)

2085,02,01,000

2085,02,01,000

31.03.2014 &I
af¥r (3)

3000,00,00,000

2085,02,01,000

2085,02,01,000

s 2085,02,01,000 2085,02,01,000
(&) TRRY B @1 B e
gfdad) S 31.03.2015 @I 31.03.2014 @I
IRT B AT RUR IRRT B GE&T afdr
3R a¥ & IR gfg 2,085,020,100 20,850,201,000 208,50,20,100 2085,02,01,000
¥ 3 T W gy - -
T8 @) gt w sy 2,085,020,100 20,850,201,000 208,50,20,100 2085,02,01,000
(3) B9 UAP IRElesd & IR &1 @RI 98 99 5 ufderd | sameT IRR @:
31.03.2015 @1 31.03.2014 @1
W Y IRRT B AT gTRAT % = Y IWRT BT =T aTRar %
Y HATTT (THRRIR) 208,50,20,100 100 208,50,20,100 100

1 IR Gl AR, adiaar 3iv ufady

3 TR U B U UF & USR B 10 TUY oI B IR AE © | TP IREeER BT YT IR TH A1 I FT ANSR Bl 2|
gRegeras @ Rerfar #, ) aigargel IfY & AR & ggard swoul @l Ay aREURR ol 96 IRI & IguTd H U dRA B

AfBRY B |
4 IRfEra ud siftrey
31.03.2015 I 31.03.2014 Bl
RUSI] <RI (3)
(@) A= Imfara f=ier
WW%W 610,000,000 51,00,00,000
q9 & SR SreT T 100,000,000 100,000,000
710,000,000 61,00,00,000
(=) <4 d g1y faaRor:
WWW%W 3,900,535,434 278,33,25,677
gs & < gfg
DR AT T 1,857,146,622 157,42,09,873
Sirs: WIUHIIR R o7 ey # afavor 18,910,735 5,27,12,644
HeTg: AU @3t & forg yraen - B}
(40,665,385)
AL ST Td R 2 7,871,049 83,50,189
TeTG: ST Td farere Y 3 s (7,871,049 (6,777,564)
HETG: W SR e 3T sfaRor (100,000,000) (100,000,000)
T TRATfId T (0.18 UfT Sfaady IR) (372,000,000) (315,000,000)
HETG: AT TR SRR v (76,165,884) (55,620,000)
T8 B IR s 9fg 1,327,891,474 5,228,426,908 111,72,09,757 390,05,35,434
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3 Share Capital:
S. Particulars

No.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Authorised:

3,00,00,00,000 Equity Shares of 10 Each
Issued:

2,08,50,20,100 Equity Shares of 10 Each fully paid up

Subscribed & Fully paid up

2,08,50,20,100 Equity shares of 10 Each fully paid up

(100% Shareholding with MoR)

as at March 31, 2015

Amount (%)

3000,00,00,000

2085,02,01,000

2085,02,01,000

ClEERIEI
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as at March 31, 2014
Amount (%)

3000,00,00,000

2085,02,01,000

2085,02,01,000

Total 2085,02,01,000 2085,02,01,000
(d) Reconciliation of number of Shares:
Equity Shares: As at March 31, 2015 As at March 31, 2014

No. of Shares

Amount

No. of Shares

Amount

Balance at the beginning of the Year 2,085,020,100 20,850,201,000 208,50,20,100 2085,02,01,000
Addition during the Year - - - -
Balance at the End of the Year 2,085,020,100 20,850,201,000 208,50,20,100 2085,02,01,000

(e) Details of shares held by each Shareholder Holding more than 5% Shares:

As at March 31, 2015

As at March 31, 2014

Ministry of Railways (MoR)
1. Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attaching to shares

Equity Shares: The Company has one class of Equity Shares having a par value of % 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held.
Inthe event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts,
in proportion to their shareholding.

No. of Shares held

208,50,20,100

% holding
100

No. of Shares held

208,50,20,100

% holding
100

4  Reserves and Surplus
As at March 31, 2015 As at March 31, 2014
Amount (%) Amount (%)
(a) General Reserve
As perlast Balance Sheet 610,000,000 51,00,00,000
Addition during the Year 100,000,000 100,000,000
710,000,000 61,00,00,000
(b) Statementof Profit & Loss:
As perlast Balance Sheet 3,900,535,434 278,33,25,677
Addition during the Year
Profit after Tax 1,857,146,622 157,42,09,873
Add: Transfer from CSR Fund 18,910,735 5,27,12,644
Less: Provision for CSR Expenses - (40,665,385)
Add: Research & Development Expenses 7,871,049 83,50,189
Less: Provision for R& D Expenses (7,871,049) (6,777,564)
Less: Transfer to General Reserve (100,000,000) (100,000,000)
Less: Proposed Dividend (Rs. 0.18 Per Equity Share) ~ (372,000,000) (315,000,000)
Less: Additional Tax on Dividend (76,165,884) (55,620,000)
Net Addition during the Year 1,327,891,474 5,228,426,908 111,72,09,757 390,05,35,434
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Rail Vikas Nigam Limited ]

ﬂ @ fawma o fafes

. faavor 31.03.2015 ®I 31.03.2014 B
. IR (3) IR (3) R (3) R (3)
(1) sivuRe arfae <1fica v dutyor fAfer
et Qo T3 B AR 18,910,735 3,09,57,994
SirS: WIUHIIR & & fo1v uraern= - 4,06,65,385
TG TR ATaHT BT SfRoT (18,910,735) (52,712,644)
1,89,10,735
(&1) srgaeT vd faery fafer
GEEREEREGIN (0) 15,72,625
SITS: ST=ET Ud e & forq uraer 7,871,049 67,77,564
FeTG: I U R @ (7,871,049) ) (8,350,189) 0)
5,938,426,907 452,94,46,169

BU AR, 2013 B FTAR BRUNE ATATGTD <RI e DT {User 3 A< au & i d $% gd ar & 2 Ui @1 &= | giord fbar
TATE | (F8vETd, SIS & ANl & SR SRUNE FMIfTe Q1 (1S 3T fUsel 3 fa<iy 99 & oiiad &R qd o™ & 3 Uferd &1 &%
[ GioTd fHar T 1) 2014—15 & SR HU AH, 2013 & Fblael ATHAR TR wR 2 Ufcrerd i d w- gd o™ sieifd
73,21,29,340 / — @ qdHIdl 34,54,47,097 /— BT 4 o 1307 |

@) <9E @ el & AR e 98 & TR geard ¥ & 0.5 TRerd & e vd fawmr A o1 qaR et T ¥ | 39e forg 9@
gEld IS ATRId, ITAfdd ufoRauicara aroR, Ueifite # Joi 9 98dld, He Jora FRF0 Ares, ggdl 312y iR SuHTaaif
BT AT, UTeNfTaT SaRvr a1 BT 1R uferafeft @ qa-ias STaRT nfe &1 aa fear Tar € |
5. iR—drq <1l
(@) <rdwrfas x0T
() = ¥a fa< fem (are uRarsg)
afoforfza:
QTR 1953,15,00,002 1677,40,00,002
99 & IR ig 273,00,00,000 440,00,00,000
EICTG: 12 A8 & AR a1 O aren GRFTa (1,732,416,667) (1,642,500,000)
eTg: [ 1 gabl URATSTIS D S0 - 2052,90,83,335 - 1953,15,00,002
2052,90,83,335 1953,15,00,002
g aTrarE @1 o
(1)  Id 9§ B T W 3 Y DI FURATT df BT & | §6 FORTT 1A & SR fhefl YR & AT 1R ofeld < 721 81T | FORTH
3Fafdy &1 FHI & TeaTd ATol alftid AR IR FATRA BT ST 3R F0T &1 I (12 99 dab) AT 3 b 1R BT SITQ | Xl #3Terd
RTINS BT 918 B IAIRAT F folQ MaTH B I HRIAT ST | TAGRT Faril BT A & g & A | U B1 SIe |
() BUT A IY B R HRARI e fasT 7 3 2273,00,00,000 (FUeet I 2440,00,00,000) BT F0T foRT | THTAT F0T 22226,15,00,002 (fUoel I
22117,40,00,002) BT & ORI 31Tl 12 HEIHT @] ATe] TR a7 Gerar 3173,24,16,667 (fUeel a¥ 2164,25,00,000) TMAS & |
(@) s R—arq <1fiang
Suifsfa «ret fo=g <7 781 (WRfaf—are aRATST)
SONL) 437,47,77,714 446,53,06,032
Sire: a¥ & SR gfg 188,51,00,471 215,06,01,514
HTTY: 12 A18 & SR T 77 g (165,81,77,853) 460,17,00,332 (224,11,29,832) 437,47,77,714
Sutfta =arat feg 23 78 (Rfaf— & 81 g aRare=mg)
TRy -
Sire: 9¥ & SR gfg 55,44,24,103
HCTY: 12 AT8 & ST T 17 G (54,54,99,372) 89,24,731
el 461,06,25,063 437,41,71,714
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S. Particulars as at March 31, 2015 as at March 31, 2014

No. Rupees () Rupees(3) Amount (%) Amount (%)

(c) Corporate Social Responsibility and Sustainability Fund

As perlast Balance Sheet 18,910,735 3,09,57,994
Add: Provision for CSR Expenses - 4,06,65,385
Less: Transfer to Retained earnings (18,910,735) (52,712,644)
- 1,89,10,735

(d) Research & Development Fund

As perlast Balance sheet 0) 15,72,625

Add: Provision for R& D Expenses 7,871,049 67,77,564

Less: Research & Development Expenses (7,871,049) (0) (8,350,189) (0)
5,938,426,907 452,94,46,169

(1) As perthe Companies Act, 2013, Corporate Social Responsibility Fund has been created @ 2% of Average PBT of immediately 3 Financial Year
(However, as per DPE's guidelines, Corporate Social Responsibility Fund was created @ 3% of Average PAT of immediately 3 Financial Year). The
expenditure of I4,54,47,097/- has been incurred on CSR activities during the year 2014-15 in comparision 2% of average PBT i.e. °
3,21,29,340/- as required by the companies act 2013.

(2)  As per DPE's guidelines Research & Development Fund has been created @ 0.5% of PAT of previous year. The rationale behind it is the changed
business environment, highly competitive markets, the rapid pace of change in technology, stringent quality control criteria, heightened
expectations and demands of customers, lack of transfer of technology and know- how from competitors, etc.

5 Non-Current Liabilities

(a) Longtermborrowings

(i) Indian Railway Finance Corporation (ongoing projects)

Unsecured:

Opening Balance 1953,15,00,002 1677,40,00,002

Addition during the Year 273,00,00,000 440,00,00,000

Less: Repaymentto be made within 12 months (1,732,416,667) (1,642,500,000)

less: Transfer on Completed Projects - 2052,90,83,335 - 1953,15,00,002
2052,90,83,335 1953,15,00,002

Terms of Repayment:

(1)  Thereis amoratorium period of 3 years for each year's loan. During the said moratorium period no amount on account of interest and principal shall
be payable. The interest shall be charged on yearly basis and repayment of loan shall be once in a year (for a period of 12 years) after the
completion of moratorium period. Ministry of Railways would make available to RVNL the required funds thereafter, to enable them to do the
debservicing . The debt servicing will pass through RVNL books.

(2) Company has borrowed funds %273,00,00,000 ( Previous year ¥440,00,00,000) during the year from Indian Railway Finance Corporation
(IRFC). The outstanding borrowing is ¥2226,15,00,002 (Previous Year ¥2117,40,00,002), which includes current liability i.e. repayable in next
twelve monthsX173,24,16,667 (Previous Year164,25,00,000).

(b) Other Non- Current Liabilities
Interest accrued but not due (IRFC-Ongoing Projects)

Opening Balance 437,47,77,714 446,53,06,032

Add: Interest Accrued during the Year 188,51,00,471 215,06,01,514

Less: Repayment to be made within 12 months (165,81,77,853) 460,17,00,332 (224,11,29,832) 437,47,77,714
Interest accrued but not due (IRFC-Completed Projects)

Opening Balance -

Add: Interest Accrued during the Period 55,44,24,103

Less: Repayment to be made within 12 months (54,54,99,372) 89,24,731

Total 461,06,25,063 437,47,71,714
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. faaxor 31.03.2015 B 31.03.2014 B
. R (3) IR (3) R (3) R (3)

fo=ira a9 2014—15 H 9.56 eI @1 &% I ARIART MMM IR AT TR BT SITA AT AT 2 (A9 2013—14 H AIART 11 @ forg ey
TR 9.60 Ufarerd) 2 | WRAM o1 IR W @t Iuifia ofds <a 721 39 =1, uReuRrll vd dR—are uReufml (@rret 12 7891 #
IR—agea & forg) & Sfaefd Nal #aTerd § Iel S dTel & WU H sl # fa=aman 3 € iR =re] a1l vd IR—=re] <1fiamsii &
ST TST 4T WIfheT apraT e IR T T 2 |
AR I Srep1erd iR TYBIS TSl U b <d el DI aTe], IRATTY AR T & b ¥el FaATerd B AR gRATSHN &
forq arerT 9 feama T g |

(M) Srefmrfas graem

siftrafifar @t & forg yraem
RPN 3,55,87,891 2,34,22,078
Sire: 9 & SR gfg 1,99,07,612 1,52,64,441
HCTY: FHRAT B & 12 FEH| & IR JaR0T - -
HCTY: 12 A18 & SR T 71 gaarar (4,685,128) 5,08,10,375 (3,098,628) 3,55,87,891
@l 5,08,10,375 3,55,87,891
1. PR fRdem
fafafer st & fog
IRATT T AT & eRATHRYT AFG—15 & fAFTd “HHan faemd” H FfRad o1 Seerd BT ST T &
fFraiRa o sfiar @ adae a1 @ IR Ry &k sfaeisl & @@l &1 e
faazor GBI THATHROT =
R) R)
2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14
SONL] 2,23,59,168 1,45,85,880 1,28,21,672 99,32,796
TS AARTA 17,44,015 13,12,729 10,00,090 8,93,952
AT a7 ART 55,56,298 34,62,767 52,20,055 38,14,291
AT Y Y T (10,19,450) (2,66,645) (7,69,537) (262,505)
TR & eI i (G / 31) 48,110,597 32,64,437 9,81,193 (15,56,862)
gfaery 3,34,50,628 2,23,59,168 1,92,53,473 1,28,21,672
faawor JrefaasT raaTer
®)
2014-15 2013-14
3T AY 40,73,127
e AT ART 5,95,364 40,73,127
oy 46,68,491 40,73,127

g1 ol SATafelr SrerdT NTY S1eraT §og ol UR HHANRAT DT < Bl & | YS! B VI {Usell Har 3R Ugel sifaifeam, 1972 & Y &
TR I @ WH 0 @ SR BT 2 |

BU YD Y AT B [T el I ATDTe P AFART T & SR SUANT &1 BT 7T 9T DI AAHTH Herd B Fafd & gl ART 1
a1 ST e € | I8 T FHAR) BT D! AT A B IR Bt JHR TS W & SUS BIdl ¢ | 51 (erfdrafifar, smeRer, 7eg) W arfadd
3FAPBT B THAIBROT BT AR &1 &1 S 2 |

PHAR] BT ATTAAT IR AT JqBI Al GBI BB < & | GBI ThaIdbRl B M fUwel] HaT iR Aafiar & Ty 9o i)
SR BT 5 |

LT AR SIHTT THEIDHRT & forg Uraen= & forg oI fAaer 72 forar ar 2 |
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Rupees ()

Rupees(3)
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as at March 31, 2014
Amount (%) Amount (%)

The interest liability has been assessed onthe amount disbursed infinancial year 2014-15 atthe rate of 9.56% (rates applicable forthe amount
disbursed in the year 2013-14 is 9.60%) The interest accrued but not due on the IRFC loan amount has been shown in the Balance Sheet as
recoverable from MOR under Current Assets & Non-Current assets (for the interest non recoverable in next 12 Months) and the interest payable but
not due under the Current Liabilities and Non-Current Liabilities (for the interest not payable in next 12 Months) payable to IRFC .

Long-term and Short-term Interest accrued but not due from IRFC have been separately shown for 'ongoing projects' and ‘completed projects

transferred to MOR!
(c) Longterm Provisions
Provision for Retirement Benefits

Opening Balance 3,55,87,891 2,34,22,078
Add: Addition during the Year 1,99,07,612 1,52,64,441
Add: Transfer from due within 12 months - -
Less: Transferto due within next twelve months (4,685,128) 5,08,10,375 (3,098,628) 3,55,87,891
Total 5,08,10,375 3,55,87,891
1. Employee Benefits
"For RVNL Employees"
The disclosure required under Accounting Standard-15 “Employees Benefit” in respect of defined benefit plan is:
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligation
Particulars Leave Encashment Gratuity
®) ®)
2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14
Opening Balance 2,23,59,168 1,45,85,880 1,28,21,672 99,32,796
Interest Cost 17,44,015 13,12,729 10,00,090 8,93,952
Current Service Cost 55,56,298 34,62,767 52,20,055 38,14,291
Benefit Paid (10,19,450) (2,66,645) (7,69,537) (262,505)
Actuarial (Gain/Loss) on Obligation 48,10,597 32,64,437 9,81,193 (15,56,862)
Closing Balance 3,34,50,628 2,23,59,168 1,92,53,473 1,28,21,672
Particulars Half pay Leave
®)
2014-15 2013-14
Opening Balance 40,73,127 -
Current Service Cost 5,95,364 40,73,127
Closing Balance 46,68,491 40,73,127

Gratuity Benefitis payable to employees on retirement or resignation or death. The amount of gratuity payable is based on past service and salary at time

of exitas per Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

"Company allows Half Pay Leave for every year of service and unutilized portion can be carried forward subject to restrictions on maximum
accumulation. This benefit is available only in the event of employee falling sick during the tenure of his service. No encashment is allowed on
accumulated Half Pay Leave on exit (retirement, withdrawal, death)from the company.”

Leave Encashment including Half pay Leave is payable to employees on retirement. The amount of Leave Encashment payable is based on past service

and salary attime of retirement.

There are no Investment held against the provision for gratuity and leave encashment.
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drmifee gafgam: 2014-15 2013-14

qie fafer: gRASHT e e fafy uRASHT e wiee fafdr

BT P X 7.80% 7.80%

I gfe T 6.50% 6.50%

Rerrie amg; 60 Y 60 Y

TERT X UUCS el & AR HH Y B AMal 4 UGUCS Whdl & AJAR HH MY S Al o
3 UfeRrd 3fR 31f¥d Mg & AMall # 1 g | 3 uferd SR &fdd oy & wwal § 1 ufier

gg ¢ JUALT (2006—08) ERT YHTRIG Heg &% dlfeTebl | JUeic! (2006—08) ERT YHIRIT g &R dlferel

. faazor 31.03.2015 $I 31.03.2014 HI

9. f3A (3) <f3A (%) TP (3) TP (3)

6 =] qRarg

(@) rcumIfers FoT

(i) W= e fa fem (@ uRAarsg)

gfryforfe:

SONL]

Sirs: a9 & SR gfg

T aY & SR gAY

(i) aRarsE arfir goft

1,64,25,00,000
1,73,24,16,667
(1,64,25,00,000)

1,73,24,16,667
1,73,24,16,667

1,565,91,66,667
1,64,25,00,000
(1,55,91,66,667) 1,64,25,00,000

1,64,25,00,000

X HATAT

g

3Ty 41,60,48,02,809 31,87,86,46,389

99 & SR gfg 22,83,12,00,000 17,53,92,00,000

Ted: 99 & SR AdRd RIS 34,241,80,562 61,01,18,22,247 7,81,30,43,580 41,60,48,02,809
(iii) ufRarsET arfira gt (gsh fife)

el HATeT

IrgRia:

SONL] 8,58,76,47,064 12,90,11,09,659

9§ & SR gfg

Ted: 99 & SR IR IRIATSHY 44,687,653 8,54,29,59,411 4,31,34,62,595 8,58,76,47,064
(iv) wRfaf o1 3t g & fog Yo 3w | ura iy

SrgRfara:

SONL] 3,39,96,46,928 3,49,58,33,331

9§ & IR gfg 1,64,25,00,000 1,55,91,66,668

HETG: Y & SR AR gRATSTHIY 1,36,52,78,775 3,67,68,68,153 1,65,53,53,071 3,39,96,46,928
(v) fafae sl gsht (g1 uRarsn)

SrgRfara:

Y 11,65,50,00,000 8,25,50,00,000

Y & IR gfg 3,98,00,00,000 3,40,00,00,000

HETS: Y & SR AR gRATSTHIY 15,63,50,00,000 11,65,50,00,000
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ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS: 2014-15 2013-14
Method Of Valuation : Project Unit Credit Method Project Unit Credit Method
Discount Rate : 7.80% 7.80%
Salary Escalation Rate: 6.50% 6.50%
Retirement Age: 60 Years 60 Years

Withdrawal Rate:

3% at younger ages and reducing to 1%
at older ages according to graduated scale.

3% at younger ages and reducing to
1% at older ages according to
graduated scale.

Mortality Rate

India Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) Ult.

India Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) Ult.

S. Particulars
No.

as at March 31, 2015
Rupees (3)

Rupees(3)

as at March 31, 2014
Amount () Amount ()

6  CurrentLiabilities
(a) ShortTerm Borrowings

(i) Indian Railways Finance Corporation (On Going Projects)

Unsecured:

Opening Balance

Add: Addition during the Year
Less: Repayment during the Year

(i) ProjectAdvance Capital
Ministry of Railways
Unsecured:
Opening Balance
Addition during the Year
Less: Projects Transferred during the Year

(iii) ProjectAdvance (Capital Fund)
Ministry of Railways
Unsecured:
Opening Balance
Addition during the Year
Less: Projects Transferred during the Year

1,64,25,00,000
1,73,24,16,667
(1,64,25,00,000)

41,60,48,02,809
22,83,12,00,000
34,241,80,562

8,58,76,47,064

44,687,653

(iv) Advance from MoR IRFC loan Repayment

Unsecured:

Opening Balance

Addition during the Year

Less: Projects Transferred during the Year
(v) Misc. Advance Capital (Metro project)

Unsecured:

Opening Balance

Addition during the Year

Less: Projects transferred during the Year

3,39,96,46,928
1,64,25,00,000
1,36,52,78,775

11,65,50,00,000
3,98,00,00,000

15,63,50,00,000

1,73,24,16,667
1,73,24,16,667

61,01,18,22,247

8,54,29,59,411

3,67,68,68,153

1,55,91,66,667
1,64,25,00,000
(1,55,91,66,667) 1,64,25,00,000

1,64,25,00,000

31,87,86,46,389
17,563,92,00,000

7,81,30,43,580 41,60,48,02,809

12,90,11,09,659

4,31,34,62,595 8,58,76,47,064
3,49,58,33,331
1,55,91,66,668
1,65,53,53,071 3,39,96,46,928

8,25,50,00,000
3,40,00,00,000
11,65,50,00,000
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o, faavor
.
(vi) aRarsE=T Afrw goht aigw
Y
9§ & R gfg
e 99 & SR SfaRd yRATeHTg
(vii) RS 3rfire e ffer

< (3)

321,79,00,000

31.03.2015 Bl

<A (3)

321,79,00,000

R (])

321,79,00,000

31.03.2014 I

R (])

321,79,00,000

31T 40,54,00,000 39,00,00,000

9§ & R gig 32,01,00,000 1,54,00,000

TG 99 & SR SfaRd IRATSTHTG - 72,55,00,000 = 40,54,00,000
(viii) farer fofer—3

DN 48,00,00,000 2,10,00,000

99 & IRM gfg 63,88,00,000 45,90,00,000

e 98 & SR JdRd RIS - 111,88,00,000 - 48,00,00,000
(iX) ¥T—2 & Fad TAYHIAR A

KRN - -

99 & IR gig 5,00,00,000 -

HTTG: 99 P SR AR TRIATSTATT - 5,00,00,000 - -

95,71,12,66,477 70,99,28,96,801

1. o TR & U AR T Yot HATerd g§IRT iy TS aRare el & forg SUART fhar T 2 | ve aRASHT & aRafad w9 A O/ R B

qTE YRHURTT &3 Vel Bl AT <1 T8 & fT a1 370 &lieh ol H URAURAl &1 HiHd 3§ SirsH |

(@) @R <F

g, BIC U4 7 - -

3= 44,96,65,543 52,83,96,938
44,96,65,543 52,83,96,938

() 3= e <1y

ERRIESENING 53,97,78,080 53,59,74,175

TRGRHA Yffer ST i 226,58,93,488 192,78,84,410

fafaer FzoreTar HHan 3,83,67,336 3,89,10,261

fafder SForeTar 3=t 5,36,48,566 3,38,19,130

fafaer S fer 13,60,84,904 15,55,67,209

SEARIING 55,64,47,879 45,63,71,682

YJeh TG PR 15,76,63,827 13,67,17,660

T STRY fBT 7Y IR FellaR T8 gU 1,09,81,624 5,42,05,095

e st o fore urget | 1l T favar g 331,69,05,986 307,12,52,775

Surfsfa saret faeg, #oT W= 3 a: (\ARfaf)

KPNI 217,23,63,489 98,99,06,181

Sirs: 99 & SR gfg 165,81,77,853 224,11,29,832

TeTg: a¥ & SR T (2,239,790,141) 1,590,751,201 (1,058,672,524) 217,23,63,489

1ol Ut Afee For wr <1 T (ARfaf—g3 8l ¥)

RPN

Sire: 9¥ & SR gfg 545,499,372 545,499,372

HeN: aY & SR YT

3y <Ifyar 7,53,13,087 8,16,14,092

IO Y 30,79,626 47,86,847
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S. Particulars
No.

(vi)

Rupees ()
Project Advance Capital Bonds
Opening Balance 321,79,00,000

Addition during the Year -
Less: Projects Transferred during the Year

(vii) Project Advance Safety Fund

as at March 31, 2015

Rupees(3)

321,79,00,000

ClEERIEI
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] 2014-2015

as at March 31, 2014

Amount (%)

321,79,00,000

Amount (%)

321,79,00,000

Opening Balance 40,54,00,000 39,00,00,000

Addition during the Year 32,01,00,000 1,54,00,000

Less: Projects Transferred during the Year - 72,55,00,000 - 40,54,00,000
(viii) Development Fund-3

Opening Balance 48,00,00,000 2,10,00,000

Addition during the Year 63,88,00,000 45,90,00,000

Less: Projects Transferred during the Year - 111,88,00,000 - 48,00,00,000
(ix) HSR Studies under Demand-2

Opening Balance - -

Addition during the Year 5,00,00,000 -

Less: Projects Transferred during the Year - 5,00,00,000 - -

95,71,12,66,477 70,99,28,96,801

Funds received by the Company from MoR are utilized for executing projects assigned by MoR. After physical completion of a project, the assets are
to be transferred to the concerned Zonal Railway who would add the value of assets in their Block Account.

(b) Trade Payable
Micro ,Small & Medium Enterprises - -
Others 44,96,65,543 52,83,96,938
44,96,65,543 52,83,96,938
(c) Other currentliabilities
Earnest Money 53,97,78,080 53,59,74,175
Performance Security Deposit 226,58,93,488 192,78,84,410
Sundry Creditors Staff 3,83,67,336 3,89,10,261
Sundry Creditors Others 5,36,48,566 3,38,19,130
Misc. Deposit 13,60,84,904 15,55,67,209
Retention money 55,64,47,879 45,63,71,682
Duties & Taxes 15,76,63,827 13,67,17,660
Cheque issud but not cleared 1,09,81,624 5,42,05,095
Advance received from Customers against Deposit Works 331,69,05,986 307,12,52,775
Interest Accrued but not due on Loan: (IRFC)
Opening Balance 217,23,63,489 98,99,06,181
Add: Addition during the Year 165,81,77,853 224,11,29,832
Less: Payment during the Year (2,239,790,141) 1,590,751,201 (1,058,672,524) 217,23,63,489
Interest Accrued but not due on Loan: (IRFC-Completed)
Opening Balance
Add: Addition during the Period 545,499,372 545,499,372
Less: Payment during the Period
Other Liabilities 7,53,13,087 8,16,14,092
Expenses Payable 30,79,626 47,86,847
929,04,14,975 '866,94,66,825
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. faazor
9.
(&) rcudIferd YTae=
(i) @D foq wrasm=
SONL]
e ¥ @ SR gfg
e a9 & SR THRITSTH
(ii) <¥
ERRSIING
Sire: 9¥ & SR gfg
e a9 & SR FHARITSTH
(iii) fa<er Aar sfere™ & fore yraem=
31Ty
e a9 & <R gfg
TS Y & SR THARISTH
(iv) ey / fiuaansg & fore urasm=
SON]
Sirs: 99 & <R gfg
HETS: Y & SR THRITSTH
(v) Rerde s fo, uraam=
TN
geTg: STeTafey UTaem=ii 37 / Bl 3faxor
TS a9 & SR TARITSTH
(vi) verdRft @ fore yrasm=
TNy
Sire: a9 & SR gfg
He: 9§ & ST FATIISTT
(vii) Xfafafer dodaR b=
SONL]
Sirs: 99 & SR gfg
gy 99 & SR FHRISTH
(viii) Xfafafer afswa @
T
SirS: 99 & SR gfg
TS a9 & SR TARISTH

6 (e)(1) @ forg we AT AraaHv:

< (3)

12,74,26,969
18,83,45,206
(1,27,26,969)

31,50,00,000
3,720,00,000
(31,50,00,000)

6,09,82,875
2,62,43,755
(2,40,10,940)

7,51,29,145
7,00,00,000
(71,978,519)

36,66,076
4,685,128
(17,88,987)

12,00,000
5,85,971
(1,62,094)

5,00,00,000

1,36,00,000
1,56,42,104
(2,92,42,104)

31.03.2015 Bl

< (3)

18,83,45,206
372,000,000
6,32,15,690
7,31,50,626
6,562,217
16,23,877

50,000,000

75,48,97,616

1 IR ATAIH B FFAR B TS VM & AR UR ARIDBR BT YT T TAT 2 |

R (])

11,02,17,718
12,74,26,969
(1,102,17,718)

27,00,00,000
31,50,00,000
(2,700,00,000)

5,61,12,699
2,00,00,000
(1,51,29,824)

13,28,28,211
6,15,00,000
(1,191,99,066)

10,96,598
3,098,628
(5,29,150)

6,00,000
12,40,370
(6,40,370)

5,00,00,000
(5,00,00,000)
2,72,00,000

1,36,00,000
(2,72,00,000)

31.03.2014 B

R (3)

12,74,26,969

31,50,00,000

6,09,82,875

7,51,29,145

36,66,076

12,00,000

1,36,00,000
99,70,05,065

2 T AHT & SUET BT ST iR AT fI9% B MR TR HU 7 SRR B Ul BT 2MAS 21 b & Fiifds ST axgell 1

[BEEcEEE
6 (&1)(iii) @ ferg Be e
farrer S afereT:

AT RSN / e MR Vot 9 uffrgfad we 2 | Xafafer sritrafiar amil & forg wikdra e 3 fader Qe sfere &7 irae e <& 2 |

6 (&1)(vii) Ta (viii) & fog Be e
IfAfAfeT AfShet 3R TABIR B

FHu 7 XfafAfer 7 fafesear e # 21,56,42,104 (freel o 21,36,00,000) 317 fafAfer fafaredr 3R wearor gwe & goit A # 25,00,00,000 1

INTETH feam B |
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S. Particulars
No.

(d) Short-term provision
(i) Provision for Taxation
Opening Balance
Add: Addition during the Year
Less: Adjustment duringthe Year
(i) Dividend Payable
Opening Balance
Add: Addition during the Year
Less: Adjustment during the Year
(iii) Provision for Foreign Service Contribution
Opening Balance
Add: Addition duringthe Year
Less: Adjustment during the Year
(iv) Provision for PRP/PLI
Opening Balance
Add: Addition during the Year
Less: Adjustment during the Year
(v) Provision for Retirement Benefit
Opening Balance
Less: Transfer from/to long term Provisions
Less: Adjustment during the Year
(vi) Provision forLTC
Opening Balance
Add: Addition during the Year
Less: Adjustment duringthe Year
(vii) RVNL Welfare Scheme
Opening Balance
Add: Addition during the year
Less: Adjustment during the Year
(viii) RVNL Medical Scheme
Opening Balance
Add: Addition during the Year
Less: Adjustment during the Year

"Foot Note for 6(d) (i) Income Tax :"

as at March 31, 2015

Rupees ()

12,74,26,969
18,83,45,206
(1,27,26,969)

31,50,00,000
3,720,00,000
(31,50,00,000)

6,09,82,875
2,62,43,755
(2,40,10,940)

7,51,29,145
7,00,00,000
(7,19,78,519)

36,66,076
4,685,128
(17,88,987)

12,00,000
5,85,971
(1,62,094)

5,00,00,000

1,36,00,000
1,56,42,104
(2,92,42,104)

Rupees(3)

18,83,45,206

372,000,000

6,32,15,690

7,31,50,626

6,562,217

16,23,877

5,00,00,000

75,48,97,616

1. Provision for Income Tax has been made as Tax computed under the Income Tax Act.

2. In compliance with provisions of Accounting Standards and based on general prudence, the Company has not recognised the Deferred Tax
Assets as there is no reasonable certainity of their realisation.

"Foot Note for 6(d) (iii)Foreign Service Contribution :"

ClIEENTEI
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] 2014-2015

as at March 31, 2014

Amount (%)

11,02,17,718
12,74,26,969
(1,102,17,718)

27,00,00,000
31,50,00,000
(2,70,000,000)

5,61,12,699
2,00,00,000
(1,51,29,824)

13,28,28,211
6,15,00,000
(1,191,99,066)

10,96,598
3,008,628
(5,29,150)

6,00,000
12,40,370
(6,40,370)

5,00,00,000

(5,00,00,000)

2,72,00,000

1,36,00,000
(2,72,00,000)

Amount (%)

12,74,26,969

31,50,00,000

6,09,82,875

7,51,29,145

36,66,076

12,00,000

1,36,00,000

59,70,05,065

The majority of the officers / staff employed in RVNL are on deputation from Indian Railways. RVNL is paying Foreign Service Contribution to the

Indian Railways towards retirement benefits.

"Foot Note for 6(d) (vii) & (viii)RVNL Medical and Welfare Scheme"
Company has contributed ¥1,56,42,104 ( previous year< 1,36,00,000) in the RVNL Medical Scheme and ¥5,00,00,000 in Capital Fund of RVNL

Medical and Welfare Trust.
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@ faerm fom fafies
ﬂ Rail Vikas Nigam Limited

. faazor
. R R)
8 WAR—drq faw
frrfia Egaa Seml A gof yea sfaadl R
(@mra srgEd)
Feg Nod Hul fafice

10 JUY oI UAd dTel 10,00,00,000 Yof U< gfdadh R
T4 10 TUY oI UAd dTel 2,50,00,000 Yo U< a9 IRR

BREIR IR Yefd Hu-l fafics, 10 $UQ S drel
17,00,00,000 & 3fFCT Yoid: yed IRR

PUISTH Neld HU TS 10 BUU I TdD
dTel 8,10,00,000 YoT Uew gfdadl IR

T&g a2l ¥aId S fafics, 10 3¢ Jod U arel
5,50,00,000 Jof Ted gfda RR

3 Gfhar verd wuh ferfice 10 TUY oI U dTel
18,90,00,000 YT W< Sfdacl R Td

He—d Ul A qul yed sfaadl IR

(ergEa o) (@ U @ arrg 9 e T38)

gTs At Yol BpRunyA 3t sfear fofics
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e & forg @fdd ¥RR e geRIfT

BREYR IR Yad HuHl fafics

9  JAgfafer o ik fiw

(@) o1 HATTT A IR (el TRASHN) (SUTid
TR IHMET TE) (RIGRIET HT 98k |qHN AT 2 )

(@) Yo FAerd W aRgerd (0 ¥ g uREIe)
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|HST ST B) el 3ol | aeri
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(@) wfergfa SRR
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31.03.2015 &I

< (3)

100,00,00,000
170,00,00,000
81,00,00,000
55,00,00,000

189,00,00,000

10,74,110

—9595.10.74.110

46,01,7,00,332

8,924,731

96,12,360
3,36,37,104
4,65,38,74,527

4,78,43,69,903
1,75,61,35,640
(79,25,45,051)
(7,6,33,21,881)

31.03.2014 HI

R (])

169,97,50,000

R (3)

100,00,00,000
2,50,000
81,00,00,000
55,00,00,000

80,71,73,250

5,00,000

169,97,50,000

486,76,73,250

4,37,47,77,714

1,30,45,298
5,86,56,204
4,44,64,79,216

534,59,53,059

56,15,83,156
4,78,43,69,903



S. Particulars
No.

8

Rupees ()

Non-currentinvestment

Fully paid up Equity Share in Incorporated
Joint Ventures (unquoted-at-cost)

Kutch Railways Company Limited
10,00,00,000 Equity Share of 10 Each fully paid up &
2,50,00,000 Bonus Shares of 10 Each fully paid up

Haridaspur Paradip Railways Company Limited, 17,00,00,000
Equity Share of 310 Each fully paid up

Krishnapatnam Railways Company Limited, 8,10,00,000
Equity Share of 310 Each fully paid up

Bharuch Dahej Railways Company Limited, 5,50,00,000 Equity
Share of 310 Each fully paid up

Angul Sukinda Railways Company Limited,
18,90,00,000 Equity Share of ¥10 Each fully paid up &

Fully paid up Equity Share in Subsidiary Company (unquoted-at-cost)
(Out of Company's Fund)

High Speed Rail Corporation of India Limited
1,07,411 Equity share of 10 Each fully paid up
Share Application Money pending Allotment
Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company Limited

Long Term Loans & Advances

Recoverable from Ministry of Railways( For On Going Projects)
(Interest Accrued but not due)(Unsecured, considered good)

Recoverable from Ministry of Railways (Competed Projects)
(Interest -Completed Projects)(Unsecured, considered good)

Employees Loan & Advances
Security Deposits

. Other Non-Current Assets

Lease Receivables

Opening Balance

Add: Transfer during the Period

Less: Adjustment during the year

Less: Repayment to be made within 12 months

as at March 31, 2015

Rupees(3)

1,00,00,00,000

1,70,00,00,000
81,00,00,000

55,00,00,000

1,89,00,00,000

10,74,110

5,95,10,74,110

46,01,7,00,332
8,924,731

96,12,360
3,36,37,104
4,65,38,74,527

4,78,43,69,903
1,75,61,35,640
(79,25,45,051)
(7,6,33,21,881)

4,98,46,38,611

ClEERIEI

BB ~AnnuvAL REPORT

] 2014-2015

as at March 31, 2014

Amount (%)

169,97,50,000

Amount (%)

1,00,00,00,000

2,50,000
81,00,00,000

55,00,00,000
80,71,73,250

5,00,000

1,69,97,50,000

4,86,76,73,250

4,37,47,77,714

1,30,45,298
5,86,56,204
4,44,64,79,216

534,59,53,059

56,15,83,156
4,78,43,69,903
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foazor 01.04.2014
P ALY
<R R)
re], aRATSHT HRf
fafaer ort
et 1811,19,56,762
fafae ord 184,23,86,092
IRAG IRATST T 72,61,81,059
SYPBRVT Telic Yd AT 17,50,83,196
BT 889,64,30,882
a1 134,43,41,491
SGED] 2932,50,59,458
fawga feoie wa solif~af (Rafaer)  94,058,420.89
A Had 503,34,00,705
wa Rifaa a1 (@) 6554,88,98,066
e td gREAR &l
[EXSERSSIERRERENLERINI 24,77,21,684
REMa sgawen 261,22,01,279
AR FavAT 8,70,92,387
el vd REaR ard 495,75,61,272
Fd RAe td qRE9R &1 (@)  790,45,76,622
sdfdgda o
NG RECRIER 362,74,59,927
foRqga fSome wd SonfaR (geifdgaen) 20,527,512.49
RRURT fagd Su=aw 913,88,47,418
Fd safdgda s (1) 1278,68,34,857

femtor srafer & <9 smelRwe <@g

319y 141,73,54,454
IR e yegel e

IRIATSTHT Tdee oRet 366,489,558
YAl BT T vd AR TR 32,936,160

frmior safr & SRM g
ATHRH I

TeY: J7H JavelT WR &ref

3[E AHRDT II BT TAD
gRATSHT wR fHY 1Y @4 @ Igura
¥ gRatermet &1 fawra (=)

181,67,80,172

261,905,286
155,48,74,886

@ faerm fom fafies
Rail Vikas Nigam Limited

01.04.2014 9
31.03.2015 AP

aiftrgfe
1R R)

569,03,52,432

(184,173,273)

26,19,70,048

132,487,618

284,03,76,180
36,92,68,359
869,95,07,728
3,12,32,111
231,84,97,042
2015,95,18,246

5,72,893
123,16,69,861
1,52,69,661
54,37,77,739
179,12,90,154

116,09,82,692

2,86,52,080
244,67,18,435
363,63,53,208

67,73,09,948
3,79,76,019

71,52,85,967

44,87,79,272
26,65,06,695

01.04.2014 @
31.03.2015 AP

SaRa aRAISIY

<fA (3)

49,24,65,948

46,37,57,878
1,20,03,014

121,782,070
458,871,838

(62,790,560)

1,834,131,766
4,489,434
743,717,844
4,068,429,232

3,666,481
146,981,624
1,217,983
273,833,808
425,699,896

19,71,38,522

11,84,26,559
31,55,65,081

11,32,81,305

7,22,83,423
2,775,500

18,83,40,228

6,627,055
18,17,13,173

31 9,
2015 B

<A (3)

2330,98,43,246
119,44,54,941
97,61,48,093
18,57,88,744
1127,79,35,225
177,64,00,410
3619,04,35,420
12,08,01,098
660,81,79,903
8163,99,87,080

24,46,28,096
369,68,89,516
10,11,44,065
522,75,05,203
927,01,66,880

459,13,04,097
4,91,79,593
1146,71,39,295
1610,76,22,985

144,15,93,581

60,50,26,525
3,52,00,519

208,18,20,625

44,21,52,217
1,639,668,408

31 9,
2014 &I

f (3)

1811,19,56,762
184,23,86,092
72,61,81,059
17,50,83,196
889,64,30,882
134,43,41,491
2932,50,59,458
9,40,58,421
503,34,00,705
6554,88,98,066

24,77,21,684
261,22,01,279
8,70,92,387
495,75,61,272
790,45,76,622

362,74,59,927
2,05,27,512
913,88,47,418
1278,68,34,857

141,73,54,454
0
36,64,89,558
3,29,36,160

181,67,80,172

26,19,05,286
155,48,74,886



| Particulars
No.

11 Project Work-in-Progress

1 Civil Works
Bridges
Civil Works
Preliminary Project Expenditure
Equipments Plants and Machinery
Formation
Land
Permanent Way
Detailed Design & Engineering (Civil)
Station Buildings
Total Civil Work (A)

2 S &TWork
Detailed Design & Engineering
Signaling Arrangement
Telecommunication Arrangement
Signaling & Telecom Works
Total S & T Work (B)

3  Electrical Works
General Electrification

Opening Balance
as at 01.04.2014

Rupees(3)

1811,19,56,762
184,23,86,092
72,61,81,059
17,560,83,196
889,64,30,882
134,43,41,491
2932,50,59,458
94,058,420.89
503,34,00,705
6554,88,98,066

24,77,21,684
261,22,01,279
8,70,92,387
495,75,61,272
790,45,76,622

362,74,59,927

Detailed Design & Engineering (Electrical) 20,527,512.49

Overhead Electric Equipment
Total Electrical Work (C )

4  Incidental Expenditure during
Construction Period

Opening Balance
Project related Direct Expenditure
Project management Consultancy

Direction & General Charges to Railways

Total Incidental Expenditure
During Construction Period

Less: Interest on Mobilisation Advance

Net Incidental expenditure Apportioned
to Projects in the ratio of spending on

individual projects to
project expenditure (D)

913,88,47,418
1278,68,34,857

141,73,54,454

366,489,558
32,936,160
181,67,80,172

261,905,286
155,48,74,886

Addition from
01.04.2014 to
31.03.2015

Rupees()

569,03,52,432
(184,173,273)
26,19,70,048
132,487,618
284,03,76,180
36,92,68,359
869,95,07,728
3,12,32,111
231,84,97,042
2015,95,18,246

5,72,893
123,16,69,861
1,52,69,661
54,37,77,739
179,12,90,154

116,09,82,692

2,86,52,080
244,67,18,435
363,63,53,208

67,73,09,948
3,79,76,019
71,52,85,967

44,87,79,272
26,65,06,695

Project Transferred

from 1.4.2014 to
31.03.2015

Rupees(3)

49,24,65,948
46,37,57,878
1,20,03,014
121,782,070
458,871,838
(62,790,560)
1,834,131,766
4,489,434
743,717,844
4,068,429,232

3,666,481
146,981,624
1,217,983
273,833,808
425,699,896

19,71,38,522

11,84,26,559
31,55,65,081

11,32,81,305

7,22,83,423
2,775,500
18,83,40,228

6,627,055
18,17,13,173

ClIEENTEI

BB ~AnnuvAL REPORT

[ | 2014-2015
As at March As at March
31, 2015 31,2014
Rupees() Rupees(3)
2330,98,43,246  1811,19,56,762
119,44,54,941 184,23,86,092
97,61,48,093 72,61,81,059
18,57,88,744 17,50,83,196
1127,79,35,225  889,64,30,882
177,64,00,410  134,43,41,491
3619,04,35,420  2932,50,59,458
12,08,01,098 9,40,58,421
660,81,79,903  503,34,00,705
8163,99,87,080 6554,88,98,066
24,46,28,096 24,77,21,684
369,68,89,516  261,22,01,279
10,11,44,065 8,70,92,387
522,75,05,203  495,75,61,272
927,01,66,880  790,45,76,622
459,13,04,097  362,74,59,927
4,91,79,593 2,05,27,512
1146,71,39,295  913,88,47,418
1610,76,22,985 1278,68,34,857
144,15,93,581 141,73,54,454
0
60,50,26,525 36,64,89,558
3,52,00,519 3,29,36,160
208,18,20,625  181,67,80,172
44,21,52,217 26,19,05,286
1,639,668,408  155,48,74,886
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@ faerm fom fafies
ﬂ Rail Vikas Nigam Limited

5 I
e dfed =
& RIS e o
Fd 7 (9)

g fFEomie aRaresTg
e forfa arh & S

01.04.2014
Bl AN

<R (R)
40,26,73,572

457,21,07,541
497,47,81,113

9276,99,65,546

7,60,725

Herg: falRd uRarerer w aRfaiRa efa 1,64,700

¥ W e @ fag ga fafomels 9276,90,40,121

TRATSg

01.04.2014 9
31.03.2015 A

231,68,83,467

2817,05,51,769
1,500

2817,05,50,269

01.04.2014 @ 31 9T,
31.03.2015 d& 2015 &I
IaflRa gRATSG

128,163,606
218,87,19,861

< (3) <3 (3)
- 53,08,37,178
23,40,08,012 652,68,19,390
23,40,08,012 705,76,56,568

522,54,15,394  11571,51,01,921

411,539 350,686
67,013,283 67,177,983
529,20,17,138  11564,75,73,252

31 9T,
2014 BI

f3 (3)
40,26,73,572

457,21,07,541
497,47,81,113

9276,99,65,546

7,60,725
1,64,700

9276,90,40,121

1 W e & forg fafe=T e Nell g1 Fafera wiidieRvil @l fhy 73 Jrar @l are] Fmior st Henfae o = € | 59 a1 & fog
G 3177,64,00,410 (TSl I8 7134,43,41,491) BT YA AT AT & | 9 YHR 3 I A Ha ST &g Yeld & 719 WR Tl 2 |

2 BUH gRT el HATHI & URATSIIRI &1 fwre faar S 3871 2 | 379 9 8 uRIASAY Ul 8 578 URM # Uil &l SxidRd faar ram
W%Bﬂwﬁﬁﬁmmﬁmwaﬁ?ﬁwuhﬂﬁwaﬁswmwﬁmwmﬁmsﬂwwﬁrmaﬁﬁ%ﬁlWFﬁEﬁ

TS Ugel 39 URIISRIT U A ST el Yol gRT & &1 T3 1137 BT odl # 781 9 T 2 |
3 U & IR TTel URWURT, T 3R 1A & e, AT e ool Rerftr # gore us # SfeatRad Jou & & 78 81 |
4 RRET @1 26! & TR M @aReN & 7Y < =TS ®1 Rebar] SHaR| I &l SR8 8 |”

5 & Nl DI G URASHT & AU/ <Te] 81 ST 1R ST8] URATSTT & fofg g =03 faxiia a¥ & ofd 3§ BRI &1 Y1 anTd & HF A &F
95 UfIerd &, 59 ol H uRASIHIY & faxii 3fa=er ®1 gof 81 gavl aRATSHIR & SfAR0T & fofg Nl #aTerd & i 17.12.2013 & FYad
Ugfr aMeT & URT5.1.1 B AU H b AT E |

&. faaxor
9.
12 <R g™
(@) ©: 78 | AF
SRIRIETT fbg IBR AHST ST &
(@) =1 (8: AIg A F)
SRIRETT fhg I8TR AqHST ST
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b)Y ¢4 qHged
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(i) dp—gi-Ts
(i) trerefy
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|

31 W, 2015 &1

<f (3)

61,87,15,823

129,04,90,730
190,92,06,553

101,88,62,384
704,00,00,000

9,92,932
805,98,55,316

31 9, 2014 &I

R (3)

37,26,07,957

25,26,36,138
62,52,44,095

158,25,76,160
646,00,00,000
68,49,38,000
9,79,140
872,84,93,300



S

No.
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EUEENTEIC

BB ~AnnuvAL REPORT

[ | 2014-2015
Particulars Opening Balance  Addition from Project Transferred  As at March As at March
as at 01.04.2014 01.04.2014 to from 1.4.2014 to 31, 2015 31,2014
31.03.2015 31.03.2015

Others
Expenditure Pending Allocation 40,26,73,572 128,163,606 - 53,08,37,178 40,26,73,572
Management fees 457,21,07,541 218,87,19,861 23,40,08,012 652,68,19,390  457,21,07,541
Total Others (E) 497,47,81,113 231,68,83,467 23,40,08,012 705,76,56,568  497,47,81,113
Total Project Work in Progress 9276,99,65,546  2817,05,51,769 522,54,15,394  11571,51,01,921  9276,99,65,546
Less: Credit from Release Material 7,60,725 1,500 411,539 350,686 7,60,725
Less: Deposit ( LD, Penalty & Misc Deposit) 1,64,700 - 67,013,283 67,177,983 1,64,700
Net Project Work in Progress for MOR  9276,90,40,121  2817,05,50,269 529,20,17,138  11564,75,73,252  9276,90,40,121

Projects

Land costincluded in Project Work in Progress represents payments made through various Zonal Railways/ to concerned authority for the purpose
of acquisition of land. The total payment made amounts to¥177,64,00,410 (Previous year: ¥134,43,41,491).The land so acquired is in the name
of the concerned Zonal Railway.

The Company is executing projects assigned by MOR . In some of the projects, initially transferred to the Company, work was already in progress
and some of the Zonal Railways had incurred expenditure on those projects prior to their transfer to the Company. The expenditure made by the
concerned Railways prior to the formation of the Company has not been taken into account.

In the opinion of the Management, the value of current assets, loans and advances on realization in the ordinary course of business, will not be less
than the value at which these have been stated in the Balance Sheet.

Interest on mobilization Advance, recovered from the Contractors as per the terms and conditions of the contract, is being credited to the project.

In Compliance of para 5.1.1 of joint procedure order of MoR dated 17/12/2013 for transfer of completed projects financial transfers of projects
have been carried out in the accounts after handing over / commissioning of the full project to the Zonal Railway and where the expenditure booked
againstthe project atthe end of the financial year s atleast 95 % of the latest anticipated cost of the work.

Particulars as at March 31, 2015 as at March 31, 2014
Rupees(3) Amount ()
Trade Receivables
More than 6 months
Unsecured-Considered good 61,87,15,823 37,26,07,957
Other (less than 6 months)
Unsecured-Considered good 129,04,90,730 25,26,36,138
190,92,06,553 62,52,44,095
Cash and Bank Balances
Cash and Cash Equivalent
Balances with Bank
-- Current Account 101,88,62,384 158,25,76,160
-- Fixed Deposits (Maturity less than 3 Months) 704,00,00,000 646,00,00,000
Cheque-in-Hand - 68,49,38,000
Imprest 9,92,932 9,79,140
805,98,55,316 872,84,93,300
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31 9, 2015 &1
f3A (%)

485,00,00,000
4,850,000,000
1290,98,55,316

159,07,51,201

545,499,372
3,68,99,993
6,99,97,065

41,80,678
26,31,88,848
13,62,07,950

264,67,25,107

92,57,00,507
124,81,36,448
266,68,04,431
380,09,28,297
-864.15.69.683

56,15,83,156
76,33,21,881
572,733,724
75,21,71,313

31 W, 2014 &I

T3 (3)

356,00,00,000
356,00,00,000
1228,84,93,300

217,23,63,489

10,47,50,408
4,23,63,241
21,57,375
21,36,29,701
4,51,62,737
-258,04,26,951

65,58,51,822
104,61,73,445
336,02,94,756
203,38,18,388
709,61,38.411

56,15,83,156

956,15,83,156
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S. Particulars as at March 31, 2015 as at March 31, 2014
No. Rupees(3) Rupees(3)
Other Bank Balances
(i) Balances with Bank
Term Deposit in Schedule Bank 485,00,00,000 356,00,00,000
4,850,000,000 356,00,00,000
1290,98,55,316 1228,84,93,300
14 Short Term Loan & Advances
Advance Receivable in Cash or in kind or for value
to be Received:(Unsecured, considered good)
(a) Recoverable from Ministry of Railway (Interest) 159,07,51,201 217,23,63,489
(On going Projects)
(b) Recoverable from Ministry of Railway (Completed Projects) 545,499,372 -
(c) Interest accrued on Fixed Deposit 3,68,99,993 10,47,50,408
(d) Interest accrued on Mobilization Advance 6,99,97,065 4,23,63,241
(e) Security Deposit 41,80,678 21,57,375
(f) Advance Tax and Tax Deducted at Source 26,31,88,848 21,36,29,701
(9) Others 13,62,07,950 4,51,62,737
264,67,25,107 258,04,26,951
15 Advances for Project Work
(a) Advances to Zonal Railways 92,57,00,507 65,58,51,822
(b) Advances for Sleepers 124,81,36,448 104,61,73,445
(c) Mobilisation Advances 266,68,04,431 336,02,94,756
(d) Other Advances 380,09,28,297 203,38,18,388
864,15,69,683 709,61,38,411
16 Other Current Assets
Lease Receivables
Opening Balance 56,15,83,156 -
Add: Transfer during the Period 76,33,21,881 56,15,83,156
Less: Repayment to be made within 12 months 572,733,724
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ﬂ @ fawma o fafes

. faaxor 31.03.2015 & 3d A AT 31.03.2014 & 3d ¥ APbs
. IR (?) <R (7) IRy (7) IR (?)
17 aR=re= | XIoia:

(arey, Frefor &f (afRarsEn
Tfafaferr) @ eHanax

- HAT URATSHIRT | 2425,63,45,480 1925,91,77,258

-l HATerT Tl gRATSTISI 3 351,89,33,068 297,23,75,292

-l HATTT T IRATSTRI o 11,60,19,730 2,51,59,007

- ol FATerd aRESHIR ¥ (@E Yot gy

fyefee) | 279,251,991 92,96,25,958

-feg Bt & — uRareT (Tedid) 273,14,22,238 135,63,46,344

-8 B 9 — gRaEeT @ ) 51,77,22,431 3141,96,94,938 38,09,77,480 2492,36,61,338
3141,96,94,938 2492,36,61,338
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3 oY fafaer wrfeat ot o gd BT arer § sfee fear g |
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3= AT
() =TSt 3
— §& —IFHd 82,37,17,839 75,56,47,315
— b 6,96,02,457 89,33,20,296 11,29,97,871 86,86,45,186
(T) AT 3T 5,00,00,000 17,50,00,000
(1) fafder sz 1,71,90,342 74,31,223
96,05,10,638 105,10,76,409
3T W 9T =Tl § fA9Y gAie aRAtsERn (Tadid)) & 1 96T IR uR YTW STl afEferd @ |
gRETe T &
(Frfor 3z aRatsT wafea wfafafery ur ucuer @)
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2890,81,14,305 2310,22,61,029

15

. DU GRT SR QT & ffa @re] fFrafor BRIt U= U @ @1 UgaTe Soil+1aR & |19 Ud Siid JHIOTIS & d18 & f6ar 1ar 2 |

X AT DI GRASTARIT TR HUA BT AR A &1 ¥l gRT RIS {T7E IR S 1R B T0MT Haererd &= Xei | UTaq Sar=ial
R fAaROT & 3R TR T ST 8 3R BIgel & fIaRor YT 27 S OR Jidde & f21d & Ararainforg o Sar |

i 99 & SR gRATSAIY S ATARITT & fofg @iet <1 718 & / FT=7aT SRl ORT 81 Gl & 31k el &l U @1 7T 9 3522,50,03,855 (fUset
TY 31912,78,12,305) & | IGH X HATSTA & Al A 0N g1 81 gl uRATSTIa1 @1 B 3346,88,68,216 (Uwel a¥ 71212,65,06,175)
IR IRFAM gRT farafde 175,61,35,640 (et 9 %700,13,06,130) 2 |

Xl HATAT B gRATSTI & forg fOxiia Fararesi & ga u= # Haer: uRarer o (gon) ik aRRarerr a1fim (goi i) # sy faan
7 & gReIAawY FoT ARl &ik are] uRASTT Bl # 2522,50,03,855 (fUBel I 700,13,06,130) @ HHI 3173 31X ofiel UM & w9 H
Tegou! URATRTIT BT Gorv Yel HATe §IRT 3 w0 AU U Ugfy 317 iR oot & oy oareRor A1a] & g fhar 1 |

Ffs il N B Geye BRIl B Bt o1 A9 2, fxiia e &1 fafdy & are aRAsHRil 1R 98+ foan 711 9g ol =1 84 & Hay |
RUTE TUR BRA & FHI TR fhaT SITga |

0
|




O
EUEENTEIC

BB ~AnnuvAL REPORT
B 2014-2015

S. Particulars Figures for the year ended 31.03.2015 Figures for the year ended 31.03.2014
No. Rupees (3) Rupees (3) Rupees () Rupees (3)
17 Revenue from Operation:

(Turnover from Construction Work in

Progress (Project Activity))

- From MoR Projects 2425,63,45,480 1925,91,77,258

- From MoR Metro Projects 351,89,33,068 297,23,75,292

- From MoR National Projects 11,60,19,730 2,51,59,007

- From MoR Projects (Executed by Zonal

Railways) 279,251,991 92,96,25,958

- From Deposit Work - Projects ( SPV) 273,14,22,238 135,63,46,344

- From Deposit Work - Project (Others) 51,77,22,431 3141,96,94,938 38,09,77,480 2492,36,61,338

3141,96,94,938

2492,36,61,338

In accordance with Railway Board’s letter No. 2004/W-1/RVNL/15 dated 04.01.2012 RVNL has accounted Consolidated Management fee @ 9.25% in
case of Metro Projects, 8.5% in case of Other Plan Heads and 10% in case of National Projects on the expenditure incurred by RVNL on MoR projects. As
per the directions of MoR, all expenditure in the nature of consultancies related to Project Management are being charged directly to project. D&G charges
payable to Railway up to 0.25 % of cost of projects are allocated to the projects on actual funds released to the respective Zonal Railway, Expenditure
incurred on D&G (Supervision) are being charged to the Profit & Loss account. The miscellaneous receipts from sale proceeds of Tender and other

income has been credited to the P&L account.

18 Otherincome
(a) Interestincome
-Banks - Gross 82,37,17,839 75,56,47,315
- Others - Gross 6,96,02,457 89,33,20,296 11,29,97,871 86,86,45,186
(b) Dividend income: 5,00,00,000 17,50,00,000
(c)MiscIncome 1,71,90,342 74,31,223
96,05,10,638 105,10,76,409
Interest from others" includes interest from Special Purpose Vehicles (SPVs) against balances outstanding.
19 Expenses on Operations
(Direct Expenses on Construction and Project related Activity)
-Incurred on MoR Projects 2238,73,90,218 1783,47,71,969
-Incurred on MoR Metro Projects 320,97,15,718 272,07,09,649
-Incurred on MoR National Projects 10,54,72,482 2,28,71,824
-Incurred on Projects (Zonal Railway) 279,251,991 92,96,25,958
-Incurred on Deposit Work - Projects (SPV) 244.81,99,531 124,39,15,366
- Incurred on Deposit Work - Projects ( Others) 47,80,84,366 2890,81,14,305 35,03,66,263 2310,22,61,029

2890,81,14,305 2310,22,61,029
Expenditure on Work in Progress against contracts awarded by the Company is recognized on completion of measurements and testing certified by
the Engineer.
Expenditure of execution of projects done by the Zonal Railways on behalf of the Company on MOR projects is accounted for on the basis of
statement of estimated expenditure received from respective Zonal Railways and is adjusted allocation-wise as and when the final expenditure
statementis received.
The value of projects commissioned / completed and put to use by Railways during financial year are ¥522,50,03,855 (Previous year
$1912,78,12,305). Out of the same, the value of completed projects funded through MOR sources are of ¥346,88,68,216 (previous year
%1212,65,06,175) and IRFC funded are 0f%175,61,35,640 (previous yearZ700,13,06,130).The financial adjustments for MoR projects have been
carried out against Project Advance (Capital) and Project Advance (Capital Fund) respectively in the Balance Sheet leading to a reduction in Loan
Funds and Project Work in Progress to the tune of ¥522,50,03,855 (previous year31912,78,12,305 ).Further with regard to IRFC funded projects,
Project Work in Progress has been reduced by the amount of ¥175,61,35,640 (Previous Year 700,13,06,130) and corresponding asset as Lease
Receivable has been created in accordance with the procedure order finalized by MoR and in accordance with Accounting Standard for lease.As
some minor works may still be required, the expenditure incurred on projects subsequent to the date of financial adjustments will be cleared at the
time of drawing the completion reports. "
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. faaxor 31.03.2015 & 3d A ATPhs 31.03.2014 & 3d ¥ APbs
o3 Ry (?) IR (?) R (7) <RI (7)

4 fafafer & o 9T & ifaTaor A aRATSRIT ST W fded fhy S+ Ia gA9evr iR AR W) 98+ {6y 17 & &f voId 91 &
faT® 04.01.2012 & U 9. 2004 / Se=—1 /XA / 15, &1 Xl & @7 B1 BT & Ue+ IR MR RGN UG & AR FHIe
P TS B | FeTT w1l (TANEY &fR o) IR A wTe e el 39 Wi WX g8 fhar a1 @ @ Ud '1f faRor # giRe fhar e 2 |

20 HHAR) faderT =g

(@) 9T 3R T 63,28,86,427 51,65,89,984
(@) wfasy e va o1 Ffdt # Arre= 3,06,35,654 2,76,47,731
(IT) HHEARY HeTT T 8,50,66,490 2,98,26,755
74,85,88,571 57,40,64,470
21 Iy
(@) fasTelt vd e 1,39,19,326 1,37,69,725
(@) famman 3,46,57,105 2,48,36,180
(1) &R UG R (TTDBR BT BISDHR) 10,000 2,000
(@) fafqer g 47,53,602 1,53,62,625
(S) T WEd] Bl I
(i) o Tt & U H 505,620 370,788
(ii) TR Haeft At @& forg 196,630 112,360
(if) ar=y <yamait @ forg 140,450 84,270
(iv) 3= =g 78,079 75,600
(@) fa=Iu= 3R @R fauor 3,07,00,566 2,64,16,173
() TfReirorT e awret 4,63,16,130 4,10,28,282
(1) FifeT 3R e n 1,95,40,309 1,75,01,077
(1) ATATATT Yd LA B 1,93,68,810 1,84,95,672
(31) §aR 2,15,78,252 2,20,29,202
(€) gI@ UG 3Mafid 1,76,221 1,48,680
(c) qd orafy 7 - 57,17,794
SRENEr AR ENEN . 3
(@) ST SR YRR TR 1,94,07,305 1,42,25,638
(oT) TR B 2,04,21,109 1,23,24,761
@) o= =g 2,74,45,920 1,68,48,958
(@1) &= XAt BT SIS 29,00,000 4,80,000

(@) IRFA & T R =Tt (T 81 Fao! aiRaATeT) 55,44,24,103
ged: AR | FoT R FAed dr st (55,44,24,103) -
26,21,15,433 22,98,29,785

SR afvfd raf & forg WA o1 R <7 =t / IHT, Vol HATe 9 a¥el 9 AR/ 9RMAM @ 93, T 81 gat / siaRkd aRkaresr —
3T TTHR— e RITI—aTe!, T § o faar T g |

22 108 fRenfewl & IR 3= g

(@) TR U YOI 4,54,47,097 5,27,12,644

(@) ¥R (feel av) - -

(1) 3TRIET JiR faem e 1,02,88,002 1,23,54,686

HeTG: T GolT B 1 s (9,047,602) (7,527,894)
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Figures for the year ended 31.03.2014
Rupees (3) Rupees (3)

4. With the rationalisation of the revenue stream of RVNL, the expenses incurred on supervision and monitoring directly allocable to the projects have
been reviewed in terms of Railway Board 's letter no 2004/W-1/RVNL/15 dated 04/01/2012, the pattern of booking of expenditure on Zonal Railways
and general accounting practises.The expenditure incurred on this account related to execution of Deposit Works (for SPV and others) have been

20

21

chargedto the Statement of Profitand Loss.
Employee benefits expense

(a) Salaries and Wages

(b) Contribution to Provident & Other Funds
(c) Staff Welfare Expenses.

Other Expenses
(a) Power & Fuel

b) Rent

c) Rates & Taxes (excluding Income Tax)
d) Miscellaneous Expenditure

e) Paymentto Auditors

(i) As Auditor

(ii) For Taxation Matters

(iii) For Other Services

iv) For Expenses

f) Advertisement and Business Promotion
g) Project Management Consultancy

h) Printing and Stationery

i) Travelling & Local Conveyance

j) Communication

k) Books & Periodicals

) Prior Period Items

(m) Professional Fees Consultancy

(m) Legal and Professional Charges

(n) Consultant Fee

(o) Other expenses

(p) D & Gto Zonal Railway

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(q) Intereston Loan from IRFC (Compete Project)
Less: Interest receivable from MoR on loan from IRFC

63,28,86,427
3,06,35,654
8,50,66,490
74,85,88,571

1,39,19,326
3,46,57,105
10,000
47,53,602

505,620
196,630
140,450
78,079
3,07,00,566
4,63,16,130
1,95,40,309
1,93,68,810
2,15,78,252
1,76,221

1,94,07,305
2,04,21,109
2,74,45,920
29,00,000

55,44,24,103
(55,44,24,103) -
26,21,15,433

51,65,89,984
2,76,47,731
2,98,26,755

1,37,69,725
2,48,36,180

2,000
1,53,62,625

370,788
112,360
84,270
75,600
2,64,16,173
4,10,28,282
1,75,01,077
1,84,95,672
2,20,29,202
1,48,680
57,17,794
1,42,25,638
1,23,24,761
1,68,48,958
4,80,000

22,98,29,785

Interest/ payable on IRFC Loan for the above mentioned period, recoverable from MOR/ payable to IRFC, for completed/ transferred project - i.e. Ajmer-
Phulera-Ringus-Rewari GC, has been disclosed .

22

Other Expenses as per DPE Guidelines

(a) CSR Expenses & Sustainability Expenses
(b) CSR Expenses (Previous Year)

(c) Research & Development Expenses
Less: Transferred to Projectfor R&D

Less: Transferred to Capital Working Progress

4,54,47,097

1,02,88,002

(9,047,602)
4,66,87,497

5,27,12,644

1,23,54,686

(7,527,894)
5,75,39,436
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23 ety fmfor ot (Tl va ar=)

231 THUET iR 3= ufiféAt g1 by S v fFaior Sl 7 ferg fFEior Rl 7M1 TR © | $9 UBR B RIS & "Ml § dagul are]
RGN 1R SRR BT Ugamd 39 WR Py 7T Wigd W AR THdeTT THR & AR WR {HAT 777 & | 9T 37 Bl 21ey, STriamaii #
SRITAT 7T & AT YRATSTT T & PH1ROT a1 R137 1 fAfde o7 & wu H feerar 1 & |

232 &y i vadfidy frefor sl @) arm:

faaxor 31 ®Td, 2015 & G 98 § | 31 A, 2014 B GHCG 8 F
®) ®)
e i erif & arra 292,62,83,897 159,42,81,629
Wpd ™ /B 32,28,60,772 14,30,42,195
urd 13 331,69,05,986 188,62,13,102
SYHIEIRT §RT < i IRT 190,92,06,553 62,52,44,095
I8 P TS AR bl e i 1859,79,93,639 1567,17,09,742
Wpd ™ /I B A en 167,09,27,726 134,80,66,954

24. q&H, oY Ud 7egd Sed

BT DT MYfTrdiall | e, 7Y MR Heam e faar a1fifam, 2005 & i S7iat SRad waell Yo et 981 g8 2 | o a¥ & 3fd
F T BT Y/ < et AR o1 IR, Af BIE 81, BT Seord, SiaTfe g9 Afdf e # srfera 2, adw wwa # AR wE 2

25. faqefigardi =

faaxor 31 AT, 2015 DI GATWT 9% F | 31 HE, 2014 DI GHATWT 98 F
®) ®)

T I 29,86,520 4422,062

qRATSHT Yo IRTH 7,30,70,467 37,47,331

26. ATHIHH TR

HUH ERT 01 & B H T HH Y G $ BRU ShaR| §RT Y T0 «7dl B ey F SAebReAD IRAAT _682,33,39,602 (wet I
%160,07,75,130 ) 2 | BIs I1aT A B URATTAT AT BT 91T 999071 & I S AT FATg Sl gRT Gl ST |

27. gl fdagan

ACI—H eIl DhIFIelal @ foTq YoiiTd Ufadegdr 279,265,729 (sl a9 ¥57,00,000)% |

27.1 3= yufaagdr

IRATST @1 & Uil |IERTa a1 & foy ufdragar ¥1137,03,40,000 (freel a¥ %102,1143,43,00,000 ) © |

28. gD yRsnfie

faaxor 31 AT, 2015 DI GHATWT 9% § | 31 A, 2014 D GHATWT 98 F
®) ®)

ERERCE il 2,33,67,583 2,90,82,159

gfasy A vg e fAf 12,14,662 14,38,366

29. 3mHe ufd Ex:

U RIR 3He= B T B & fo1u feferRad Toret Ud 3rfierae! o SuaiT fbar 1 &:

ST (81es) (M)

faaxor 31 #1d, 2015 B WA 99 A | 31 A, 2014 Bl GHG 99 A
®) ®)

IRYRT BT Y I aret o (%) (@) 185,71,46,622 157,42,09,873

99 & T H <> qa gfdac IRRI BV AT 208,50,20,100 208,50,20,100

|1 (3133) (W)

9§ & 3 H ghrar IIRT sfFad! IR & fa 208,50,20,100 208,50,20,100

3fFd IRR F1 Sifad e

10

10

gfdr ¥RR Hal S (@ /)

0.89

0.76
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23.1  Works being executed for SPVs and others parties are treated as a Deposit Work. The corresponding current assets and liabilities in respect of
such projects have been recognized on the basis of expenditure incurred plus supervision charges as agreed. The advance received is disclosed

under Current Liabilities and the amount recoverable on account of project execution under Sundry Debtors.

23.2 Costsincurred on Deposit and SPV Works:

Particulars Year Ended March 31,2015 Year Ended March 31,2014
R) R)
Costs incurred for Deposit Works 292,62,83,897 159,42,81,629
Recognized Profit/Loss 32,28,60,772 14,30,42,195
Advance received 331,69,05,986 188,62,13,102
Gross Amount due from Customers 190,92,06,553 62,52,44,095
Cumulative amount of costs incurred 1859,79,93,639 1567,17,09,742
Cumulative amount of recognized Profit/Loss 167,09,27,726 134,80,66,954

24. Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

The Company has not received any intimation from “Suppliers” regarding their status under the Micro, Small and medium enterprises
Development Act, 2005 and hence disclosures, if any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the year-end together with interest paid/payable as required

underthe said Actis notascertainable presently.
25. Expenditure in Foreign Currency

Particulars Year Ended March 31,2015 Year Ended March 31,2014
R) R)

Travel expenses 29,86,520 44,22,062

Project Management Consultancy 7,30,70,467 37,47,331

26. Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liability in respect of claims by the contractor on account of Arbitration not acknowledged as debts by the Company is 682,33,39,602
(Previous year3 160,07,75,130). Aclaimifany will be form part of the project cost and reimbursable by respective Clients.

27. Capital Commitment

Capital commitment towards Multifunctional Complexis ¥79,25,729 (Previous yearZ57,00,000).

27.1 Other Commitment

Commitment towards Contractual Payments of Projectexpenditure is¥11370,03,40,000 (Previous year ¥10211,43,00,000).

28. Managerial Remuneration

Particulars Year Ended March 31,2015 Year Ended March 31,2014
®) ®)

Salary & allowances 2,33,67,583 2,90,82,159

Provident fund and other fund 12,14,662 14,38,366

29. Earnings per Share:

The numerators and denominators used to calculate Basic Earnings per Share are:

Particulars Year Ended March 31,2015 Year Ended March 31,2014
R) R)

Profit Attributable to the shareholders ) (A) 185,71,46,622 157,42,09,873
Basic average number of Equity Shares outstanding at 208,50,20,100 208,50,20,100

end of Year (Nos.) (B)

Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding at the 208,50,20,100 208,50,20,100

end of Year (Nos.) (C)

Nominal value of Equity Shares (%) 10 10
Basic Earnings per share (%) (A/C) 0.89 0.76
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Rail Vikas Nigam Limited

30.5 Geferd gIféal & A1l FaUr BT Seadl -

faaxor MR <Y fdrt*
(#) ()
31 91, 2015 @1 31 41, 2014 &Y 31 #rd, 2015 @1 | 31 A1, 2014 &1
wH a8 #® Hr a8 #® o a8 ® T 9 ®

SR (28) HSfoetRad Gee Hifvieni & URSMAD * * * *
ARGl
IR TS LRI - 36,80,00,000
I & folq 1S YIae / <0 & 33,723,639 87,85,691
T THRNE, 1fIH IR =TSt 20,123,883 62,04,253
RIS g 155,50,06,315 72,46,08,993 29,72,64,051 136,446,556
EISIRIRSING]
IR JATIS GARTRT - 12,10,00,000
9§ & fog < PIaE /< @ 56,69,786 2,33,64,500
T THRNET, 1 IR =TSt 402,822
gRATSTT 9,58,04,306 15,30,22,503 (1,82,93,527) 19,81,51,883
E iR IRSsic
IR AT AR - -
9§ @& forw aare ﬂ'ﬂ?ﬂ?l/é?l el 2,90,53,607 808,47,680
T THAE, 1 R e 1,17,11,570 3,67,26,126
RIS g 84,19,00,532 15,71,38,480 156,74,03,372 28,59,25,678
YUHIARY T
IR 3Td ARIT 108,28,26,750 23,62,18,750
I & folq 1S A / <0 & 11,565,425 -
< THRMEY. 31 WR =Tt 15,91,397 45,84,391
RIS I 23,87,11.085 32.15,76.368 1.41.78.955 (1.50.48,232)
B1$ Wi Xol SRURTM it sfean fiffies
AR il 5,74,110 ]
HUH AT BT AT 2,38,88,644 34,83,919 2,80,34,512 47,19,978

* puyr fewel | 28 <%

** Y Hgad SeMl Bl A= aRASHRT W) 8Y Wd @1 a3k e Huil & fAfdy @1 gl 8
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30.
30.1

30.2

30.3

30.4

30.5

Related Party Disclosures (AS-18):

Joint Ventures:

Kutch Railway Company Limited

Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company Limited
Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited
Bharuch Dahej Railway Company Limited
Angul Sukinda Railway Limited

Subsidiary company

High Speed Rail Corporation of India Limited
Key Management Personnel:

Sh. S.C. Agnihotri : Managing Director

Sh. Ashok Krishna Ganiju: Director Finance
Ms. Gita Mishra : Director Personnel

Sh. Mukul Jain ; Director Operation

Sh. Vijay Anand : Director Projects
Enterprises in which Directors interest exist:
High Speed Rail Corporation of India Limited
Disclosure of transactions with related parties:

O
EUECIRIEIC

BB ~AnnuvAL REPORT
B 2014-2015

Particulars

Transactions

OQutstanding Amount**

(in%)

(in%)

Year ended
March 31, 2015

Year ended
March 31, 2014

Year ended
March 31, 2015

Year ended
March 31, 2014

Remuneration to Key Personnel (28) above

*

*

*

*

HPRCL

Investmentin Shares

Interest paid/payable for the year
"Interest on Mob. AdvancePayable"
Expenditure towards project

36,80,00,000

33,723,639

87,85,691

20,123,883

62,04,253

155,50,06,315

72,46,08,993

29,72,64,051

136,446,556

BDRCL

Investmentin Shares

Interest paid/payable for the year
Expenditure of Vadodara Office apportioned
Expenditure towards project

12,10,00,000

56,69,786

2,33,64,500

402,822

9,58,04,306

15,30,22,503

(1,82,93,527)

19,81,51,883

KPRCL

Investmentin Shares

Interest paid/payable for the year
"Interest on Mob. AdvancePayable"
Expenditure towards project

2,90,53,607

808,47,680

1,17,11,570

3,67,26,126

84,19,00,532

15,71,38,480

156,74,03,372

28,59,25,678

ASRL

Investmentin Shares

Interest paid/payable for the year
"Interest on Mob. AdvancePayable"
Expenditure towards project

108,28,26,750

23,62,18,750

11,55,425

15,91,397

45,84,391

23,87,11,085

32,15,76,368

1,41,78,955

(1,50,48,232)

High Speed Rail Corporation of India Limited

Investmentin Shares

574110

Paymenttowards expenses of company

2,38,88,644

34,83,919

2,80,34,512

47,19,978

* See note No. 28

** These represent amounts recoverable on account of expenditure incurred on various projects of Joint Ventures and Misc Expenses of Subsidiary
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Rail Vikas Nigam Limited

ﬂ @ fawma o fafes

31. §gFd ST /WYId IUHAI & Hed ¥ yHe:

YT S BT A ql AAfER, < &1 M 31 9714, 2015 I 31 914, 2014 &1
Wi &1 @i &1
srgurd stgurd
HTE Yo HU foAfics Yo fawra frm, gfear 50% 50%
Pl U gxe, SfeaT 26% 26%
HeT O THESe 20% 20%
TORIT ARPR, WRA 4% 4%
BRIYR IR YeTd BT Xd fawr frm fafacs, wRa 33.33% 48.43%
fafies (Terdiemeies) TSR (ST TRBR) 0.35% 0.66%
TR A3 U geRee foffies, IRd 5.88% 10.91%
IR U1 g% 10.00% 10.00%
®ITAT "I ferfics 5.88% 10.91%
ISEGRSGRCRICEREIE 0.98% 1.82%
el 3MRE &ffw gfear forfacs 0.98% 1.82%
Uil gfear fafics 5.40% 10.00%
wTEdid ferfice 2.94% 5.45%
aroady 14.70% -
ST TRBR 19.60% -
FUICTH NAd HI) e fawr frm fofics, Ra 30% 30%
fafics (SHemR-iTTa) OIS Ui HRUNTA fefice, wRd 30% 30%
gre-l geRgo fofics 12% 12%
T fARA Sacuie HRUNTH 15% 15%
3T U RBR 13% 13%
Wod SISl Nold HUl Yt faerg frm fafies, ara 33.33% 26.00%
fafics (fERmdTe) I UgHe (STe9) sfear urgae 10.50% 10.50%
. gfear
ToRTT WITeH 9, sfear 10.82% 10.82%
TRl v feorfics, sfear 6.06% 6.06%
SITAUHET 8.20% 8.20%
RereaT ssRew fafics, sfear 8.20% 8.20%
et Y1 SRR fafics, sfear 6.06% 6.06%
ORI SeRgdd Sdouic &1 fafics 10.82% 10.82%
gfdad &1 efax 6.00% 13.33%
ST GRraT Yor ffics a1 R P frfies, ghear 31.50% 45%
(TTHIRTA) Riger Vet vs dfar farfacs, gfear 10.00% 25%
qur Wil v dfeR fafics - 20%
IMfEAT IRBR 21.30% -
S| 10.50% -
LSRR (@ WRBR) 0.70% 10%
PITPR 26.00%
gTs s Yol PRI Yo faerny fmm fafies, sfear 100% 100%
3t Sfear forfacs

g w9 9 RGBT sl 9 Rwen 9 wdta aReukrn, i, g ok @ @1 ofid i &1 fawga @Rt fead @
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31. Disclosure in respect of Joint Venture/Subsidiary:

ClEERIEI

BB ~AnnuvAL REPORT

2014-2015

Name of the Joint Venture

Partner(s), Country of Origin

Proportion of
Ownership
Interest as at
March 31, 2015

Proportion of
Ownership
Interest as at
March 31, 2014

Corporation of India limited

Kutch Railway Company Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, India 50% 50%
Limited Kandla Port Trust, India 26% 26%
Mundra Port SEZ 20% 20%
Government of Gujarat, India 4% 4%
Haridaspur Paradip Railway Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, India 33.33% 48.43%
Company Limited ((HPRCL) IDCO ( Govt of Odisha) 0.35% 0.66%
Essel Mining and Industries Ltd., India 5.88% 10.91%
Paradeep Port Trust 10.00% 10.00%
Rungla Mines Ltd 5.88% 10.91%
Jindal Steel & Power Ltd 0.98% 1.82%
Steel Authority of India Limited 0.98% 1.82%
POSCO India Limited 5.40% 10.00%
MSPL LTD 2.94% 5.45%
0omC 14.70% -
Govt of Odisha 19.60% -
Krishnapatanam Railway Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, India 30% 30%
Company Limited (KRCL) Krishnapatnam Port Corporation Limited, India 30% 30%
Bramhany Industries Limited 12% 12%
National Mineral Development Corporation 15% 15%
Government of Andhra Pradesh 13% 13%
Bharuch Dahej Railway Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, India 33.33% 26.00%
Company Limited (BDRCL) Adani Petronet (Dahej) Port Private 10.50% 10.50%
Limited, India
Gujarat Maritime Board, India 10.82% 10.82%
Dahej SEZ Limited, India 6.06% 6.06%
GNFC 8.20% 8.20%
Hindalco Industries Limited, India 8.20% 8.20%
Jindal Rail Infrastructure Limited, India 6.06% 6.06%
Guj. Industrial Dev. Corp Ltd 10.82% 10.82%
Equity Gap 6.00% 13.33%
Angul Sukinda Railway Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, India 31.50% 45%
Limited (ASRL) Jindal Steel and Power Limited, India 10.00% 25%
Bhushan Steel & Power Ltd - 20%
Govt of Odisha 21.30% -
omC 10.50% -
IDCO ( Govt of Odisha) 0.70% 10%
CONCOR 26.00%
High Speed Rail Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, India 100% 100%

Details of the aggregate amounts of the assets, liabilities, income and expenditure related to the interest in the Jointly Controlled Entities are as

under:
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@ faerm fom fafies
ﬂ Rail Vikas Nigam Limited

B, B0 Yold Ul fafies

31 91, 2015 & GHTW

31 91, 2014 B GHIS

ad ¥ (arifom) ast 7 (3B fe)
(#) ()

URMS &g & SfaRad gREuRnrd 703,01,00,000 531,15,00,000
FIRGIY 275,55,50,000 219,68,00,000
3mA 359,34,00,000 258,87,00,000
g 225,91,00,000 177,16,00,000
aM&HRAH qIRIATg ¥ gw Rl (Uod 99 X B T8
YofiTa ufragar 3o e (fUsel 99 2 16.055 FRIS)

@. gRENYR IR Yad sul fafics

31 91, 2015 & W

31 91, 2014 B GHIS

as ¥ (arifom) af ¥ (srfera)
#) #)

RS @ & fiaRed aReufrat 171,95,87,742 227,56,27,847
IR 11,16,79,089 7,20,62,847
3 8,138 1,58,76,972
2p) 2,71,984 7,27,68,613
MBS STRIATY T e Tl ((reel a¥ % 0.46 aRrs)
YoiTa gfagdr T o e (e 993 606.79 Hrs)

. WS Xdd Hul fafics

31 91, 2015 & GHTW

31 91, 2014 B GHIS

ad ¥ (arifer) ad & (sisfera)
#) #)

URMG &g & SrfaRad gRG\uRR 184,39,45,903 147,54,55,784
TR 109,09,91,808 70,88,88,050
3 18,79,02,824 11,10,26,782
g 20,15,16,462 11,43,99,232
SMHRAP TG T et ((foer ¥ 255.78 A1)
goiTa gfegdr Z 1.12 crore ((Uroer ad 3 1.12 7I9)

. YTOd <edl Yad »u+l fafics

31 91, 2015 & GHIS

31 AT, 2014 & GHTS

a¥ # (srfem) T # (sfafera)
) (X )
R g & rfaRed aR«uRer 147,42,08,135 108,22,50,757
FURGIY 93,67,02,071 68.66,95,183
g 45,01,39,662 20.38,82,898
@ 31,45,81,928 18,49,85,404
HTHRAB SRAATY Igo T8 (e ¥z 9.31 ars)
YoiTd wfcregdr I 3w Tl ((Ued ad? 6.76 1)
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a. Kutch Railway Company Limited

O
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B 2014-2015

As at March 31, 2015 As at March 31, 2015
(Provisional) (Audited)
(in%) (in%)
Assets excluding preliminary expenditure 703,01,00,000 531,15,00,000
Liabilities 275,55,50,000 219,68,00,000
Income 359,34,00,000 258,87,00,000
Expenditure 225,91,00,000 177,16,00,000

Contingent liabilities
Capital commitment

Z NIl (Previous year % Nil)
Z Nil (Previous year ¥ 16.055 crore)

b. Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company Limited

As at March 31, 2015 As at March 31, 2015
(Provisional) (Audited)
(in%) (in%)
Assets excluding preliminary expenditure 171,95,87,742 227,56,27,847
Liabilities 11,16,79,089 7,20,62,847
Income 8,138 1,58,76,972
Expenditure 2,71,984 7,27,68,613

Contingent liabilities
Capital commitment

% Nil (Previous year % 0.46 crore)
Z Nil (Previous year  606.79 crore )

c. Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited

As at March 31, 2015 As at March 31, 2015
(Provisional) (Audited)
(in%) (in%)
Assets excluding preliminary expenditure 184,39,45,903 147,54,55,784
Liabilities 109,09,91,808 70,88,88,050
Income 18,79,02,824 11,10,26,782
Expenditure 20,15,16,462 11,43,99,232

Capital commitment
Contingent liabilities

Z Nil (Previous year ¥ 255.78 crore)
% 1.12 crore (Previous year % 1.12 crore)

d. Bharuch Dahej Railway Company Limited

As at March 31, 2015 As at March 31, 2015
(Provisional) (Audited)
(in<) (in%)
Assets excluding preliminary expenditure 147,42,08,135 108,22,50,757
Liabilities 93,67,02,071 68,66,95,183
Income 45,01,39,662 20,38,82,898
Expenditure 31,45,81,928 18,49,85,404

Contingent liabilities
Capital commitment

T NIl(Previous year % 9.31 crore)
% Nil (Previous year ¥ 6.76 crore)
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Rail Vikas Nigam Limited

ﬂ @ fawma o fafes

$. I d gfwar ¥ad fafics

31 9rd, 2015 ® GHIS 31 91, 2014 B GHI
ad o (arifer) af ¥ (sidfe)
&%) R ¥)

URfYE g b AfIRad gREuRrat 177,71,04,072 111,73,89,707
FURGIY 51,75,200 24,90,31,355
3 455,490 1,73,61,993
e 8,71,590 13,00,225
MHRAS ITRITY I el (o a9 go T2
GofT afag 3w T (Roe a3 492.00 3rs)

) B3 s Yo SIRURYA 3% gfear fafies

31 9™, 2015 B GHTG 31 ¥, 2014 BT FHT
a¥ ® (It a8 ¥ (Ffem)
(X #) (X #)

URMAS T B AfaRad gRFARRT 6,03,22,697 3,37,75,698
EURGIN 6,20,64,638 3,68,70,945
3 13,33,004 8,877
g 5,53,808 28,58,906
3M&HRAH FIRIATY T {Ho Tl
PSINCECINCESIE EAEH

32 WANUR Es

s HuN DI Faar AR Ue &3 @ Siavdere IR H Y1 uRarSR & i & Hefi g, or: SRIeye oifh acs Udrsced

aifte SR (SATTans) g1 SR e R § sfeafar vga—17 ar € 8

33.  ofior foesmar

33.1 BU & BTG R AT GRERT BT AT UPRT  SRIET et 1 @Re 2 | fPRIY B <R el A U<l Y1d U & AR *faffer
3R gedl @1 AeAfd 1 73 by 7Y & | 78 feetl Rerd SRURT BrRITd & (o1g gSi 3R U & dTal B TR <ot HIR T&1 gAT &

3R 3% 2t faehT HATeT & STgAIG & forg Vo T 2 |

332 fa<ia <fiwr

oI W <1 7 aRAURTT &1 SIFd BT of 81 gl TRATSTISAT TR 0T IR JMSARYHH! Bl < ufcdelt iyam # fawmn mm & Si fewof 5

H T 7, Yol HATSd gRT FARIN fhy ST 32 SMTEIRUHH! & Ui ol YT gRT StRIR URAATIH fhar ST ET @ |
SISt 3 Havel (2T U= 91dY R[AH etrol Iar Frar &

31914, 2015 Bl G ad §  (IH ) 31914, 2014 BT G ad § (IH )

& a9 | SIferd & 752,171,313 572,733,724
UE a9 9 31 fhg uiw av | s1fdre T2 3,653,145,750 2,916,901,242
i a9 3 Sferd 1,331,492,861 1,863,241,173
5,736,809,924 5,346,953,059
34. URETe 9aH
BT BT GRS a5, TRATTIA & Yo B R I8 IR 8 & folg Aaedd FHI IR TR 8IaT @ | GRATSA & gof 8 @l srafdy
RS URATSTT BT ST BN 8 | FHII: I8 Aaf 12 HATE A 60 AIE B Bl © | TRATSIT Ah DI 12 HE 7 31 BT STFAM IEI
g | Hafe Wi aReuRial &R 1Rl @ 21e] 3R IR—a1e & WU A aifigd foar T 2 |
35. U9 B gabl uRATSISI & SiaRer & oy faAie 17.12.2013 &1 UgfATd ma=T |w&T 2011 /G-l /1 /6 /AT & SIgAR SU1
522,50,03,855 (ISl 9 ¥1912,78,12,305) BT URITSIATG fARd &1 2 |
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e. Angul Sukinda Railway Limited

As at March 31, 2015 As at March 31, 2014
(Provisional) (Audited)
(in%) (in%)
Assets excluding preliminary expenditure 177,71,04,072 111,73,89,707
Liabilities 51,75,200 24,90,31,355
Income 4,55,490 1,73,61,993
Expenditure 8,71,590 13,00,225

Contingent liabilities
Capital commitment

% Nil(Previous year  Nil)
% Nil(Previous year ¥ 492.00 crore)

(f) High Speed Rail Corporation of India limited

As at March 31, 2015 As at March 31, 2014
(Provisional) (Audited)
(in%) (in%)

Assets excluding preliminary expenditure 6,03,22,697 3,37,75,698
Liabilities 6,20,64,638 3,68,70,945
Income 13,33,004 8,877
Expenditure 5,53,808 28,58,906
Contingent liabilities Z Nil

Capital commitment T Nil

32. Business Segments
Asthe business activity of the Company falls within a single segment viz. construction of Railway projects in the domestic market, the disclosure
requirement of AS-17 on ‘Segment Reporting’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) is not applicable.

33. LeaseRentals

33.1 The company’s leasing arrangements in respect of offices and residential premises are in the nature of operating lease. The rentis being charged
on rates agreed to between HUDCO and RVNL based on letter of offer received from HUDCO and agreed to by RVNL. The formal lease agreement
between the Company and HUDCO for lease of Corporate Office, New Delhi has not been executed and is under approval of Ministry of Urban
Development.

33.2 Financial Lease
The value of assets given on lease is reflected against contra liability payable to IRFC towards loan on completed projects as appearing in note 5,
whichis liquidated progressively through loan repayment to IRFC being arranged by MoR.
Future minimum lease payments of gross investmentin the lease are as follow:

31stMarch 2015(in ) 31st March 2014(in )
Not laterthan one year 752,171,313 572,733,724
Laterthan one year and not later than five years 3,653,145,750 2,916,901,242
Laterthan five years 1,331,492,861 1,863,241,173
5,736,809,924 5,346,953,059

34. Operating Cycle
The operating cycle of the Company is based on the time required from initiation of the project to completion of the project. The period required for
completion varies from project to project. However, in general, the duration is more than 12 months and may extend upto 5 to 6 years, and
sometimes even beyond this period, depending on the progress of the work upto when the project is fully physically transferred to Railways for
operations and financial progress to the extent of 95% of the latest anticipated cost has been achieved.

35. In accordance to procedure order no. 2011/AC-Il/1/6/RVNL dated 17/12/2013 for transfer of completed projects, the company transferred

projects worth¥522,50,03,855 (previous year ¥1912,78,12,305/- ).
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Rail Vikas Nigam Limited

ﬂ @ fawma o fafes

36. Y faga 9IS / ufedsd sulrl &1 sl @1 18 ufgferar

fae[a Fiael & forg 818 S Ufar drgeii & wau & folt golfdgs ars! / Ardaifvie Sufal o fhy Tg FTa o gRATSH T arTd &
AN B w7 H el paT SIETL |

37. IRM API & Hae H oI@ich =T § URac & BRI 22,18,056 B YR <db Pl hiSc [haT 17 1Y Ugel Sfae foar ma 3iiR 27,22,112 &1
99 & SR fafde # BfSe fdar i |

38 fwel 9¥ & Afdmel Bl dTe] I & Sfidel & 1T ol fhy T AT g9 & folg STef HEl aedd 81, IdT Y: FHRIavT AR :

Uo7 faT T B |
BAR AST U9 gaIliuey & fag 9IS @ oy ud sl 3k 9
Acs (PpISccH
B IRV I &I 00013109 &
g/ — g/ — gl /— gl /—
ARD. Jyard Tl affsif D P. o] U g
ArfierR J1ezrey iR W&y e g fo HUT Afd
M. No. 081510 DIN : 01637856 DIN : 01970462
B I HIG AR e

fe=Ti® : 11.08.2015
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36. Securities released to state Electricity Board /Public Companies

O
EUECIRIEIC

BB ~AnnuvAL REPORT
B 2014-2015

Securities paid to Electricity Boards/ Public Companies towards provision of High Tension Power Lines for electricity connections are booked as

project expenditure being part of the project cost.

37. Thereis change inaccounting policy in respect of stale cheque As per Accounting Policy no 2.22 items of %2,18,056/- credited to the head which

was earlier debited and¥7,22,112/- has credited to Misc Income during the year.

38.  Previous year's figures have been regrouped and rearranged, wherever necessary to make comparable with those of the current year.

For Kumar Chopra & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number.: 000131N

Sd/- Sd/-
R.K. Aggarwal S.C. Agnihotri
Partner Chairman and Managing Director
M. No. 081510 DIN : 01637856

Place: New Delhi
Date: 11.08.2015

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Sd/- Sd/-
Ashok K. Ganju Kalpana Dubey
Director Finance Company Secretary

DIN : 01970462
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Rail Vikas Nigam Limited

ﬂ @ fawma o fafes

@( $IR AIUsT Us gaIlReH f—12 (TTSTS TAR), FIRAS B,
s EATHR TERMI 91T & Aolald, T faeell — 110065
B +9111-2691 3033, 26916363, 41627363

BRT: +91-11-26328533

3—9dl : kca_delhi@yahoo.co.in

www.kcaconsultancy.com

wWad ol wdEsl s Ruld

Har #

NS

¥d faer e fafics

1. Uohd faxia faavon @R Rurd
& X faer e fafies & vae fachia fawol o0 orer uden @1 2, fSra# 31 A1 2015 &7 gl U3, o9 31K 1 faawor, af
% forg s yare faavvr iR Aecayol crafe Nt o AR IR 7 RS G- e 2 |

2.  U&d fa<iia faazen & foag ydaa & <l
B BT aed Hedl HU AAFTIH, 2013 (‘SIAEAY) BT el & FTER g9 Udhd faxii faavon &1 dIR By SF & foy
IR & ST SU= (oiE) R, 2014 & 719 7 & <11 ufda iffem @ 9RT 133 & sfavid fafie aaie AT afed ¥Ra #
AR ©U ¥ WG ordia fAgidl @ FgaR dust @l fa<ii Refd, faxia fFreres ik Jas garg &1 arafds ik 98 w9 &1
IR BRl & | 3 TR H Ul &1 uREURAT & ReT SUrl & (78 A1 & el & AR i odid Rabrsi &
JRETVT 3R UGSl Td =1 AT DI A Td Sfid AT S oRdTh Igfadi BT Fd+ AR TART AT T F+of
ST 3R SIFAM IR BT Sl S vd A9 qul 81, 1R T fidRe fa<ig (Rl & a1, Sri=ae SR SREvT ST, Sl
O faeRe, ST ST aR<ifde qeim Fe1 Ry IRgd SR 8l IR fh-dl 9 e o i o< 81 T8 dIarers! 3 81 AT 9 3 8, Bl
TR B 3R U R Hafed i Rapre &1 Fciadl iR Fyofdr HARad &3 & fofg wrd €7 8 &M - I8 9, fid
gl

3. @ wWiEs & <
EART TR EHRY SIRETORIE & SR IR $+ faiia fIaroll uR geh I U e 2 |

TA S Y AT, TEiereT 3R o WIeT #eaht MR el & WIaeTEt &1 e v § o st & wraerEr ok S it
T Y T & i o wer Rure # wnfie fasar S e 2 |

T IR @ R 143(10) @ Sfata fafafd e udien Haelt Al & SIFAR U oIkaT Uer oY 7 | T 7S I § R
JFUTE B9 =ifcre STUettall iR ST SIRaris UTed B & foTg AT TR B 3iR oI Wef B & ol dal & drf foxia
faa=or fonefy +ff frea wo | Had &7 |

oY i oterr # o faavoif # Ry iR UdveT @ IR # okar uRIel 1e Ui 3 & fofg ugfral & fsres snfie g | g
TS ugfd ol wierd & oy )R R et @ Rrad fxiig feaxor & fRear woe © SiRad &1 el &y A 8, are 3
AT A &1 AT & & 8 | 3 SIIREH 3Mdherdl o TR He H oikal wietds fae f3avoll &7 TR &< § Su+l @ Gy | H&ferd
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KUMAR CHOPRA & ASSOCIATES B-12 (G.F), Kalindi Colony,
Chartered Accountants Near Maharani Bagh, new Delhi - 11006

Ph.: +9111-26913033, 26916363, 41627363
Fax : +91-11-26328533

E-mail : kca_delhi@yahoo.co.in
www.kcaconsultancy.com

To

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Members of

Rail Vikas Nigam Limited.

1.

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance
Sheetas at 31st March, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to
the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give atrue and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Ourresponsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the
audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our auditin accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial
statements.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give

the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
acceptedin India,
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a) Inthe case ofthe Balance Sheet, state of affairs of the company as at 31st March 2015;
b)  Inthe case of Statement of Profitand Loss, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and
c) Inthe case of the Cash flow statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date
5. Reporton Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
I. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2015 (” the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure |, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to
the extent applicable.
Il Asrequired by the directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor-General of India, in terms of sub section (5) of section 143 of the Act, we
giveinthe compliance inthe Annexure Il.
lll.  Asrequired by sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, we report that:
a.  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit.
b.  Inouropinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those
books.
c.  TheBalance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash flow statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.
d.  Inouropinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
e.  Interms of Ministry of Company Affairs notification no. GSR 463 (E) dated 5th June 2015, Government Companies are exempt from
applicability of provisions of section 164 (2) of Companies Act 2013.
f. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations givento us:
i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements- Refer Note No 26 to the
financial statement.
ii.  TheCompany did nothave any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.
iii.  There were noamounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
For Kumar Chopra & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 000131N)
Sd/-
(R.K. Aggarwal)
Place of signature : New Delhi Partner
Date: 11.08.2015 (M. No 081510)
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ANNEXURE | TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Annexure to the Independent Auditors' Report referred to in paragraph 5(I) of our report of even date on the standalone financial statements of Rail Vikas
Nigam Limited, for the Year ended 31stMarch, 2015

1. a)  TheCompany has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

b)  The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year at reasonable interval. No material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

2. a) Thecompanyisinbusiness ofimplementing railway infrastructure projects and the inventory primarily consists of project work in progress.
The inventories are physically verified during the year and the same is recorded in the measurement book. Keeping in view the nature of
business and inventory, the frequency of physical verification in our opinion is reasonable.

b)  The procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the
company and nature of its business.

c)  Thecompanyis maintaining proper records of inventories and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

3. The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Act.

4. Inouropinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, there are adequate internal control procedures commensurate with the
size of the company and nature of its business with regard to purchases of inventories and fixed assets and for the sale of goods (projects). During
the audit, we have not observed any continuing failure to correct major weaknesses in the internal control system of the company.

5. Accordingto the information and explanation givento us the company has not accepted any deposit during the year fromthe public.

6.  The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act for any of the products of the
company.

7. a)  Thecompanyis regularin depositing with the appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, wealth tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues as
applicable to it. According to the information and explanation given to us, no undisputed amount payable in respect of any statutory dues
were outstanding as at 31-03-2015 for a period of more than six months from the date they become payable.

b)  According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income tax or sales tax or wealth tax or service tax or custom
duty or excise duty or value added tax or cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

¢)  During the year, no amount was required to be transferred to investor education and protection fund in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and rules made thereunder.

8.  Thereare noaccumulated losses of the company as on 31.03.2015. The company has not incurred cash losses in current financial year and in the
immediate preceding financial year.

9. Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial
institutions or bank or debenture holders.

10.  As per the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from bank or financial
institutions.

11.  Thetermloans have been applied for the purpose for which loans were obtained.
12.  Accordingto the information and explanation given to us, no fraud on or by the company has been noticed or reported during the course of audit.

For Kumar Chopra & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 000131N)

Sd/-
(R.K. Aggarwal)
Place of signature : New Delhi Partner
Date: 11.08.2015 (M. No 081510)
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Annexure to the Independent Auditors' Report referred to in paragraph 5(I1) of our report of even date on the standalone financial statements of Rail Vikas
Nigam Limited for the Year ended 31st March, 2015

arbitration cases including the reasons of
pendency and existence/effectiveness of
monitoring mechanism for expenditure on all
legal cases (foreign and local) may be given.

us, there are 27 legal/ arbitration cases
pending relating to contractors. Age-wise
statement of these cases is as follows:

Age of cases No. of cases
Less than 2 years 18
2-3 years 1
More than years 8

Cases under arbitration are generally pending
due to (i)hearing in process or completed
but not yet pronounced by the tribunal

(ii) arbitration proceedings are in process
for want of additional details/documents
(iii) argument has not yet started in some
cases. Arbitrators are appointed as per the
procedure prescribed in the Contract Agree-
ment with the Contractors. Payment to the
Arbitrators/lawyers are paid as per the rates
prescribed by RVNL or as approved by CMD.

S. | CAG’s Directions Our Report Action Taken Impact on accounts
No. thereon and financial
statements of the
company
1. | Ifthe Company has been selected for No disinvestment has been taken place No action required. NIL
disinvestment, a complete status report during the year 2014-15 Further as per
in terms of valuation of Assets (including information provided to us. RVNL has
intangible assets and land) and Liabilities not been selected for disinvestment by
(including Committed and General Reserves) Government of India during the year.
may be examined including the mode and
present stage of disinvestment process
2 | Please report whether there are any cases of | As per record and information provided No action required. NIL
waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest etc., if any,| to us, there are no case of waiver/write
the reasons there for and the amount involved | off of debts/loans/interest etc.
3 | Whether proper records are maintained for No inventory is lying with third parties and | No action required. NIL
inventories lying with third parties & assets no asset has been received as gifts from
received as gifts from Govt. or other authorities | Government or any other authorities by RVNL.
4 | Areport on age-wise analysis of pending legal/ | As per record and information provided to | The legal cases have | Disclosure has been

been reviewed and for
cases filed against the
company. In terms of
AS-29, the amount has
been disclosed as
contingent liability in
notes to accounts
after adjusting for
provision/ liability if
any provided in the
accounts

given at note no. 26
to financial
statement.

Place of signature : New Delhi
Date: 11.08.2015

For Kumar Chopra & Associates
Chartered Accountants

(FRN: 000131N)
Sd/-
(R.K. Aggarwal)
Partner
(M. No 081510)
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Confidential
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INDIAN AUDIT AND ACCOUNTS DEPARTMENT
OFFICE OF THE PRINCIPAL DIRECTOR AUDIT
(RL-COMMERCIAL) COFMOW, INDIAN RAILWAYS,
TILAK BRIDGE, NEW DELHI- 110002

No. PDA/RC/PSU/32-13/RVNL/2015-16/404 Dated:21.09.2015

To

The Chairman and Managing Director,

Rail Vikas Nigam Limited,

1" Floor, August Kranti Bhavan,

Bhikaji Cama Place, R.K.Puram, New Delhi- 110066

Subject: Comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India under Section 143(6) (b) of the Companies Act, 2013 on
the Financial Statements of Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (Standalone), New Delhi for the year ended 31st March 2015.

Sir,

The Nil Comments Certificate under Section 143 (6) (b) of the Companies Act. 2013 on the Financial Statements of
Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (Standalone), New Delhi for the year 2014-15 is enclosed. The Nil Comments Certificate on the
Financial Statements(Standalone) may be placed before the Annual General Meeting along with Financial Statements of the
Company in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Six copies of the printed Annual Reports of the
Company may please be sentto this office at the earliest.

Receipt of the letter may please be acknowledged.

Yours faithfully,

Encl: As above Sd/-
(Dinesh Bhargav)
Principal Director of Audit
(Railway Commercial)
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faera o fafies, 18 face & faxiy faror IR
B B TR HU-N B Teer B 2 | s &) R
139(5) & d8d YRd & FRIF® TG ARTIET WRIeTdh gRI
e |ifdfee oRar Werdl @1 ARFRM @ gRT

B IRT & FRIF® TF ATl URIeTd &l 1R | 31 779,
2015 BT AT a8 & forw X famm v fafacs, =18
feeell & faxirg faaxon &1 srferfez™ & a=T - 143(6)(Y)
@ d8d YRP oAl WIET B g | I§ RP oikdl N

143(10) & d=a FITRT oRar el & AM®l & JTAR
AT T URIETT & R TR ITATIH Y ORT 143 &
Ted faxi faaRol OR S19=T A Udhe &_" & RarR!
2| ®El A1 & T S99 gR1 I8 &1 faA1d 11.08.2015
B D! i@ Tien R & d=d fhar a2 |

¥oIT: s feoof)
fesi: 21.09.2015
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF RAIL VIKAS NIGAM LIMITED, NEW DELHI FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 MARCH 2015

The preparation of financial statements of RAIL VIKAS
NIGAM LIMITED, NEW DELHI for the year ended 31 March
2015 in accordance with the financial reporting framework
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 is the
responsibility of the management of the company. The
statutory auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India under section 139(5) of the Act are
responsible for expressing opinion on the financial
statements under section 143 of the Act based on
independent audit in accordance with standards on auditing
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated
to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated
11-08-2015.

Place: New Delhi
Date: 21.09.2015

[, on the behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of
India, have conducted a supplementary audit under section
143(6)(a) of the Act of the financial statements of RAIL
VIKAS NIGAM LIMITED, NEW DELHI for the year ended 31
March 2015. This supplementary audit has been carried out
independently without access to the working papers of the
statutory auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the
statutory auditors and company personnel and a selective
examination of some of the accounting records. On the
basis of my audit nothing significant has come to my
knowledge which would give rise to any comment upon or
supplement to statutory auditors' report.

For and onthe behalf of the

Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Sd/-
(Dinesh Bhargav)
Principal Director of Audit
(Railway Commercial)
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@ faerm fom fafies
Rail Vikas Nigam Limited

/q

Yo e o fafics
31 |14, 2015 $I gai- A

Particulars Note Balance as at March 31, 2015
Amount (%) Amount (%)
. sfead six <@g
(1) IReRST @1 e
(@) IR G 2 2085,02,01,000
(@) R Td arferery 3 931,98,25,516 3017,00,26,516
(2) R—=re] <fyaTg 4
(@) SrewIfes For 2186,14,95,398
(@) a1 PTG 712,89,23,094
@) Srafafy graer 5,57,57,456
(@) RARTT PR SR (T8) 37,54,56,617 2942,16,32,565
(3) ey, <Ry 5
() ATeTRINID FoT 9576,83,54,994
(@) =mR @ fog < 50,09,28,353
(T) s @ <TG 934,01,52,948
(&) TYBITD YTaeT 82,93,03,027 10643,87,39,322
I 16603,03,98,403
. aRaufrat
(1) R—arq aREufrar
(@) sraet uREURmET 6
(i) lﬁ gRufrat 375,22,74,925
(i) st aRFafrrt 12,41,248
(iii) fermfome= Wﬁ gt 296,21,77,067
(iv) Rrramiie omd aRwuRmf 1,65,75,496
(@) afafy o @ik el 7 503,06,85,882
(M) o= fv—drq uReufrai 8 498,46,38,611 1674,75,93,229
(2) =re uREufrar
(@) =re] uRATSHT B 9 11567,38,13,300
(@) AR 9t 10 213,04,23,067
() TS R Jo o 11 1869,26,92,864
(51) g T SR I 12 339,21,34,946
(€) aRarerT B @ forg aifim 13 864,15,69,683
CIEREEISH gReafrt 14 75,21,71,313 14928,28,05,173
I 16603,03,98,403
foxi fAavor & Ale & Ay <%
qEcdqUl IETeRol Afeal &1 AR 1
1 3y 35 fewfory foxig faavon & siafifed wrr @
TE TR 37T @ AN @ R & e # g uF
HAR AusT vd waiivey & fag 9 @ fag vd s9a) IR @
IS YhIScTH
B IS I =T 0001317
./ — ./ — &l /— &l /—
R.D. ATl s aftsrh FTH $. L ST gd
HRER Jreger IR vey fevd e fag HUAT Afera
M. No. 081510 DIN : 01637856 DIN : 01970462
I A8 faeelt
fe-Ti® : 31.08.2015
178



ClIEENTEI

BB ~AnnuvAL REPORT

] 2014-2015

RAIL VIKAS NIGAM LIMITED
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2015

Particulars

. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholders’ Funds
(a) Share Capital
(b) Reserves and Surplus
(2) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long-Term Borrowings
(b) Other Long Term Liabilities
(c) Long-Term Provisions
(d) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
(3) Current Liabilities
() Short Term Borrowings
(b) Trade Payables
(c) Other Current Liabilities
(d) Short-Term Provisions
TOTAL
Il. ASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets
(a) Fixed Assets
(i) Tangible Assets
(i)Intangible Assets
(iii)Capital Work in Progress
(iv)Intangible Assets under development
(b) Long-Term Loans and Advances
(c) Other Non-Current Assets
(2) Current Assets
() Project-Work-in-Progress
(b) Trade Receivables
(c) Cash and Bank Balances
(d) Short-Term Loans and Advances
(e) Advances for Project Work
(f) Other Current Assets
TOTAL
See accompanying notes to the financial statements
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

This is the Consolidated Balance Sheet
referred to in our report of even date
For Kumar Chopra & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number.: 000131N

Sd/- Sd/-
R.K. Aggarwal S.C. Agnihotri
Partner Chairman and Managing Director

M. No. 081510
Place: New Delhi
Date: 31.08.2015

DIN: 01637856

Note Balance as at March 31, 2015
Amount (%) Amount (%)
2 2085,02,01,000
3 931,98,25,516 3017,00,26,516
4
2186,14,95,398
712,89,23,094
5,57,57,456
37,54,56,617 2942,16,32,565
5
9576,83,54,994
50,09,28,353
934,01,52,948
82,93,03,027 10643,87,39,322
16603,03,98,403
6
375,22,74,925
12,41,248
296,21,77,067
1,65,75,496
7 503,06,85,882
8 498,46,38,611 1674,75,93,229
9 11567,38,13,300
10 213,04,23,067
11 1869,26,92,864
12 339,21,34,946
13 864,15,69,683
14 75,21,71,313 14928,28,05,173
16603,03,98,403

1

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Sd/-
Ashok K. Ganju
Director Finance
DIN: 01970462

The notes 1 to 35 form an Integral part of the Financial Statements

Sd/-
Kalpana Dubey

Company Secretary
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@ faerm fom fafies
ﬂ Rail Vikas Nigam Limited

Yol faer frem fafies
31 ATd, 2015 BT FHTE 89 dTel 99 & folU & IR g1+ &1 faavor

faavor feagofy 31.03.2015 Bl
e 99 1 Y
<R3 (3) R ()
I oRETe™ | Ui ToRa (SHRIER) 15 34,477,306,929
. 3= 3mg 16 1,204,035,200

. @ o (1 + 1)

35,681,342,129

V. =3
IRt R T 17 30,256,131,309
FHAN fedem™ &g 18 719,366,606
I I 19 263,484,868
fo<ia arTa 20 99,828,611
I feen—Feel & rgaR o= & 21 46,687,497
wel A _31,385,498,890
V. Jeug &R o) gd o (ll-IV) 4,295,843,239
VI. qeer ok uReieE @ 6 376,437,736
VI @ gd @m (V- V) 3,919,405,503
VIll. &R =3:
(1) smraR
(®) a1 R 628,469,601
(@) Rrwer ast @ 24,491,911
(2) smeafird % 39,568,788 69,25,30,299
X o & forg e (gTf) (VI - ViIl) 322,68,75,203
X ufd sl R si:
Ho 1.55
TE AR IS O IR &) R & A § 9§ &1 o 7d &1 faawor 2
1 9 35 fewforai foxirg faavont & sfafifRa W 2
BHR dlusT 6 gaiiigew & fag AI$ @ fay v 9a Sk @
s THISTTH
B IS I AT 0001310
Bl / — Bl /— B/ — Bl /—
AR D. AT Tadl. Affasish NS P. o] BT g
ArfieR JeeT SR y&y fAgers e fo HUAl Afa
M. No. 081510 DIN : 01637856 DIN : 01970462
I A8 faeelt

f&-ie - 31.08.2015
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RAIL VIKAS NIGAM LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2015
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Particulars Notes Figures for the Year Ended
31.03.2015
Amount (%) Amount (%)

I Revenue from Operations (Turnover) 15 34,477,306,929
Il.  Other Income 16 1,204,035,200
lll. Total Revenue (I + ) 35,681,342,129
IV. Expenses:

Expenses on Operations 17 30,256,131,309

Employee Benefits Expenses 18 719,366,606

Other Expenses 19 263,484,868

Finance Cost 20 99,828,611

Other Expenses as per DPE Guidelines 21 46,687,497

Total Expenses ~31,385,498,890
V. Profit Before Depreciation and Tax (llI-1V) 4,295,843,239
VI.  Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 6 376,437,736
VII. Profit Before Tax (V - VI) 3,919,405,503
VIII. Tax Expense:

(1) Income Tax

(@) Current Tax 628,469,601

(b) Earlier Years 24,491,911

(2) Deferred Tax 39,568,788 69,25,30,299
IX  Profit (Loss) for the Year (VII - VIII) 322,68,75,203
X Earnings Per Equity Share:

Basic 1.55
This is the Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss  referred to in our report of even date
The notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of the Financial Statements
For Kumar Chopra & Associates
Chartered Accountants FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Firm Registration Number.: 000131N

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
R.K. Aggarwal S.C. Agnihotri Ashok K. Ganju Kalpana Dubey

Partner Chairman and Managing Director Director Finance Company Secretary
M. No. 081510 DIN: 01637856 DIN: 01970462
Place: New Delhi
Date: 31.08.2015
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Rail Vikas Nigam Limited

ﬂ @ fawma o fafes

31 91d, 2015 @l 99T 89 did 98 & v Adps udreg faavor

».  faazor 31.03.2015 &I
ki T ¥ B Ay
Wi ) <RI )
1 (@) uRarafre wfafaftat @ 96d vae
PR 3R A AAH I W qd Yg A 391,94,05,503
EISEACNEEIRISEIE
I 37,64,37,736
3T I (118,65,57,981)
IS ECICIE] -
g2 @I # Tl T URMS
wriea goft gd aRares arm 310,92,85,257
(@) srdzfia goft & aRedw 3g waro:
gREreq aREuRiar 4 (fg) /0 & fag e -
IR 9T (1,227,880,761)
AgHIIS For AR Al (351,316,395)
AT T S} o (371,791,706)
3= AT TR (24,640,792,607)
o R—dTef, TR (200,268,708)
(26,792,050,177)
(1) uREres aifyaren o (3fF) / (@) & fag garres:
T T (62,294,274)
=T ATe] JTRIATY 349,892,477
3T ST dIfeTd QTR 947,610,051
THBITD UTTET 173,049,137
A HIfeTd UTaer= 16,795,692
1,425,053,083
uRaraT @ Scaffa dad (22,257,711,837)
TE HR YA /Wi (E€IvE & w9 H e i) (692,530,299)
wRarafe TRfAftel ¥ dee gaw (@) (22,950,242,137)  (22,950,242,137)
2 faaw afafaftrl @ gra Tad) —
Yoiira &1 |fed srae aREuRil W goiig &3 (557,068,874)
e AUt o T & smHE 10,642,937 (557,068,874)
AHE! SR Thal TG T qHSI ST dTell §b WY
THd R TS GAGEd T GHI W are 4t fden:
-l
drefaferes fawi @ @l
- AgHT SUHH 849,875,000
TS ¥ I (}T91%d)
-3 118,65,57,981
YTed AT
- g SUhA -
fraer TRIRIRRY @ /(@ ) € THN Scsi (@) 1,490,007,044 1,490,007,0443
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31st March 2015

S.  Particulars Figures for the Year Ended
No. 31.03.2015
Amount () Amount (%)
1 (a) Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit Before Taxation, and Extraordinary ltems 391,94,05,503
Add: Adjustment for :
Depreciation 37,64,37,736
Other Income (118,65,57,981)
Dividend Received -
Preliminary expenses written off -
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 310,92,85,257
(b) Adjustments for Changes in Working Capital:
Adjustments for (Increase)/Decrease in Operating Assets:
Trade Receivables (1,227,880,761)
Short-Term Loans and Advances (351,316,395)
Long-Term Loans and Advances (371,791,706)
Other Current Assets (24,640,792,607)
Other Non- Current Assets (200,268,708)
(26,792,050,177)
(c) Adjustments for (Increase)/Decrease in Operating Liabilities:
Trade Payables (62,294,274)
Other Current Liabilities 349,892,477
Other Long -Term Liabilities 947,610,051
Short Term Provisions 173,049,137
Long Term Provisions 16,795,692
1,425,053,083
Cash Generated from Operations (22,257,711,837)
Direct Taxes Paid/Received (Net of TDS) (692,530,299)
Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A) (22,950,242,137) (22,950,242,137)
2 Cash from Investment Activities :-
Capital Expenditure on Fixed Assets, Including Capital Advances (557,068,874)
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets 10,642,937 (557,068,874)
Bank Balances not Considered as Cash and Cash Equivalents -
Current Investments not Considered as Cash and Cash Equivalents:
- Purchased -
Purchase of Long Term Investments:
- Joint Venture 849,875,000
Interest Income (Revenue)
- Others 118,65,57,981

Dividend Received
- Joint Venture
Net Cash Generated from / (used in) Investing Activities (B)

1,490,007,044

1,490,007,0443
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Rail Vikas Nigam Limited ]

ﬂ @ fawma o fafes

®. faaxor 31.03.2015 BI
| e 99 1 Y
<R3 (3) R ()

3 faauiver @ T gag—
IRR Yol (IR 3MIe gvRIRT Afed) SR &_ UI 377y

e prford 0T W YT SMHEAT 273,00,00,000
Srafafy o BT g (321,10,87,233)
JTeUdIfeTd N | S 3,123,57,94,179
FPIRAD TN BT G (647,66,46,991)
AT 3R doddE aY (4,291,17,500)
amRfera Ffer &1 Sy 1,121,14,794
faaryor fafaftal 4/ (@ ugad) gg Tad ScasiA () 2,396,10,57,249 2,396,10,57,249
THd) Td deHd g 9 g 9fg / (@N) (F+E+) 25,00,22,157
af B ywara F THA) Td AHd) TG 1,619,18,70,707
31 914, 2014 B THE] TG D] FIGA 1,869,26,92,864
Thdl Ud Ahal AHged
AR R Ib 39 TS 10,21,089
aqqfad 9&F & o Ay
T @ H 827,90,33,193
RIEIERCIS R 1041,26,38,582
fewform:

SRIGT g TaTe fIaRe {3 RITye 31t Acs UdhTshec i 3T gRT 9IRY Yud—3 H uiRa et fafey # Gar fasar man 2
— 7T HE! MaISH AN T &, Uwel 99 & sride ol Y-aqgdg AR JT-aaRed fHar T g |

I TAN 3751 B TG &) RIS & e § 99 &1 o T g1 faavor g |
1 9 35 fewforgr faxig faaxo & siafifed 9T g

AR dIusT ¢d gHifigey & fag 9IS @ fay vd S99 iR 9
s THSSTH
B IS 2T G 000131T

B/ — B/ — el / — el /—

R @, AT gl s ITN® F. 9 ST gd
KIDICIN et 3R y&y fAgers e faa HUN A
M. No. 081510 DIN : 01637856 DIN : 01970462
I -s facofY

fai® : 31.08.2015
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S.  Particulars

Figures for the Year Ended

No. 31.03.2015
Amount () Amount (%)

3  Cash Flow from Financing Activities :-

Proceeds from issuance of share capital (including share application money)

Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings 273,00,00,000

Repayment of Long -Term Borrowings (321,10,87,233)

Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings 3,123,57,94,179

Repayment of Short -Term Borrowings (647,66,46,991)

Proposed Dividend and Tax thereon (4,291,17,500)

Utilisation of Reserve 1,121,14,794

Net Cash Generated from / (used in) Financing Activities (C) 2,396,10,57,249 2,396,10,57,249

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalent (A+B+C) 25,00,22,157

Cash & Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the Year
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the March 31, 2015
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cheques in Hand

Balance with Scheduled Banks

On Current Account

On term Deposit Account

Notes:

1,619,18,70,707
1,869,26,92,864

10,21,089

827,90,33,193
1041,26,38,582

The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method setout in AS-3 issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Cash & Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the Yearis unaudited.

This is the Cash Flow Statement
referred toin our report of even date

Kumar Chopra & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number.: 000131N

Sd/- Sd/-
R.K. Aggarwal S.C. Agnihotri
Partner Chairman and Managing Director

M. No. 081510
Place: New Delhi
Date: 31.08.2015

DIN: 01637856

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Sd/- Sd/-
Ashok K. Ganju Kalpana Dubey
Director Finance Company Secretary
DIN: 01970462
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ﬂ @ fawma o fafes

1 ¥WEdyel dEreRr il &1 9R

1.1 A9 &1 MER

et famr fom fafies (fafafer) & foxirg faaxor, wufera (eran) fmt, 2014 (@ o) iR Hu= IS, 2013 & Siad oaidT
HTHT & ST 3 9RA H  AHRI: Widhd Ragidl (TR Sigedl) & R 1R GIR 6y 71 8 | 379 foxii faxoif &1 Hisar g,
TIEd SR iR UfRTRIe aTa & =1ey vaferd Rigidl & SfaR (IR &y 17 € | 92veTd, Sfau g ok Sudiasii & o1 aTd, St
e /i 71 fhg Sird €, 92 oikal #§ &1 g9 Sira, SuT §RT STUHTE Agcdqul olRaTdhoT I i 7 2 |

12 Gifed fHy M &1 AR

P) N famr e forfics &R S9a Ferad SUbHl BT FRfdd fa<ig faavvr & EardmRor A (TUR)21— “FHfdd fa<i faavon” &
Ufd—aR—Tfad SR R FAfdhd fdar T 2 |

Q) YR SUSH § Ul BT 3T ABROT A% (YUA)27 — "HIaR SUHA H 1ol B A<t RUIféT g1 qarg 15 A & srgarR
IATIUR FHIS fAf BT TART et gY A faar T 2|

) Sigt 9@ |Wd 81 Hfehd faxia faavor @ ve € aRRerfaal # e awe S derdeRl ud =1 gl & oy Ud |aae aaraoy
AT T JANT fhar ST & SR S RIS I IR (BT ST & O HU] (SIRATUTUE) Yerd faxiig (qaRoll &l IRd el © |

o) WERId HUfal R Tarfiged # e & 1fRad o oot J1d {1431 IR SErevol W (TUH)27 & SR oidifehd fhar T g |
1.3 SN & 9T

gder o7 faeard 2 s facfi faaxol & GaR &= 3 wgad orgar Jeifad ok fadal 8 | 390 USHR & 3deld & HRor wfas & uRomr 3
IR 31T eball & 3R TR fdd TRUME UG MThel & 14 37dR BT TRUITH / BT Fuw B4 dTell 37af) § WaR fhar Sar g |

1.4 I$Hd) ¥ares faavor

CIETERRYT HIeh "3" @ "Tepa] UdT8 [qaRvT" & AR SAYceT [Afer gRT Thal JaTs f4aRvr R faar i & Rrad ol & aRerer, e
3iR farTaiyor TTffafdrl @1 Fadl vdTe & wu H ST TAT 2 | Thal 3R 96 RV & Jou IR &l FHET 0 Bl & 1R gD
FHATafy ST i ATE T BTl 8, DI B & THa) TaTe fIaver & A< gaged § aftnferd far a2

1.5 fa9iy 3R sruarfes a

forefl EreT S1erdaT IR | YT T ] SR T WK ®Y | B dl A TfAfafirat ¥ o1 21, o faviy #ei & wu # avfied faan
TAT 2 | 99 bR &1 "Ie13l / Faardi & fa<ia fagor # fa9iy wu & Seorg fhar a1 2 | 3 UoR BT d1gd Te $l BuHl & =01 9
qTER B, 3 3T QT I ¥ Hecd YUl YHTd TSdT 81, Bl 41 fIIT 7 H41 17 © 3R $7hT Seord A g4l w0 # {1 1 2 |

Fo FREd ¥R R SUl & MR AR & FfET o sierar 2 & B 78 &7 SR, TSR AaT TS $9 UHR Bl 8l ©
RTA®T Seokd PR A HU & (TG DI GHSM ¥ Ae& ARl 8, 59 UBR Bl 31T Ad] AT BT YAl cd 78 & WU H aigd (BT 1T
2 3R 3T Sooid ¥ ®U H o fewforgt # fpar g & |

1.6 ¥d srad uREuRmAT

Tl e URHFURTTAT B AR BT (FETiReT 396 Jod W Aok eI 3R Al & BT aeraR [6ar 11 | 39 UBR B arTd 9 43
SRRV AT & HI—WT §dS AT ST Yoo, SYfeAT 3R I gd YA 1ferrevr 3 |y smafes = aftafea g & | e I 4
TP et URFURT B TINT B ARG Th 57 ARSI & forv 78 Feor iy i enfia 2

1.7 3rqd aREufRmn

3t uRHufcTdl # TS Yo, ST—8T9 WANT & fofY JMTaedd 37 WIHCIIR BI AN IR RIEH AR & 3 BRI R
oA B | ARTd & S ¥ H goTd fan Srar & R imawrds |aedaR o YRR & forg @RIeT ST 2 | ord aREufRy @ omrd & gean
TR Hed, fhdl R BT AT Yob 1R 31 HR Td GRHURT DT TANT & TG ATe] PR &g U<del I3 A 2 |

1.8 YSIRId are] YRATSHT BT

®) 2 RTD! FYadd SUhH (3T Gihal ¥erd HU fAffcs, FoIeH vold Ul fofHcs) §RT fby ST &1 RIS & w0 H Yeiel
®Y F GEA Bl I Tl B, I "YoiRTd dre] uRATST Sl # e fasar sar 2 | e eeRifrt o goiera are] uRare T wrl |
AT ST &

(i) aRETSTT e & Hdg § g 7Y RM uR Sifia @ (i) st u=ii @1 3 ura 0fen
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1.  Summary of Significant Consolidated Accounting Policies
1.1 Basis of Preparation

The Consolidated Financial Statements of Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (RVNL) have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting Standards notified under the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. These financial statements have been drawn up in accordance with the going-concern principle, on
accrual basis and on a historical cost basis. However, certain escalation and other claims by customers, which are not ascertainable / acknowledged,
are nottaken into account. The significant accounting policies adopted by are given below.

1.2 Principles of Consolidation

a) The Consolidated Financial Statements of Rail Vikas Nigam Limited and subsidiary have been consolidated line-by-line basis by adding together the
book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after fully eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group transactions in
accordance with Accounting Standard (AS)21 - “Consolidated Financial Statements”.

b) The Company’s Interest in Joint Ventures is consolidated by using the proportionate consolidation method as per the method given by Accounting
Standard (AS) 27 - “Financial Reporting of Interestin Joint Ventures”.

c) As far as possible, the consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in
similar circumstances and are presented in the same manner as the Company’s (RVNL) separate financial statements.

d) Investments other than in subsidiaries and associates have been accounted as per Accounting Standard (AS) 13 on Accounting for Investments™.
1.3 Use of Estimates

Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ due to
these estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates are recognized in the periods in which the results are known /
materialize.

1.4. CashFlow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the indirect method set outin Accounting Standard "3" on "Cash Flow Statements " and presents the cash flows
by operating, investing and financing activities. Cash and bank balance that have insignificant risk of change in value, which have durations up to three
months, are included in cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement.

1.5 Extraordinary and Exceptional ltems

Income or Expenses that arise from events or transactions, that are clearly distinct from the ordinary activities, are classified as Extraordinary items.
Specific disclosure of such events/transactions is made in the financial statements. Similarly, any external event beyond the control, significantly
impactingincome or expense, is also treated as an extraordinary item and disclosed as such.

On certain occasions, the size, type orincidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the ordinary activities, is such that its disclosure improves
an understanding of the performance. Such income or expense is classified as an exceptional item and accordingly disclosed in the Notes to Accounts.

1.6 Tangible Fixed Assets

Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Such cost includes acquisition cost
inclusive of inward freight, duties and taxes and incidental expenses related to acquisition. The expenses also include borrowing cost attributable to
acquisition of qualifying fixed assets up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use.

1.7 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets comprise of license fees, other implementation costs for system software and other application software acquired for in-house use.
The costs are capitalized in the year in which the relevant software is implemented for use. The cost of an intangible asset comprises its purchase price,
including any import duties and other taxes, and any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use.

1.8 Capital Project Work in Progress:

a) Expenditure which can be directly identified with the Project undertaken by the JVs (Angul Sukinda Railway Co. Ltd., Krishnapatanam Railway Co. Ltd.)
are debited to "Capital Project Work in Progress". The following amounts are reduced from the Capital Work in Progress: (i) Interest earned on the
Mobilization Advances given in respect of the project execution(ii) Amount received on sale of tender.

b) Project under which assets are not ready for their intented use and other capital work in progress are carried at cost comprising direct cost, related
incidental expenses and attributable interest. (Haridaspur Paradip Railway Co. Ltd.)
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1.9 Depreciation

Depreciation on individual assets acquired for ¥5000/- or less is depreciated at the rate of 100% taking in to consideration the commercial life in the year
of purchase itself. Depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis on straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets determined as follows:

Furniture and Fixture 4 Years
Computers 3Years
Office Equipments (Excluding Mobile Phones) 5Years
Mobile Phones 2Years
Station Building 30 Years
P-Way 15 Years
Formation 15 Years
Plant & Machinery (Project) 15Years
Bridges 30 Years
Vehicles 8 Years

Leasehold improvements are amortized ‘over the period of lease’ from the year in which such improvements are capitalized or ‘over useful life’ as
computed under schedule Il, whichever is less. Capitalized software costs are amortized @ 33.33% on pro-rata basis except where the estimated useful
life is less than three years. Capitalized cost of Logo and website are amortized over a period of five years on prorata basis.

Depreciation on SLM method is in consonance with the useful life specified in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, except in the case of Furniture &
Fixtures and Mobiles Phones & Tablets. In both the categories of these assets, Management has estimated the useful life after taking into consideration
the economic benefits embodied in these assets and other factors such as technical obsolescence and wear and tear etc.

“Inaccordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013, effective from 1st April, 2014, the Company has reassessed the remaining useful lives of
its fixed assets. As a consequence of such reassessment, the rate of charge for depreciation for the period is equal to the previously applied rate of
charges and additional impactis NIL.”

Angul Sukinda Railway Ltd. (ASRL) and Krishnapatanam Railway Ltd. (KPRCL) are following WDV method while charging depreciation in their stand
alone Balance Sheet, however for the purpose of consolidation depreciation of above mentioned JVs have been recomputed as per Straight Line Method
(SLM) and adjustments have been done accordingly.

1.10 Impairment of Assets

All assets other than inventories, investments other than interest in Jointly Controlled Entities (JCES) are reviewed for impairment, whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets, whose carrying amount value exceeds their recoverable
amount, are written down to the recoverable amount.

1.11 Inventories

(a) Project Work-in-Progress is valued at the contract rates and construction material at site is stated at cost. Payments made to Zonal Railways for
acquiring land included in project Work-in-Progress is stated at cost.

"(b) Projects completed and handed over to Railways for operations are being transferred from Project Work in Progress to the Railways. IRFC funded
projects are shown as "Lease Receivable" under the heads Non-current/ Current assets in Compliance with AS 19.Projects are treated as completed
where atleast 95% of the latest anticipated cost has been incurredtill the end of year."

1.12 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized based on the nature of activity, when consideration can be reasonably measured and there exists reasonable certainty of its
recovery. Revenue from construction/project related activity is recognized as follows:

(@)  Projects executed for Ministry of Railways (MOR): Revenue from project execution is determined by adding aggregate cost plus margin agreed
with MOR and any subsequent clarifications received in this respect.

(b)  Deposit works (cost plus contract) related to JCEs (Jointly Controlled Entities) in the form of Special Purpose Vehicles and others): Contract
revenue is determined by adding the aggregate cost plus proportionate margin (Direction & General Charges) based on fixed percentage as agreed
with the customer.
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(c) In case of IRFC funded projects, interest component on installments received from railways in netted against the interest payable on IRFC

borrowings.
(d)  Claims are accounted as income in the year of acceptance by client or evidence of acceptance received.
(e) Interestoninvestmentis accounted onaccrual basis, inclusive of related tax deducted at source.
(fy  Otheritems ofincome are accounted as and when the right to receive arises.
(9) The operating income of the JVs are recognized on accrual basis upon the information as and when received from Railways for the share of

revenue due to the company for the operations. The period for which revenue is not intimated by Railway, same is recognized and accounted for on
pro-rata estimated basis.

1.13 CostRecognition

Operating revenue and Operation & Maintenance Cost are recognised as per provisional figures advised by Zonal Railways. (KPRCL, BDRCL and Kutch
Railway Co. Ltd.)

1.14 Employee Benefits
a)  ShortTerm Employee Benefits

Allemployee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term employee benefits. Benefits such
as salaries, wages, and short- term compensated absences, etc. are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

b)  Long Term Employee Benefits

The obligation for long-term employee benefits such as long-term compensated absences, is recognized in the same manner as in the case of
defined benefit plans as mentionedin (c) (i) below

¢)  PostEmploymentBenefits

I. Defined contribution plans: The Company makes defined contribution to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner in respect of provident
fund scheme, CGIS and employee state insurance scheme. The contribution paid/payable under the schemes is recognized during the
period in which the employee renders the related service.

ii.  Defined contribution plans: The Company makes defined contribution to the RVNL Medical and Welfare Trustin respect of RVNL Medical
and Welfare Scheme. The contribution paid/payable under the schemes is recognized during the period in which the employee renders the
related service.

ii. Defined benefit plans: Gratuity is a post employment defined benefit plan. The liability recognized in the balance sheet is the present value of
the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date less fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated by an
independent actuary using projected unit credit (PUC) method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the Profit & Loss
Account.

d)  Retirement benefits of the ‘staff on deputation” have been accounted for on the basis of the guidelines of the Ministry of Railways.
1.15 Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are accounted for at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transactions. Gains / Losses arising out of settlement are
charged/ credited to the profit and loss account.

1.16 Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of cost of such asset il
such time as the asset is ready for its intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use. All other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense inthe period in which they are incurred.

1.17 Taxes on Income

Taxonincome forthe current year is determined on the basis of taxable income and tax credits computed in accordance with the provisions of the Income
Tax Act, 1961, and based on the expected outcome of the assessment/appeals.

Minimum Alternative Tax is recognized as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the
company.

Deferred tax is recognized annually on timing differences between the accounting income and the taxable income for the year and quantified using the tax
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rates and laws substantially enacted as on the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets in respect of unabsorbed depreciation/brought forward losses are
recognized to the extent there is virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be
realized.

1.18 Lease Rentals
Lease rental in respect of operating lease is charged to project work in progress under Statement of the Profit and Loss.
1.19 Financial Lease

In case of financial lease substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to legal ownership are transferred and assets given on finance lease are
capitalised at the normal sale price/contracted price and treated as sales.

1.20 Provisions and Contingencies

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. A disclosure of a contingent liability is made where there is a possible obligation that probably will not
require an outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent assets are not recognised. Provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

1.21 Liquidated Damages and Penalties

"Credit items arising on account of Liquidated Damages and Penalties during execution of contract or due to termination of contract etc. are carried as "
Retention Money" under " other Current Liabilities" until the final Closure of the Project. Thereafter,i.e. on financial closure of the Project, such leftover
balances of liquidity Damages and Penalties are credited to the total cost of the concerned project."

1.22 Stale Cheques

Cheques which have notbeen cleared within the validity period of 3 months are credited to the stale cheque account. ltems which are more than 3 yrs old
and could not be cleared in stale cheque account are credited to the head which was earlier debited while making payments except deductions made from
salary of staff which are credited to misc income.

Kumar Chopra & Associates
Chartered Accountants FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Firm Registration Number.: 000131N

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
R.K. Aggarwal S.C. Agnihotri Ashok K. Ganju Kalpana Dubey
Partner Chairman and Managing Director Director Finance Company Secretary
M. No. 081510 DIN: 01637856 DIN: 01970462

Place: New Delhi
Date: 31.08.2015
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As at 31.03.2015

1.

Amount (%)
(a) Authorised:
3,00,00,00,000 Equity Shares of 10 Each 30,000,000,000
(b) Issued:

2,08,50,20,100 Equity Shares of 10 Each fully paid up
(c) Subscribed & Fully paid up

2,08,50,20,100 Equity shares of 10 Each fully paid up
(100% Shareholding with MoR)

Total

(d) Reconciliation of number of Shares:

Equity Shares:

Balance at the beginning of the Year
Addition during the Year
Balance at the End of the Year

(e) Details of shares held by each Shareholder Holding more than 5% Shares:

Ministry of Railways (MoR)
Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attaching to shares

20,850,201,000
20,850,201,000

20,850,201,000

As at March 31, 2015

No. of Share Amount (3)
2,085,020,100 20,850,201,000
208,50,20,100 2085,02,01,000

As at March 31, 2015
No. of Shares held % holding
2,085,020,100 100

Equity Shares: The Company has one class of Equity Shares having a par value ofZ10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held.
Inthe event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts,
in proportion to their shareholding.

3

Reserves and Surplus

(a) General Reserve

As per last Balance Sheet

Addition during the Year

(b)Statement of Profit & Loss:

As perlast Balance Sheet

Addition during the Year

Profit after Tax

Add: Transfer from CSR and Sustainability Fund
Less: Depreciation chargedto reserve

Add: Transfer from Research & Development Fund
Less: Transferto Research & Development Fund
Less: Transfer to General Reserve

Less: Proposed Dividend (Rs. 0.15 Per Equity Share)
Less: Additional Tax on Dividend

Net Addition during the Year

As at March 31,2015
Amount (%) Amount (%)

653,976,095
350,000,000 1,003,976,095
5,589,984,405

3,226,875,203
18,910,735
(1,088,763)
7,871,049
(7,871,049)
(100,000,000)
(372,000,000)
(81,255,297)

2,691,441,879 8,281,426,284
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(c) Corporate Social Responsibility and Sustainability Fund

(d)

e)

A.

As perlast Balance Sheet

Less: Transferto Statement of Profitand Loss
Research & Development Fund

As perlast Balance sheet

Add: Transfer from Statement of Profitand Loss
Less: Transfer to Statement of Profitand Loss
Capital Reserve

As per last Balance sheet

Addition during the year

O
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18,910,735
(18,910,735) -
7,871,049
(7,871,049) -
34,423,137
- 34,423,137
931,825,516

As per the Companies Act, 2013 Corporate Social Responsibility Fund has been created @ 2% of Average PBT of immediately 3 Financial Year
(However, as per DPE's guidelines, Corporate Social Responsibility Fund was created @ 3% of Average PAT of immediately 3 Financial Year). The
expenditure 0f¥4,54,47,097/- has beenincurred on CSR activities during the year 2014-15 in comparision 2% of average PBT i.e. ¥3,42,84,340/-

as required by the Companies Act2013.

As per DPE's guidelines Research & Development Fund has been created @ 0.5% of PAT of previous year. The rationale behind it is the changed
business environment, highly competitive markets, the rapid pace of change in technology, stringent quality control criteria, heightened
expectations and demands of customers, lack of transfer of technology and know- how from competitors, etc.

Non-Current Liabilities

(a) Long term borrowings

(i) Secured:

From Banks

Canara Bank (Bharuch Dahej Railway Co. Ltd.)*

Consortium of Banks (Krishnapatnam Railway Co. Ltd.)**

(i) Unsecured:

Indian Railway Finance Corporation

Opening Balance

Addition during the Year

Less: Repayment to be made within 12 months
Total

Terms of Loan from Banks

1. Rate of Interest

*Interest rate is (Bank base rate +1%), However during the period the interest rate was fixed by the bank @ 10.75% p.a on balance amount due with the
bank on term loan from Canara Bank.

**The Applicable Interest rate is applicable base rate of SBI plus spread of 1.5% for loan taken from consortium of bankers.

Security

As at March 31,2015

Amount (3) Amount (%)
726,635,362
605,776,700 1,332,412,062

19,531,500,002
2,730,000,000
(1,732,416,667) 20,529,083,335

The Secured Obligations shall, to the satisfaction of the Secured Parties, be secured to the extent permitted under the Concession Agreement by:-
afirstmortgage and charge on all the Borrower’simmovable properties, both present and future (save and except Project Site);

afirst charge on all the Borrower’s tangible moveable assets, including movable plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories,
furniture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable assets, both present and future (save and except the Rolling Stocks);

afirst charge on all bank accounts of the Borrower, including but not limited to the Trust and Retention Account and the Retention Accounts, or any
accountin substitution thereof established and opened pursuant to the provisions of the TRA Agreement or any of the Project Documents wherein all
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revenues, Drawdowns, Receivables and other funds of the Borrower shall be deposited from time to time and all Permitted Investments or other
securities representing allamounts credited to the TRA Account;"

d) afirstcharge on all Receivables (including profits of the Borrower after provisions for Tax and dividends (if any as permitted under this Agreement))
of the Borrower pertaining to the Project;"

e) afirstcharge onallintangibles of the Borrower including but not limited to goodwill, intellectual property rights, undertakings, present and future; f) a
firstcharge on the uncalled capital of the Borrower;"

g) afirstcharge/assignment of the security interest

(i) on allthe rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Borrower in, to and under the Project Documents (excluding the
Concession Agreement); all as amended, varied or supplemented from time to time; and

(ii) all the rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Borrower in, to and under any letter of credit, guarantee including
contractor guarantees, liquidated damages and performance bonds provided by any party to the Project Documents (excluding the Concession
Agreement); Provided that the aforesaid, mortgages, charges, assignments and guarantees shall in all respects rank pari-passu inter-se amongst
the Lenders without any preference or priority to one over the other or others."

3  Terms of Repayment

The Facility taken from consortium of banks shall have a door-to-door tenure of 15 (fifteen) years (including a construction period of 4 (four) years and
moratorium period of 1 (one) year). The Facility shall be repaidin 40 (forty) equal quarterly instalments starting from June, 2017 and ending on March, 2027."

The annual repayment to be sub-divided into four equal quarterly installments. Interest to be served at monthly rests. Door to door tenor of 13to 15 years
B. LoanfromIRFC

(1) Thereis amoratorium period of 3 years for each year's loan. During the said moratorium period no amount on account of interest and principal shall
be payable. The interest shall be charged on yearly basis and repayment of loan shall be once in a year (for a period of 12 years) after the completion
of moratorium period. Ministry of Railways would make available to RVNL the required funds thereafter , to enable them to do the debt servicing .
The debt servicing will pass through RVNL books.

(2) Company has borrowed funds ¥273,00,00,000 ( Previous year I440,00,00,000) during the year from Indian Railway Finance Corporation
(IRFC). The outstanding borrowing is ¥2226,15,00,002 (Previous Year ¥2117,40,00,002), which includes current liability i.e. repayable in next
twelve months ¥173,24,16,667 (Previous Year 3164,25,00,000).

(b) Other Non- Current Liabilities As at March 31,2015
Amount (3) Amount ()
(i) Interestaccrued butnotdue (IRFC-ongoing projects)*
Opening Balance 4,374,777,714
Add: Interest Accrued during the Year 1,885,100,471
Less: Repaymentto be made within 12 months (1,658,177,853) 4,601,700,332

(ii) Interestaccrued but not due (IRFC-Completed Projects)
Opening Balance -

Add: Interest Accrued during the Year 554,424,103

Less: Repayment to be made within 12 months (545,499,372) 8,924,731
(iii) Payable to Zonal Railways**

Deferred Liability for Overhead Charges on Operation & Maintenance Cost 2,417,742,436

Land Leased Rental Charges 100,555,594 2,518,298,030

Total 7,128,923,094

*The interest liability has been assessed on the amount disbursed in financial year 2014-15 at the rate of 9.56% (rates applicable for the amount
disbursed inthe year 2013-14 is 9.60%) The interest accrued but not due on the IRFC loan amount has been shown inthe Balance Sheet as recoverable
from MOR under Current Assets & Non-Current assets (for the interest non recoverable in next 12 Months) and the interest payable but not due under the
Current Liabilities and Non-Current Liabilities (for the interest not payable in next 12 Months) payable to IRFC .

Long-termand Short-term Interest accrued but not due from IRFC have been separately shown for‘ongoing projects' and ‘completed projects transferred to MOR'!

**The Operation & Maintenance cost includes deferred expenses on account of overhead (i.e. salary for RPF, Accounts, Medical & Personnel and
corresponding retirement benefits-DCRG, Pension, Leave salary etc.) which are/were not payable to Zonal Railways as it is deferred for the certain years
of operation of the line and the same shall be payable by Company over a period of 5 to 20 years commencing fromthe 6" to 11" year of operation.
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(¢) Longterm Provisions
Provision for Retirement Benefits
As at March 31,2015

Amount (3) Amount (%)
Opening Balance 38,961,764
Add: Addition during the year 21,481,995
Add: Transfer from due within 12 months -
Less: Transfer to due within next twelven months (4,686,303) 55,757,456
Total 55,757,456

Employee Benefits

Gratuity Benefitis payable to employees on retirement or resignation or death. The amount of gratuity payable is based on past service and salary at time
of exitas per Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

Company allows Half Pay Leave for every year of service and unutilized portion can be carried forward subject to restrictions on maximum accumulation.
This benefit is available only in the event of employee falling sick during the tenure of his service. No encashment is allowed on accumulated Half Pay
Leave on exit (retirement, withdrawal, death)from the company.

Leave Encashment including Half pay Leave is payable to employees on retirement. The amount of Leave Encashment payable is based on past service
and salary attime of retirement.

There are no Investment held against the provision for gratuity and leave encashment.
(d) Deferred Tax Liablity (Net)
As at March 31, 2015
Amount (%)
Deferred Tax Liability (Net) 375,456,617
375,456,617

The Deferred Tax Liability/Asset of the company (BDRCL and Kutch Railway Co. Ltd.), its subsidiaries and joint ventures as at 31st March, 2015
comprises of the major components of Deferred Tax Liabilities and Deferred Tax Assets under Accounting Standard-22 on 'Accounting for Taxes on
Income'the details of the same given here under:

i)  Deferred Tax Liablity on Account of

Depreciation 446,098,466
Total (A) 446,098,466
ii) Deferred Tax Assets on Account of
Provisions 1,695,983
Depreciation and Unabsorbed Business Loss 68,945,866
Total (B) __ 170,641,849
Net Deferred Tax Liablity (A-B) "~ 375,456,617
5  CurrentLiabilities As at March 31,2015
Amount (%) Amount (%)

(a) Short Term Borrowings
(i) Indian Railways Finance Corporation

Unsecured:

Opening Balance 164,25,00,000

Add: Addition during the Year 173,24,16,667

Less: Repayment during the Year (1,642,500,000) 173,24,16,667

1. Funds received by the Company from MoR are utilized for executing projects assigned by MoR. After physical completion of a project, the
assets are to be transferred to the concerned Zonal Railway who would add the value of assets in their Block Account.
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4160,48,02,809
2283,12,00,000
(3,424,180,562)

858,76,47,064

(44,687,653)

339,96,46,928
164,25,00,000
(1,365,278,775)

1165,50,00,000
398,00,00,000

321,79,00,000

40,54,00,000
32,01,00,000

48,00,00,000
63,88,00,000

5,00,00,000

6101,18,22,247

854,29,59,411

367,68,68,153

1563,50,00,000

321,79,00,000

72,55,00,000

111,88,00,000

5,00,00,000



(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

For IRFC Loan, Please refer to the foot-note under Terms of Repayment in Note No. 5.

Project Advance Capital

Ministry of Railways

Unsecured:

Opening Balance

Addition during the Year

Less: Projects Transferred during the Year
Project Advance (Capital Fund)

Ministry of Railways

Unsecured:

Opening Balance

Addition during the Year

Less: Projects Transferred during the Year

Advance from MoR for IRFC loan Repayment
Unsecured:

Opening Balance

Addition during the Year

Less: Projects Transferred during the Year
Misc. Advance Capital (Metro project)
Unsecured:

Opening Balance

Addition during the Year

Less: Projects transferred during the Year
Project Advance Capital Bonds

Opening Balance

Addition during the Year

Less: Projects Transferred during the Year

(vii) Project Advance Safety Fund

Opening Balance
Addition during the Year
Less: Projects Transferred during the Year

(viii) Development Fund-3

(ix)

(x)

Opening Balance

Addition during the Year

Less: Projects Transferred during the Year
HSR Studies under Demand-2

Opening Balance

Addition during the Year

Less: Projects Transferred during the Year
Loan from Banks

Secured
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4160,48,02,809
2283,12,00,000
(3,424,180,562) 6101,18,22,247

858,76,47,064

(44,687,653) 854,29,59,411

339,96,46,928
164,25,00,000
(1,365,278,775) 367,68,68,153

1165,50,00,000
398,00,00,000
- 1563,50,00,000

321,79,00,000

- 321,79,00,000

40,54,00,000
32,01,00,000
- 72,55,00,000
48,00,00,000
63,88,00,000
- 111,88,00,000
5,00,00,000
- 5,00,00,000
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(v) Remdie & forg e
(
(
(

vi) Teerft & forg wraem
vii) fafafer qemar wH
viii) Yafafer afsda w@m

6(@)(1) & forg e e
TP

IR ARH S AFAR B TS T & MR TR MG BT YTl @7 T 2 |

(@)(iii) & ferg we e
fager Srar sfzrem:

As at March 31, 2015

Amount (3)

500,928,353
50,09,28,353

280,56,71,568
9,20,15,901
13,99,54,207
16,76,80,843
1,13,98,728
55,64,47,879
331,03,43,583
159,07,51,201
54,54,99,372
3,00,00,000
66,53,895
7,82,22,009
55,13,762

934,01,52,948

26,26,14,461
37,20,00,000
6,32,15,690
7,31,50,626
66,98,373
16,23,877
5,00,00,000

82,93,03,027

ST SATTHRT / HHAR AR el A g o= & | fAferfer srerafiar i & forg wiRelir Xer 3 faaer Har 3fRraT &7 4 $R I8! 8 |

6 (&1)(vii) Ta (viii) & forg ge e
afafer afsedd ik davaR @

Huen =1 AT =1 fafdeear arer 7 21,56,42,104 (el a9 21,36,00,000) 31X ¥fafifer frfdrear ik deamor gwe @t Yol A% 3 25,00,00,000 &1

IRTE AT B |
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Loan from Canara Bank 5,70,88,518 5,70,88,518
Total 9576,83,54,994

Funds received by the Company from MoR are utilized for executing projects assigned by MoR. After physical completion of a project, the assets
are to be transferred to the concerned Zonal Railway who would add the value of assets in their Block Account.

(b) Trade Payable As at March 31, 2015
Amount (%)

Micro ,Small & Medium Enterprises -
Others 500,928,353
50,09,28,353

(c) Other current liabilities
Earnest Money & Performance Security Deposit

280,56,71,568

Sundry Creditors 9,20,15,901
Misc. Deposit 13,99,54,207
Duties & Taxes 16,76,80,843
Cheque issued but not encashed 1,13,98,728
Retention Money 55,64,47,879

Advance received from Customers against Deposit Works
Interest Accrued but not due on Loan: (IRFC-Ongoing)

331,03,43,583
159,07,51,201

Interest Accrued but not due on Loan: (IRFC-Completed) 54,54,99,372
Advance from Ministry of Railways 3,00,00,000
Interest Accrued but not due on Bank Loans 66,53,895
Other Liabilities 7,82,22,009
Expenses Payable 55,13,762

(d) Short-term provision

934,01,52,948

(i)  Provision for Taxation 26,26,14,461
(i) Dividend Payable 37,20,00,000
(iii) Provision for Foreign Service Contribution 6,32,15,690
(iv) Provision for PRP/PLI 7,31,50,626
(v) Provision for Retirement Benefit 66,98,373
(vi) Provision for LTC 16,23,877
(vii) RVNL Welfare Scheme 5,00,00,000
(viii) VNL Medical Scheme -
"Foot Note for 6(d) (i)

Income Tax :"

Provision for Income Tax has been made as Tax computed under the Income Tax Act.

Foot Note for 6(d) (iii)
Foreign Service Contribution :

The majority of the officers / staff employed in RVNL are on deputation from Indian Railways. RVNL is paying Foreign Service Contribution to the Indian

Railways towards retirement benefits.
Foot Note for 6(d) (vii) & (viii)
RVNL Medical and Welfare Scheme

Company has contributed 1,56,42,104 ( previous year ¥1,36,00,000) in the RVNL Medical Scheme and %5,00,00,000 in Capital Fund of RVNL

Medical and Welfare Trust.
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e 6 (iii): are] goit orf

are], Yot sl 01.04.2014 $I sftgfsg | feem /siaRa aRatsmEmg 01.04.2015 HI
$. gcael IRAST @Y 3 3 3 3
ISIECIEaR]

fufae ot 18,130,285 239,106 - 18,369,391
et T w1 10,737,182 - - 10,737,182
A BRI DHiclad BT fawrd 12,852,369 1,392,468 - 14,244,837
qI AP TS 23,619,462 16,012,566 - 39,632,028
T3 el srfea 510,253 = (510,253) -
RELD] 102,986,387 8,492,836 - 111,479,223
RS IR &> 15,589,977 (1,491,616) - 14,098,361
RRITR Td YRRTT FIRFT BT IFRT 760,584 - ; 760,584
RIS AT 05 R - 314,362 - 314,362
ATge Gfaurd 5,421,377 5,575,585 - 10,996,961
SRk 191,711,856 278,314,024 - 470,025,881
i 912,969,678 54,306,227 - 967,275,905
A HaT 21,360,133 2,824,351 - 24,184,484
SUBRUT Wic Uq 7RI 27,739 z - 27,739
ol HeE B 550,193,407 410,991,116 - 961,184,523
ESCRASSIER RS SRR SIER)) 584,941 752,097 - 1,337,037
e v M gER 97,941,496 32,917,933 - 130,859,429
[ESIKIEECCIN - 18,899,417 - 18,899,417
e vd qREaR

Rt vd gReR 18,195,372 2,353,040 - 20,548,412
ErRSSIFS SIS 18,263,430 - - 18,263,430
e vd M TR TS 3,117,135 113,017 - 3,230,152
fasreft

fasren wdeft @ 50,123,355 11,048,327 - 61,171,681
qqq BT el 3,155,240 4,908,000 - 8,063,240
RRUR faga o 89,942,691 30,114 - 89,972,805
feer vd | gaR 11,791,455 805,617 - 12,597,072
faw arma 56,262,050 56,108,645 - 112,370,695
i & SRM @ - 2,795,986 - 2,795,986
Hgerg: fder &1 9,161,180 3,513,471 - 12,674,651
gerd: yrd i W @ 7,404,600 7,038,709 - 14,443,309
e d et R ars - 82,881,313 - 82,881,313
e A iR arftrey & sfaRor 67,020,803 5,241,204 - 72,262,007
SIS 2,132,661,270 809,028,522 (510,253) 2,941,179,539
. fafr & SR smaREs 13,029,824 7,967,704 - 20,997,528
RRECIEESISD)

SICHGERC)) 2,145,691,094 816,996,226 (510,253) 2,962,177,067

* F7e] Yoll URATSHT SR ¥ & Sfela efioreRe YA &= Yell g1RT YA S1fERrger & forg g 1 yuami &1 ufiffte Hvar @ | 98vs1e,
SATTEIT / STERTEIT BT S aTell fH &1 @nficd 3l 1 &g Nl & U & SR Ul Rargd srafdy sreifd 30 aul arerar 14 gfererd &1 &% 4
SfAEET 71991 & U W9 Yg aaH Jod U B dd YT O A IR SRS ABRI BT W, RArad sgde W& 329 iR gRIrer

TS Xerd gRT 1T off SIrge |

Y U g7 AR A (31 Vord) Rargd orgay & 3rafdy da wusil &1 aRFURT 231 3k I9a 918 &3 e 9 A & d9d &
AT R &A1 Xl Bl AT & g | 3y Bt gRT YA @51 1 o1 uReiee T8l A mr g |
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Note 6 (jii): Capital Work In Progress
Capital Work In Progress As at 1 April 2014 Additions. Disposal/ Transfer As at 31st March 2015
A. Direct Project Expenditure 3 3 3 4
Civil Work
Civil Work 18,130,285 239,106 - 18,369,391
Bhildi Running Room 10,737,182 - - 10,737,182
Devlopment of Multi Functional Complex 12,852,369 1,392,468 - 14,244,837
Intermidiate Block Section 23,619,462 16,012,566 - 39,632,028
New Delhi Office 510,253 - (510,253) -
PWay 102,986,387 8,492,836 - 111,479,223
Preliminary Project Expenditure 15,589,977 (1,491,616) - 14,098,361
Expenditure Pending Allocation - - - -
Shifting Overhead & Under Ground Crossing 760,584 - - 760,584
Expenditure on Project Line 05 - 314,362 - 314,362
Site Facilities 5,421,377 5,575,585 - 10,996,961
Formation 191,711,856 278,314,024 - 470,025,881
Land* 912,969,678 54,306,227 - 967,275,905
Station & Building 21,360,133 2,824,351 - 24,184,484
Equipment Plant & Machinery 27,739 - - 27,739
Bridge Work 550,193,407 410,991,116 - 961,184,523
Detail Design Engg. (CIVIL) 584,941 752,097 - 1,337,037
Direction & General Charges** 97,941,496 32,917,933 - 130,859,429
Departmental Charges - 18,899,417 - 18,899,417
Signaling & Telecom
Signaling & Telecom 18,195,372 2,353,040 - 20,548,412
Detailed Design Engineering 18,263,430 - - 18,263,430
Direction & General Charges S&T 3,117,135 113,017 - 3,230,152
Electrical
Electrical Work 50,123,355 11,048,327 - 61,171,681
Electrification of Building 3,155,240 4,908,000 - 8,063,240
Overhead Electric Equipment 89,942,691 30,114 - 89,972,805
Direction & General Charges 11,791,455 805,617 - 12,597,072
Finance Cost 56,262,050 56,108,645 - 112,370,695
Interest to RVNL - - - -
Interets During Construction - 2,795,986 - 2,795,986
Less: Sale of Tender 9,161,180 3,513,471 - 12,674,651
Less: Interest On Mobilization Advance 7,404,600 7,038,709 - 14,443,309
Less: Interest on Bank deposits - 82,881,313 - 82,881,313
Less: Transfer from Reserve and Surplues 67,020,803 5,241,204 - 72,262,007
Total 2,132,661,270 809,028,522 (510,253) 2,941,179,539
B. Incidental Expenditure During 13,029,824 7,967,704 - 20,997,528
Construction (IEDC)
Total (A+B) 2,145,691,094 816,996,226 (510,253) 2,962,177,067

* Leasehold Land, under the head Capital Work in Progress represents payments made for land acquisition through Zonal Railways.The title of land
acquired/to be acquired will, however continue to remain with the Zonal Railway and the Company will hold the leasehold rights on the Land till the period
of Concession Agreementi.e., 30 years or on attainment of the Net Present Value (NPV) payback equal to equity investment @14%, whichever is earlier .
In case the NPV payback is reached earlier then 30 years, the concession agreement would stand terminated and the project line would be repossessed
by railway.

The Leasehold Land so acquired by the Company (through Zonal Railway) will remain the property of Company till the period of Concession Agreement
and thereafter will revert to Zonal Railway, upon payment of the value of land from the Zonal Railway. Hence no amortization for land value has been done
by the Company.
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/q

7. iR—arq fAaw
31 #rd, 2015 &I
P (3)

(@) N HATST ¥ YT (AT, IRATSTIRIT W) (ATST Ugqd offdh R =18 4,601,700,332

(aTgRIareT <ifch=T SresT AHs 1)

@) X HATGTI W U (T8 BT g uRATSIY) (@1 Wi T olfdh ahT TE) 8,924,731
(1) PHARNT Feor T I 9,612,360
(|1) gRer SrTd 34,991,601
(3) got uRwufml & forg i 375,456,858
503,06,85,882
8. o= Av—arq uRHuRkm
ISR 498,46,38,611
498,46,38,611
9. e uRAST 1
%, faaxor 01.04.2014 @&} 01.04.2014 & 01.04.2014 & 31 9rd,
. ALY 31.03.2015 & 31.03.2015 A% 2015 ®I
aifergfe siaRa aRatoEm
IR (2) IR (2) IR (2) IR (2)
1 fufaa ot
gol 1811,19,56,762 569,03,52,432 49,24,65,948 2330,98,43,246
fifae &R 184,23,86,092 (184,173,273) 46,37,57,878 119,44,54,941
URMAE aRATSHT @ 72,61,81,059 26,19,70,048 1,20,03,014 97,61,48,093
UG e TG AT 17,50,83,196 132,487,618 121,782,070 18,57,88,744
LaENE] 889,64,30,882 284,03,76,180 458,871,838 1127,79,35,225
qH 134,43,41,491 36,92,68,359 (62,790,560) 177,64,00,410
eTger 2932,50,59,458 869,95,07,728 1,834,131,766 3619,04,35,420
fawga feomsa d gontaRT (Rafde) 94,058,420.89 3,12,32,111 4,489,434 12,08,01,098
I a9 503,34,00,705 231,84,97,042 743,717,844 660,81,79,903
Fa fufaa st (@) 6554,88,98,066 2015,95,18,246 4,068.,429,232 8163.99.87,080
2 e U9 REaR st
[EXSORSSIEERERSTIEDIN} 24,77,21,684 5,72,893 3,666,481 24,46,28,096
R sgazen 261,22,01,279 123,16,69,861 146,981,624 369,68,89,516
AR FaveT 8,70,92,387 1,52,69,661 1,217,983 10,11,44,065
e vd REaR S 495,75,61,272 54,37,77,739 273,833,808 522,75,05,203
FHd RAFd 19 REaR a1 (@) 790,45,76,622 179,12,90,154 425,699,896 927,01,66,880
3 sdfcsda a1
NI RECRIERY 362,74,59,927 116,09,82,692 19,71,38,522 459,13,04,097
[ESCRSSIERREINIIEDISUNERIERETS) 20,527,512.49 2,86,52,080 4,91,79,593
RRUR faga U 913,88,47,418 244,67,18,435 11,84,26,559 1146,71,39,295
Fd safdgda arf (1) 1278,68,34,857 363,63,53,208 31,55,65,081 1610,76,22,985
4 fomior s@fr & gk
JMHRAS I
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7. Long Term Loans & Advances
As at March 31, 2015
Amount ()
(@) Recoverable from Ministry of Railways (on going projects)(Interest Accrued but not due) 4,601,700,332
(Unsecured, considered good)
(b) Recoverable from Ministry of Railways (Completed projects)(Interest Accrued but not due) 8,924,731
(c) Employees Loan & Advances 9,612,360
(d) Security Deposits 34,991,601
(e) Advacne for Capital Assets 375,456,858
_503,06.,85,882
8. Other Non-Current Assets
Lease Receivables 498,46,38,611
9. Project Work-in-Progress
S. Particulars Opening Balance as  Addition from Project Transferred As at March
No. at 01.04.2014 01.04.2014 to from 1.4.2014 to 31, 2015
31.03.2015 31.03.2015
Rupees () Rupees () Rupees () Rupees ()
1 Civil Works
Bridges 1811,19,56,762 569,03,52,432 49,24,65,948 2330,98,43,246
Civil Works 184,23,86,092 (184,173,273) 46,37,57,878 119,44,54,941
Preliminary Project Expenditure 72,61,81,059 26,19,70,048 1,20,03,014 97,61,48,093
Equipments Plants and Machinery 17,50,83,196 132,487,618 121,782,070 18,57,88,744
Formation 889,64,30,882 284,03,76,180 458,871,838 1127,79,35,225
Land 134,43,41,491 36,92,68,359 (62,790,560) 177,64,00,410
Permanent Way 2932,50,59,458 869,95,07,728 1,834,131,766 3619,04,35,420
Detailed Design & Engineering (Civil) 94,058,420.89 3,12,32,111 4,489,434 12,08,01,098
Station Buildings 503,34,00,705 231,84,97,042 743,717,844 660,81,79,903
Total Civil Work (A) 6554,88,98,066 2015,95,18,246 4,068,429,232 8163,99,87,080
2 S &TWork
Detailed Design & Engineering 24,77,21,684 5,72,893 3,666,481 24,46,28,096
Signaling Arrangement 261,22,01,279 123,16,69,861 146,981,624 369,68,89,516
Telecommunication Arrangement 8,70,92,387 1,52,69,661 1,217,983 10,11,44,065
Signaling & Telecom Works 495,75,61,272 54,37,77,739 273,833,808 522,75,05,203
Total S & T Work (B) 790,45,76,622 179,12,90,154 425,699,896 927,01,66,880
3  Electrical Works
General Electrification 362,74,59,927 116,09,82,692 19,71,38,522 459,13,04,097
Detailed Design & Engineering (Electrical) 20,527,512.49 2,86,52,080 4,91,79,593
Overhead Electric Equipment 913,88,47,418 244,67,18,435 11,84,26,559 1146,71,39,295
Total Electrical Work (C ) 1278,68,34,857 363,63,53,208 31,55,65,081 1610,76,22,985
4  Incidental Expenditure during
Construction Period
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%, faawor 01.04.2014 &I 01.04.2014 & 01.04.2014 ¥ 31 A,
kil Ay 31.03.2015 d% 31.03.2015 A& 2015 ®I
Jftrgfe SaRd aRATSY
IR (%) <R () <R (R) <R (R)

KDNL 141,73,54,454 11,32,81,305 144,15,93,581
gRareET deel e @
qRATSTAT Ydo RIS 366,489,558 67,73,09,948 7,22,83,423 60,50,26,525
YAl BT T vd AR 9R 32,936,160 3,79,76,019 2,775,500 3,52,00,519
fosfor arafer & <M= 181,67,80,172 71,52,85,967 18,83,40,228 208,18,20,625
Gl ATbRAD ™
Herg: AT vl R <« 261,905,286 44,87,79,272 6,627,055 44,21,52,217
3[E AHEIS FI BT IAD GRIATSAT 155,48,74,886 26,65,06,695 18,17,13,173 1,639,668,408
WR fHy ¢ wd & sqgura d
gRaerret &1 fawra (=)
KR
Jrded dfed @ 40,26,73,572 128,163,606 - 53,08,37,178
UdE Wi 457,21,07,541 218,87,19,861 23,40,08,012 652,68,19,390
@l I () 497,47,81,113 231,68,83,467 23,40,08,012 705,76,56,568
g o gR&ASEIY 9276,99,65,546 2817,05,51,769 522,54,15,394 11571,51,01,921
"eg: oY ARl 9 wise 7,60,725 1,500 411,539 350,686
werg: (e (gerel, AT vd fafder smm) 1,64,700 - 67,013,283 67,177,983
o HATAd uRAreERy @ forg 9276,90,40,121 2817,05,50,269 529,20,17,138 11564,75,73,252
35 Ffomela aReasemg (@)
RIE|
YRS gRATSHT @ 3,03,447 2,62,16,601 - 2,65,20,048
TeTg: Fifar @ Rt (120,000) (160,000) - (280,000)
= @ forg yg fafonedi= gRaeT it (@) 1,83,447 2,60,56,601 2,62,40,048
Adha oiis (& + @) 9276,92,23,568 2819,66,06,870 529,20,17,138 11567,38,13,300

1 fy ifRrEr o forg faf e et g1 Hefda Rl @1 fh MU RTam B are] fFEter st denfiet foar w7 | 36 a5 @ forg
Bl 3177,64,00,410 (Ul 99 3134,43,41,491) BT YT b1 AT € | §9 YDR W AT HfH eI &= Xefd & M W aoi & |

2 HUN GRI XS FATI Bl URATSTAIS BT TG a1 ST 8T 2 | 94 A B8 IRAHN U 8 3T IR H Ul & SRIiaRa fdar 13 o
fopg S WR 70T BRI Ugel | ATe] o7 3R 371 URASIAIRI Pl BRI I U8l BB &A1 Xl §IRT 39 UR GFRILT & B T8 ol | Sl B
TS | Ugel 5 URITSIBI UR He S &3 Nell g1RT & &1 T 1130 bl oiRkdl § =TeT 9y T 2 |

3 V€Y & IR ATe] URHUTTal, FoT 3R 1 & o, AT e a1 Rerfay # g U= # SfeaRRad e | & 72 8 Y |
4 TR 3 oral & SR I @raRen & oY <3 19T B ShaRi | aYT Sff I8 &, RIS H Hise T e e |’

5 &Eg Nl Pl YR) URATSTT & AU/ ATe] Bl ST 1R Sigl RATST1 & fole geb a3 faxirg ad @& ofd H SR &l YATRia o & &9 9 $F
95 YIS &, 5% ol H uRATSHIY @& A= SfaRor &1 gol 81 gl URATSTIS & 3feRvT & o7y Xel HATed & a7 17.12.2013 & WYad
UERI MR & URT5.1.1 & o SrUTer H fBar T 2 |
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S. Particulars Opening Balance as  Addition from Project Transferred As at March
No. at 01.04.2014 01.04.2014 to from 1.4.2014 to 31, 2015
31.03.2015 31.03.2015
Rupees (3) Rupees (3) Rupees (3) Rupees (3)

Opening Balance 141,73,54,454 11,32,81,305 144,15,93,581

Project related Direct Expenditure

Project management Consultancy 366,489,558 67,73,09,948 7,22,83,423 60,50,26,525

Direction & General Charges to Railways 32,936,160 3,79,76,019 2,775,500 3,52,00,519

Total Incidental Expenditure During 181,67,80,172 71,52,85,967 18,83,40,228 208,18,20,625

Construction Period

Less: Interest on Mobilisation Advance Net 261,905,286 44.87,79,272 6,627,055 44,21,52,217

Incidental expenditure Apportioned to Projects  155,48,74,886 26,65,06,695 18,17,13,173 1,639,668,408

in the ratio of spending on individual projects to

project expenditure (D)

Others

Expenditure Pending Allocation 40,26,73,572 128,163,606 - 53,08,37,178

Management fees 457,21,07,541 218,87,19,861 23,40,08,012 652,68,19,390

Total Others (E) 497.47,81,113 231,68,83,467 23,40,08,012 705,76,56,568

Total Project Work in Progress 9276,99,65,546 2817,05,51,769 522,54,15,394 11571,51,01,921

Less: Credit from Release Material 7,60,725 1,500 411,539 350,686

Less: Deposit ( LD, Penalty & Misc Deposit) 1,64,700 - 67,013,283 67,177,983

Net Project Work in Progress for 9276,90,40,121 2817,05,50,269 529,20,17,138 11564,75,73,252

MOR Projects (A)

Others

Preliminary Project Expenditure 3,03,447 2,62,16,601 - 2,65,20,048

Less: Sale of Tender (120,000) (160,000) - (280,000)

Net Project Work in Progress for Others (B) 1,83,447 2,60,56,601 - 2,62,40,048

Grand Total (A+B) 9276,92,23,568 2819,66,06,870 529,20,17,138 11567,38,13,300

Land costincluded in Project Work in Progress represents payments made through various Zonal Railways/ to concerned authority for the purpose
of acquisition of land. The total payment made amounts to ¥177,64,00,410 (Previous year: ¥134,43,41,491).The land so acquired is in the name
of the concerned Zonal Railway.

The Company is executing projects assigned by MOR . In some of the projects, initially transferred to the Company, work was already in progress
and some of the Zonal Railways had incurred expenditure on those projects prior to their transfer to the Company. The expenditure made by the
concerned Railways prior to the formation of the Company has not been taken into account.

In the opinion of the Management, the value of current assets, loans and advances on realization in the ordinary course of business, will not be less
than the value at which these have been stated in the Balance Sheet.

“Interest on mobilization Advance, recovered from the Contractors as per the terms and conditions of the contract, is being credited to the project.

In Compliance of para 5.1.1 of joint procedure order of MoR dated 17/12/2013 for transfer of completed projects financial transfers of projects
have been carried out in the accounts after handing over / commissioning of the full project to the Zonal Railway and where the expenditure booked
againstthe project atthe end of the financial yearis at least 95 % of the latest anticipated cost of the work.
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31.03.2015 Bl
R ()

432,898,772

1,697,524,295

213,04,23,067

1,098,097,338
7,180,935,855
23,489

997,599

828,00,54,282

10,412,638,582

10,412,638,582

1869,26,92,864

2,136,250,573
204,925,434
69,997,065
4,180,678
313,649,108
156,609,644
506,522,444

339,21,34,946

925,700,507
1,248,136,448
2,666,804,431
3,800,928,297

864,15,69,683

752,171,313

75,21,71,313
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Trade Receivables

More than 6 months
Unsecured-Considered good
Other (less than 6 months)
Unsecured-Considered good

Cash and Bank Balances

Cash and Cash Equivalent

Balances with Bank

-- Current Account

-- Fixed Deposits (Maturity less than 3 Months)
Cheque-in-Hand

Cash-in-Hand

Imprest

Other Bank Balances

0
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Balances with Bank
Term Deposit in Schedule Bank

Short Term Loan & Advances

Advance Receivable in Cash or in kind or for value to be Received:

(Unsecured, considered good)

Recoverable from Ministry of Railway ( Interest)
Interest accrued on Fixed Deposit

Interest accrued on Mobilization Advance
Security Deposit

Advance Tax and Tax Deducted at Source
Others

MAT Credit Entitiment

Advances for Project Work

(a) Advances to Zonal Railways
(b) Advances for Sleepers

(c) Mobilisation Advances

(d) Other Advances

Other Current Assets
Lease Receivable

O
EUECIRIEIC

BB ~AnnuvAL REPORT
B 2014-2015

As at March 31, 2015
Amount (%)

432,898,772

1,697,524,295
213,04,23,067

1,098,097,338
7,180,935,855
23,489
997,599
828,00,54,282

10,412,638,582
10,412,638,582

1869,26,92,864

2,136,250,573
204,925,434
69,997,065
4,180,678
313,649,108
156,609,644
506,522,444

339,21,34,946

925,700,507
1,248,136,448
2,666,804,431
3,800,928,297
864,15,69,683

752,171,313

75,21,71,313
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faawor 31.03.2015 BT
¥ ) ¥ 3)
15 9R=Ted 9 IoRa:
are], frmfor &l (uRarerEn fafafern) @ edfanar

- HAT uRATSHRT | 2425,63,45,480

-l HATr Wl uRaAoet | 351,89,33,068

-l HAT IS IRATSTRIT | 11,60,19,730

- el HATAT URATSTIRT & @ Yt gRT freed) 27,92,51,991

_Fg Bl — aREreET (gRdid) 181,48,31,395

-8 B 9 — uRATeET (@ ) 51,77,22,431 3050,31,04,095
A TR

BN IIGIDIGECIE Rl 397,42,02,834

3447,73,06,929

XA A1 & 1P 04.01.2012 B T3 . 2004 / SY—1 / JARATATS /15 B SR XA §RT FH DB Taer Yo B TVMT Xl HATT DI HS T
aRITSTIRIT & BrIfag & fore Yfafafer gRT @ fdr &1 9.25 Uftrera, e Ao 3 & Amet 8.5 Uftrerd 3iR Ity uRITSTT & A1 # 10
T BT &R A DI ST | N HATI B (220 & FFAR URATSHT Yaer F Haferd ¥l YR & URTR 2 Bl Yedel WU J URITSTT F J9TRd
T 11 =T 8 | YT BT uRATSTHT AT dT b 0.25 TS U SIUSoll TR Bl HdfeId SiFdl Neld Bl a<d § Reilol fhy SiH Tl s &
gRATSTT ¥ @& Sica Jmrdfed favar 7= B | Sdesll (Gfdervn) @1 &f o™ Td g1 @Td H JTRd bt i1 381 € | (e sl @ faemt 8ik e
I oY fafder ot o1 o vd g1y w@rar # sfse frar g |

16 3=g 3y
() <t 3
— ¥ —IPpd 112,80,66,748
— ol 5,84,91,233 1,186,557,981
(@) SILINECIRE -
() fafaer s 17,477,219
120,40,35,200
17 9R=res =
(Frfor 3 aRatorET el wfafafer & yaer <o)
— Xl HaTery uRATeTHet | 2238,73,90,218
— X HATAT HT URATSTTRIT & 320,97,15,718
— N HATTI LI GRATSTIRN 9 10,54,72,482
— gRErTrHT TR g8 far T (@ et gR) 27,92,51,991
— R0 S W a8 e T — gRarST (Tadid) 162,70,77,256
— feTT BT R g8 farar T — RIS (3r) 47,80,84,366 2808,69,92,030
(FfraTiora ATer AT A © Uue <)
TR Ud SRET0T 2 155,65,69,838
Y AT 61,25,69,440 216,91,39,278
3025,61,31,309

1. BUN ERT SIRI HfAaT & Sfeta are FHior 13l W gT o0 &1 U= SRR & A1 Ud Sfie YH10T9S & 918 &1 fhdl T 8 |
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Particulars

Revenue from Operation:

Turnover from Construction Work in Progress

- From MoR Projects

- From MoR Metro Projects

- From MoR National Projects

- From MoR Projects (Executed by Zonal Railways)
- From Deposit Work - Projects ( SPV)

- From Deposit Work - Project (Others)

Turnover from

Apportioned frieght earnings

ClEERIEI

BB ~AnnuvAL REPORT
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As atMarch 31,2015

Amount (%)

2425,63,45,480
351,89,33,068
11,60,19,730
27,92,51,991
181,48,31,395
51,77,22,431

Amount (%)

3050,31,04,095

397,42,02,834

3447,73,06,929

Inaccordance with Railway Board’s letter No. 2004/W-1/RVNL/15 dated 04.01.2012 RVNL has accounted Consolidated Management fee @ 9.25% in
case of Metro Projects, 8.5% in case of Other Plan Heads and 10% in case of National Projects on the expenditure incurred by RVNL on MoR projects. As
perthe directions of MoR, all expenditure in the nature of consultancies related to Project Management are being charged directly to project. D&G charges
payable to Railway up to 0.25 % of cost of projects are allocated to the projects on actual funds released to the respective Zonal Railway, Expenditure
incurred on D&G (Supervision) are being charged to the Profit & Loss account. The miscellaneous receipts from sale proceeds of Tender and other
income has been credited to the P&L account.

16

17

Otherincome

(a) Interestincome
-Banks - Gross

- Others - Gross

(b) Dividend income:
(c) MiscIncome

Expenses on Operations

(Direct Expenses on Construction and Project related Activity)
-Incurred on MoR Projects

- Incurred on MoR Metro Projects

-Incurred on MoR National Projects

- Incurred on Projects (Zonal Railway)

- Incurred on Deposit Work - Projects (SPV)

- Incurred on Deposit Work - Projects ( Others)
(Direct Expenses on Freight apportioned earnings)
Operation & Maintenance Expenses

Overhead Costs

112,80,66,748
5,84,91,233

2238,73,90,218
320,97,15,718
10,54,72,482
27,92,51,991
162,70,77,256
47,80,84,366

155,65,69,838
61,25,69,440

1,186,557,981

17,477,219

120,40,35,200

2808,69,92,030

216,91,39,278

3025,61,31,309

Expenditure on Work in Progress against contracts awarded by the Company is recognized on completion of measurements and testing certified by

the Engineer.

Expenditure of execution of projects done by the Zonal Railways on behalf of the Company on MOR projects is accounted for on the basis of
statement of estimated expenditure received from respective Zonal Railways and is adjusted allocation-wise as and when the final expenditure

statementis received.
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The value of projects commissioned / completed and put to use by Railways during financial year are ¥522,50,03,855 (Previous year
%1912,78,12,305). Out of the same, the value of completed projects funded through MOR sources are of ¥346,88,68,216 (previous year
%1212,65,06,175) and IRFC funded are of ¥175,61,35,640 (previous year ¥700,13,06,130). The financial adjustments for MoR projects have
been carried out against Project Advance (Capital) and Project Advance (Capital Fund) respectively in the Balance Sheet leading to a reduction in
Loan Funds and Project Work in Progress to the tune of ¥522,50,03,855 (previous year31912,78,12,305 ). Further with regard to IRFC funded
projects, Project Work in Progress has been reduced by the amount of ¥175,61,35,640 (Previous Year ¥700,13,06,130) and corresponding
asset as Lease Receivable has been created in accordance with the procedure order finalized by MoR and in accordance with Accounting Standard
for lease.As some minor works may still be required, the expenditure incurred on projects subsequent to the date of financial adjustments will be
cleared at the time of drawing the completion reports.

With the rationalisation of the revenue stream of RVNL, the expenses incurred on supervision and monitoring directly allocable to the projects have
been reviewed in terms of Railway Board s letter no 2004/W-1/RVNL/15 dated 04/01/2012, the pattern of booking of expenditure on Zonal Railways
and general accounting practises.The expenditure incurred on this account related to execution of Deposit Works (for SPV and others) have been
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Particulars As at March 31,2015
Amount () Amount (3)
Employee benefits expense
(a) Salaries and Wages 607,897,267
(b) Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 30,081,490
(c) Staff Welfare Expenses. 81,387,849
719,366,606
Other Expenses
Power & Fuel 13,281,695
Rent 36,166,493
Rates & Taxes (excluding Income Tax) 38,073
Miscellaneous Expenditure 6,691,000
Paymentto Auditors
(i) AsAuditor 793,216
(i) ForTaxation Matters 220,173
(iii) ForOther Services 132,312
(iv) ForExpenses 79,423
Advertisement and Business Promotion 29,128,013
Project Management Consultancy 44,537,252
Printing and Stationery 18,658,048
Travelling & Local Conveyance 19,700,598
Communication 20,656,241
Books & Periodicals 185,934
Prior Period Items (857,789)
Professional Fees Consultancy -
Legal and Professional Charges 22,989,249
Consultant Fee 20,421,109
Other expenses 27,763,828
D & Gto Zonal Railway 2,900,000
Interest onloan from IRFC (Completed Project) 554,424,103
Less: Interestreceivable from MoR on loan from IRFC (554,424,103.00) -
263,484,868
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20 fa<ha @mra
() =Tt T 99,828,611
9,98.28.611
21 IdE fRenfRel & JIgurR o =g
(@) TR Y& AU g 45,447,097
(@) s iR R 10,288,002
TG ATe] GoilTd B T AR (9,047,602)
4,66,87,497

22 ferg fmfor st (T va ar)

22.1 T 3R o= ufifdal grr forg < <2 fmior st ot e fafor St A4 21 2| 39 yaR @) aRarssi & Amal § degwdl are]
IRIURRAT SR TR @1 Ugem §7 WR by T Wigd e AR Widerv] G9R @ 3R UR (BT 737 2 | U<y 13 &l @1e], aTfaaii §
SRITAT AT & AT URATSTAT T & BIROT a1 1121 D fAfder 201 & wu H fa@mr 1 & |

23 IMHRHD <TRIAT

23.1 BII §RT T & ®©T § 7 9 TV YIS & HRUT ShaR gRT by U Trdi & el H AThRTD ST T682,33,39,602 3R oAIST fhrar B
% o0 %11,33,26,027 B | IS a1a1 IS foref URATST NI T 91T 99T 2 < S Hefrd Fergel g1RT a¥{ell S |

23.2 AT PR B Aael § AT T116,64,114,068 3R IGR & Hael H H1T 32,00,57,787 ¥ |
24 Yol gaTagdn

Uil TaTagT I404,49,97,842 ¥ |
24.1 30 qEFdgl

GRATSTT @ & ARSI I & fofg qaiagdr 31138,77,63,353 & |
25. yduaIg yRsfie

31 #rd, 2015 & G 9o #
®)

ERRRCKI] 2,33,67,583

wfasy MY wa o= [ 12,14,662

26. 3T ufa AR
T IR ST BT 0T B B fow F=faRaa Toret vd sifierel @1 SuRT fhar R R

31 WTd, 2015 P AW 98 H
®)

MRIRGT BT Y o a1et M ) () 322,68,75,203
e 3f3adt Rl @) ofra de 208,50,20,100
qf & afd § gbrar WIRd et IRRT & 208,50,20,100
e e ()

S IR @1 3ifdhd 1 (%) 10
gfd IR qol A (B /) 1.55
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20 Finance Cost

(a) Interest Cost 99,828,611
9,98,28,611

21 Other Expenses as per DPE Guidelines
(@) CSR Expenses & Sustainability Expenses 45,447,097
(b) Research & Development Expenses 10,288,002
Less: Transferred to Capital Working Progress (9,047,602)
4,66,87,497

22. Deposit Works (SPVs and others)

22.1 Works being executed for SPVs and others parties are treated as a Deposit Work. The corresponding current assets and liabilities in respect of
such projects have been recognized on the basis of expenditure incurred plus supervision charges as agreed. The advance received is disclosed
under Current Liabilities and the amount recoverable on account of project execution under Sundry Debtors.

23. Contingent Liabilities

23.1 In respect of claims by the contractor on account of Arbitration not acknowledged as debts by the Company is ¥682,33,39,602/- and
%11,33,26,027/- for claim of Lease rental fees . A claim if any will be form part of the project cost and reimbursable by respective Clients.

23.2 Inrespect of demand of Service Tax ofisZ 116,64,14,068/- and Income Tax ofis¥2,00,57,787/-.

24. Capital Commitment
Capital commitment is ¥404,49,97,842/-

24.1 Other Commitment

Commitment towards Contractual Payments of Projectexpenditure is31138,77,63,353/-.

25. Managerial Remuneration

Year Ended March 31,2015
®)
Salary & Allowances 2,33,67,583
Provident fund and other Fund 12,14,662

26. Earnings per Share:
The numerators and denominators used to calculate Basic Earnings per Share are:

Year Ended March 31,2015
®)

Profit Attributable to the shareholders (%) (A) 322,68,75,203
Basic average number of Equity Shares 208,50,20,100
Weighted average number of Equity Shares 208,50,20,100
outstanding at the end of Year (Nos.) (C)

Nominal value of Equity Shares () 10
Basic Earnings per share (%) (A/C) 1.55

221



@ faerm fom fafies
ﬂ Rail Vikas Nigam Limited

27 Ul & A" ¥ ydbed (TE—18):
27.1 YT S
BT Nerd BUHl forfics
FREYR IR Yerd & fafice
FOTITH Neld Hu ferfics
HIRed TTEol Yeld Huel forfics
3 Gfhar ¥ forfics
27.2 HE® HYUI
BTs WiTs Yol PIRUNTH 31T sfear forfics
27.3 = Yo G RY:
3N v, AR vdy feers
i T fsm: fFeers aifis

qqel oiF: Faers giRkare

ot faora e fAdere aRareH
27.4 3=M R PRl & faa aftafad 2:
BTs TS Yol pIRURYA i gfear fafics

27.5 G<fera el © e iRl &I ghe:

faaxor

MINENE]

31 9T, 2015 & GHTS I8

9H1AT THH**

31 AT, 2015 & GHIST I8

T BT B wReiE (27.3) SWEd 2,45,82,245

RERISIRSING ]

99 & U yea /3T =T 2,18,41,735

"3 9. 3 W) et 1,30,33,603

IR & T & 1,00,71,28,442 20,38,11,054
EISIRIRS NG

EISISIESING] 36,59,353

TSIEXT BRITAT BT T IR 2,59,987

IRASH & I =g 6,18,33,33,811 (1,17,31,124)
ER RIS

99 & ey /<9 e 2,03,37,525

3 AET. 31 R =Tt 81,98,099

IRIATSTHT & 1T & 58,93,30,372 1,09,71,84,561
YURISIIRY el

99 & oI ue /a0 =T 7,57,692

"3 HIEL. I R T 10,43,588

RIS & fory &g 15,65,39,242 92,98,114
gE Wis Ya »RURA Afe gfear fafies

FUA B FI B Y A 2,38,88,644

** 3 Hyad SupHH @l =T aRATSR 1R Y 7T @Rt &R Herae Hufal @ fafdy @l o 7e ¥ avgen ara IRr o gef e
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27. Related Party Disclosures (AS-18) :
27.1 Joint Ventures:
Kutch Railway Company Limited

Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company Limited

Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited
Bharuch Dahej Railway Company Limited
Angul Sukinda Railway Limited
27.2 Subsidiary company
High Speed Rail Corporation of India Limited
27.3 Key Management Personnel:
Sh. S.C. Agnihotri : Managing Director
Sh. Ashok Krishna Ganju: Director Finance
Ms. Gita Mishra : Director Personnel
Sh. Mukul Jain : Director Operation
Sh. Vijay Anand : Director Projects

27.4 Enterprises in which Directors interest exist:

High Speed Rail Corporation of India Limited

27.5 Disclosure of transactions with related parties:

O
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Particulars

Transactions

Year ended March 31, 2015

OQutstanding Amount**
Year ended March 31, 2015

Remuneration to Key Personnel (27.3) above 2,45,82,245
HPRCL

Interest paid/payable for the year 2,18,41,735
"Interest on Mob. Advance Payable" 1,30,33,603

Expenditure towards project

1,00,71,28,442

20,38,11,054

BDRCL

Interest paid/payable for the year 36,59,353

Expenditure of Vadodara Office apportioned 2,59,987

Expenditure towards project 6,18,33,33,811 (1,17,31,124)
KPRCL

Interest paid/payable for the year 2,03,37,525

" Interest on Mob. Advance Payable " 81,98,099

Expenditure towards project 58,93,30,372 1,09,71,84,561
ASRL

Interest paid/payable for the year 7,57,692

" Interest on Mob. Advance Payable " 10,43,588

Expenditure towards project 15,65,39,242 92,98,114
High Speed Rail Corporation of India Limited

Payment towards expenses of company 2,38,88,644 -

** These represent amounts recoverable on account of expenditure incurred on various projects of Joint Ventures and Misc Expenses of Subsidiary
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28. WYId ST/ HYT SUHHI D Ae" A Udhed:

[YFd SeM Bl A o AR, 3% &1 M 31 91d, 2015 BI
@I &1 3guTd
HT YAd BUAl forfice Yo famr frm, gfear 50%
Piea U g, Sfear 26%
et O TadorS 20%
ORI WRBR, YR 4%
ERENYR IR Yad duAl fafics Yo faem frm fafics, wRd 33.33%
(TAGRIRHATTA) M SIS (3 WBHR), dRA 0.35%
TR AT U geRew fafics, ard 5.88%
URIET T g%, IRd 10.00%
™Il "3 forfics, aRd 5.88%
Riear Vet 1d tiax fafics, wRa 0.98%
e SRS o e feorfics, aRa 0.98%
aiea sfear fafics, ara 5.40%
vadive fafice, wRd 2.94%
ST 14.70%
M FRBR, WRA 19.60%
FUCTH Vold Hul fIfice (H3meive) ¥ faerd e fafies, wRa 30%
PUICTH Uie HRUARIA fafics, wra 30%
g geRgol fofies 12%
T fARA SIdUHE HRUNT 15%
3T Y WRBR, WRA 13%
WHd TEol Yold Hul fafics (SSRIRwTd) Yo faem fm fafics, wRa 33.33%
I e (TR Sfear msae fafacs, gfean 10.50%
ORI HRICTgH drs, sfear 10.82%
TR Wt fafics, sfear 6.06%
SITTAYHHT 8.20%
Eeren! gsRew fafics, sfear 8.20%
e Y1 shrear fifics, sfear 6.06%
ORI sSRedd sacude i ferfics, sfear 10.82%
ST &1 3R 6.00%
3 Gfbar ¥ed foifics (TuaeiRye) e fera frm fafics, sfear 31.50%
Rica Wia vs ufar fafacs, gfear 10.00%
Mnfeen wRaR, e 21.30%
afea, gfear 10.50%
SSRAT (anfeen WRaR), i 0.70%
PEDR, 3fear 26.00%
gTs s ¥ pRaRyA 3t sfear fafies Yo faera fm fofies, gfsan 100%
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28. Disclosure in respect of Joint Venture/Subsidiary:
Name of the Joint Venture Partner(s), country of origin Proportion of ownership
interest as at March 31, 2015
Kutch Railway Company Limited Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, India 50%
Kandla Port Trust, India 26%
Mundra Port SEZ, India 20%
Government of Gujarat, India 4%
Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, India 33.33%
Limited ((HPRCL) IDCO ( Govt of Odisha), India 0.35%
Essel Mining and Industries Ltd., India 5.88%
Paradeep Port Trust, India 10.00%
Rungla Mines Ltd, India 5.88%
Jindal Steel & Power Ltd, India 0.98%
Steel Authority of India Limited, India 0.98%
POSCO India Limited, India 5.40%
MSPL LTD, India 2.94%
OMC, India 14.70%
Govt of Odisha, India 19.60%
Krishnapatanam Railway Company Limited (KRCL) Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, India 30%
Krishnapatnam Port Corporation Limited, India 30%
Bramhany Industries Limited, India 12%
National Mineral Development Corporation, India 15%
Government of Andhra Pradesh, India 13%
Bharuch Dahej Railway Company Limited (BDRCL) Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, India 33.33%
Adani Petronet (Dahej) Port Private Limited, India 10.50%
Gujarat Maritime Board, India 10.82%
Dahej SEZ Limited, India 6.06%
GNFC, India 8.20%
Hindalco Industries Limited, India 8.20%
Jindal Rail Infrastructure Limited, India 6.06%
Guj. Industrial Dev. Corp Ltd, India 10.82%
Equity Gap 6.00%
Angul Sukinda Railway Limited (ASRL) Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, India 31.50%
Jindal Steel and Power Limited, India 10.00%
Govt of Odisha, India 21.30%
OMC, India 10.50%
IDCO ( Govt of Odisha), India 0.70%
CONCOR, India 26.00%
High Speed Rail Corporation of India limited Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, India 100%
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29.

30

30.1

30.2

30.3

31.

32.

33.

34.
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AUR G

T @R A et &3 For TRe] ISR H Vol URATSIHTRA &1 fHH{or 3 311dT 7, SRICC 3ifh IS Yhleec 31 a1 g oIk ‘&
ROIET IR TTHA—17 BT Udhe MaTIHaTg AN el 2 |
oot fvram

FRTET MR AR IRERT & A # BUN & ofioT gder gREATT ool TP BT 2 | ST F U TG 3R 03 3R RATATSA Y
TG HEAMT & SR TR 8P 3R IMRACATS & d1=1 Feafd W o= piRa faan 51 %8 8 | SiRuRe srfad, 78 el & fog o
RSPl & d14 JATTATRS <fioT Srde B frearfad & fobam 127 € 3R I8 wed A HaTerd & A 2 |

faira ofrer

SIoT TR <1 TS URIURIAT BT BIFd Ae 5 9 Ia1Y ¢ & AFAR T 81 gl URITSTI31 UR 0T & forg IRfAF @1 < uferiiar & fawg
oISt TR &1 g aREURR B B & w0 A 8 R Xel HATed gIRT AR BT 301 G §RT SRR YR a1 ST RET ¢ |

SISt # et fAIaeT & AT = eliol I AR &

31 914, 2015(3 ®)

T a9 I SFfdre R TE 752,691,157
T ¥ R 31 QR et urd ¥ R 31 QR AN 3,653,145,750
e ¥ & aifires R 1,331,492,861
5,737,329,768
gRarers ofiel (68 Ye1d)
el eirot faran 2,860,466
ECT: axIelT T 28,085
g <ol ferr 2,832,381
U a9 9 A g TE 1,039,688
gRETe as

HU BT URAT b URATSTAT Yo 81 A GRATSHT YT B T S IR FHI TR EMRG & | GT B Bl FHI IRATST TR IRATST
AT & | FEvelel, ATHI: 3df 12 HEH1 3 378 Bl & 3R 5 1 6 99 b qeT8 Sff Al & 3R PH—PHY], 37 3@ & a1 1, BRI
BT IR R R el 8¢ ofd TRATSTHT e & oy 981 AR Nefd Pl JAdRd 81 311R STerd YT ST T 95 Hferd qe fxir wrfy
SIS

Y fagga 91$ / ufeas sufar &t s wfogfoad

fagd SRl & forg 818 <3 UiaR oTsi & UTaeT Sfag e ars /At duftral o JTar &l 78 ufnyfasn aRaresn anrd &
T HTHE |

Gip T . 2.24 & JFAR R AD] & Fael H i a5 URdc g3l &, 2,18,056 Bl Fal P shisc fhar T 2 R ysgel sfde
T T o1 3iR27,22,112 &1 a9 & QR AfAfy amam & sfSe fawar war o |

TUH—-21 B URT 30 & TR AP fa<ig fIa=01 BT U8 a1 a9 B & RV ISl a9 & Al SuA T8l PHRIAT Il 8T © |
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29. Business Segments

As the business activity falls within a single segment viz. construction of Railway projects in the domestic market, the disclosure requirement of
AS-17 on ‘Segment Reporting’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) is not applicable.

30. Lease Rentals

30.1 The company’s leasing arrangements in respect of offices and residential premises are inthe nature of operating lease. The rentis being charged on
rates agreed to between HUDCO and RVNL based on letter of offer received from HUDCO and agreed to by RVNL. The formal lease agreement
between the Company and HUDCO for lease of Corporate Office, New Delhi has not been executed and is under approval of Ministry of Urban
Development.

30.2 Financial Lease

The value of assets given on lease is reflected against contra liability payable to IRFC towards loan on completed projects as appearing in note 5,
whichis liquidated progressively through loan repayment to IRFC being arranged by MoR.

Future minimum lease payments of gross investmentin the lease are as follow:

31stMarch 2015(in%)

Not laterthan one year 752,691,157
Laterthan one year and not later than five years 3,653,145,750
Laterthan five years 1,331,492,861

5,737,329,768

30.3 Operating Lease ( Kutch Railway)

Gross lease Rent 2,860,466
Less: Recovered 28,085
Net Lease Rent 2,832,381
Not later than one year 1,039,688

31. Operating Cycle

The operating cycle of the Company is based on the time required from initiation of the project to completion of the project. The period required for
completion varies from project to project. However, in general, the duration is more than 12 months and may extend upto 5 to 6 years, and
sometimes even beyond this period, depending on the progress of the work upto when the project is fully physically transferred to Railways for
operations and financial progress to the extent of 95% of the latest anticipated cost has been achieved.

32. Securities released to state Electricity Board /Public Companies

Securities paid to Electricity Boards/ Public Companies towards provision of High Tension Power Lines for electricity connections are booked as
project expenditure being part of the project cost.

33. There is change in accounting policy in respect of stale cheque As per Accounting Policy no 2.24 items of ¥2,18,056/- credited to the head which
was earlier debited and¥7,22,112/- has been credited to Misc Income during the year.

34. Previous year's figures have not been provided being the first year of the Consolidated Financial Statement in terms of para 30 of AS-21.
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35. WYId SEM /WD b HeH H UHCIPRUL:

HYH BT AH & uREulkm srerfa o rH 3rerar g 7 fEear
IREYRTAT TeT Gl TR
wifea ga R (Puy W)  [EAfea gg aR-{ ¥ (dug o)
gR¥ufki @ wu% A afr & ©u% A
1 2 3 4 5
1) &1 Sl 69% 20,711,619,329 57.55% 1,857,146,622
2) g ARG HUT
(i) =€ we Yo PR ffies -0.01% (1,846,195) 0.02% 674,943
3) Wgad SUHH (IUIfad THHT & Wy H)
(i) F@TIETH Yord HuAl fafics 2% 746,070,619 0.52% 16,817,510
(ii) 371 Gfbar Yord duAl fafics 6% 1,936,360,316 -0.14% (4,379,958)
(iii) @ gTEST Yerd HUAl fofice 2% 591,619,452 1.66% 53,436,770
(iv) RETYR IRTET Yerd o fafics 6% 1,700,000,000 -0.76% (24,490,141)
(V) 8 Ye1d Hu ferfics 15% 4,486,202,993 41.14% 1,327,669,458
Sirs 100% 30,170,026,515 100% 3,226,875,204
IR AI9ST U9 gariges 9IS @ fog vd a9t 3k 4@
s THSSTH
B RS T G 000131T
g/ — B/ — g/ — el / —
ARD. AT va.A. sfaei= AP P. 9 Ul gd
HRER JeTe SR U&e feerd feere fo HU-T Afed
M. No. 081510 DIN : 01637856 DIN : 01970462

I A3 faeeh!
fe=i® : 31.08.2015
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Name of the entity Net Assets i.e. total assets minus Share in profit or loss
total liabilities
As % of consolidated | Amount (in Rs.) | As % of conso- | Amount (in Rs.)
net assets lidated net assets
1 2 3 4 5
1) Parent 69% 20,711,619,329 57.55% 1,857,146,622
2) Subsidiary Indian
(i) High Speed Rail Corporation Ltd. -0.01% (1,846,195) 0.02% 674,943
3) Joint Ventures (as per proportionate consolidation)
(i) Krishnapatanam Railway Co. Ltd. 2% 746,070,619 0.52% 16,817,510
(i) Angul Sukinda Railway Co. Ltd. 6% 1,936,360,316 -0.14% (4,379,958)
(iii) Bharuch Dahej Railway Company Limited 2% 591,619,452 1.66% 53,436,770
(iv) Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company Limited 6% 1,700,000,000 -0.76% (24,490,141)
(v) Kutch Railway Company Limited 15% 4,486,202,993 41.14% 1,327,669,458
Total 100% 30,170,026,515 100% 3,226,875,204
For Kumar Chopra & Associates
Chartered Accountants FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Firm Registration Number.: 000131N
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
R.K. Aggarwal S.C. Agnihotri Ashok K. Ganju Kalpana Dubey
Partner Chairman and Managing Director Director Finance Company Secretary
M. No. 081510 DIN: 01637856 DIN: 01970462

Place: New Delhi
Date: 31.08.2015
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@ faerm fom fafies
Rail Vikas Nigam Limited

AR g A dufEr IR Wyad Se
wearf sufrar iR @gad S & wdg ¥ Hu Affem, 2013 @ GRT 129(3) @ IFUTAT W faawor

wearft suf /Hgad Ja gfear 6T STl FRENYR URTAY| $o6 Yadd
BT ATH Yo fefies Xed S Yeld HUHT DU Xeld S
fafies fafies fafies fafics
1. e 93 D FDE B 31.03.2015 31.03.2015 31.03.2015 31.03.2015 31.03.2015
fUselt o
2.9% @& 3fd ¥ HuN gRI
gRa gga it su-/
YT e & VAR
e 10 Ufd IR @ z10 ufd ¥R @| 710 ufy IR @ |10 9fd 3R] 10 ufy ok @
feae 9@ feame 4@ feae 4 o ka9 | kg A
18,90,00,000 & 5,50,00,000 16,99,99,995 12,49,99,994 8,10,00,000
gfaad) AaR gfaadl IR gfarad) AR sfaady orav | sfead) sax
SERIIECARIPACPCH 7189 axls 755 BIS 170 s 125 a%rs | /1 IS
S # faaer & <fr
& Goll @ erRar 34.42% 35.46% 35.23% 50% 30%
ufrera @1 A
3. yurg foa e A fewof 2 fewof 2 fewofy 2 feaofy 2 feaofy 2
Hedqvl =, sUST faavor
4. wearhy ul /Hgad
Sgq &1 Wifeha T8 fau
S &1 BROT
5. TdiFa9 s fara gl 7193.61 =S 359 B 7170 PIs 3446.12 374.61 oI
U3 3 IJJUR AIRAIRAT B ]
fore smiw fraa @uRy
6.9 @» fere ama /et
i. TR # forar %4.54 <= (&1f9) 35.22 PUS | e %137.76 32.05 BT
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Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of Associates/

Angul Sukinda

Bharuch Dahej

Haridaspur Paradip

Kutch Railway

Krishnapatnam

Joint Ventures Railway Limited Railway Company | Railway Company | Company Railway Company
Limited Limited Limited Limited
1. Latest audited Balance 31.03.2015 31.03.2015 31.03.2015 31.03.2015 31.03.2015
Sheet Date
2. Shares of Associate/Joint
Ventures held by the company
on the year end
Number 18,90,00,000 Equity | 5,50,00,000 16,99,99,995 12,49,99,994 | 8,10,00,000
Shares of 10 each | Equity Shares Equity Shares Equity Shares | equity Shares
of T10 each of 710 each of 710 each of T10 each
Amount of Investment %189 Crore 355 Crore %170 Crore %125 Crore 381 crore
in Associates/Joint Venture
Extent of Holding % of 34.42% 35.46% 35.23% 50% 30%
the Paid up capital
3. Description of how there Note 2 Note 2 Note 2 Note 2 Note 2
is significant influence
4. Reason why the associate/ - - - - -
joint venture is not consolidated
5. Networth attributable to %193.61 Crore 359 Crore %170 Crore 3446.12 Crore | 74.61 Crore
Shareholding as per latest
audited Balance Sheet
6. Profit / Loss for the year
i. Considered in Consolidation %4.54 Lakhs (Loss) | I5.22 Crore | ------------ %137.76 %2.05 Crore
Crore (Loss)
ii. Not Considered in
Consolidation
Note
1. NoJointVentures or Associate Companies were formed or ceased during the year.
2. Thereissignificantinfluence due to percentage (%) holding in the Share Capital
3. Theabove statement also indicates performance and financial position of each of the Associates.
For Kumar Chopra & Associates
Chartered Accountants FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Firm Registration Number.: 000131N
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
R.K. Aggarwal S.C. Agnihotri Ashok K. Ganju Kalpana Dubey
Partner Chairman and Managing Director Director Finance Company Secretary
M. No. 081510 DIN: 01637856 DIN: 01970462

Place: New Delhi
Date: 31.08.2015
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Fax : +91-11-26328533

E-mail : kca_delhi@yahoo.co.in
www.kcaconsultancy.com

To

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Members of

Rail Vikas Nigam Limited.

1.

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding
Company”) and its subsidiary ( the holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the group”) and its jointly controlled entities, (
Refer Note No 35 of the attached consolidated financial statements) comprising of the Consolidated Balance sheet as at 31st March, 2015, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated Cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information( hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated financial statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial statement in terms of requirements of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) that give a true and fair view of the Consolidated financial position, Consolidated financial performance and
Consolidated cash flows of the Group including its Jointly controlled entities in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its jointly controlled entities are responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and its Jointly controlled
entities and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the Consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which
have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Ourresponsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the
audit report underthe provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our auditin accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the
Holding Company’s preparation of the Consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Holding Company has in place an adequate
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Holding Company’s Board of
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and other auditors interms of their reports referred to in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters
paragraph below, is sufficientand appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Consolidated financial statements.
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Basis for Qualified Opinion
BHARUCH DAHEJ RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED (BDRCL)

Western Railway has raised a demand for lease rental amounting to 65.31 Crore. As per the information available and explanation
provided, Rs. 31.96 Crore out of the above demand pertaining to the period June, 2008 to March,2015is clearly not payable as per
the concession agreement and related policies.

The company has accrued for land lease rental amount to ¥33.35 Crore commencing from the date of commencement of commercial activities till
balance sheet date. Accordingly, the company has disclosed contingent liability of Rs 31.96 Crore.

Management has currently requested for deferral of the amount due as provided by the company andis contesting the claim raised for
prior period as explained above.

As per the management, no further provision is currently required and, additional amount payable, if any, shall be accounted for at that point of
time, when such additional liability is crystallized.

However, based on constant reminders from Western Railway and no concrete settlement or negotiation in place till date of signing of this report,
we are unable to ascertain the additional liability, if any that may eventually crystallize.

Consequently the impact, if any, of the above on the financial statements of the company could not be ascertained.

Reference is invited to a clarification issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) to another Rail SPV through Ministry of Corporate
Affairs (MCA), suggesting thatassets ofthe SPV should be accounted forinaccordance with“ Accounting Standard 26-Intangible Assets”,
treating the same as intangible assets . Since inthe Management’s perception , this clarification did not take into account several relevant
factors that apply to BDRCL, the company has made a reference to MCA and ICAIl explaining the nature of project assets, seeking a review and
the Management is confident that its views will be upheld. Pending clarity in this matter, SPV has continued to account for the project assets as
Fixed Assets in accordance with its accounting policy and has followed useful life as prescribed in the Schedule Il Part C of the Companies Act,
2013 for those assets as against accounting for of these assets as “Intangible assets” and amortising the same as per Schedule Il Part A and
amendmenttherein vide Circular no.(GSR No. 237 E).

This being a significant matter, with various points of view, SPV’S management strongly believes that the accounting policy followed by them in
this regard is appropriate and reflects fairly the nature of the assets etc. As explained by management since the outcome of the above mentioned
disparity of points of view is currently un-ascertainable and since management is awaiting the conclusion on this matter, the impact, if any, of the
above onthe financial statements of the company could not be ascertained.

KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED (KRCL)

The Revenue and Operation & Maintenance (0&M) Expenses by the SPV have been booked based on the basis of advices/calculation sheets
provided by South Central Railway (SCR) and not making available the detailed substantiating collateral records and procedures for verification of
the same.

The KRCL is anticipating earnings on Length of about 10 Km section from Krishnapatnam Railway Station to the Buffer of Port from South Central
Railway. Hence, the revenue reported is subject to the same.

The income pertaining to Phase 1 and Phase 3 cannot be segregated due to non availability of any information from SCR pertaining to same.
Further, all supporting evidences related to revenue bookings controlled and managed by SCR only and not made available for verification.

Further in view of non-receipt of the confirmation of South Central Railways regarding apportionment of revenue, O & M expenses, service tax
claims, overhead provisional expenses and the outstanding balance, final figures could vary.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the possible effects of the matter
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its jointly controlled entities as at 31st March 2015; and their consolidated profit and their
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the following matters mentioned in the auditor’s reports of the respective subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities:

ANGUL SUKINDA RAILWAY LTD.

There is a change in the policy for Interest earned on deposits with banks, earlier Interest earned on deposits with bank had been taken to the profit
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and loss account. From current financial year the interest earned during year on deposits with bank has been taken to the capital work in progress.
Had the company continued to apply the earlier policy, capital work in progress would have been higher by %13.83 crores and profit of the company
would have been higher to that extent. ( Proportionate impact on consolidated Financial statements ¥4.35 Crores being 31.5% ownership interest)

HARIDASPUR PARADIP RAILWAY COMPANY LTD.

During the year, the company has changed its policy and routed the receipts and expenditure directly to Capital Work in Progress as against the
earlier practice of routing it through statement of Profit and Loss since the interestincome earned on fixed deposits/flexi accounts out of the funds
infused as share capital for meeting. This change of accounting policy has net impact of decrease in profit of the year Rs. 8.96 Crores with a
consequential decrease in capital work in Progress to that extent. (Proportionate impact on consolidated Financial statements ¥2.99 Crores being
33.33% ownership interest)

KUTCH RAILWAY CO. LTD.

Since the previous financial yeari.e. 2013-14, Western Railway has computed Company’s share of apportioned earnings on the basis of “carried
route” instead of “booked route”. Accordingly, apportioned earnings has been reduced by ¥41.09 crores for the curent financial year. Further, a
total amount 0fZ31.02 crores has been deducted on this account for the financial years 2011-12 & 2012-13. The company has contested against
this method of calculation of apportioned earnings at various levels in Railways. The approximate amount 0f ¥53.5 crores may be deducted on this
account for earlier financial years (from 2006-07 to 2010-11). The average amount of both of above methods works out to be Rs. 53.5 crores
(approx.). The impact of the same will be reduction in Reserves and Sundry Debtors by ¥53.5 crores (approx.) in the subsequent years as and
when advised by the Western Railway. (Proportionate impact on consolidated Financial statements ¥26.75 Crores being 50% ownership interest)

BHARUCH DAHEJ RAILWAY COMPANY LTD.

The Operation and Maintenance Agreement with the Western Railway that defines among others, right & obligations, the share of Income &
Expenses to be apportioned to the Company arising out of the operation of the Bharuch Dahej Samni Railway Line by the Company has not yet
been signed although an in-principal approval has been received from the Ministry of Railways. The Company has however recognized the
operating income and expenses arising out of this arrangement which is yet to be formalized. The Operating Income & Operating Expenses
accounted for by the Company are based on provisional figures made available by the Western Railway and the final figures could vary.

Our Opinion is not qualified in respect of above matters.
Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements/financial information of one subsidiary and five jointly controlled entities, whose financial statements/
financial information reflect total assets of ¥784.50 Crore as at 31st March, 2015, total revenue 0fZ330.11 Crore. and net cash flows amounting
to 250.08 Crore for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements/financial
information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiary and jointly controlled entities, and
our report in terms of sub-section (3) and (11) of section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary and jointly controlled
entities, is based solely onthe reports of such other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on the legal and regulatory requirements below, is not modified in respect of
the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements/financial
information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2015 (" the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11)
of the Act, based on the comments in the auditors’ reports of the holding company, subsidiary company, and jointly controlled companies
incorporated in India, we give inthe Annexure |, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to the extent applicable.

As required by the directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor-General of India, in terms of sub section (5) of section 143 of the Act, based on
the comments in the auditors’ reports of the holding company, subsidiary company, and jointly controlled companies incorporated in India, we
giveinthe compliance inthe Annexure 1.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes
of ouraudit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statement have been kept
sofarasitappears from our examination of those books and the reports to other auditors.
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The consolidated Balance Sheet, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and consolidated Cash flow statement dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

In terms of Ministry of Company Affairs notification no. GSR 463 (E) dated 5th June 2015, Government Companies are exempt from applicability
of provisions of section 164 (2) of Companies Act 2013 and on the basis of the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary company and its
jointly controlled companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the subsidiary company and its jointly controlled companies
incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31st March, 2015 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, in our opinion and to the best of ourinformation and according to the explanations givento us:

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated financial position of the group and jointly
controlled entities- Refer Note No 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

The group andits jointly controlled entities did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its
subsidiary and jointly controlled companies, incorporated in India.

For Kumar Chopra & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 000131N)

Sd/-
(R.K. Aggarwal)

Place of signature : New Delhi Partner
Date: 31.08.2015 (M. No 081510)
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ANNEXURE | TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Annexure to the Independent Auditors' Report referred to in paragraph 8(I) of our report of even date on the consolidated financial statements of Rail
Vikas Nigam Limited for the Year ended 31st March, 2015

1.

a) The Group andits Jointly controlled entities have maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation
of fixed assets except for Kutch Railway Company, a jointly controlled entity, where auditor has reported that details for the financial year 2014-
15 have not been updated.

b) The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year at reasonable interval and no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification except for Kutch Railway Company, a jointly controlled entity, where auditor has reported that there is no approved
regular program of verification for all assets and major fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management at reasonable
intervals during the year.

a) Where applicable in the group and its jointly controlled entities, inventories have been physically verified by the management at reasonable
intervals during the year. Keeping in view the nature of business and inventory, the frequency of physical verification in our opinion is
reasonable.

b) The procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Group
and its Jointly controlled entities and nature of its business.

c) Where applicable in the Group and its Jointly controlled entities, proper records of inventories are maintained and no material discrepancies
were noticed on physical verification.

The Group and its Jointly controlled entities have not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties covered in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, there are adequate internal control procedures commensurate with the
size of the respective companies in the Group and its Jointly controlled entities and nature of their business with regard to purchases of inventories
and fixed assets and for the sale of goods and services except for Kutch Railway Company, a jointly controlled entity, where auditor has reported
that internal control system needs improvement to commensurate with the size of company and nature of its business, for purchase of fixed
assets and for sale of service. Also Joint Procedure Order has not been formed till date in terms of Operation & Maintenance agreement and the
provisional figures of income from traffic and respective costs are accounted as advised by WR based on calculation as detailed in the said
agreement without approval of Joint Procedure Order. During the audit, we have not observed any continuing failure to correct major weaknesses
inthe internal control systems.

According to the information and explanation given to us the Group and its Jointly controlled entities have not accepted any deposit during the year
fromthe public.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act for any of the products of the Group
and its Jointly controlled entities.

a) According to the information and explanation given and as per the audit reports of respective companies in the Group and its Jointly controlled
entities, the Group and its Jointly controlled entities are generally regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, wealth tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty, value
added tax, cess and other statutory dues as applicable to it. According to the information and explanation given to us, no undisputed amount
payable in respect of any statutory dues were outstanding as at 31-03-2015 for a period of more than six months from the date they become
payable.

b) According to the information and explanation given to us, and the audit reports of the respective companies in the Group and its Jointly
controlled entities, the particulars of income tax or sales tax or wealth tax or service tax or custom duty or excise duty or value added tax or
cess as at 31stMarch, 2015, which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as under:
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Jointly controlled Name of Nature of Amount Period to which Forum where

company statute disputed dues (Rs .in lakhs) amount relates dispute is pending

Haridaspur Paradip. Income Tax Income Tax 32.67 AY.2010-11 CIT (Appeals)

Railway Co. Ltd Act, 1961 demand (proportionate)

Kutch Railway Income Tax Income Tax 53.87 AY.2012-13 Rectification u/s 154

Co. Ltd. Act, 1961 demand (proportionate)

Kutch Railway Service Tax Service Tax 10679.50 - Reply of non

Co. Ltd. Law demand (proportionate) acceptance filed on
06.01.2015

c)  During the year, no amount was required to be transferred to investor education and protection fund in accordance with the relevant provisions of

the Companies Act, 1956 and rules made thereunder.

8. Inthe consolidated Financial statements there are no accumulated losses as on 31.03.2015 and have notincurred cash losses in current financial
year and in the immediate preceding financial year.

9. According to the audit reports of respective companies in the Group and its Jointly controlled entities and the information and explanations givento
us, none of the companies in the Group and its Jointly controlled entities has defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institutions or bank or
debenture holders.

10. According to the audit reports of respective companies in the Group and its Jointly controlled entities and the information and explanations given to
us, none of the companies in the Group and its Jointly controlled entities has given any guarantee for loans taken by others from bank or financial
institutions.

11. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, on an overall basis, we are of the opinion that the respective
companies inthe Group and its Jointly controlled entities have applied term loans for the purpose for which loans were obtained.

12.  According to the information and explanation given to us, no fraud on or by the respective companies in the Group and its Jointly controlled entities

Place of signature : New Delhi
Date: 31.08.2015

has been noticed or reported during the course of audit.
For Kumar Chopra & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 000131N)

Sd/-
(R.K. Aggarwal)
Partner
(M. No 081510)
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ANNEXURE Il TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Annexure to the Independent Auditors' Report referred to in paragraph 8(l) of our report of even date on the consolidated financial statements of Rail
Vikas Nigam Limited for the Year ended 31st March, 2015

arbitration cases including the reasons of
pendency and existence/effectiveness of
monitoring mechanism for expenditure on all
legal cases (foreign and local) may be given.

S. | CAG’s Directions Our Report Action Taken Impact on accounts
No. thereon and financial
statements of the
company
1. | If the Company has been selected for No disinvestment has been taken place No action required. NIL
disinvestment, a complete status report during the year 2014-15 Further as per
in terms of valuation of Assets (including information provided to us. RVNL has
intangible assets and land) and Liabilities not been selected for disinvestment by
(including Committed and General Reserves) | Government of India during the year.
may be examined including the mode and
present stage of disinvestment process
2 | Please report whether there are any cases of | As per record and information provided No action required. NIL
waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest etc., if any,| to us, there are no case of waiver/write
the reasons there for and the amount involved | off of debts/loans/interest etc.
3 | Whether proper records are maintained for No inventory is lying with third parties and | No action required. NIL
inventories lying with third parties & assets no asset has been received as gifts from
received as gifts from Govt. or other authorities | Government or any other authorities by RVNL.
4 | Areport on age-wise analysis of pending legal/ | As per record and information provided to | The legal cases have | Disclosure has been

us, there are 27 legal/ arbitration cases
pending relating to contractors. Age-wise
statement of these cases is as follows:

Age of cases No. of cases
Less than 2 years 20

2-3 years 1

More than years 9

Cases under arbitration are generally pending
due to (i)hearing in process or completed
but not yet pronounced by the tribunal

(ii) arbitration proceedings are in process
for want of additional details/documents
(iii) argument has not yet started in some
cases. Arbitrators are appointed as per the
procedure prescribed in the Contract Agree-
ment with the Contractors. Payment to the
Arbitrators/lawyers are paid as per the rates
prescribed by RVNL or as approved by CMD.

been reviewed and for
cases filed against the
company. In terms of
AS-29, the amount has
been disclosed as
contingent liability in
notes to accounts
after adjusting for
provision/ liability if
any provided in the
accounts

given at note no. 26
to financial
statement.

Place of signature : New Delhi
Date: 31.08.2015

For Kumar Chopra & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 000131N)
Sd/-
(R.K. Aggarwal)
Partner
(M. No 081510)

247



Rail Vikas Nigam Limited

ﬂ @ fawma o fafes

o

HRATT olET WIeT Ua¥ of@r T
PRITTT U ed oI @l URIeT, NeId—arorisded
BRI, IRAI ¥, foaota fao, A9 faeeil—110 002

INDIAN AUDIT AND ACCOUNTS DEPARTMENT
OFFICE OF THE PRINCIPAL DIRECTOR AUDIT
(RL-COMMERCIAL) COFMOW, INDIAN RAILWAYS,
TILAK BRIDGE, NEW DELHI- 110002

AUV / IR / UIgay / 32—13 /XfafAfet / 2015—16 /405 f&Td: 21.09.2015

[ar ¥,

JrexeT e ye e,

et famm fme forfaes,
Y T, 3R hifcl Ha,
¢ faeel—110066

fasra: 31 91, 2015 @7 GEIT 99 B foru N faerg for foifies, 12 fieeh @& wafed faiia faaxon ) o arfSiferam, 2013 @ ey
143(6) (M) & TEd YRA & FH=® Td HeTeral wierd ol femof |

ARGy,

Y 2014—15 & fory ¥l fasra e fafies, 78 faeclt & wfeha fa<i faavon R wue a1fdife, 2013 @1 9RT 143(6) () @&
qed ‘T fewll g’ Hert € | Ffed faci faxeil R g fewft ymoras du SifefE, 2013 & UTaeTEi & SrguTe § Hu &
R faa=oni & rer arfifes o S H uRqd BT 911 | Sus o gfad arfie Rurd @1 ©: gfrdt e 89R BRIy S 4ol Bl b
Ead

PUIT UF DI YTl SUTT DRI |
ATIPT,
e d: aeiiad gl /—
fester wrle

e feve, dwEr oe,
Rerd arfore)
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Confidential

ARG <@l WNIEr Ua¥ of@r T
BT T e9d of@T uReT, Yerd—arforioad
BIBAT, TR X, foatd fas1, 78 feeei—110 002

INDIAN AUDIT AND ACCOUNTS DEPARTMENT
OFFICE OF THE PRINCIPAL DIRECTOR AUDIT
(RL-COMMERCIAL) COFMOW, INDIAN RAILWAYS,
TILAK BRIDGE, NEW DELHI- 110002

No. PDA/RC/PSU/32-13/RVNL/2015-16/405 Dated: 21.09.2015

To

The Chairman and Managing Director,

Rail Vikas Nigam Limited,

1* Floor, August Kranti Bhavan,

Bhikaji Cama Place, R.K.Puram, New Delhi - 110066

Subject: Comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India under Section 143(6) (b) of the Companies Act, 2013 on the Consolidated Financial
Statements of Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, New Delhifor the year ended 31s1 March 2015.

Sir,
The Nil Comments Certificate under Section 143 (6) (b) of the Companies Act, 2013 on the Consolidated Financial Statements of Rail Vikas
Nigam Limited, New Delhi for the year 2014-15 is enclosed. The Nil Comments Certificate on the Consolidated Financial Statements may be placed

before the Annual General Meeting along with Financial Statements of the Company in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Six
copies of the printed Annual Reports of the Company may please be sentto this office at the earliest.

Receipt of the letter may please be acknowledged.

Yours faithfully,

Encl: As above Sd/-

(Dinesh Bhargav)
Principal Director of Audit
(Railway Commercial)
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31 914, 2015 &I GaTT 98 & fov ¥ faora frem fafies, a8 faeell @ wofea
fa<iiar faa=on ax S arfSrfs, 2013 &Y 9RT 129 (4) & G121 ufsd aRT 143 (6) ()
P d8d URd & 3 $ Ud geTaEr iad ) fewfry

Hu A, 2013 & ded fFiRa faxia RaféT waas @
AR, 31 A9, 2015 P A 9§ & forg ¥l faswra Fm
fafics, 18 facell @ wafpd facfm faaror R &= &
RN HUT & Y&e 31 & | AT @1 aRT 129 (4) & |
gf3d &7 139(5) & TEd WRd & fI=d Ud HeTelar wieTd gIRT
FPrga wifafde oRam el &1 SIS @l aRT 143(10) & T8d
RS olRaT WIe & AST & AR WdF ol Wiell & TR
R STEIFTIH &1 ORT 129 (4) & A1 UfSA €RT 143 & TBd FHlbd
fociar faaRol W= AT A Uehe B B RHENY 2 | $ET TaT ©
& S91@ gRT I8 BRI f&ATH 31.08.2015 BT IADI i@l qRIel Rare
@ ded fhar Tar g |

9 YRT & =6 Ud HeTeral U¥ieTd &1 3R W 31 91, 2015 Bl
T 99 & ot Yot fasr forry feafies, =1 feeoht & wafed

T T8 faeel]
ferie: 21.09.2015

faxira faaront @ ifSfem @t aRT 129 (4) & AT Ufed oRT

143(6)(v) & T=d YR ol U B 2| T Sad ARG B
FATG 99 & oY AP HUl, AeIRT HUAl AR T &
A R SRl (Fee gal & S1g9R) & o< [Javvll & /e
SIET UET TEN B € | U8 YR kAT URIET Adfed oiar wiedi &
3R BUI & HHATRIT B TS 3R HB o@id Rare o oia
REAGIERES

Y ERT B g RI—URIE B MR TR VT PIg HSAYOl SIDRI
AT A8l 318 8, oI SRYT |ifafdd ca—wiere! o Rue w®
I AfaRa femof w1 S a1 33 |o e U |

WRA & fRI50T6 Td AeToral TIeTdh
P forT IR BT IR A
sl /—
femer wrfq

T ST, ke TReT,
(ReTd arfore)

SREGARED

Yo faera frm fafics, 13 faedl 3 werae Hul[l &k gFa wu 9 FrRifya sufry @) g&@ Rk & 18 2, e fag 31
|14, 2015 &1 AT fa<iia 9o & foag S sifrR, 2013 31 aRT 129 (4) & G127 UfdT aRT 143 (6) (T) & ded RS @l

qeT T B TE 2|
ﬁqﬁm@ﬁmﬁﬁﬁm'

1. Ted QTR Xld BU=T oIty

2 Wgﬁmmﬁrﬁé@
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION
143(6)(b) READ WITH SECTION 129(4) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF RAIL VIKAS NIGAM LIMITED, NEW DELHI FOR

THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2015

The preparation of financial statements of Rail Vikas Nigam LIMITED,
New Delhi for the year ended 31 March 2015 in accordance with the
financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013
is the responsibility of the management of the company. The statutory
auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under
section 139(5) read with section 129(4) of the Act are responsible for
expressing opinion on the financial statements under section 143 read
with section 129(4) of the Act based on independent aud it in accordance
with the standards on auditing prescri bed under section 143( 10) of the
Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated
31-08-2015.

I, on the behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India. have
conducted a supplementary audit under section

Place: New Delhi
Date: 11.09.2015

143(6) (a) read with section 129(4) of the Act of the consolidated
financial statements of Rail Vikas Nigam Limited for the year ended 31
March 2015. We did not conduct supplementary audit of the financial
statements of Subsidiaries, Associate Companies and Jointly Controlled
Entities (as per list enclosed) for the year ended on that date. This
supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access
to the working papers of the statutory auditors and is limited primarily to
inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel and a selective
examination of some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge
which would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to statutory
auditors" report.

Forand onthe behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India
Sd/-

(Dinesh Bhargav)

Principal Director of Audit
(Railway Commercial)

Annexure

List of subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities of RAIL VIKAS NIGAM LIMITED, NEW DELHI for which Supplementary audit was not conducted
under section 143(6)(a) read with section 129(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the year 2014-15.

Jointly Controlled Entities
1. Bharuch Dahej Railway Company Limited
2. Angul Sukinda Railway Limited
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B3 WIS el DIRURIA i gfear forfics
(et R o fofics @ qoi w@nfic arelr g Sushd)

e Ruid

TR IRRERBY,
AT BT & FRIDT BT HUN BT AR AT RUTS IR DRel
U 3R Y 81 W8T 2 ROred 31 714, 2015 (1 318, 2014 9 31 A,
2015) BT TATS I 99 H HUN & @l URIfETT ok, ofdr uNieTahi
% Rard e g |
ARA & g (el #31e) 3 <9 § 8% WIS el TRkl &
faert © forw v 9y woE Ao (Cadid) fFofad a=a @
forg Yo faem fm fafics & few o ey | qooeana,
AT 7 25 FeTS, 2012 BT 37U YoT AT dTel SUHH & WU H
TR WS Y HRUNYH offe Sfear fofics (Tavaem=edl) @1
T o T iR S 18 JFTRA, 2012 BT AR IMRH HX+] Bl
JHTOTIS AT | U BT AU YSlpd BIITTd s faeel 6 6 |
PN BT I Ie WRA IR 310a] Vel s e fafics
(fafafer) srerdr T—AHY TR 39 Se¥d & fofy ey w9 | giord
UTRoT 3R drdrd), SURT 3terar foedl g AT srerar Ated
JMNRT YH HRA AT qodaell TRy e & forg, Sy
AT 81, WRT 3rrar faqer # g% wiis X uRATeHRl 3iR
foreft o1 Ya1 emeRa g # W UBR & I eId Afed
BB, WRIRIT, Yo Ja¥Ra R difiRed duie RveH
TRITIUT R, STRET0T IR fATTAoT et | e il Faami &
YRITTT B MR TIfaferat dear 2 |
TR fsgre=
1. feeh—<dhe—smawr waffa S<a wfd Ife—@rR &1
Jd—eaqeRidr eaa=
N HATR A 350 fRHME @ WA A faeel—
ISNE—MaER  FAMUd S Wi TfeR & oy
Jd—aeRIdT e S AT T §
TIUHINRT / JIRAITATS gRT H99 RIET & 1T el aH
H IR sed B RAee—aSRe—sMadR & a1 I i
XS RN & Y qa—de:idT 31eas &7 BRI |iar 17
2| 39 ey @ yRfAe Rurd sik sfaRke R 31.10.2015
BT UL DY TS | IITT B I, 2015 T GRT BIFT bl T & |
2. XA #WATA™ AR gsfafRer offe AvEa Yed
s yq vd asa—fifer i giauld 3ife
ATSAT © 19 AT 199 U SEA1ER 84T
YT & H o] WedT e & ol YRT WRHR 3R A
WRHR & 919 18 AR, 2014 BT FEIEREBAT & T H Aee,
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I Nd TSI Ud aga—ff-Rex 3t gigae
3T FTST 5 Udb HgAfd SO IR gXdieR U | 59 Fasiidn
SO & 3fvid 18 RIdaR, 2014 BT ASAT g & T T
TG IF IR BN fhT U o R Yerd #§ 7 o
RIS Pl Y AT 7T AT | IS dT€ 15.05.2015 Pl
TASTRY, ATSAT AR el HATT & 414 A1 T IR 1 WA g5
ofl SIT fdeR, 2014 H Ugel TaRTH W SXeIRT &R & 91
P ITE YT & T H B |

TS —d T v—AYR E'S BT I~

TTe— I To— R s W 160 fFAITE T 7T de™ &
o JaegasriaT & oY 27.10.2014 BT <7 H TATHIRA!
3R RS (AT YeId TR N raleT gu wu=
forfes) @ o \weia & ot 3R BRI I IR 8w
PR b Y ARGV / TavaaRe & yfiafHsa -1 26
JFCER W 1 TqGdR, 2014 TP ATSAT Bl ART fHAT o7 |
T, RSS! | 16 fA2v= = WRT &7 <7 fham &R
23 FGeR, | 30 FAdeR, 2014 TP b A—fa—dic Fdeor 3R
R 9@ 3fR Wge W aR Y | uRMS RUIE 12 BRawl,
2015 3R 3FARA RUIE 09.06.2015 BT IR DI TS | FTRRIaT
I YT IR E |

feech—a—1g S=a fa wferarT sgsriar siega= Ruid
(foeqa s Ruid)

ST A TS fEoms YU (NmRuauasio) Ud TausiR
7 faeell 3R 918 & 99 Us S=a T X o & forg
RIS &1 FagRidr sregd- RUid dIR &)4 & forv
faTids 28.11.2014 BT FAYA & AT, o, =M1 W
[T B Il @R BRI R gER by 3 W
HeAd g8 © b URIST aeridT 3ead BT Ars1 uet
gRT faquifdd fear S0 31.03.2015 @7 Xl HATT o
9 ®ad gRASHr & AT @ dng ST erfl dfew
RGBT ST BT AN SR THI T 3T T g¥feTe
HEGY DIl fEeell—TNTYR WS BT & fbar SIrga |
HRATAYRTST =1 AT, 2015 § WRA # U 3fF—fa—wdie A4
T 37R SANRT, HIUTe, ANTYR, BaTdTe, fasrgarsy 3R ==1g
BT SRT faa @R 17.07.2015 &1 Ao Rard u=qd @t 2 |
RUe & R AEERT §1)T STid 31 78 3R RideR, 2015 #
=l B AT & | TIIRY g Rgem gri faadior o
eHfad & e ARMUEUEsol Ud TaudeiRdl 918 H &
ygfort o= ==l B |
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HIGH SPEED RAIL CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED
(A Wholly owned Subsidiary of Rail Vikas Nigam Limited)

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Distinguished Shareholders,

The Directors of your Company are privileged in presenting the 3 Annual
Report of the Company together with the Audited Statements of Accounts
and Auditors’ Reportforthe year ended 31st March, 2015.

President of India (Ministry of Railways) issued directions to Rail Vikas
Nigam Ltd. (RVNL) for incorporating an SPV for development of High
Speed Rail Corridors in the country. Subsequently, RVNL incorporated
High Speed Rail Corporation of India Limited (HSRC) on 25th July 2012 as
its Wholly owned Subsidiary and the Certificate of Commencement of
Business was received on 18th August, 2012. The Company has its
registered office in New Delhi.

The main objects of the Company are to enter into and carry on all
business related to planning, designing, development, construction,
manufacturing, assembling, fabricating, processing, installing,
maintenance, operation and financing of Railway infrastructure and
related logistic support systems, including rolling stock, of all types in
India and abroad of High Speed Rail Projects and any other Rail-based
traffic, as may be approved by the Government of India or Rail Vikas
Nigam Limited (RVNL) or any other Authority specifically created for this
purpose fromtime to time, and to undertake any or all activities connected
thereto, on PPP, EPC or any other scheme or model basis.

Business Performance

1. Pre-feasibility study of dedicated High Speed corridor of Delhi-
Chandigarh-Amritsar.

Ministry of Railways had assigned the work of conducting the pre-
feasibility study for Delhi-Chandigarh-Amritsar dedicated High
Speed corridor with a speed potential of 350 kmph.

M/s SYSTRA S.A in a consortium with M/s RITES has been
engaged by HSRC/RVNL for pre-feasibility study for High Speed
Rail Corridor between Delhi-Chandigarh-Amritsar.The Inception
Report and Interim Report-I of this study on 31.1.2015. The study
is likely to be completed by June 2015.

2.  Signing of MoU between MoR and Administrator of National
Railway Administration & Vice-Minister of Transport of China:

A Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) between the Government
ofthe Republic of India and the Government of the People’s
Republic of China on enhancing technical cooperationinrailway
sector, was signed on 18th September, 2014 with chairman,

A.

Railway Board, Ministry of Railways of India and Mr. LU Dongfu,
Administrator of National Railway Administration & Vice-Minister
of Transport of China as signatories. Under this MoU, an Action
Plan for enhancing cooperation was signed on 18th September,
2014, within which the following two projects have been taken up
inrailways. A subsequent Action Plan was also agreed to between
NRA, China and MoR on 15.05.2015 which refers to progress
made since the signing of first Action Plan in September, 2014.

Upgrading of Chennai-Bangalore-Mysore section

A delegation of RVNL/HSRC visited China from 26th October to 1st
November, 2014 to sign the TERMS OF AGREEMENT AND WORK
PLAN between HSRC and CREEC (China Railway Eryuan
Engineering Group Company Limited) in Chengdu on 27.10.2014
forafeasibility study for Speed Raising up to 160 kmph on
Chennai-Bangalore-Mysore Section. Thereafter, sixteen experts
from CREEC visited India and carried out an on-the-spot survey
from 23rd November to 30th November, 2014 and had extensive
meetings and site visits. The Inception Reporthas been submitted
on 12th February, 2015 and Interim Report on 09.06.2015. The
feasibility study isin progress.

Delhi-Chennai High Speed Corridor Feasibility Study Report
(Detailed Project Report)

China Railway Siyuan Survey and Design Group (CRSSDG) &
HSRC signed TERMS OF AGREEMENT AND WORK PLAN at
SIYUAN Headquarter, Wuhan, China on 28.11.2014 for
preparation of a Project Feasibility Study Report (Detailed Project
Report) for a high speed rail corridor between Delhi and Chennai. It
has been agreed that the Project Feasibility Study Report  will be
taken up with financing by the Chinese side. Ministry of Railways
has approved on 31.03.2015 that the Study will be done for only
Delhi-Nagpur section instead of the complete Delhi-Chennai
section, as it is a very long corridor and not only will the
construction cost of the project be high but the Feasibility Study will
be ata considerable costand time as well.

CRSSDG carried out an on-the-spot survey in India in March 2015
and visited Agra, Bhopal, Nagpur, Hyderabad, Vijayawada and
Chennai, and has submitted the Planning Reporton 17.7.2015.
The report has been examined by Indian counter parts and
discussions are planned in September, 2015. After the funding is
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3. HIs—oEueEIs By Wi Yd SRS &1 fasE

Jrerfa gAfaa FraflRa s, faauiver & faeer a1
T, 3fe:
S HATCTA -1 g —3TEARTAIG 8T8 WIS ¥el HINSR & fadbrd
% {10 o= ®es So™ I gAlfcrar FefRa S, faqaryor
fpeal @ T & U IRATATS / TITHIRAT BT
AP fHar | 8IS WIS Y PRURIE o TAUHIMR
IRATSTT & AgerRIdT GHRe R SR 477 3 31 arelt
TSI BT Y@AgHT T @ oY IR §RT TaR
TGV & ANMITHROT H HeedqUl AN AT & | ST+
3iferd RaTe s, 2015 H IRGI IR AT B |

4 AR U@ Rl IJAfd T8 Rel—Ha3—a=5—
Prasai—s fieell d Slsd drd 818 |l ¥a
PINSR & SHS agYs & ol FaerRidr Jega
X HATT 7 U Goll IRgd FfaeT gRT ar g orast @
T3 fRee—HaE—aaara—s faeel Bl Siie dTdl 818 WIS
I BINER & SIHS TSl edd & (oY FTBRIAT eI
PR BT DRI IRATATST / TIUHARY] Bl AT & | Aeb=iled!

IIferar 18.03.2015 & el g8 o 3R 02.07.2015 BT AfaH
RERERIRRIN

fo<fra u<=fs

HU b fET @ ol eIRAIT—Te gRT 98 fhy T gRfAS g
B gaol IRATATU BT AAR] P I D BN TIUFINRET B
ged gofl 9§ & SRR T 500,000 ¥ IFH 210,74,110 & TS |
TATHRIRAT @1 3R ¥ IRAAYS gRT 989 fhy &g & HRoT
31.03.2015 @I HUT DI dlef, MUY 6,18,70,778 T gl 8 & |
31.03.2015 T URATSTT U g8+ fhaT AT el & JL=a: I,
I3, @nfe WR fhar T B |

TS 3T & HRYT 2014—15 B QIR 37 3T dGHR 313,33,004 B
TS | 7,79,196 & Y B Ul AT d_l & d18 3R HR aRar
DI YRl PR B d1E 26,74,196 BT AT TERT GaTT |
fa<fir af 2014—15 iR 2013—14 & forg Fo & fo=<fg yeel= &
Fecaof affde e iy g 2

¥ 2013—14 TG 2014—15 H HU & AT U< & Feayol
A i1 ST 1Y &

(Tfer T 4)
B faazor fa<ha af 2014—15 fa<ha adf 2013—14
1 Ifepd TR Yol 5,00,00,000 5,00,00,000
2 g&d IRR golt 10,74,110 5,00,000
3 Yol oTfar o) 2,62,40,048 o el
4 el A 13,33,004 8,877
5 aRdrer 3 Y el BB TEl
6 PR gd 7,79,196 (28,50,029)
7 g (18,46,195) (30,95,247)
8 gfd IRR A 9 (57)

LCIRREEL 3T SFGT AT BT 3751+ e (a1 &, DU -1 A TRIEr ffera

5 PRIS DUV DI UG AR Goll BT gl § U Bl U&<T 2R
YT, 10,74,110 T BT & |

GIGIK

Ffs Bt ¥ Y T e fedt oY e wafafdy @ gweTa
B @, U 7 9§ 2014—15 & forg fa=dy WY e @1 =rworn
& B |

\rafer s

BT A FHERNT a9 & IR ST 9 DIy 1 AIafd A7 9T el
DI

sfera fafer
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committed by NRA to Siyuan, CRSSDG & HSRC will discuss
further modalities.

3.  Development of Mumbai-Ahmedabad High Speed Rail Corridor
viz. fixing of the milestones, exploring funding options etc:

Ministry of Railways (MoR) has authorized RVNL/HSRC, to take
further steps for development of Mumbai-Ahmedabad High Speed
Rail Corridor viz. fixing of milestones, exploring funding options
etc. HSRC has made significant contribution in rationalizing the
alignment prepared by Consultants to ensure feasibility and
constructability of HSR project. ~ JICA has submitted the final
report in July, 2015. Further action will be taken after the report
has been studied.

4.  Feasibility Study for Diamond Quadrilateral Network of High
Speed Rail Corridors connecting four major metros i.e. New
Delhi-Mumbai-Chennai-Kolkata-New Delhi:

Ministry of Railways (MoR) has entrusted RVYNL/HSRC the work of
carrying out the Feasibility Study for Diamond Quadrilateral
Network of High Speed Rail Corridors connecting four major

O
EUEENTEIC

BB ~AnnuvAL REPORT
B 2014-2015

metros i.e. New Delhi-Mumbai-Chennai-Kolkata-New Delhi
through an open global tender. Technical bids were opened on
18.3.2015 and finalized on 2.7.2015. Financial bid are under
evaluation.

Financial Performance

During the year the Paid-up Share Capital of HSRC has increased from
%5,00,000/-t0%10,74,110/- due to allotment of shares to RVNL in lieu of
preliminary expenditure incurred by RVNL for incorporation of the
Company. There is an increase in the current liabilities of the Company to
%6,18,70,778/- as at 31.3.2015 due to expenditure incurred by RVNL on
behalf of HSRC. The total expenditure incurred on the project upto
31.3.2015 is %2.62 crore which has been incurred mainly on salary,
travel, etc.

There is an increase in other income to ¥13,33,004/- during 2014-15 on
account of interest income. After offsetting an expenditure 0fZ7,79,196/-
and meeting tax liability there is a small surplus 0f36,74,642/-.

The significant indicators of financial performance of the Company for the
financial year 2014-15 and 2013-14 are mentioned below:

(Amount (in %)

S.No Particulars FY 2014-15 FY 2013-14
1 Authorized Share Capital 5,00,00,000 5,00,00,000
2. Paid-up share Capital 10,74,110 5,00,000
3. Capital work in progress 2,62,40,048 Nil
4. Total Income 13,33,004 8,877
5. Operating Income Nil Nil
6. Profit before Tax 7,79,196 (28,50,029)
7. Net Worth (18,46,195) (30,95,247)
8. Earnings Per Share 9 (57)

Capital Structure

The Paid-up Share Capital of the Company is ¥10,74,110/- against the
Authorized Share Capital of 5 crore.

Dividend

Since the company has not yet started its commercial activities, and the
limited financial transaction, the Company has not declared any dividend
forthe year2014-15.

Fixed Deposits

The Company has not accepted any fixed deposits from public during the
year under review.

Reserves

As the Company is yet to commence its operational activities the
Company has not transferred any amount to General Reserves.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange
Earning and Outgo

The provisions of conservation of energy, technology absorption are not
applicable to the Company. During the year under review, there is no
foreign exchange earnings there is an outgo of 71,00,000/- (approx) on
account of travel.

Presidential Directive
No Presidential Directive was received during the year.
Integral Reports

“Management Discussion and Analysis Report” and “Corporate
Governance Report” form an integral part of this Director’s Report, which
are placed at Annexure-l & II.
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31 faora o IRENED
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IS HedeR &1 & folg a4 & QR 30 g, 2014, 7 TS,
2014, 21 JTFCIR, 2014 AR 13 T, 2015 BT AT BI 414 (5) d8&
5]

fRy®l & STRIRIE &1 faawor

HUHT ARATITH, 2013 BT GRT 134(5) & vt ST uferd fowam

AT &, B & A9 gfte a-d 8 fh—

) e oW TR axa H e wdl 9 wefd sfud
TSI & AT AT oIl AFD! &1 UTer fhar 7T 8 qer
9 BIE Ayl fae T8 ©;

i) freErel 9 U e Aol @1 e gd RO @ fear
T2 U Aol vd g AT Sy € S saasTiRe gd Sfed & qe
O af & ofd H HUAl B BRI TAT I @y & forg
B B T Td B fIaR0T Y Taes AR U B & |

i) U AAFTH & Iugel B SIFAR HU Bl TREURT BT el
P foTT qIT GETEST Ud g UhR B Ifrafiddat o1 uar

;|8 faeel)
fe=i®: 10.08.2015
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T 3R = AP & fofv el 7 i orar Rarsf &
STRETYT o1 AR S v g e faam o 2

iv) et | arfife o HispeT g o e # TEe] daR
[EaN

v) el T 9l g rEl @ uEEEl @ Ay gt
gHfad o1 & fou SfRaa yonferat IR @1 8 3R 3
yonferat uatw off &R gHTd WU I BRI B &Y o |

qifife Re+f &1 9R
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P BT H o8 |

<@ wige

IR B RiFd Td F8ei@dR J 99 2014—15 & forg 9
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Board of Directors

The Board of Directors consists of four (4) part- time Director nominated
by the Holding Company, Rail Vikas Nigam Limited.

The following Directors held office during the year:

Sh. S. C .Agnihotri Chairman
Sh. Mukul Jain Director
Sh. Ashok K. Ganju Director
Sh. Vijay Anand Director

Number of Board Meetings

The Board met five (5) times on 30" May, 2014, 7" July, 2014, 15" July,

2014, 21" October, 2014 and 13" January, 2015 during the year for

transacting business.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, Directors

confirmthat -

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable
accounting standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

b)  the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied
them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give atrue and fair view of the state
of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit of the company for that period,;

c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the

Place: New Delhi
Dated:10.08.2015
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company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

d)  thedirectors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern
basis.

e)  the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance
with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems
were adequate and operating effectively.

Extract of Annual return

Extract of the Annual Return of the Company is annexed herewith as

Annexure-Ill to this report.

Auditors

The Comptroller & Auditor General of India appointed M/s ASAP &

Associates, Chartered Accountants as Company’s Statutory Auditors for

the year 2014-15. The Board would like to place on record their sincere

thanks for the valuable services rendered by Statutory Auditors.

Comments Comptroller & Auditor General of India

The Comptroller & Auditor General of India has undertaken

supplementary audit on the accounts of the Company for the year ended

31stMarch, 2015 under Section 139 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013. The
comments of the C & AG on the Annual Accounts of the Company for the
year ended 31stMarch, 2015 shall also form part of this report.

Acknowledgements

We record our appreciation and thanks to the Ministry of Railways and

Holding company, RVNL for their continued support to the Company, and

also the employees of the Holding company for their efforts to take the

company forward.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

sd/- sd/-
Mukul Jain Ashok K. Ganju
Director Director
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Annexure — “I”

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

An Overview

The company was incorporated on 25th July, 2012 as a Wholly owned
Subsidiary (WoS) of Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, a schedule ‘A" CPSE under
Ministry of Railways.

Mission

Creation and operation of state-of-the-art High Speed Rail Systems in
Indiaand Abroad.

Vision

To emerge as project developer for implementation of high speed rail

projects with a sound financial base and to build a pool of expertise in
global construction, maintenance and operational practices.

Objectives
> To develop human resources for project implementation by skill

development training and developing expertise for specific areas of
rail infrastructure in general and high speed rail in particular.

> To develop and improve existing knowledge base in-house to
provide consulting services.

> To develop expertise and a knowledge base for optimum utilization
of existing assets and up-grading them for higher speed potential.

To maintain a cost effective organizational set up.
To undertake the project development and implementation of

identified High Speed projects.

> Tobearailinfrastructure Project Management Company committed
to sustainable development and environment friendly construction
of high speed rail related projects in the country and abroad.

> To ensure efficient and timely execution of projects as per
International norms.

> Tomobilize financial resources for projectimplementation.

> Toencourage public private participation in rail related projects.

Financial Performance

The company has not recorded any operating turnover during the year, as

the Company is yet to start its commercial activities. The Company,

however, earned an interest on deposits amounting to ¥13,33,004/-

Strengths

o The organization is developing expertise in undertaking all stages
of project development - from concept to commissioning —
including feasibility/bankability studies, DPR (Detailed Project
Report), financing/structuring of project specific SPVs, tendering
for EPC contractors, project supervision, commissioning etc.

. HSRC is working with multiple study teams consisting of
international experts involved in conducting Feasibility studies of
various High Speed Rail corridors of Diamond Quadrilateral.

. HSRC can develop Private Public Partnership (PPP) models for
implementation and financing of High Speed Rail infrastructure
projects

. HSRC is working and learning with international teams having the
requisite skills and experience to implement projects following ADB
procedures and ensuring Resettlement and Rehabilitation of
Project Affected Persons displaced by land acquisition and
implementing socio-economic safeguards.

. It has a sound and robust financial management system, which
allows for effective monitoring and control of expenditure.

Weaknesses

. HSRC has a very small team and has to depend on the parent
organization for manpower.

. HSR is a new subject for officers and staff of even Indian Railways.
Trained People are not available in the market. Officers/staff
deployed need to be trained on the job which is a time consuming
process.

. HSRC has not been empowered to take decisions on all issues
relevantto implementation of the High Speed rail projects.

. HSR projects are highly capital intensive and have long gestation
period and are not favoured by private equity. Thus, such projects
will be few in number and predominantly funded by public money.

Opportunities
. High speed rail project is a niche area and position of HSRC is
unique.

. HSR projects are priority projects forthe Government of India.

. Feasibility study of Mumbai-Ahmedabad corridor is nearing
completion and project can be taken up for execution at a short
notice.

. Feasibility studies for six more corridors of Diamond Quadrilateral
have been taken up and expected to be completed by December
2016.

. HSRC has recently been entrusted with the work of conducting
feasibility studies for six corridors of Diamond Quadrilateral of High
Speed Rail network.

. HSRC has been working as Project Integrator for up-gradation of
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identified existing rail sections to 160 kmph.

. Implementation of projects for Kolkata Metro. This will give HSRC
an opportunity to develop expertise for implementation of metro
projects in new cities across the country.

Threats

. Projects are yetto be sanctioned by the Ministry of Railways.

. The shortage of technical manpower with required experience will
be amajor constraintinthe delivery of projects.

. Availability of funds is a critical requirement for implementation of
projects.

. This over-dependence for sourcing of funds for implementation of
projects may create a financial crisis at any time which may prove
detrimental inthe long term for the company.

. Land acquisition issues require to be resolved expeditiously so that
the progress of projects is not hampered.

. Delays in clearances for project execution, such as forest
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clearance, tree cutting permission, approvals of various
departments for diversion of utilities etc.

. Delays in project delivery may have an adverse impact on the
image of HSRC.

Risks and Concerns

High Speed Rail projects are highly capital intensive. The implementation
of these projects will depend on specific policy directives of the
Government of India.

Internal Control Systems

The internal control system of the Company will be established with the
taking up of operational activities.

Human Resources

The Company has no personnel onits rolls. At present, all activities of the
Company are being managed by personnel of RVNL as additional
responsibilities/duties and based on utilization their part salary is paid by
the Company.
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Annexure — “II”

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1. Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance

Initiatives are being taken to implement Corporate Governance principles and measures as contained in the Guidelines on Corporate Governance
for Central Public Sector Enterprises May 2010 issued by the Department of Public Enterprises.

2. Incorporation

The Company was incorporated on 25th July, 2012 as a Wholly owned Subsidiary of RVNL Ltd. with an Authorized Share Capital of %5 crore and
paid up share capital 0fZ10,74,110. The Holding Company, RVNL, holds the entire paid-up share capital of the Company.

3. Board of Directors
The Board of the Company comprises of four directors namely Shri S. C. Agnihotri, Chairman and Managing Director, RVNL, Shri Mukul Jain,
Director (Operations), RVNL, Shri Ashok K. Ganju, Director (Finance), RVNL and Shri Vijay Anand, Director (Projects), RVNL.
The names and categories of Directors on the Board, number of Directorships and Committee Chairmanship/ Membership held by them in other
companies are as under:

S. No. Name and Category of Directors No. of Directorships/ No. of Committee Membership**
Designation Whole Time / Part Time Chairmanships held =
in public limited As Chairman As Member
companies
excluding HSRC*
1. S. C .Agnihotri Part Time Chairman 1 - -
2. Mukul Jain Part Time Director 1 - 1
3. Ashok K. Ganju Part Time Director 1 - -
4, Vijay Anand Part Time Director 1 - -

* Does not include Directorship in Private Companies, Section 8 Companies and Foreign Companies.

** Does not include Chairmanship / Membership in the Board of Committees other than the Audit Committee and Shareholders’/Grievance
Committees.

3.1 Board Meetings with date and attendance at the Board meetings and Annual General Meeting.
The Board of Directors met 5 times during the year to discuss the operational activities of the Company.

S. No. Name and Designation Board Meetings During the Year Attendance at AGM
8th Board meeting - 30.05.2014
9th Board Meeting - 07.07.2014
10th Board Meeting - 15.07.2014
11th Board Meeting - 21.10.2014
12th Board Meeting - 13.01.2015
Held During tenure Attended
1. Sh. S. C .Agnihotri 5 5 Yes
2. Sh. Mukul Jain 5 5 Yes
3. Sh. Ashok K. Ganju 5 5 Yes
4. Sh. Vijay Anand 5 5 Yes
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Remuneration of Directors
No sitting fee is paid to the part—time Directors.
Code of Conduct

All Directors of the company are whole-time Directors of the holding company, RVNL. They have been following the Code of Conduct laid down by
RVNL.

Committees of the Board of Directors

Audit committee, Remuneration committee etc will be constituted as and when the need arises.

Annual General Meeting

The Company will hold its third Annual General meeting in accordance with the provisions of section 96 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Means of Communication

All important information pertaining to the Company has been mentioned in the Annual Report of the Company containing inter-alia Audited
Financial Statement, Directors’ Report, Report on Corporate Governance which is being circulated to the members and others entitled thereto.
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FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on financial year ended on 31.03.2015

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & Administration ) Rules, 2014.

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

U45204DL2012G0I1239289

Registration Date

24.01.2003

Name of the Company

HIGH SPEED RAIL CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED

Category/Sub-category of the Company

GOVERNMENT COMPANY

Address of the Registered office & contact details

Room No.260,1st Floor, August Kranti Bhawan,
Bhikaji Cama Place, R.K.Puram, New Delhi-110066.

Vi

Whether listed company

Unlisted

Vii

Name , Address & contact details of the Registrar
& Transfer Agent, if any.

N.A.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated

SL | Name & Description of NIC Code of the % to total turnover of the
No.| main products/services Product /service company
1 To enter into & carry on all Business related to High 501 100%

speed Rail systems & other rail based traffic as
approved by Government of India

Ill PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated

S. | Name & Address of the Company CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % OF SHARES APPLICABLE
No. SUBSIDIARY/ HELD SECTION
ASSOCIATE
1 | RAIL VIKAS NIGAM LIMITED U74999DL2003GO0I118633 HOLDING 100% 2(46)
COMPANY
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IV SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as % to total Equity)
(i) Category-wise shareholding

Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % change during
Shareholders the year

Demat Physical Total |% of Total | Demat Physical Total % of Total

Shares Shares

A. Promoters
(1) Indian 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
a) Individual/HUF
b) Central Govt.or State Govt.
c) Bodies Corporates 50,000 100 107,411 100 114
d) Bank/FI
e) Any other
SUB TOTAL:(A) (1)
(2) Foreign
a) NRI- Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Other Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) Banks/Fl 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Any other... 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
SUB TOTAL (A) (2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Shareholding 50,000.00 - | 100.00 - | 107,411.00 - 100.00
of Promoter
(A= AM)+A(2)
B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING
(1) Institutions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Banks/Fl 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
C) Cenntral govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) State Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Venture Capital Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
f) Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
g) FIIS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
h) Foreign Venture 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Capital Funds
i) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
SUB TOTAL (B)(1): 0 0 0
(2) Non Institutions
a) Bodies corporates 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
i) Indian 0
ii) Overseas 0
b) Individuals 0
i) Individual shareholders 0
holding nominal share
capital upto Rs.1 lakhs
ii) Individuals shareholders 0
holding nominal share capital
in excess of Rs. 1 lakhs
c) Others (specify) 0
SUB TOTAL (B)(2): 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Public 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Shareholding
B)= (B)(1)+B)(2)
C. Shares held by 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total (A+B+C) 50,000.00 - | 100.00 - | 107,411.00 - 100.00 114
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(ii) SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS

S. | Shareholders Name Shareholding at the beggining of Shareholding at the end of % change in share
No. the year(As on 01.04.2014) the year(As on 31.03.2015) holding during
the year

No. of shares % of total | % of shares pledged | No. of shares % of total % of shares

shares of the encumbered to shares of the pledged

company total shares company encumbered

to total shares
1 | RAIL VIKAS NIGAM 50000 100 0 107411 100 0 1

LIMITED

Total 50000 100 0 107411 100 0 114

(iii) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' SHAREHOLDING ( SPECIFY IF THERE IS NO CHANGE)

S. Share holding at the beginning of the Year Cumulative Share holding during
No. (As on 01.04.2014) the year (2014-15)
No. of Shares % of total No of shares % of total
shares of shares of
the company the company
1 At the beginning of the year 50000 100 107411 100
(As on 01.04.2014)
2 Date wise increase/decrease in 57411 100 0 0
Promoters Share holding during
the year specifying the reasons for
increase due to allotment
3 | Atthe end of the year 107411 0 107411 100
(As on 31.03.2015)

(IV) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS (OTHER THAN DIRECORS, PROMOTERS & HOLDERS OF GDRS & ADRS)

S. Shareholding at the end of the year Cumulative Share holding during
No. (As on 31.03.2015) the year (2014-15)
For Each of of the Top 10 No. of Shares % of total No of shares % of total
Shareholders shares of shares of
the company the company
1 At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0
(As on 01.04.2014)
2 Date wise increase/decrease in 0 0 0 0
Promoters Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)
3 At the end of the year 0 0 0 0
(As on 31.03.2015)
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(V) SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS & KMP

S. Shareholding at the Cumulative Share holding during

No. end of the year the year
For Each of the No. of Shares % of total No of shares % of total
Directors & KMP shares of shares of

the company the company

1 At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0
(As on 01.04.2014)

2 Date wise increase/decrease in 0 0 0 0

Promoters Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)

3 At the end of the year 0 0 0 0
(As on 31.03.2015

V INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total Indebtedness

excluding deposits Loans
Indebtness at the beginning of
the financial year
(As on 01.04.2014)
i) Principal Amount 0 - - R
i) Interest due but not paid 0 -
iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 - - -
0
Total (i+ii-+iii) 0 - - -
0
Change in Indebtedness during
the financial year
Additions 0 - - -
Reduction 0 - - -
Net Change 0 - - -
Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year(As on 31.03.2015)
i) Principal Amount 0 - - -
i) Interest due but not paid 0 - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) 0 - - -
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VI REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager:
S Particulars of Remuneration Name of the MD/WTD/Manager
No
1 | Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income Tax. 1961. -
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income tax Act, 1961 -
(c ) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 -
2 | Stock option ;
3 | Sweat Equity -
4 | Commission as % of profit others (specify) -
5 | Others, please specify -
Total (A) -
B. Remuneration to other directors:
SI.No | Particulars of Remuneration Name of the Directors
1 Independent Directors
(a) Fee for attending board committee meetings 0 0
(b) Commission 0 0
(c) Others, please specify 0 0
Total (1) 0 0
2 Other Non Executive Directors 0 0
(a) Fee for attending board committee meetings" 0 0
(b) Commission 0 0
(c) Others, please specify. 0 0
Total (2) 0 0
Total (B)=(1+2) 0 0
Total Managerial Remuneration 0 0
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SI. No., Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
1 Gross Salary CEO Company Secretary CFO Total
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 0 0 0 0
section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961.
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the 0 0 0 0
Income Tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 0 0 0 0
17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option 0 0 0 0
3 Sweat Equity 0 0 0 0
4 Commission 0 0 0 0
as % of profit 0 0 0 0
others, specify 0 0 0 0
5 Others, please specify 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0
VIl PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPPOUNDING OF OFFENCES
Type Section of Brief Description Details of Penalty/ Authority Appeal made
the Companies Act Punishment/Compounding (RD/NCLT/Court) if any (give details)
fees imposed
A. COMPANY
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
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HIGH SPEED RAIL CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2015

Particulars

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1  Shareholders’ funds

(a) Share capital

(b) Reserves and surplus

2 Non Current liabilities
(a) Other Long Term liabilities

3 Current liabilities
() Other current liabilities

Total
1. ASSETS

1 Non Current Assets
(a) Fixed assets

(i) Intangible assets
2 Current assets
(a) Cash and Bank Balances
(b) Short-Term Loans and Advances
(c) Project work in Progress

Total

Ill. Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For ASAP & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 005713N

Sd/-
Anil Kumar Jain
Partner
M.No. 084559

Place: New Delhi
Date: 10.08.2015

Note

11016

Sd/-
Ashok K Ganju
Director
DIN:01970462

Amountin¥

Figures as at
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
1,074,110 500,000
(2,920,305) (3,595,247)
- 574,110
61,870,778 36,296,835
60,024,583 33,775,698
931,972 1,222,985
32,813,516 32,369,266
39,047 -
26,240,048 183,447
60,024,583 33,775,698

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Sd/-
Mukul Jain
Director
DIN : 03121180
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HIGH SPEED RAIL CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED
Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31st March 2015

Amount in %
Particulars Note
For The year For The year
Ended March 2015  Ended March 2014

I.  Otherincome 11 1,333,004 8,877

Total Revenue 1,333,004 8,877
Il. Expenses:

(a) Depreciation and amortization 7 291,012 232,077

(b) Other Expenses 12 262,795 2,626,829

Total expenses 553,808 2,858,906
Il Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax (I-I1) 779,196 (2,850,029)
IV.  Exceptional items - -
V. Profit before extraordinary items and tax (Il - IV) 779,196 (2,850,029)
VI. Extraordinary ltems - -
VII. Profit before tax (V- VI) 779,196 (2,850,029)
VIIl. Tax expense:

(1) Current tax 104,254 -

(2) Deferred tax - -
IX.  Profit (Loss) for the period from continuing operations (VII-VIIl) 674,942 (2,850,029)
X.  Profit/(loss) from discontinuing operations - -
XI.  Tax expense of discontinuing operations
XIl. Profit/(loss) from Discontinuing operations (after tax) (X-XI) - -
XIIl. Profit (Loss) for the period (XI + XIV) 674,942 (2,850,029)
XIV. Earnings per equity share:

(1) Basic 8.94 (57.00)

(2) Diluted 6.28 (26.53)
XV. Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements 1t0 16
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
For ASAP & Associates
Chartered Accountants FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
FRN: 005713N

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Anil Kumar Jain Ashok K Ganiju Mukul Jain
Partner Director Director
M.No. 084559 DIN:01970462 DIN : 03121180
Place: New Delhi
Date: 10.08.2015
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HIGH SPEED RAIL CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ending March 31st ,2015

Amount in %
Particulars Note
As at 31 March 2015 As at 31 March 2014
Rupees (3) Rupees ()

A  Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Net profit/(Loss) before Tax & 779,196 (2,850,029)

Interest Income (1,333,004) (8,877)

Add: Depreciation 291,012 232,077

Operating Profit before Working (262,795) (2,626,829)

Capital Changes

Adjustments for :

Add: Increase(Decrease) in Current Liabilities 25,573,943 35,443,432

Less: Decrease in Non Current Liabilities (574,110) -

Less: Increase in Non Current Assets - 674,160

Less: Increase in Project Work in Progress (26,056,601) (183,447)

Less:Increase in Other Current Assets (10,000) -

Less: Income Tax Paid (Net of Refunds) (133,301) -

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (1,462,864) 33,307,316
B  Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Purchase of Fixed Assets/Investments - (1,455,062)

Interest Received 1,333,004 8,877

NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 1,333,004 (1,446,185)
C Cash Flow From Financing Activities

Proceeds from Issue of Equity Share Capital 574,110 -

NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 574,110 -

Net increase/(decrease) in Cash and

Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 444,250 31,861,131

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 8 32,369,266 508,135

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the Period 32,813,516 32,369,266

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprises

Cheques in Hand

Current Accounts 2,13,516

Flexi Deposits 3,26,00,000

32,813,516 32,369,266

1. The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method setout in AS-3 issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

2. This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For ASAP & Associates
Chartered Accountants FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
FRN: 005713N
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Anil Kumar Jain Ashok K Ganju Mukul Jain
Partner Director Director
M.No. 084559 DIN:01970462 DIN : 03121180

Place: New Delhi
Date: 10.08.2015
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HIGH SPEED RAIL CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements

General Information

High Speed Rail Corporation of India Limited is a 100% Wholly
Owned Subsidiary of Rail Vikas Nigam Limited . The Company was
incorporated under the Provisions of the Company Act, 1956 on
July 25, 2012 with the Object of carrying out Business related to
Planning, designing, development, construction, manufacturing,
assembling, fabricating, processing, installing, maintenance,
operation, and financing of Railway Infrastructure and related
logistic support systems, including rolling stock, of all types in
India and abroad of High Speed Rail Projects and other rail based
traffic, as may be approved by Government of India or Rail Vikas
Nigam limited orany other such Competent Authority.

Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in
accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in
India (Indian GAAP). The company has prepared these financial
statements to comply in all material respects with the accounting
standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013,
read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules
2014. The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual
basis and under the historical cost convention. All assets and
liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the
Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of
products and the time between the acquisition of assets for
processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the
Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 5 years for
purpose of current — non-current classification of assets and
liabilities related to project work. Company has selected cycle of 12
months for clasification of other items.

Use of Estimate

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses for the years presented. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Fixed Assets & Depreciation
Tangible Fixed assets

Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at acquisition cost, inclusive of
inward freight, duties, taxes and incidental expenses related to
acquisition.Subsequent expenditures related to an item of fixed

B)

C)

D)
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asset are added to its book value only if they increase the future
benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed
standard of performance. Items of fixed assets that have been
retired from active use and are held for disposal are stated at the
lower of their net book value or net realizable value and are shown
separately in the financial statements. Any expected loss is
recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Losses
arising from the retirement of, and gains or losses arising from
disposal of fixed assets which are carried at cost are recognized in
the Statement of Profitand Loss.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are recognized as per the criteria specified in
Accounting Standard (AS) 26 "Intangible assets" issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountant of India

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on prorata basis on the SLM method over
the estimated useful lives of the assets at the rates prescribed
under Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013

Amortization of intangible Assets.

Intangible Assets are amortised as follow:

Company Logo : Over a period of Five Years on prorata basis
Website Cost : Overa period of Five Years on prorata basis
Impairment

In accordance with Accounting Standard-28 Impairment of Assets
(AS-28), the carrying amounts of Company’s assets are reviewed
at each Balance Sheet date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated as the higher of the net selling
price and the value in use. An impairment loss is recognized
whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount. On the basis of review, the
management is of the opinion that the economic performance of
Fixed Assets of the Company is not worse than expected and
therefore there is no impairment of any assets as on the Balance
Sheet date.

Revenue Recognition

Interest: Interest income on Fixed Deposits with bank's is
recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the
amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

Other items of income are accounted for as and when the right to
receive is established.

Provisions and contingencies

The Company creates a provision when there is a present
obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an
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u



/q

27

28

286

@ faerm fom fafies
Rail Vikas Nigam Limited

Fhdr, T RIfY # emaR¥s SIfiar & Udhed dIR fhar
ST E |

AH<l yarg faawor

AHE Yarg fAavor, "HHhal YdTE fIaRer WR ol 9Ed 3 H
eiRa emeger fafer & sMeR R IR fobar Tar & qer I8
HUAl B IRETe, a9 qorm faaryer Tfafaft | ura
FH<! JaTE B URgd B B |

ufr TR e

I SRR H{S 31T DY T FR ULEd A /BN B a9 B
SR H1aT IR A IRRT A 9T B BT ST & | ufey
¥RR TP A B TUFT TRIRURST BT 9 a¥ Iy S arel

29

2.10

I[E WM BT Y & SR THTAT AT AR R BT AT
HIT SHR P ST 2 |

RS /AR et <

URMAS < q1 IR 9 g 1 ST a9 98 @ H ST
e Strar 8, fora av ug =g fhar smar g |

are] AT Hrd

2y, @] U8d Bl §RT Y DI T3 RIS & A1
YT DI ST Fdhdll 8, S7e [CWvl [T 10 e RASG g
@ SfaEa “aTel uRaATe 1 | Sfde faar ar 2 | fAfaer
P I A uTed B dTen UTfeqat gRATSTHT &Y T 3 hise
BTG E |




2.7

2.8

outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of obligation. A disclosure of a contingent liability is made
where there is a possible obligation that probably will not require an
outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation
can notbe made.

Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the Indirect Method set out
in "Accounting Standard 3" on "Cash Flow Statements" and
presents the Cash Flows from Operating, Investing and Financing
activities of the Company.

Earning Per Share

Basic earning per share is computed by dividing the profit/loss after
tax by the number of weighted average shares outstanding during

2.9
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the year. Diluted earning per share is calculated by dividing the net
profit for the year attributable to equity shareholder by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period
adjusted forall potential equity shares.

Preliminary/ Share issue expenses

Preliminary expenses and Share issue Expenses are fully written
offinthe yearin which they areincurred.

Project Workin Progress

Expenditure which can be directly identified with the Project
undertaken by the company is debited to “Project Work in
Progress” Under Note 10 'Incidental expenditure". Receipt from
sale of tender s credited to cost of projects.
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NOTE 3 Share Capital
Particulars As at 31 March 2015 As at 31 March 2014
(Amount in ) (Amount in)
Authorized
50,00,000 Equity Shares of 310 each 50,000,000 50,000,000
Issued
107411 Equity Shares of 310 each 1,074,110 500,000
(Previous Year 50000 Equity Shares of 310 each
Subscribed & Paid up
Equity Shares fully paid 107411 at 310 per equity share 1,074,110 500,000
(Previous Year 50000 Equity Shares of 10 each)
Total 1,074,110 500,000

NOTE 3.1 Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Particulars Equity Shares
Number (Amount in %)
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 50,000 500,000
Shares Issued during the year 57,411 574,110
Shares bought back during the year -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 107,411 1,074,110

NOTE 3.2

The Company is a 100% Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (along with 6 Nominees of Holding Company). Rail Vikas Nigam
Limited holds 107405 shares &its Nominee holds 6 shares, Face value of share is ¥10 each.

NOTE 3.3

The Company has only one class of equity shares referred to as equity shares having at par value of ¥10/-. Each holder of one equity share is
entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares shall be entitled to receive any of the
remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts.

NOTE 3.4 Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

Particulars As at 31 March 2015
No. of Shares held % of Holding
Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (along with 6 Nominees) -Holding 107,411 100%
Company ( 107411 shares fully paid up @ %10/- per share)
Total 107,411 100%
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Particulars As at 31 March 2015 As at 31 March 2014
Numbers Numbers
Equity shares allotted as fully paid-up for 57,411 -
consideration other than cash
Total 57,411 -
NOTE 4 Reserves & Surplus
Particulars As at 31 March 2015 As at 31 March 2014
(Amount in ) (Amount in<)

Profit & Loss
Opening balance -3,595,247 -745,218
Add : Profit/ (Loss) For the Period 674,942 -2,850,029
Closing Balance -2,920,305 -3,595,247

NOTE 5 Other Long Term Liabilities

Particulars As at 31 March 2015 As at 31 March 2014
(Amount in %) (Amount in)
Others - 574,110
Total - 574,110

5.1 Above Liabilities of Rs. 5,74,110 appearing in previous represent Preliminary Expenses incurred by Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (Holding
Company). The same has been converted into share capital instrument during the year.

NOTE 6 Other Current Liabilities

Particulars

As at 31 March 2015

As at 31 March 2014

(Amount in %)

(Amount in<)

Statutory Liabilities 48,073 12,000
Advance from Ministry of Railways for Project feasibility study 30,000,000 30,000,000
Other Payables 28,306,536 4,284,835
Earnest Money Deposit & Security Deposits 3,516,169 2,000,000
Total 61,870,778 36,296,835
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Particulars

As at 31 March 2015

As at 31 March 2014

(Amount in %)

(Amount in %)

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:

Current Account 213,516 219,266
Flexi Deposits 32,600,000 2,150,000
Cheques In Hands - 30,000,000
Total 32,813,516 32,369,266

Note 9 : Short-term loans and advances

Particulars As at 31 March 2015 As at 31 March 2014
(Amount in %) (Amount in %)
Other loans and advances Unsecured, considered good
Advance Tax & TDS (Net) 29,047 -
Other Advances 10,000 -
Total 39,047 -
NOTE 10
Particulars As at 1st April 2014 Additions As at 1st April 2015
(Amount in %) (Amount in ) (Amount in )

Project work In progress
PPE(Incidental Expenses) 303,447 583,428 886,875
Preliminary Project Expenditure - 813,183 813,183
Incidental Expenditure 24,819,990 24,819,990
Less: Sale of Tender -120,000 -160,000 -280,000
Total 183,447 26,056,601 26,240,048

NOTE 11 Other Income

Particulars

For The year Ended March 2015

For The year Ended March 2014

(Amount in<)

(Amount in)

Interest on Flexi Account

1,333,004

8,877

Total

1,333,004

8,877
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TAUHIRHT @l IR ¥ YA g1 98+ fdy 0 =g 28,091,772 3,483,919
15.3 Hdfera wifidal & som@m Ay
wdfera urdt &1 ™ 31 91 2015 HI 31 A1 2014 ®I
(RIfr 2 ) (IRrz )
Y faera fim fafics RRIAR) 28,034,512 4,719,978
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NOTE 12 Other expenses
Particulars For The year Ended March 2015 | For The year Ended March 2014
(Amount in<) (Amount in %)

Legal & Professional Fees 90,188 109,016
Business Promotion - 2,391,543
Office Expenses 93,871 42,833
Payment to Auditors: -

As Auditors - Statutory Audit 78,652 67,416
Repair & Maintenance Expenses - 14,960
Miscellaneous Expenses - 1,061
Bank charges 84 -
Total 262,795 2,626,829

NOTE12.1: Asonbalance sheet date High Speed Rail Corporation of India Limited does not have any staff, premises or other administrative resources
for day to day operations of company. All day to day operations of company are being carried by RVNL accordingly RVNL has charged
proportionate costtowards administrative expensesto HSRC

NOTE13:  There are no reported Micro, Small and Medium enterprises as defined in the “The Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act

2006” to whomthe company owes dues.

NOTE14:  Other Disclosures
Expenditure in Foreign Currency - 78,78,548/- (Previous Year Nil)

NOTE 15 Related Party Disclosures

151 Related Parties & Nature of Relationship
Name of Related Party Nature of Relationship
Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (RVNL) Holding Company
Satish Chandra Agnihotri Director
Vijay Anand Director
Ashok Krishna Ganju Director
Mukul Jain Director

Note 15.2 : Disclosure of transaction with related parties

Name of the related Party

As at 31 March 2015

As at 31 March 2014

(Amount in %)

(Amount in <)

Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (RVNL)
Conversion of outstanding liabilities into share capital
Expenditure Incurred by RVNL on behalf of HSRC

574,110
28,091,772

3,483,919

15.3 Outstanding balances of related parties

Name of the related Party

As at 31 March 2015

As at 31 March 2014

(Amount in %)

(Amount in <)

Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (RVNL)

28,034,512

4,719,978
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16. Previous year's figures have been regrouped and rearranged, wherever necessary to make comparable with those of the current year.

These are the notes referred to in Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit & Loss and our report of even date.

For ASAP & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 005713N

Sd/-
Anil Kumar Jain
Partner

M.No. 084559
Place: New Delhi
Date: 10.08.2015

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Sd/- Sd/-
Ashok K Ganju Mukul Jain
Director Director
DIN:01970462 DIN : 03121180
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ASAP & ASSOCIATES 1. Temple Complex, Shiv Mandir,

@( Chartered Accountants Tilak Bridge, New Delhi - 110001
OFFICE PHONE : 011-2337 1637, 2337 1937

Email : info@asap.net.in

Website : www.asap.net.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To

The Members of

High Speed Rail Corporation of India Limited
Report onthe Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of High Speed Rail Corporation of India Limited(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at 31March, 2015,the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Ourresponsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit
reportunder the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating
effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.
Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information

required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view inconformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31March, 2015, and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the
Act, we give inthe Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(@)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief wer necessary for the
purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those
books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on31March, 2015and taken on record by the Board of Directors,
none of the directors is disqualified as on 31March, 2015 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations givento us:

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;
The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.
There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
For ASAP & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 005713N)

Anil Jain

Place:- New Deihi, Partner
Date:-10.08.2015 (MNo.84559 )
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Inrespect of its fixed assets:

(@  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b)  The Company has an efficient program of verification of fixed assets to cover all the items , which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain fixed assets were physically verified by the
Management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

The Company does not have any inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3 (ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties covered in the Register maintained under

Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us there is an adequate internal control system commensurate with the
size of the Company and the nature of its business with regard to purchase of fixed assets. The Company’s operations did not give rise to purchase
of inventory and sale of goods during the current year. During the course of our audit, we have not observed any major weakness in such internal
control system.

According to the information and explanations givento us, the Company has not accepted any deposit during the year. The Company does not have
any unclaimed depoists and accordingly, the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 forthe Company.

According to the information and explanations givento us in respect of statutory dues:

(@  The Company has been generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Income-tax, Service Tax,
Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

(b)  There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Income-tax, Service Tax,Cess and other material statutory dues
duesinarrears as at March 31, 2015 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

We are informed that the operations of the Company during the year did not give rise to any liability for Employees State Insurance, Sales Tax,
Wealth Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty and Value Added Tax.

(c)  We are informed that there are no dues in respect of Income Tax, Service Tax and Cess which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute

(d)  There are no amounts that are due to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund in accordance with the relevant provisions
of the Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956) and Rules made thereunder.

The Company does not have accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and the Company has notincurred cash losses during the financial
year covered by our audit and in the immediately preceding financial year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, the Company has not taken any loans from financial
institutions and banks nor has itissued any debentures. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given guarantees for loans taken by others from banks and
financial institutions.

Based on the examination of the books of account and related records and according to the information and explanations provided to us, no term
loans were obtained by the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

For ASAP & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 005713N)

Anil Jain

Place:- New Delhi, Partner
Date:-10.08.2015 (MNo.84559 )
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Confidential
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BT T e9d of@T uReT, Yerd—arforioad
BIBAT, TR X, foatd fas1, 78 feeei—110 002

INDIAN AUDIT AND ACCOUNTS DEPARTMENT
OFFICE OF THE PRINCIPAL DIRECTOR AUDIT
(RL-COMMERCIAL) COFMOW, INDIAN RAILWAYS,
TILAK BRIDGE, NEW DELHI- 110002

No. PDA/RC/PSU/32-21/HSRC/2015-16/390 Dated: 11.09.2015

To

The Chief Financial Officer,

High Speed Rail Corporation of India Limited,

Room No. 260, 1st Floor, August Kranti Bhavan,
Bikaji Cama Place, R.K.Puram, New Delhi— 110 066

Subject: Comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India under Section 143(6)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 onthe Financial Statements o0 f
High Speed Rail Corporation of India Limited, New Delhi for the year ended 31st March 2015.
Sir,

The Nil Comments Certificate under Section 143(6)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 on the Financial Statements of High Speed Rail
Corporation of India Limited, New Delhi for the year 2014-15 is enclosed. The Nil Comments Certificate on the Financial Statements may be placed
before the Annual General Meeting along with Financial Statements of the Company in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Six
copies of the printed Annual Report of the Company may please be sent to this office the earliest.

Receipt of the letter may please be acknowledged.

Yours faithfully,

Encl: As above sd/-
(Dinesh Bhargav)
Principal Director of Audit
(Railway Commercial)
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT,2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF HIGH SPEED RAIL CORPORATION OF INDIA

LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2015

The preparation of financial statements of HIGH SPEED RAIL
CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED, New Delhi for the year ended 31
March 2015 in accordance with the financial reporting framework
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 is the responsibility of the
management of the company. The statutory auditors appointed by the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 139(5) of the Act
are responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under
section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with
standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is
stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 10-08-2015.

Place: New Delhi
Date: 11-09-2015
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I, on the behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have
conducted a supplementary audit under section 143(6)(a) of the Act of
the financial statements of HIGH SPEED RAIL CORPORATION OF INDIA
LIMITED for the year ended 31 March 2015. This supplementary audit
has been carried out independently without access to the working papers
of the statutory auditors is limited primarily to inquires of the statutory
auditors and company personnel and a selective examination of some of
the accounting records. On the basis of my audit nothing significant has
come to my knowledge which would give rise to any comment upon or
supplementto statutory auditors’ report.

For and on the behalf of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Sd/-
(Dinesh Bhargav)
Principal Director of Audit
(Railway Commercial)
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